
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
NOVEMBER 9, 2009 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 
 

   

 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

 



NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

November 9, 2009 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:    Father Ron Jozwiak – St. Elizabeth Ann 
Seton Catholic Church 1 

INSTALLATION CEREMONY:  2009-2011 City Council Convenes: a) Installation of 
New Members; b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure; c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem
 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 2 

A-1 Presentations: 2 

a) Library Update – Troy Public Library Annual Report 2008-2009 .......................... 2 
b) Mayor Schilling to present a Proclamation to Pam Brady in Recognition of 

America Recycles 2009 ........................................................................................ 2 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 2 

B-1 No Carryover Items 2 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2010 Application 2 

C-2 Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing 
Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital – Troy 3 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 
 

   

POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

D-1 Nomination and Appointment to Personnel Board 4 

D-2 Scheduling of a Special Election for February 23, 2010 and Direct City 
Administration to Prepare Ballot Language 5 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  (a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
Scheduled (b) City Council Appointments: Liquor Advisory Committee 5 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations:  Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) (b) City Council 
Nominations:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Employee Retirement System Board of 
Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic District Commission; 
Historic District Study Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & 
Recreation Board; Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG); 
Troy Daze Committee; and Youth Council 6 

E-3 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 103 – Alarm 
Ordinance; Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required; and Chapter 88 – Nuisances 9 

a) Adoption of Troy City Code Chapter 103 – Alarm Ordinance ............................... 9 
b) Amendment of Troy City Code Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required ............. 9 
c) Amendment to Troy City Code Chapter 88 – Nuisances .................................... 10 

E-4 Bid Waiver – Printing of Election and Voter Registration Materials 10 

E-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 11 

CONSENT AGENDA: 11 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 11 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 12 



 
 

   

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 12 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 12 

a) America Recycles 2009 ...................................................................................... 12 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 12 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Elevator 
Weight Tests, Relief Valve Testing, Bi-Monthly Inspection, and Repairs ........... 12 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Hall and Banquet 
Services .............................................................................................................. 13 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  US Communities Government 
Purchasing Alliance Program – Landscape Structures, Inc. ............................... 13 

F-5 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – HCR Manorcare Properties, 
LLC – Sidwell #88-20-03-102-022 13 

F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – Kirts Office Center 
Associates, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-28-101-054 14 

F-7 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Construction 
Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Wattles Road, 1000’ East and 
West of Rochester Road – Project No. 99.203.5 14 

F-8 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Construction 
Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Rochester Road from Torpey to 
Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 14 

F-9 2009 Request to Waive Recapture Form 15 

F-10 Request to Permit Use of Shell Crackers to Disperse Migratory Waterfowl – 
Emerald Lakes Subdivision 15 

F-11 Request from Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a New SDM License with 
Drive-up Window (without alcoholic beverage sales) to be Located at 2932 East 
Long Lake – MLCC Request #521903 16 

F-12 Request from Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a new SDM License with 
Drive-up Window (without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 1965 E Big 
Beaver – MLCC Request #521882 16 



 
 

   

F-13 Contract Award:  Informal Quote Process – Snow Removal Rental Equipment 
Including Operators 17 

F-14 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 21, 2009 18 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 19 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 19 

G-2 Memorandums: 19 

a) City of Troy v Chowdhury/Proposed Amendment to Chapter 98 – Criminal 
Code ................................................................................................................... 19 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 19 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 19 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 19 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 19 

REPORTS: 20 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 20 

a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Amended/Final – April 8, 2009 ........ 20 
b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 27, 2009 ................................... 20 
c) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – August 12, 2009 .................. 20 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 9, 2009. 20 
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 14, 2009 ................................... 20 
f) Historic Commission/Final – September 29, 2009 ............................................. 20 
g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 6, 2009 ...................................... 20 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 6, 2009 ........................... 20 
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 6, 2009 ........................... 20 
j) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – October 12, 2009 ........................................ 20 
k) Planning Commission/Draft – October 13, 2009 ................................................ 20 
l) Planning Commission/Final – October 13, 2009 ................................................ 20 
m) Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 15, 2009 ............................................... 20 
n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 27, 2009 ................................. 20 



 
 

   

J-2 Department Reports: 20 

a) City Council Expense Report – October, November 2009 ................................. 20 
b) Building Department – Permits Issued September 2009 .................................... 20 
c) City Manager’s Office – September 30, 2009 Quarterly Financial Report .......... 20 
d) Golf Course Monthly Operations Summary for September 2009 ....................... 20 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 20 

a) Letter of Thanks to Kraig Schmottlach from Golf Course Patron Chris 
Coussens Regarding the Excellent Service Received from the Sylvan Glen 
Golf Course Staff ................................................................................................ 20 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Chief Nelson Regarding the 
Assistance and Support during Funeral for Fire Staff Technician Jack 
Schoenbeck ........................................................................................................ 20 

c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Old Navy Leadership Team Regarding 
Support during Kids Safety Event ....................................................................... 20 

d) Telephone Call from Strathmore Village Resident Beryl Bradick in 
Appreciation of the Outstanding Service of the Police Department .................... 20 

e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Royal Oak Police Chief Jahnke 
Regarding the Police Department Support at the 2009 Woodward Dream 
Cruise ................................................................................................................. 20 

f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Resident Victor Sandy Regarding the 
Efforts of the Police Department during Home Invasion ..................................... 20 

g) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Hills of Charnwood Homeowners 
Association ......................................................................................................... 20 

h) Letter of Appreciation from Taniel Nishanian Regarding Tringali Sanitation ...... 20 
i) Letter of Appreciation from the Family of Renee Barr Regarding the 

Professionalism and Kindness of Police Officers ............................................... 20 
j) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Peggy Ruffin Commending the 

Actions of Officer Giordano ................................................................................ 20 
k) Letter of Appreciation to Timothy Richnak from Bob Schultz, Courtwood Villa 

Condominium Association President, Regarding the Dedication and Positive 
Attitudes of Public Works Staff ........................................................................... 20 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 21 

a) Village of Beverly Hills Resolution Opposing the Elimination of 20J Funding 
for Certain School Districts ................................................................................. 21 

b) City of Royal Oak Resolution Opposing House Bill 5056 ................................... 21 
c) City of Royal Oak Resolution Requesting Local Control be Retained if House 

Bill 5056 Passes ................................................................................................. 21 

J-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – September 17, 2009 21 

J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program 
Year 2009 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 21 



 
 

   

J-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Stephanie Cobb v 
City of Troy d/b/a/ The Northridge Office Center 21 

J-8  Communication from City Council Member Robin Beltramini Regarding NLC 
Finance, Administration and Intergovernmental Relations Steering Committee 
Meeting 21 

J-9  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding Reimbursement 
Revenue 21 

J-10  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Regarding Class C 
Liquor License Transfer out of Troy – Paragon of Michigan 2360 Rochester Road 21 

J-11  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Regarding Wal-Mart 
Approval of Appeal 21 

J-12  Rules of Procedure for the Charter Revision Committee 21 

J-13  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Article on 
Constitutional and Charter Revision 21 

J-14  Communication from Library Director Cathleen Russ Regarding Drive-up Materials 
Return at the Troy Public Library 21 

STUDY ITEMS: 21 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 21 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 22 

CLOSED SESSION: 22 

L-1  No Closed Session Requested 22 

ADJOURNMENT 22 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 22 

Monday, November 23, 2009 Regular City Council ............................................... 22 



 
 

   

Monday, December 7, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................. 22 
Monday, December 21, 2009 Regular City Council ............................................... 22 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:    Father Ron Jozwiak – St. Elizabeth 
Ann Seton Catholic Church 

INSTALLATION CEREMONY:  2009-2011 City Council Convenes: a) Installation of 
New Members; b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure; c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 

(a) Installation of New Members 
 
Members of the City Council who begin new terms will be administered the Oath of Office. 
 
ROLL CALL 
  
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 
(b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby (ADOPTS or AMENDS) the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council of the City of Troy as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Council’s Rules of Procedure address the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem as follows: 
 

1. Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 

The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat 
rotation in the following order: Wade Fleming, Robin Beltramini, Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis, Dane Slater, and Martin Howrylak. 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 2 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS _______________ to serve as Mayor 
Pro Tem for the City Council of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No:  
 
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) Library Update – Troy Public Library Annual Report 2008-2009 
b) Mayor Schilling to present a Proclamation to Pam Brady in Recognition of America 

Recycles 2009 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2010 Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by   
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County is preparing an Annual Action Plan to meet application 
requirements for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and other 
Community Planning and Development (CPD) programs;  
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has requested CDBG-eligible projects from participating 
communities for inclusion in the Action Plan;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has duly advertised and conducted a public hearing on November 
09, 2009 for the purpose of receiving public comments regarding the proposed use of PY 2010 
Community Development Block Grant funds (CDBG) in the approximate amount of 
$167,960.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy found that the following projects meet the federal objectives of the 
CDBG program and are prioritized by the community as high priority need: 
 

Account Number Project Name Amount 
172170-730744  Flood Drain Improvements  $115,072.00 
172160-732170 Public Services (Yard Services) $  50,388.00 
172140-730789 General Program Administration $    2,500.00 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 3 - 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City of 
Troy CDBG application be submitted to Oakland County for inclusion in Oakland County’s 
Annual Action Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute all documents, agreements, or contracts 
which result from this application to Oakland County. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing 

Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital – Troy   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority (the “Authority”) proposes to 
make loans to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”), to be used, in part, by the Hospital 
to (1) finance the construction, acquisition, renovation, equipping, rehabilitation and/or improve 
hospital facilities in the City of Troy, Michigan and (2) refinance indebtedness used to finance 
the construction, renovation and equipping of certain hospital facilities in the City of Troy, 
Michigan;  
 
WHEREAS, The Authority intends to issue City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group) and Hospital Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group), in one or more series (the 
“Bonds”) on behalf of the Hospital in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 
$305,000,000 to provide funds with which to make loans to the Hospital;  
 
WHEREAS, The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority and will not constitute 
general obligations or debt of the City of Royal Oak, the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, 
the State of Michigan or any political subdivision thereof;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has held a public hearing after notice was published as provided 
in, and in satisfaction of the applicable public hearing requirements of, the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);  
 
WHEREAS, A record of public hearing will be maintained with the City Clerk;  
 
WHEREAS, The Authority has requested that this City Council approve the issuance of the 
Bonds by the Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to express its approval of the issuance 
of the Bonds by the Authority;  
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TROY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 4 - 

1. Solely for the purpose of fulfilling the public approval requirements of the Code, 
the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the issuance, sale and 
delivery of not to exceed $305,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds by the Authority. 

 
2. The City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to provide three (3) certified copies of this 

resolution to the Secretary of the Authority. 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Nomination and Appointment to Personnel Board   
 
a) City Council Nomination 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby NOMINATES Ann M. Comiskey for consideration 
for appointment to the Personnel Board with an unexpired term of April 30, 2011. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) City Council Appointment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Personnel Board with an unexpired term of April 30, 2011 as indicated: 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: NOMINATIONS 
Gerard T. Staeger  Ann M. Comiskey 

Schilling    
Beltramini    
Fleming    
Howrylak    
Kerwin     

McGinnis    
Slater    

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
D-2 Scheduling of a Special Election for February 23, 2010 and Direct City 

Administration to Prepare Ballot Language  
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a February 23, 2010 Special 
Election for voters to vote on a proposed millage question and DIRECTS City Administration to 
draft ballot language with a proposed millage rate increase of 1.9 mills for the next five years, to 
be utilized to restore Public Safety and Quality of Life venues, with the language to be provided 
to the City Council on the next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for Council Action. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  (a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
Scheduled (b) City Council Appointments: Liquor Advisory Committee      

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 6 - 

appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 
a) Mayoral Appointments – None Scheduled 
 
b)        City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) - Student 1-Year Term 
 
Lauren E. Harden - Student Term Expires 07/01/2010 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations:  Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) (b) City Council 
Nominations:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Employee Retirement System Board of 
Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic District Commission; 
Historic District Study Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & 
Recreation Board; Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG); 
Troy Daze Committee; and Youth Council  

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval - Council Alternates (2) - Term expires with term of office 
 

City Council Alternate Term Expires 11/11/2013 
 

City Council Alternate Term Expires 11/11/2013 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons w/Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms: 3-Regular-w/disabilities; 3-Regular-general populace; 
3-Regular in need of transportation  
(3-Alternate) - 3-Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/2011 
  
 Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 
  
 Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 
  
 Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 
  
 Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 
  

Alternate Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 
  

Alternate Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council  (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 8 - 

 Unexpired Term 04/30/2012 
 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Appointed by Council - City Council Representative 
  
 Unexpired Term 04/15/2010 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms; Student – 1-Year Term 
(All Troy residents; at least 2 chosen by a duly organized history group & 1 architect, if 
available.) 
 

Student Term Expires 07/01/2010 
  

Architect (if available) Unexpired Term 05/15/2012 
 
Historic District Study Committee 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular-Ad Hoc) - 3-Year Terms (1-Historic District Comm. Member;   
& 1-Local Historic Preservation Organization) 
  
 Ad Hoc 
  
 Ad Hoc 
  

Historical Society Member Ad Hoc 
  

Historic District Comm. Member Ad Hoc 
Note: Historic District Commission notified and will forward their recommendation asap. 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
  
 Unexpired Term 01/31/2012 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms 
  
Jeffrey Stewart - Troy Daze Rep.** Term Expires 11/30 /2010 
**Rec’d resolution recommendation from Troy Daze Committee; Requests reappointment 
 
Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 
Appointed by Council  (1-Delgate & 1-Alternate) Appointment Every Odd Year Election   
  

Delegate Term Expires 11/08 /2011 
  

Alternate Term Expires 11/08 /2011 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 9 - 

 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council  (9-Regular) 3-Year Terms 
  

 Term Expires 11/30/2012 
  

 Term Expires 11/30/2012 
  
 Term Expires 11/30/2012 

 
Youth Council 
Appointed by Council (13 Regular) - Student 1-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 06/01/2010 
 
 Term Expires 06/01/2010 
 
Yes: 
No: 

E-3 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 103 – Alarm 
Ordinance; Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required; and Chapter 88 – Nuisances  

 
a) Adoption of Troy City Code Chapter 103 – Alarm Ordinance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to add Chapter 103, Alarm 
Ordinance, of the Troy City Code as recommended by the City Management, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
b) Amendment of Troy City Code Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the Troy City Code as recommended by the City Management, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

Yes:  
No: 
 
c) Amendment to Troy City Code Chapter 88 – Nuisances  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 88, 
Nuisances, of the Troy City Code, as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-4 Bid Waiver – Printing of Election and Voter Registration Materials 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. provides Election related supplies and printed materials that 
comply with State of Michigan standards;  
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. has provided the City of Troy with the required materials as 
a result of the lowest quote and regularly as the only vendor able to provide the materials 
requested in the quotes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. holds the contract for ballot printing and supply kits with 
Oakland County and it is desirable to utilize Printing Systems, Inc. for ballot folding and 
specialized forms in conjunction with the County procurement;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and AUTHORIZES the purchase of printing of election and voter registration 
materials from Printing Systems, Inc. at an estimated cost of $40,000.00 per fiscal year, 
through December 31, 2012.  
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 11 - 

 
E-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2009-2010 Winter Maintenance 
Agreement between the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy for snow 
and ice control of certain primary and local roads, which are described and outlined in Exhibit 
A; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the necessary documents, and a  copy of this agreement, which is 
authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.), shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  
 
F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 12 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11-  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of October 19, 2009 as submitted. 
 
F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
a) America Recycles 2009 
 
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Elevator Weight 

Tests, Relief Valve Testing, Bi-Monthly Inspection, and Repairs       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
WHEREAS, On November 13, 2006, a three-year contract to provide elevator weight tests, 
relief valve testing, bi-monthly inspections and repairs with an option to renew for an additional 
three (3) years at four municipal buildings was awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, 
Elevator Technology, Inc. of Detroit, Michigan (Resolution #2006-11-333-E-4c); and 
 
WHEREAS, Elevator Technology, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and EXERCISES 
the option to renew the contract with Elevator Technology, Inc. to provide elevator inspection, 
weight testing, maintenance and repairs under the same prices, terms, and conditions for three-
years at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 25, 2006, to expire 
December 31, 2012. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 13 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Hall and Banquet 
Services       

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract beginning with 
fiscal year 2009/2010 to provide Hall and Banquet Services with an option to renew for three 
additional years to the highest rated bidder, the American Polish Cultural Center of Troy, MI, as 
a result of a best value process, which City Council has determined best serves the public 
interest at a cost of $39.00 per plate including gratuity for the Fire Appreciation Banquet and 
$20.00 per plate including gratuity for the Employee Holiday Party, as long as the events are 
budgeted annually for the Fire Appreciation Banquet, and funded through commissions from 
vending machines and ticket sales for the Employee Holiday Party; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of properly 
executed proposal and contract documents, including the Agreement, insurance certificates and 
all other specified requirements; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the Agreement pertaining to this contract, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  US Communities Government Purchasing 

Alliance Program – Landscape Structures, Inc.       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase climbing 
boulder play equipment along with engineered wood fiber safety surface through the US 
Communities Government Purchasing Alliance Program Contract #040377 with Landscape 
Structures, Inc. for an estimated total cost of $53,982.00, as detailed in project proposal #09-
600A, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and funded 
through the Community Development Block Grant Program; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed insurance certificate(s) and any other specified requirements.   
  
F-5 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – HCR Manorcare Properties, 

LLC – Sidwell #88-20-03-102-022 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main from HCR Manorcare Properties, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-03-
102-022; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 14 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
  
F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – Kirts Office Center 

Associates, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-28-101-054   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main from Kirts Office Center Associates, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-
28-101-054; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
  
F-7 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Construction 

Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Wattles Road, 1000’ East and West 
of Rochester Road – Project No. 99.203.5   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Subcontract between the City 
of Troy and Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for construction engineering services for the 
reconstruction and widening of Wattles Road, 1,000’ East and West of Rochester Road, at an 
estimated cost of $310,458.27, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
  
F-8 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Construction 

Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Rochester Road from Torpey to 
Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Subcontract between the City 
of Troy and Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for construction engineering services for the 
reconstruction and widening of Rochester Road, from Torpey to Barclay, at an estimated cost 
of $1,241,042.95, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 15 - 

 
F-9 2009 Request to Waive Recapture Form   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th);  
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation;  
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2007 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, Troy may protect unobligated 2007 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver; and 
 
WHEREAS, A separate waiver request form must be submitted for each 2007 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than 
Monday, December 14, 2009; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS to waive 
recapture of 2007 CDBG funds as follows: 
 

Account Number Project Name Amount 
730744  Flood Drain Improvements  $92,641.00 
732170 Yard Services $70,000.00 

 
F-10 Request to Permit Use of Shell Crackers to Disperse Migratory Waterfowl – 

Emerald Lakes Subdivision   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the provisions of Chapter 98, Section 
98.07.02 of the Code of the City of Troy relative to the use of shell crackers to frighten and 
disperse waterfowl away from the Emerald Lakes Village subdivisions, provided that authorized 
persons of the Homeowners Association shall adhere to the following procedures: 

 
1. Shell crackers shall not be discharged before 7:00 a.m. and not after dark in the 

evening; 
2. The permitee(s) shall notify the Police Communications Section prior to discharging 

the shell crackers and shall provide the police with his/her name(s) and phone 
number(s); 

3. A violation of either of the above limitations shall be cause for immediate revocation 
of the City authorization; 

4. Authorization shall expire December 31, 2011. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 16 - 

 
F-11 Request from Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a New SDM License with 

Drive-up Window (without alcoholic beverage sales) to be Located at 2932 East 
Long Lake – MLCC Request #521903 

 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window (without 
alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 2932 East Long Lake, Troy, MI 48085 Oakland 
County {MLCC Request #521903} “above all others”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
Yes:     
No: 
   
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation), for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window 
(without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 2932 East Long Lake, Troy, MI 48085 
Oakland County, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:     
No:   
 
F-12 Request from Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a new SDM License with 

Drive-up Window (without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 1965 E Big 
Beaver – MLCC Request #521882 

 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 17 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window (without 
alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 1965 E Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083 Oakland County 
{MLCC Request #521882} “above all others”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
Yes:     
No: 
   
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation), for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window 
(without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 1965 E Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083 Oakland 
County, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:     
No:   
 
F-13 Contract Award:  Informal Quote Process – Snow Removal Rental Equipment 

Including Operators   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contract(s) to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional season utilizing an informal quote process to the following vendors at the 
hourly rates contained in Appendix A, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting: 
 

Company Name Location 
Florence Cement Company  Shelby Township, MI  
Diponio Contracting Shelby Township, MI 
Sterling Topsoil and Grading Fraser, MI 
ABC Paving Company Trenton, MI 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 18 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to 
extend the hourly contract prices to other contractors, after the successful bidders have been 
employed, to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contracts will expire April 15, 2010, and are 
CONTINGENT upon submission of properly executed contract documents, including insurance 
certificates, agreements, and all other specified requirements, and Troy City Council hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreements, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
  
F-14 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 21, 2009   
 
a) Installation of STOP Sign on Southbound Ruthland at Kirk Lane 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. _______ 
be issued for the installation of a STOP sign on southbound Ruthland at Kirk Lane. 
 
b) Installation of STOP Sign on Norton at Quill Creek 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. _______ 
be issued for the installation of a STOP sign on Norton at Quill Creek. 
 
c) Installation of STOP Sign on Marengo at Norton 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. _______ 
be issued for the installation of a STOP sign on Marengo at Norton. 
 
d) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 3039 Rochester Road 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 3039 Rochester Road as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 
 
e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 925 W. South Boulevard 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 19 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 925 W. South Boulevard as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 
 
f) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 791 W. Big Beaver  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 791 W. Big Beaver as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 
 
g) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 1026 Maplelawn 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 1026 Maplelawn as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
G-2 Memorandums:    
a) City of Troy v Chowdhury/Proposed Amendment to Chapter 98 – Criminal Code  
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
 
H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 20 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Amended/Final – April 8, 2009  
b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 27, 2009 
c) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – August 12, 2009  
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 9, 2009 
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 14, 2009  
f) Historic Commission/Final – September 29, 2009  
g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 6, 2009 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 6, 2009  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 6, 2009 
j) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – October 12, 2009  
k) Planning Commission/Draft – October 13, 2009  
l) Planning Commission/Final – October 13, 2009 
m) Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 15, 2009 
n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 27, 2009  
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City Council Expense Report – October, November 2009  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued September 2009  
c) City Manager’s Office – September 30, 2009 Quarterly Financial Report  
d) Golf Course Monthly Operations Summary for September 2009 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Kraig Schmottlach from Golf Course Patron Chris Coussens 

Regarding the Excellent Service Received from the Sylvan Glen Golf Course Staff  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Chief Nelson Regarding the Assistance and 

Support during Funeral for Fire Staff Technician Jack Schoenbeck  
c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Old Navy Leadership Team Regarding Support 

during Kids Safety Event  
d) Telephone Call from Strathmore Village Resident Beryl Bradick in Appreciation of the 

Outstanding Service of the Police Department  
e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Royal Oak Police Chief Jahnke Regarding the 

Police Department Support at the 2009 Woodward Dream Cruise  
f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Resident Victor Sandy Regarding the Efforts of the 

Police Department during Home Invasion  
g) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Hills of Charnwood Homeowners Association     
h) Letter of Appreciation from Taniel Nishanian Regarding Tringali Sanitation  
i) Letter of Appreciation from the Family of Renee Barr Regarding the Professionalism and 

Kindness of Police Officers  
j) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Peggy Ruffin Commending the Actions of 

Officer Giordano  
k) Letter of Appreciation to Timothy Richnak from Bob Schultz, Courtwood Villa 

Condominium Association President, Regarding the Dedication and Positive Attitudes of 
Public Works Staff 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 21 - 

   
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Village of Beverly Hills Resolution Opposing the Elimination of 20J Funding for Certain 

School Districts  
b) City of Royal Oak Resolution Opposing House Bill 5056 
c) City of Royal Oak Resolution Requesting Local Control be Retained if House Bill 5056 

Passes  
  

J-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – September 17, 2009 
 
J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program 

Year 2009 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds  
 
J-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Stephanie Cobb v 

City of Troy d/b/a/ The Northridge Office Center 
 
J-8  Communication from City Council Member Robin Beltramini Regarding NLC 

Finance, Administration and Intergovernmental Relations Steering Committee 
Meeting 

 
J-9  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding Reimbursement Revenue 
 
J-10  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Regarding Class C 

Liquor License Transfer out of Troy – Paragon of Michigan 2360 Rochester Road 
 
J-11  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Regarding Wal-Mart 

Approval of Appeal 
 
J-12  Rules of Procedure for the Charter Revision Committee 
 
J-13  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Article on 

Constitutional and Charter Revision 
 
J-14  Communication from Library Director Cathleen Russ Regarding Drive-up Materials 

Return at the Troy Public Library 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 9, 2009 
 

- 22 - 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, November 23, 2009 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 7, 2009 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 21, 2009 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 

DRAFT 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted:  
 

 
 

1.  APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM ........................................................... 1 
2.  DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR ............................................................... 1 
3.  SPECIAL MEETINGS ........................................................................................ 1 
4.  REGULAR MEETINGS ...................................................................................... 2 
5.  AGENDA ............................................................................................................ 2 
6.  ORDER OF BUSINESS ..................................................................................... 2 
7.  REGULAR BUSINESS ....................................................................................... 3 
8.  CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ......................................... 3 
9.  MINUTES ........................................................................................................... 3 
10.  PROCLAMATIONS .......................................................................................... 54 
11.  RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS ......................................................... 54 
12.  RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS....................................................................... 54 
13.  PUBLIC HEARING ........................................................................................... 54 
14.  CONSENT AGENDA ....................................................................................... 54 
15.  APPOINTMENTS ............................................................................................... 5 
15.1  APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 

SOCRRA ............................................................................................... 65 
16.  MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS ................................................ 76 
17.  POSTPONE ...................................................................................................... 76 
18.  RULES OF ORDER ......................................................................................... 76 
19.  MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES ...................................................................... 76 
20.  EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS..................... 76 
21.  ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS .......................................................... 87 
22.  SUSPEND RULES ........................................................................................... 87 
23.  COUNCIL DISCUSSION .................................................................................. 87 
24.  AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: ............................ 87 
25.  VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS ......................................................... 87 
26.  CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM .... 87 
27.  VIOLATIONS ...................................................................................................... 8 
28.  WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 

MEETING OF COUNCIL ...................................................................... 98 
 

campbellld
Text Box
b



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat rotation in the 
following order: Fleming, Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater and Howrylak.  

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member present 
who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the duties of the 
Mayor. 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2) 
 Section 4.2 - Special Meetings: 

Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual 
place of residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all 
members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

 
B. DOCUMENTATION: 

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in 
the Call of the Meeting. 
 Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for 

each specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written 
notice calling the meeting.  

 Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session 
Agendas shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to 
each Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
a) Call to Order 
b) Roll Call 

(1) Listing of Council Members 
(2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21. 

c) Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
d) Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting, Pursuant to City Charter  
e) See Charter Article 6 Amendments/Additions to Agenda  
f) Public Comment 
g) Adjournment 



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA: 
1. By Charter, special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in  

the Call of the Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter). 
2. If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 

writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be 
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year. 

5. AGENDA 
(a) Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted on 
the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 

 
(b) Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 

specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed 
Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 

 
1. Invocation 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
1.3. Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Roll Call 

(a) Listing of Council Members 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21. 

5. A. Certificates of Recognition 
6. B. Carryover Items 
7. C. Public Hearings 
8. D. Postponed Items 



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

9. E. Regular Business 
 Council will move forward all of the “E” items on which members of the audience 

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 

10. E. Regular Business 
 Address Remaining “E” Items 

11. Public Comment – Limited to Items Not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 

12. F. Consent Agenda 
1. Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2. Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion 
 Council will move forward all of the “F” items on which members of the audience 

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.  

13. G. Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
14. H. Council Referrals 

 Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward by the Mayor 
or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting.  

15. I. Council Comments 
 Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the next Regular 

Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are not 
intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

16. J. Reports 
 No Public Comment received on “J” Items at this time. 

17. K. Study Items 
18. Public Comment  
19. L. Closed Session 
20. Adjournment 

7. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 

Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by the 
Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the 
Public Comment section under item 10 “E” of the agenda. Other than asking questions for 
the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or debate with 
members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is brought back to the 
Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak only by invitation by 
Council, through the Chair.  

8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed meetings of 
City Council. 

9. MINUTES 
a. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The minutes 



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

b. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 
pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. 
Where a Closed Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

10. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion and 
shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. Reconsideration of 
any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted motion and shall 
require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided that new 
information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

XX. WITHDRAWL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING  
Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second and 
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.  

13. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated meeting 
Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

14. CONSENT AGENDA 
 The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 

motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and 
have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall 
be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. 
Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item 12 “F”.  

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or Committees 
as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit 
such name, into nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to 
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a 
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are subject 
to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a 

roll call vote shall be used. 
 
2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting 

shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council 
Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 

 
3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of 

votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 
 
4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of 

the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, unless membership 
is required by Statute or the City Charter. 

 
5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking 

them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 
6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community 

on Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
1. SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 

Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday 
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November.  



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

 
 

 
2. SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: The 

Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on the 
SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that 
if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate 
department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved 
satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still 
not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak not more 

than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair. 
 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 

members. 
 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 

should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 
 Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 

speak on one topic through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council 
members elect. 

17. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically appear 
on the appropriate agenda. 

18. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised 10th Edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby 
adopted and made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, 
and the City Code. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid the 
Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences 

sponsored by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject 
fiscal year. The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of 
town travel to specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will 
submit expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 8 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate or gas mileage at current IRS guidelines, depending upon the mode of 
transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be authorized for payment by the City 
Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will be placed on the Council agenda 
under Reports and Communications. 
 

B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 
hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
A.  Council members who are unable to attend a Council meeting and desiring an excused 
 absence shall notify the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk of their absence in 
 writing prior to the meeting and indicate the reason for the absence. 
 
B.  In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is directed 

to supply such absent Council member with information about any special meetings that 
may have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5)-minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon prior to the meeting. Inappropriate material will be prohibited. 

26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 



DRAFT:  RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 9 
 

Adopted: 09/14/2009 

28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code Title 
18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 



 

 
 
                             
October 14, 2009 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
     
SUBJECT:   Troy Public Library Annual Report 2008-2009 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In an effort to keep City Council members updated on the many collections, programs and 

services offered by the Troy Public Library, the Library Director respectfully submits this Troy 
Public Library Annual Report, for the year 2008-2009.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This recommendation addresses the following Outcome Statements: 

Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 
venues. 
Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing 
and interconnected world.  

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends that the Troy Public Library’s Annual Report for 2008-2009 be 

received and filed.  
 
 
 
CR/annualreport2008.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



Troy Public Library  
Annual Report 

FY 2008-09 
 
Introduction 
The fiscal year that began July 1, 2008 and ended June 30, 2009, brought many changes to 
the Troy Public Library, largely due to the changes in the economy.  
 
Library Staffing and Administration 
The staffing level at TPL was reduced from 107 positions to 102. There are currently 14 full-
time staff members and 88 part-time staff members. The full-time Youth Services position will 
not be filled; those responsibilities are being handled by the library director. Other positions 
left vacant through attrition have not been filled. The staff and I work hard to keep service at a 
high level so that these changes have been invisible to the public  
 
Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) Implementation 
One of the major projects for this year was the implementation of the RFID project. RFID is 
both an inventory and security system, which also results in the speedier “check in” and 
“check out” of library materials. This project, which was funded by the Suburban Library 
Cooperative, required the tagging of over 300,000 items in TPL’s collections. 129 volunteers 
donated a total of 1,803 hours to complete this project by the deadline of April 30. Volunteers 
from Troy Athens High School; Troy High School; National Honor Society; Wayne State 
University’s Library Science program; Oakland Community College’s Library Technology 
program and many interested residents volunteered and got this huge job done! The project 
could not have been completed on time and as successfully without the help of these 
dedicated volunteers.   
 
Polaris Implementation 
Another major project was the change in the library’s automation system, from the Suburban 
Library Cooperative’s shared system, SIRSI, to running a “standalone” system called Polaris. 
City council approved the change to Polaris at the January 26, 2009, meeting. Library staff 
and IT staff followed an aggressive timeline for implementation in order to realize cost 
savings in the 2009-2010 fiscal year. The change to the Polaris system results in an 
aggregate savings of $450,000 over 5 years. Preparation for this change, including training of 
library staff, took place over the summer. The library went “Live” with the system on 
Wednesday, September 30. While there are some transition issues that staff is addressing, 
overall the transition is going well.     
 
Collections 
Librarians continue cross-reference print reference material with databases for consolidation 
of resources, which results in further cost savings. A new rental collection of TV series on 
DVD was added. There are plans underway to expand the special needs collection for adults. 
Services 
The Troy Public Library now offers proctoring service for students. Staff is available to proctor 
both paper and online exams. Troy residents pay a $25 fee for this service; non-residents pay 
a $30 fee. In the first quarter of FY 2009-10, $860 in revenue has been generated.  



 
TPL also began charging non-residents a fee for Internet usage, beginning in April 2009. 
While this change was not terribly popular with residents of Clawson, Rochester Hills, 
Madison Heights and Royal Oak, and resulted in a drop in usage of the Technology Center, it 
did free up public computer access to Troy residents. $1,600 in fees for Internet usage were 
generated in the first quarter of FY 2009-10.  
 

Exhibits 
The Troy Public Library’s galleries are popular places for local artists to display their work. 
Over the last year, 47 exhibits were held, displaying 1,742 pieces of art, photography, or 
other types of artifacts. In the first quarter of FY2009-10, $225 in fees were generated, by 
asking artists for a $25 fee to exhibit their work in TPL’s galleries.  
 
Programs 
The library offers programs on a variety of topics, to inform, entertain, educate and enrich the 
community. Topics for adults range from travel to poetry to concerts to explorations of 
different cultures. For teens, gaming programs, college funding workshops and writing 
programs, continue to grow in popularity.  Children’s programs include story times, crafts, 
holiday celebrations and much more.  In 2008-2009, 1,138 programs were offered, breaking 
down as follows: 

 455 adult programs offered, 11,045 total attendance 
 57 teen programs offered, 840 total attendance 
 626 children’s programs offered, 16,078 total attendance 
 A total of 1,138 programs were offered, for a total attendance of 27,963 

 
In addition, the library offered its popular Summer Reading Programs for Adults, Children, 
and Teens. A separate program for City of Troy Employees was introduced this year. 145 
adults participated in the Adult Summer Reading Program; 146 teens participated in the Teen 
Summer Reading Program; and 1,331 children participated in the Children’s Summer 
Reading Program. The inaugural Staff Summer Reading Program attracted 46 city 
employees.  
 
The programs offered by Technology Center staff are absolutely booming! There are usually 
waiting lists for many of the programs offered. The classes range from E-bay and blogging to 
Excel, PowerPoint and other MS applications, to hands-on classes with digital cameras, and 
how to use the library’s resources.  
 
The latest program to be added to the full roster of offerings at TPL is “As A Matter of Fact…,” 
the new non-fiction book group, which the Friends of the Library are subsidizing. This brings 
the total of book discussion groups offered to five, and was added in response to patron 
request.  
Grants, Awards & Professional Achievements 
It was a true honor to receive the World Book/American Library Association Information 
Literacy Grant of $5,000 for the program, “Information Literacy for the Job Seeker.” Library 
Director Cathleen Russ accepted the award on behalf of the library at the ALA conference in 



July. This grant is awarded to only one public library in the nation each year. The Job Seeker 
Program, which is funded by the grant, will begin in January 2010.  
 
John Robertson will receive the Walter H. Kaiser Award from the Michigan Library 
Association at the annual conference in November. The Walter H. Kaiser Award is given to 
one librarian per year The award is presented annually to a librarian, trustee or person 
associated with libraries and the broad educational goal of librarianship, who contributes an 
idea, procedure, concept, or adaptation which results in the improvement of a library or 
libraries. 
 
Library Director Cathleen Russ was asked by Michigan Library Association President Larry 
Neal to chair the 2009 Michigan Library Association Annual Conference, to be held in Lansing 
November 4-6. It is an honor to be asked to participate in the conference at this level, as the 
annual conference attracts librarians across the state to participate in professional 
development.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library  

The Friends of the Library continue to support the Troy Public Library by funding the 
library’s programs. In addition, the Friends fund the annual Summer Reading 
programs, the five book discussion groups, and the very popular Spice of Life 
Humanities Discussion group.The new Friends Shop opened in September, and the 
new look of the shop has brought renewed interest to this area of the library.   
 

Volunteers 
In addition to the volunteer hours noted above with regard to the RFID project, 321 volunteers 
contributed 14,572 hours of service time to the Troy Public Library, an average of 45 hours 
per volunteer. A celebration to honor all of the library’s volunteers was held in the library in 
March 2009.  
 
Partnerships with the Troy Museum  
To build on the close partnership between the Troy Public Library and the Troy Historical 
Museum, the library director and museum manager have been working on coordinating 
program offerings. Several joint programs were offered this year, which is the bicentennial of 
Abraham Lincoln’s birthday. The two organizations are also working together to promote each 
other’s genealogy and local history  resources, as genealogy is the nation’s second most 
popular hobby.  
 
Physical Maintenance and Buildings 
The Cup & Chaucer, the library’s vending café, re-opened to the public following renovations 
on June 1, 2009. The name of the café was chosen by patron Alanda Slusser in a library-
sponsored contest. The library’s fire alarm panel was replaced, as the existing panel was well 
over 20 years old.  
 
Usage Statistics and Interpretation 
 



TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL 
STATISTICS 

  July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2009 
  

    

Total Circulation 1,532,610  
  

# of new Library cards 6,151  
  

Total # of Cardholders 50,062  
  

# of hold placed 160,324  
  

Items in Transit to TPL (Items borrowed) 170,565  
  

Items in Transit from TPL (Items loaned) 162,170  
  

Total # of Items in Collection 319,357  
  

Items added 36,400  
  

Items deleted 28,787  
  

Program attendance 27,963  
  

# of Programs 1,138  
  

Total # of patron visits  655,266  
  

Total # of Web Page Hits 628,927  
  

Total # of Computer Users (adult, teens, children) 108,941 
  

     
While overall circulation of materials increased by over 20,000 items from last year, the 
number of patron visits to the library decreased by about 18,000. People are visiting the 
library less frequently, but checking out more materials. Part of this can be attributed to the 
high prices of gasoline a year ago, and the current trend of “one stop shopping” that many 
have embraced.  



Computer usage decreased by 8%, the reduction of which can be attributed to the charges 
for non-resident computer usage. More non-residents are either visiting their home libraries, 
or libraries that do not charge for Internet usage.  
 
The number of visitors to the library’s website is approaching that of people who visited the 
library in person, which demonstrates the popularity of electronic services, and the “do it 
yourself” nature of electronic/Internet service that is becoming more prevalent. The huge 
numbers of holds being placed, as well as the number of items in transit to and from the Troy 
Public Library, also show that patrons are placing their own holds online, frequently from their 
home computers.  
 
Program attendance has increased, with many great programs continuing to be offered for 
adults, teens and children.  
 
Conclusion and Goals for 2009-2010 
Library usage increases in a down economy. Although visits to the Troy Library have 
decreased, program attendance, materials circulation, and new library card applications have 
increased. People turn to their public library in a down economy, as the library provides low-
cost, if not free, entertainment for people of all ages. As more and more people cut down on 
their personal expenditures, Internet usage at the library becomes more common. Many 
people use the library as a place to search for jobs, or to network with others about job 
possibilities. A popular saying these days is, “Libraries will get you through times with no 
money better than money will get you through times with no libraries.” The truth of this 
statement is in evidence every day at the Troy Public Library.  
 
In order to meet the challenges of the current economy while continuing to provide stellar 
service to Troy residents, goals for 2009-2010 include: 
 
--Evaluating services, programs, and collections and make necessary changes to put library 
resources to the best possible use; 
 
--Continuing to think critically regarding creating usable space; 
 
--Adapting to the new Polaris system and using it to its fullest potential, so patrons derive 
maximum benefit;  
 
--Evaluating staffing levels and reassigning responsibilities as needed. 
 
The Troy Public Library continues to be a very busy, very popular, and well-used community 
resource. Open 65 hours per week, Sunday-Saturday, the library truly offers something for 
everyone.  
 
 
 
 
 



The Troy Public Library
Annual Report July 1, 2008 – June 30, 2009

Cathy Russ – Library Director – x3544



Major Projects

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Radio Frequency Identification (RFID)
Implementation

•Inventory system
•Security system
•Speedier return and check out of Library 
materials

•Over 300,000 items in the Library’s collection 
were tagged 

•129 volunteers donated 1,803 hours of time to 
finish this project on time



Major Projects

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Polaris Library Catalog Implementation
•In the works since January 2009
•Live date: September 30, 2009
•Working out the “bugs”
•Aggregate Savings of $450,000 over 5 years

Cup & Chaucer Café
•Reopened June 1, 2009

Redesigned Website: troylibrary.info
•In the works since August 2008
•Live date: September 29, 2009



Programs

Library Annual Report 2008-09

1,138 Programs / 27,963 attendance
•455 programs for adults / 11,045 attending
•57 programs for teens / 840 attending
•626 programs for children / 16,078 attending

Computer Classes for Adults
•14 classes per month, for beginning to advanced 
computer users

•Increased number of classes offered by 78%
to meet patron demand

•Class attendance up 68% to over 1,350 students



Programs

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Summer Reading Programs
•Four programs offered this year:

•Children’s Program: 1,331 participants
•Teen Program: 146 participants
•Adult Program: 145 participants
•NEW: Employee Program: 46 participants

All prizes and programs sponsored by the
Friends of  the Troy Public Library



Grants, Awards, Achievements

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Information Literacy for Job Seeker
•$5,000 award sponsored by World Book and
the American Library Association

•Program to run in January, March, and April 2010

Walter H. Kaiser Award
•Awarded to Technology Librarian, John Robertson
•Sponsored by Michigan Library Association

Professional Achievement
•Cathleen Russ, Chair, 2009 Annual Conference, 
Michigan Library Association



Partnerships

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Troy Museum and Historic Village
•Coordination of programs and events

Friends of the Troy Public Library
•Funds all the Library’s programs, and the Special 
Needs Collection. Plans are underway to create a 
Special Needs Collection for Adults in 2010

Volunteers
•In addition to RFID volunteers, 321 volunteers 
contributed 14,572 hours, or an average of 45 
hours per volunteer.



TPL by the Numbers

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Total Circulation 1,532,610

Total Number of Cardholders 50,062

Number of Holds Placed 160,324

Total Number of Items in Collection 319,357

Total Number of Patron Visits 655,266

Total Number of Website Visits 628,927

Total Number of Computer Users 108,941



What is the Library worth to you?

Library Annual Report 2008-09



Goals for 2009-2010

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Evaluate our services, programs, and
collections, and implement changes to provide 
stellar service
Continue to think critically regarding creating 
usable space
Evaluate staffing levels and re-assign 
responsibilities as needed
Use the Polaris system to its fullest potential, 
so the public derives the maximum benefit



Conclusion

Library Annual Report 2008-09

The Troy Public Library is one of the busiest
places in town.
The Library is open 65 hours per week,
7 days per week.
The Library staff and I are ready to assist; 
please call or email us!
With the wide variety of programs, services, 
and collections, the Troy Public Library truly 
offers something for everyone in Troy.



Library Annual Report

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Questions?

Comments?

Thank you!



 
PROCLAMATION 

AMERICA RECYCLES 2009 
 

WHEREAS, The world has changed a lot in the past century.  From individually packaged food 
servings to disposable diapers, more garbage is generated now than ever before.  The average 
American discards 7.5 pounds of garbage every day.  Our garbage, our solid waste stream, all goes to 
landfills, where it’s compacted and buried; and 
 

WHEREAS, To focus the nation’s attention on the importance of recycling, businesses, industries, 
government agencies, nonprofit organizations, and individuals have joined together to celebrate 
America Recycles 2009 and are encouraging their employees, staff, customers, membership, and all 
citizens to pledge to buy more recycled-content products starting today; and 
 

WHEREAS, Participating in America Recycles 2009 is one way our citizens can help raise 
awareness about the need to reduce waste by reusing, recycling and buying recycled products; and 
 

WHEREAS, The more we recycle, the less garbage winds up in our landfills and incineration plants.  
By reusing aluminum, paper, glass, plastics and other materials, we can save production and energy 
costs, and reduce by up to 75% the negative impacts that the extraction and processing of virgin 
materials has on the environment. Plastics, made from precious and nonrenewable petroleum, and 
aluminum, which is mined from bauxite, are especially important to recycle; and  
 

WHEREAS, Recycling helps protect our resources, our environment, and our quality of life. The entire 
loop: Reduce, Reuse, Recycle is completed when we buy products made from recycled material; and 
 

WHEREAS, From July 2008 to June 2009, the City of Troy recycled 4,375 tons of glass, paperboard, 
cardboard, newspaper, metal, tin, and plastic and 10,547 tons of compost; and  
 

WHEREAS, State and community leaders need to spread the word about the excellent programs they 
have established, the growth of markets for recyclable materials, and the importance of buying 
recycled products; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Troy City Council hereby proclaims America 
Recycles 2009 in Troy, Michigan, and urges all Troy residents to Reduce, Reuse and Recycle; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That America Recycles 2009 is celebrated year-round to encourage 
people to recycle and buy products made from recycled materials. The theme for America Recycles 
2009 is "It All Comes Back To You."  
 

Presented this 9th day of November 2009. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



 

 
October 12, 2009 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT:                 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2010 Application and Public Hearing 
 
Background: 
 Oakland County has advised the City of Troy to use $167,960 as our planning estimate for the program 

year 2010. 
 
 The following projects are being recommended for the 2010 CDBG program: 

o Flood Drain Improvements:  
Lovington Storm Sewer – Minnesota to Dequindre   $ 115,072.00 

o Home Chore Program:                                 50,388.00   
o Administration:                           2,500.00                                                                                                                

          
o TOTAL:                  $ 167,960.00 

 
 Federal regulations require Oakland County as an “urban county” grantee to execute an annual 

Subrecipient Agreement with each participating community. We submit the signed Agreement with our 
application.  

 The City of Troy has participated in the Oakland County’s Urban County Community Development Block 
Grant Program since 1982. (see Attachment A) 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 Oakland County will allow participating communities to spend a maximum of 30% of their annual allocation 

on public services.  We are currently at 30%.  
 Oakland County will allow participating communities to allocate a minimum of $2,500 for each activity. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure  

and quality of life venues.  
(Outcome Statement II) 

 
Options: 

• It is recommended that Council approve the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2010 
application. 

 
VR\S: Miller’s Review/Agenda 11.09.09 – CDBG 2010 Application  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



  Attachment A 

 

Oakland County’s Urban County Community Development Block Grant 
 

 
The City of Troy has been participating in Oakland County’s Urban County Community 
Development Block Grant Program since 1982. 
 
Our allocation for last year’s CDBG funds was for a total of $158,321 as detailed below: 
 

Flood Drain Improvements: $84,811 
Home Chore Program: $71,010 
Administration:  $  2,500 

 
We do not have a waiting list for the home chore program and we currently have 75 residents 
on the program.  The additions we have each year are counterbalanced by the residents that 
either move into an assisted living facility or pass away. 
 
On May 7, 2008 Council passed resolution #2008-05-174-F-5 to participate in Oakland County’s 
Urban Community Development Block Grant program for the years 2009, 2010 and 2011.  The 
City has signed a cooperation agreement for this period and is a participating community 
included in the Oakland County Urban County Program year 2009 funds of $3,917,404. 
 
While it may be possible for the City of Troy to administer its own CDBG program after the year 
2011, there are several disadvantages: 
 

• We would no longer be eligible to receive Home Improvement Program funds.  
Approximately $1 million in HOME funds are combined with CDBG funds each year to 
improve local housing. (HOME is the largest Federal block grant to State and local 
governments designed exclusively to create affordable housing for low-income 
households.  HOME provides formula grants to States and localities that communities 
use – often in partnership with local nonprofit groups to fund wide range of activities that 
build, buy, and/or rehabilitate affordable housing for rent or homeownership or provide 
direct rental assistance to low-income people.)  Oakland County completed 27 loans 
during the last cooperation period (Years 2006, 2007 and 2008) for Troy residents 
accounting for an approximate $540,000 investment in the local housing stock. 

 
• Currently Oakland County handles the majority of the federal paperwork involved in 

administering the Community Development Block Grant Program.  There are some very 
specific and complex reporting, eligibility, accounting, auditing, contract compliance, fair 
housing and equal opportunity requirements in the administration of the CDBG program, 
that are required of the community.  The reduction in administrative burden helps 
maximize the benefit of each dollar at the local level. 

 
• Wages, benefits, office space, computers, supplies and materials, training and resources 

that would be needed to take over the Home Improvement Program are now provided by 
Oakland County. 



 

 
 
                             
October 20, 2009 
 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager  
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak  
  Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for  
  William Beaumont Hospital - Troy  
 
 
As required by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) the City of Troy is 
holding a public hearing to receive public input in advance of authorizing the City of Royal Oak 
Hospital Finance Authority to issue bonds that will be used to (1) finance the construction, 
acquisition, renovation, equipping, rehabilitation and/or improvement of hospital facilities, and to (2) 
refinance indebtedness used to finance the construction, renovation and equipping of certain hospital 
facilities at William Beaumont Hospital – Troy.  
 
It should be noted that approval of the issuance of bonds by the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 
Authority for the benefit of the City of Troy will not have any effect on the ability of the City of Troy to 
issue bonds, nor will it involve any liability to the City of Troy for the bonds.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA\2009\11.09.09 –Public Hearing to Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing Tax 
Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital - Troy  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
C-02







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE ISSUANCE 
BY THE CITY OF ROYAL OAK HOSPITAL FINANCE AUTHORITY 

OF HOSPITAL REVENUE AND HOSPITAL REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL 

 

NOTICE IS GIVEN that the City Commission of the City of Royal Oak will hold a 

public hearing at 7:30 p.m., in the Commission Chambers of City Hall, 211 Williams Street, 

Royal Oak, Michigan on the 9th day of November, 2009 and that the City Council of the City of 

Troy will hold a public hearing at 7:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 500 W. 

Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on the 9th day of November, 2009, each on the proposed issuance of 

hospital revenue and hospital revenue refunding bonds (the “Bonds”) in one or more series in the 

maximum aggregate principal amount of $305,000,000 by the City of Royal Oak Hospital 

Finance Authority to provide funds to loan to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”) to be 

used by the Hospital, together with other available funds, (a) to finance or refinance, at a 

presently estimated cost of $40,000,000, a portion of the costs of the Project (described below), 

(b) to refund or otherwise reissue for federal tax purposes, at a presently estimated cost of 

$205,000,000, the bonds described below (the “Prior Bonds”), (c) to pay a portion of the interest 

to accrue on the Bonds, (d) to fund a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds, (e) to pay costs, in 

the presently estimated amount of $12,500,000, related to the termination or modification of 

interest rate swaps associated with, including but not limited to, the Series P Bonds and the 

Series Q Bonds (as defined below), and (f) to pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

The Project consists of the financing of the costs of construction, acquisition, renovation, 

equipping, rehabilitation and/or improvements to the hospitals and other health care facilities (i) 

located on the main campus of the Hospital located at 3601 West Thirteen Mile Road, Royal 



 2 

Oak, Michigan (the “Main Hospital Campus”) and (ii) on the Troy campus of the Hospital 

located at 44201 Dequindre Road, Troy, Michigan (the “Troy Hospital Facility”). 

The Prior Bonds consist of all or a portion of (a) the $48,675,000 City of Royal Oak 

Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital 

Obligated Group) Series 2001N (the “Series N Bonds”); (b) the $34,475,000 City of Royal Oak 

Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital 

Obligated Group) Series 2001O (the “Series O Bonds”); (c) the $82,675,000 City of Royal Oak 

Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated 

Group) Series 2003P (the “Series P Bonds”); and (d) the $60,600,000 City of Royal Oak 

Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital 

Obligated Group) Series 2003Q (the “Series Q Bonds”).   

The proceeds of the Series N Bonds were used by the Hospital to (a) currently refund (i) 

the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont 

Hospital) Series 1996J (the “Series J Bonds”), and (ii) the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 

Authority Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital) Series 1997L (the “Series L 

Bonds”) and (b) pay costs of issuing the Series N Bonds.  The proceeds of the Series J Bonds 

were used by the Hospital to (a) finance the acquisition, construction, replacement, remodeling 

and equipping of capital improvements at the Main Hospital Campus, generally comprising 

improvements to the existing hospital facilities at the Main Hospital Campus to replace and 

upgrade heating, ventilation and air handling systems, refrigeration and utility distribution 

systems, fire protection and elevators, to improve roofing, building facilities, external signage 

and landscaping, to remodel patient care areas in the neonatal intensive care unit, patient care 

rooms, the nuclear medicine department, the continuing care department, the security department 



 3 

and storage areas and to acquire and install various radiology, surgical, endovascular, bed 

replacement and other patient care equipment, and (b) to pay costs of issuing the Series J Bonds.  

The proceeds of the Series L Bonds were used by the Hospital to (a) construct an approximately 

88,200 square foot, five story Heart Center at the Main Hospital Campus and to renovate 

approximately 41,825 square feet of existing space at the Main Hospital Campus to facilitate 

expansion, replacement and consolidation of cardiovascular services into a vertically arranged 

facility, including the addition of two new cardiac catheterization laboratories, replacement of 

two existing cardiac catheterization laboratories and the conversion of two existing cardiac 

catheterization laboratories to multi-purpose special radiological rooms, and (b) pay costs of 

issuing the Series L Bonds. 

The proceeds of the Series O Bonds were used by the Hospital to (a) currently refund (i) 

the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Revenue Bonds (Beaumont Properties, Inc.) 

Series 1992E (the “Series E Bonds”) and (ii) the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 

Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital) Series 1992F (the “Series F Bonds”) and 

(b) pay costs of issuing the Series O Bonds.  The proceeds of the Series E Bonds were used by 

the Hospital to refund the Beaumont Properties, Inc. Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series 1988B (the 

“Series B Bonds”), the proceeds of which were used to (a) pay the costs of constructing and 

equipping (i) a 120,000 square foot medical office building adjacent to an existing medical office 

building located at the Main Hospital Campus, (ii) a parking structure located north of the 

existing medical office building located at the Main Hospital Campus, and (iii) a 78,995 square 

foot medical office building located at 6900 Orchard Lake Road, West Bloomfield, Michigan 

(the “West Bloomfield Campus”) and (b) pay costs of issuing the Series E Bonds.  The proceeds 

of the Series F Bonds were used by the Hospital to (a) pay costs of constructing approximately 



 4 

65,516 square feet of new space at the Main Hospital Campus to contain eight new operating 

rooms, an expanded emergency center, a laboratory and mechanical space, and the renovation of 

approximately 4,770 square feet at the Main Hospital Campus, and (b) pay costs of issuing the 

Series F Bonds.  The Hospital defeased $3,200,000 of the Series O Bonds due to the sale of the 

West Bloomfield Campus to a private developer in 2006. 

The proceeds of the Series P Bonds were used by the Hospital to (a) pay the construction, 

renovation and equipping of a nine-level addition to the Hospital located at the Main Hospital 

Campus which added operating rooms, replaced and relocated existing licensed acute care beds 

and increased the number of private rooms and (b) pay costs of issuing the Series P Bonds. 

The proceeds of the Series Q Bonds were used by the Hospital to currently refund the 

City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds (William 

Beaumont Hospital), Series 1993G (the “Series G Bonds”) which Series G Bonds refinanced the 

indebtedness incurred by the Hospital in connection with the issuance of the City of Royal Oak 

Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital) Series 1989C 

(the “Series C Bonds”).  The proceeds of the Series C Bonds were used by the Hospital to (a) pay 

the cost of acquiring, construction, remodeling and equipping (i) an administration building, 

powerhouse expansion, site and utilities improvement, the research facilities and a project 

control center, all located at the Main Hospital Campus, (ii) a diagnostic radiology expansion and 

the replacement of radiology equipment at the hospital of the Hospital located at the Troy 

Hospital Facility, (iii) a diagnostic nuclear medicine facility and the expansion of an area 

providing acute therapeutic rehabilitation services located at the West Bloomfield Campus, (iv) a 

facility for data processing operations located at the 1350 Stephenson Highway, Troy, Michigan 

(the “BIS Center”) and (b) pay costs of issuing the Series C Bonds.  The Hospital defeased 



 5 

$750,000 of the Series Q Bonds due to the sale of the West Bloomfield Campus to a private 

developer in 2006. 

The Main Hospital Campus, the Troy Hospital Facility and the BIS Center are owned and 

operated by the Hospital, a nonprofit corporation.   

The public hearing will provide an opportunity for interested persons to be heard and 

communications in writing will be received and considered.  The hearing will provide the fullest 

opportunity for expression of opinion, for argument on the merits, and for introduction of 

documentary evidence pertinent to the proposed bond issue. 

 

Dated:  [______], 2009 ___/s/ Don Johnson____________________ 
Chairperson, City of Royal Oak 
Hospital Finance Authority 
211 Williams Street 
Royal Oak, Michigan  48068 
(248) 246-3030 

17279253.6\006839-00008  
DRAFT 10/22/09 2:42 PM  



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: November 3, 2009 
SUBJECT: Personnel Board Appointment 

 
 

At the last City Council meeting, there were two potential applicants for the Personnel 
Board.  City Council postponed this appointment until the November 9, 2009 City Council 
meeting, which provided our office with the opportunity to research and review the limitations 
and qualifications for this advisory board position.   

The Personnel Board is created in Chapter 11 of the Troy City ordinances.  According 
to Section 1.2, members of the Personnel Board must meet the following requirements:   

• The members of the Board “shall be persons in sympathy with the application of merit 
principles to public employment.”  

• Board members shall not be employed by the City or be an official of the City.  

• Board members shall not be a member of any local, state, or national committee or a 
political party.   

• Board members shall not be a member of a committee in any partisan political club or 
organization.  

• Board members shall not hold or be a candidate for any governmental elective office.   

Personnel Board members essentially serve in an advisory capacity on matters of 
personnel policy and personnel administration.  However, the Personnel Board also serves 
as an appellate body for cases where a classified employee challenges City management’s 
discharge of the employee.  The Personnel Board hears evidence and determines whether 
the discharge was arbitrary or capricious.  This determination is binding on the employee and 
the City, and “is the sole and exclusive remedy for the employee.”  According to Section 11.4, 
employees can challenge the participation of any member of the Personnel Board “for bias or 
prejudice,” as long as the challenge is submitted in advance of the proceeding.   

This ordinance provides the express ability to disqualify a Personnel Board member 
from participation on any particular item, based on a real or perceived conflict of interest that 
extends beyond a pecuniary interest.  As always, both state law (MCL 15.304) and also City 
Charter (Section 6.12) prohibit pecuniary conflicts of interest, which are determined on an 
individual case by case basis.  As with all boards and committees, there may be an individual 
board member with a potential pecuniary conflict of interest on an item that is before the 
board.  These determinations should be made on a case by case basis, and should relate to 
the item being voted on, as opposed to the membership of the board or committee.  Section 
6.12 does not preclude the appointment of an individual to the Personnel Board.   

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning the above.   

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



1 
 

 

 
                             
October 30, 2009 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members  
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Status of City Council’s Policy Options to Lessen the Impact of Reduced   
   Services and Mitigate Workforce Reduction 
 
On September 9, 2009 I submitted to the Troy City Council a restructuring plan that spans 5 years.  
This plan would take effect if the City did not improve the General Fund revenue stream in 
conjunction with expenditure reduction.  I also identified 6 options to lessen the impact of reduced 
services and mitigate workforce reduction.  They follow: 
 
1) Seek employee concessions. 
 
2) City Council can ask the voters if they wish to approve a General Fund millage increase. 
 
3) City Council can ask the voters if they wish to approve a millage increase for a specific use, 
 like a Library. 
 
4) City Council can establish an independent library board separate from the City of Troy’s 
 General Fund and levy up to 1 mill for the operation thereof. This could be accomplished 
 without voter approval. 
 
5) City Council can authorize the use of the Budget Stabilization Fund, Fund Balance, and 
 increase some administrative fees. 
 
6) City Council can transfer some funds from General Capital to General Operating. 
 

Looking at this issue from a policy or big picture perspective, here’s where we are: 
Given factors beyond our control, we have an economically unsustainable organization.  
Without any changes in how we operate, our projected deficit is $1.6 million this fiscal year, 
$6.2 million in fiscal year 2010/11, and $6 million in fiscal year 2011/12.  This comes to about 
a $14 million shortfall from now through June 30, 2012 and we’re confident that our degree of 
accuracy is about 98%.  We might not be able to assure 98% accuracy in the figures for the 
last 3 of the 5 years projected, but Oakland County government and private sector experts 
agree with our projections. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-02



2 
 

Recap and Update on Policy Options to Lessen the Impact of Reduced Services and Mitigate 
Workforce Reduction 
October 30, 2009 
 
 
The Downtown Development Authority cannot help the General Fund; nor can the sale or 
privatization of the golf courses assist us in any appreciable degree.  The reduced level of service 
options identified in my September 9, 2009 memorandum make use of the Budget Stabilization Fund, 
but not Fund Balance.  Here’s how the additional revenues from General Fund Balance would look 
on a yearly basis by reducing the Fund Balance to 15% each year.  And assuming General Fund 
expenditures equal General Fund revenues: 
 

Fiscal Year 2010/11 - $1.8 million 
Fiscal Year 2011/12 - $0.6 million 
Fiscal Year 2012/13 - $0.1 million 
Fiscal Year 2013/14 - $0.2 million 
Fiscal Year 2014/15 - $0.1 million 
 

Attachment #1 delves further into this matter. 
 
At the October 19, 2009 City Council Meeting, the governing body began its policy discussion on how 
to address our projected deficit.  At the meeting there was general consensus not to ask the voters if 
they wish to approve a millage increase for a specific use, like the library.  Additionally, there was a 
general consensus not to establish an independent library board separate from the City of Troy and 
levy up to 1 mill for the operation thereof. As such, the balance of this memo will no longer address 
these issues.  This leaves me with seeking employee concessions; it leaves you to consider asking 
the voters if they wish to approve a General Fund millage increase, authorizing the use of Fund 
Balance and increased administrative fees, and/or the transfer of some funds from General Capital to 
General Operating.  I will now provide an update, when possible, for each item. 
 
1) Seek employee concessions. 
 

I continue to seek employee concessions, but can’t guarantee what they’ll be.  We currently 
have 6 labor unions as well as 2 employee groups that are petitioning for unionization.   As 
indicated previously, a partnership is being sought between employees, City Council, and the 
community. 
 
In terms of privatization/regionalization, we’re estimating about a 40% savings in this area, 
which comes with a reduced level of service.  However, we will not know actual savings until 
about a year after implementation and audits are performed. 
 
Regardless of what happens to the millage rate, lay-offs are going to occur through 
privatization, regionalization and/or consolidation.  To this end, I’ve assembled a team 
consisting of planning consultant Dick Carlisle, Assistant City Manager John Lamerato, Acting 
Assistant City Manager Mark Miller, Human Resources Director Peggy Sears, and Purchasing 
Director Susan Leirstein.  This team is currently working with the Building and Engineering 
departments for reason of developing specifications to partially privatize these areas.   
 



3 
 

Recap and Update on Policy Options to Lessen the Impact of Reduced Services and Mitigate 
Workforce Reduction 
October 30, 2009 

 
 
Please know that once we obtain costs for privatization, regionalization and consolidation from 
the private sector, I’m going to give our employees an opportunity to compete for this work; if  
employees can perform the same scope of work at around the same cost, then the work 
should be continued to be performed in-house.   
 
So too, there are going to be lay-offs in various areas of the organization before the end of this 
calendar year because of either reduced workload due to economic conditions or 
consolidation of some functions. 
 

2) City Council can ask the voters if they wish to approve a General Fund millage increase. 
 
 If the answer is ‘no’, you can skip the rest of this section.  If the answer is ‘yes’, you need to 

determine if the voters should decide this issue at a special election or a general election.  
There are 2 opportunities for a special election; one on February 23, 2010 and one on May 4, 
2010.  Council’s deadline for a February special election is December 15, 2009 and the 
deadline for a May special election is February 23, 2010.  A special election utilizing 
consolidated precincts costs $75,000 to $90,000 if you don’t include staff time that’s already 
budgeted.  Please know that for 31 precincts it would cost about $100,000 to $125,000, which 
includes staff time.  

 
 A February special election means that City management can develop a budget for fiscal year 
 2010/11 knowing with great accuracy our revenue line.  A May special election means that we 
 would need to run 2 concurrent budgets, one assuming passage of a millage, and one 
 assuming non-passage.  There is also a possibility that we would have to run 4 concurrent 
 budgets, depending on the ballot language, i.e., the voters could be asked if they wished to 
 approve no increase; a 1 mill increase; a mill and a half increase; or a 1.9 mill increase.  Given 
 time constraints, I don’t think it’s feasible to develop, review, calibrate and approve concurrent 
 budgets.   
 
 In the alternative, Council could also have a millage question for the November 2010 election.  
 However, any millage increase could not take effect until the following fiscal year July, which 
 means July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2012. 
 
 Speaking of millage rates, I continue to be asked what the effect will be on a City tax bill, as 
 well as the entire local property tax bill, if:   a) There is not a millage increase; and b) There is 
 a millage increase. 
 
 Attachment #2, prepared by City Assessor Nino Licari, answers these questions.  Succinctly, 
 no millage increase means a savings in the 2010 average residential tax bill of $157.89 for 
 City taxes and $429.81 for the rest of the property tax bill for a total savings of $587.70.  
 Conversely, a 1.9 City millage increase means an increase in the property tax bill compared to 
 2009 of $37.81 and  there will still be a decrease in the other portions of the property tax bill of 
 $429.81 resulting in a savings of $392.00 on the entire tax bill.  



4 
 

Recap and Update on Policy Options to Lessen the Impact of Reduced Services and Mitigate 
Workforce Reduction 
October 30, 2009 
 
 
3) City Council can authorize the use of the Budget Stabilization Fund, Fund Balance and   
 increase some administrative fees. 
 

As indicated earlier, the workforce reduction option that was part of the September 28, 2009 
PowerPoint presentation, utilizes $300,000 of Budget Stabilization funding every year for the 
next 5 years.  That comes to $1.5 million and we currently have available $1.8 million.   
This brings us to the use of Fund Balance.   
 
Attachment #3 is the original matrix entitled, “Option 1” which indicates total full-time lay-offs of 
159 personnel.  Attachment #4 is “Option 1-a”, and that option reduces the deficit between 
shortfalls and expenditures by $2.8 million over 5 years as a result of reducing the Fund 
Balance to 15%.  In summary, use of Fund Balance to this degree changes the original 
workforce reduction option by zero, as in essence the use of Fund Balance buys time, not 
employees.  Refer again to Attachment #1, as it illustrates this fact. 
 
Along a similar vein, we have $1.2 million in the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority revolving 
fund.  However, we’d like to hold this money in abeyance until such time as we can determine 
how to close the projected shortfall of $1.6 million in the General Fund this fiscal year. With 
reference to increasing administrative fees, an increase of 1 – 3% per year is included in our 
projections. 

 
4) City Council can transfer some funds from General Capital to General Operating. 
 

There was some discussion on the feasibility of eliminating capital projects in favor of delaying 
lay-offs on the operational side of the ledger; in other words, a transfer from General Capital to 
General Operating.  During our October 19 discussion, we spoke of three types of Capital 
programming:  infrastructure maintenance; economic development enhancement projects; 
quality of life improvements.   
 
Infrastructure maintenance could also be called “pay me now, or pay me later”.  The most 
important General Capital Fund element in this category is major and local road maintenance 
and reconstruction.  Other items include drains, sidewalks, bridges, and public facilities. 
 
There was general consensus among Council not to transfer Capital funding allocated for road 
improvements to the General Operating Fund.  There was concurrence with my statement 
contained in the October 7, 2009 memorandum that a good road system is essential for public 
safety, blight prevention, and quality of life elements.  
 
Economic development enhancement projects are those that provide a competitive edge over 
cities in terms of attracting and retaining jobs and businesses.  An example is the Transit 
Center.  Council can pull the plug on this project and essentially transfer about $1.3 million 
from General Capital to General Operating.   
 



5 
 

Recap and Update on Policy Options to Lessen the Impact of Reduced Services and Mitigate 
Workforce Reduction 
October 30, 2009 

 
 
 Our October 19 discussion on this matter pointed out that economic development 
 enhancement projects provide a competitive edge over other cities in terms of attracting and 
 retaining jobs and businesses; and that we should try to leverage grant funds whenever 
 possible to augment the City’s investment.  However, it was not clear how Council wished to 
 handle this matter.  To assist in your deliberations, Attachment #5 is an update on the Transit 
 Center project. 
 
 Quality of life improvements projects also provide a competitive edge in terms of having 
 people aspire to live in a particular community, i.e., ours.  Examples of these types of 
 improvements are the trail system, and civic center site improvements.  Additionally, our 
 existing library, community center, museum and nature center are also quality of life 
 improvements. 
  
 Capital Fund reserves for the trail system is $2 million and Capital Fund reserves for the Civic 
 Center is $1.1 million.  While there was discussion about holding these projects in abeyance 
 until such time as they could be augmented by grant funds, no clear direction by Council in 
 this regard was produced.  Thus the policy question becomes:   
 
 a. Do you wish to cancel these projects?   
 b. If yes, do you wish to allocate funding to General Operating or unfunded infrastructure  
  needs in General Capital? 
 
 Before leaving this issue, there was discussion relative to road improvements.  As mentioned 
 in my October 7, 2009 memorandum as well as our table discussion, the City should be 
 allocating approximately $5 million a year for local road improvements, and we have not done 
 this for the past several years.  Funds for major road improvements also rely heavily on the 
 General Capital fund.   
 
 Staying on the policy issue, do you wish to scratch economic development, and quality of life 
 projects in favor of shoring up road improvements?  Or do you wish to take funding from those 
 programs to delay lay-offs?  Of course, another option is to leave these in place.   
 
 One more point on the General Capital fund.  The Refuse Fund was in trouble this fiscal year 
 to the tune of $350,000, and a transfer of .07 mills from General Capital was used to 
 balance that  account.  It’s going to be worse next fiscal year as we estimate that the Refuse 
 Fund will need approximately a .92 mill levy or .17 mill increase.  This represents a projected 
 $775,000 shortfall in the Refuse Fund for 2010/11. 
 
From my perspective, the salient policy question becomes “What is your vision of the City of Troy, 
both as a community and organization 5 years from now? And what should we do to arrive there?” 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA\11.09.09 – Recap and Update on Policy Options to Lessen the Impact of Reduced Services and Mitigate Workforce 
Reduction 



Attachment #1 
Effect of Having Fund Balance at 15% 

 

 

Structurally there is a problem. The City of Troy provides more services than there is 
revenue to cover.  As the revenue decreases and the current level of service does not 
change, it will take more than just the use of Fund Balance to fix the problem.  

If over 70% of expenditures is personal services and you use a portion of the Fund 
Balance to cover the personnel costs, then each year the Fund Balance is decreased to 
balance out the revenue shortage until the Fund Balance is depleted.   

The use of Fund Balance does not solve the City of Troy’s financial problems; it just 
delays lay-offs and cuts to City services.  Realistically you would not be able to balance 
the revenue shortage for more than one or two years or you would deplete the entire 
Fund Balance.   

If the policy is changed to allow Fund Balance to be used up to 15% of the General 
Fund, there is a total of $2.8 million over the 5 years.  Because the expenditures are 
increasing annually while the revenue is decreasing, the use of Fund Balance at 15% 
versus the current 17% will only produce a net difference of $100,000 over the 5-year 
period.  Please refer to the attached charts for a year-by year analysis of Fund Balance 
use.  



Effect of Fund Balance
at 15%

Prepared and Edited by John M. Lamerato and Monica S. Irelan

Original Chart. (Chart A)
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Revenue 58.1$       54.3$       53.1$       52.2$       51.5$       This is the revenue projections with NO mill increase.

Expenditures 64.3$       60.3$       56.3$       55.1$       54.2$       The expenditures with the cuts .

Proposed Cuts (6.2)$        (6.0)$        (3.2)$        (2.9)$        (2.7)$        This is the difference between Revenue and Expenditures.

Total 58.1$       54.3$       53.1$       52.2$       51.5$       This is the Expenditures minus the Proposed Cuts.

Original Chart with use of Fund Balance up to 15% (Chart B)
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Revenue 58.1$       54.3$       53.1$       52.2$       51.5$       This is the revenue projections with NO mill increase.

Expenditures 64.3$       62.1$       57.0$       55.2$       54.4$       The expenditures with the cuts .

Proposed Cuts (6.2)$        (7.8)$        (3.9)$        (3.0)$        (2.9)$        This is the difference between Revenue and Expenditures.

Fund Balance 1.8$         0.6$         0.1$         0.2$         0.1$         

Expenditure Cuts (4.4)$        (7.2)$        (3.8)$        (2.8)$        (2.8)$        With the use of Fund Balance, these are the cuts needed.

Total 59.9$       54.9$       53.2$       52.4$       51.6$       This is the Expenditures minus the Expenditure Cuts.

Fund Balance 10.5$       8.7$         8.1$         8.0$         7.8$         
Fund Balance Used 1.8$         0.6$         0.1$         0.2$         0.1$         This  shows how the Fund Balance numbers were produced.
Remaining Fund Bala 8.7$         8.1$         8.0$         7.8$         7.7$         
F/B % of Budget 15.0% 14.9% 15.1% 14.9% 15.0%
Total Cuts Needed (4.4)$        (7.2)$        (3.8)$        (2.8)$        (2.8)$        

Using this chart, Mangement will try to explain why use of Fund Balance is a one- time fix and does not address the 
structural problem that is facing the City of Troy.

If Council changed Fund Balance Policy to 15%, there is $1.8 million, $0.6 million, $0.1 million, $0.2 million, and $0.1 million 
in 2010 through 2014.

Conclussion
After looking at the following charts, it is apparent that the use of Fund Balance does not fix the structural issue that faces the

City of Troy.  Using Fund Balance will delay the needed cuts but only lowers the overall cuts slightly over the 5-year period.
The net difference between Chart A and Chart B is $100,000.



Comparing 2010/11

Chart A Chart B
2010/11 2010/11

Revenue 58.1$       Revenue 58.1$       

Expenditures 64.3$       Expenditures 64.3$       

Proposed Cuts (6.2)$        Proposed Cuts (6.2)$        

Fund Balance 1.8$         

Expenditure Cuts (6.2)$        Expenditure Cuts (4.4)$        

Total 58.1$       Total 59.9$       

Chart A is the Original Chart with no use of Fund Balance.
Chart B is the Original Chart with use of Fund Balance. (15%)
As stated on the first Page, the Proposed Cuts come from the difference between 
Revenue and Expenditures.

1) In 2010/11, there is an opportunity to use $1.8 million in Fund Balance if the Policy is changed
to indicate a 15% funding level.

2) When using Fund Balance, the amount is added to the Revenue Stream as a onetime installment.
3) The amount of Expenditures Cuts needed would reduced to $4.4 million (in Chart B) 

from the original $6.2 as indicated in Chart A.
4) The end result in 2010/11 is a balanced budget in both Chart A and B.
5) The important item to notice is the TOTAL.  The totals are different because there was a removal

of $6.2 million in expenditures from Chart A and only $4.4 million in expenditures
from Chart B.  This Total is multiplied by 2% plus $1.0 million for the following years
expense line.  

6) In essence, by using Fund Balance, there is $1.8 million worth of expenses left in Chart B that
was removed via cuts in Chart A.
This will effect every year that follows.  The $1.8 in 2010 will equal more (see chart below):
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

$1.8360 $1.8727 $1.9102 $1.9484
This is due to the conservative 2% added for cost of living increases.



Comparing 2011/12

Chart A Chart B
2011/12 2011/12

Revenue 54.3$       Revenue 54.3$       

Expenditures 60.3$       Expenditures 62.1$       

Proposed Cuts (6.0)$        Proposed Cuts (7.8)$        

Fund Balance 0.6$         

Expenditure Cuts (6.0)$        Expenditure Cuts (7.2)$        

Total 54.3$       Total 54.9$       

Chart A is the Original Chart with no use of Fund Balance.
Chart B is the Original Chart with use of Fund Balance. (15%)
As stated on the first Page, the Proposed Cuts come from the difference between 
Revenue and Expenditures.

1) In 2011/12, there is an opportunity to use $0.6 million in Fund Balance if the Policy is changed
to indicate a 15% funding level.

2) When using Fund Balance, the amount is added to the Revenue Stream as a onetime installment.
3) The amount of Expenditures Cuts needed would then be $7.2 instead of $7.8(in Chart B).
4) There is a large difference in expenditure line between Chart A and Chart B.  The difference is the 

$1.8 million in expenses that was left in Chart B due to use of Fund Balance in 2010/11.
There is also a need for $1.8 million more in cuts in Chart B than Chart A.

5) Once the Expenditure Cuts are made the Totals are different.  Again, it is in the exact amount
as was used in Fund Balance ($0.6).

6) In essence, by using Fund Balance, there is $0.6  million worth of expenses left in Chart B. This
will effect every year that follows.  The $0.6 in 2011 will equal more (see chart below):
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

$0.6120 $0.6242 $0.6367
This is due to the conservative 2% added for cost of living increases.



Comparing 2012/13

Chart A Chart B
2012/13 2012/13

Revenue 53.1$       Revenue 53.1$       

Expenditures 56.3$       Expenditures 57.0$       

Proposed Cuts (3.2)$        Proposed Cuts (3.9)$        

Fund Balance 0.1$         

Expenditure Cuts (3.2)$        Expenditure Cuts (3.8)$        

Total 53.1$       Total 53.2$       

Chart A is the Original Chart with no use of Fund Balance.
Chart B is the Original Chart with use of Fund Balance. (15%)
As stated on the first Page, the Proposed Cuts come from the difference between 
Revenue and Expenditures.

1) In 2012/13, there is an opportunity to use $0.1 million in Fund Balance if the Policy is changed
to indicate a 15% funding level.

2) When using Fund Balance, the amount is added to the Revenue Stream as a onetime installment.
3) The amount of Expenditures Cuts needed would then be $3.8 instead of $3.9(in Chart B).
4) The difference in expenditure line between Chart A and Chart B is $0.6 due to the use

of Fund Balance in 2011/12.
5) After Cuts and use of Fund Balance, an equalibrium occurs. The TOTALS in Chart A and Chart B

are almost identicle.  The only difference is the $0.1 due to the use of Fund Balance.
This indicates that the use of Fund Balance does not fix the issue, it delays it to a later

date.  The need for Expenditure Cuts will catch up to the use of Fund Balance.



Comparing 2013/14

Chart A Chart B
2013/14 2013/14

Revenue 52.2$       Revenue 52.2$       

Expenditures 55.1$       Expenditures 55.2$       

Proposed Cuts (2.9)$        Proposed Cuts (3.0)$        

Fund Balance 0.2$         

Expenditure Cuts (2.9)$        Expenditure Cuts (2.8)$        

Total 52.2$       Total 52.4$       

Chart A is the Original Chart with no use of Fund Balance.
Chart B is the Original Chart with use of Fund Balance. (15%)
As stated on the first Page, the Proposed Cuts come from the difference between 
Revenue and Expenditures.

1) In 2012/13, there is an opportunity to use $0.2 million in Fund Balance if the Policy is changed
to indicate a 15% funding level.

2) When using Fund Balance, the amount is added to the Revenue Stream as a onetime installment.
3) The amount of Expenditures Cuts needed would then be $2.7 instead of $2.9(in Chart B).
4) Once the Expenditure Cuts are made the Totals are different.  Again, it is in the exact amount

as was used in Fund Balance ($0.2).



Comparing 2014/15

Chart A Chart B
2013/14 2013/14

Revenue 51.5$       Revenue 51.5$       

Expenditures 54.2$       Expenditures 54.4$       

Proposed Cuts (2.7)$        Proposed Cuts (2.9)$        

Fund Balance 0.1$         

Expenditure Cuts (2.7)$        Expenditure Cuts (2.8)$        

Total 51.5$       Total 51.6$       

Chart A is the Original Chart with no use of Fund Balance.
Chart B is the Original Chart with use of Fund Balance. (15%)
As stated on the first Page, the Proposed Cuts come from the difference between 
Revenue and Expenditures.

1) In 2014/15, there is an opportunity to use $0.1 million in Fund Balance if the Policy is changed
to indicate a 15% funding level.

2) When using Fund Balance, the amount is added to the Revenue Stream as a onetime installment.
3) The amount of Expenditures Cuts needed would then be $2.8 instead of $2.9(in Chart B).
4) Once the Expenditure Cuts are made the Totals are different.  Again, it is in the exact amount

as was used in Fund Balance ($0.1).



2009 
Average 

Residential 
Taxable 
Value

2010 
Estimated 
Average 

Residential 
Taxable 
Value

2009 
Average 

Residential 
Taxes

2010 
Average 

Residential 
Taxes (no 

millage 
change)

Difference 
2010 - 2009 
(no millage 

change)

2010 Average 
Residential 
Taxes (with 
1.0 mill new 

City levy)

Difference 
2010 - 

2009 (with 
1 Mill City 

Levy)

2010 
Average 

Residential 
Taxes (with 
1.9 mill new 

City levy)

Difference 
2010 - 2009 

(with 1.9 
Mill City 

Levy)

$120,014 $103,000

CITY 9.2800  1,113.73  955.84  (157.89)  1,058.84  (54.89)  1,151.54  37.81
OCPTA 0.5900 70.81 60.77 (10.04) 60.77 (10.04) 60.77 (10.04)
County 4.6461 557.60 478.55 (79.05) 478.55 (79.05) 478.55 (79.05)
OCZA 0.1000 12.00 10.30 (1.70) 10.30 (1.70) 10.30 (1.70)
ISD 3.3690 404.33 347.01 (57.32) 347.01 (57.32) 347.01 (57.32)
Comm Coll 1.5844 190.15 163.19 (26.96) 163.19 (26.96) 163.19 (26.96)
State Ed 6.0000 720.08 618.00 (102.08) 618.00 (102.08) 618.00 (102.08)
Sch Debt 4.1000 492.06 422.30 (69.76) 422.30 (69.76) 422.30 (69.76)
Sch Supp 4.6229 554.81 476.16 (78.65) 476.16 (78.65) 476.16 (78.65)
Admin 0.2500 30.00 25.75 (4.25) 25.75 (4.25) 25.75 (4.25)

Total 34.5424  4,145.57  3,557.87  (587.70)  3,660.87  (484.70)  3,753.57  (392.00)

Millages

City of Troy - Assessing Department

With No Millage Rate Change, with a 1 Mill Increase, and with a 1.9 Mill Increase
Comparison of 2009 and 2010 TOTAL Average Residential Tax Bills

(*  all calculations made based on Principal Residence Exemptions in place, and Troy School District levies)

Attachment #2



Attachment #3  
Option #1 from Oct. 05, 2009

Department 2010/11 Savings 2011/12 Savings 2012/13 Savings 2013/14 Savings 2014/15 Savings
City Manager
City Attorney 1 $130,000
City Clerk 4 $147,000
Community Affairs 6 $240,000
Human Resources 3 $95,000
Building Inspection 17 $959,400
Engineering 15 $375,200
Accting/ Risk Man 2.5 $176,000
Assessing 5 $365,000
Purchasing 2 $168,000
Treasury 0.5 $30,000
Library 39 $1,000,000 69 $2,663,000
Museum 10 $315,000 1 $110,000
RE&D 2 $184,000
P&R 17 $1,654,719 12 $1,550,000
Nature Center 7 $270,000 1 $92,000
Police $160,000 4 $290,000 29 $3,173,000 14 $1,687,000
DPW 2.5 $155,000 10 $320,000 31 $939,000
City Donations $200,000
Longevity $540,000
Fire $34,000 1 $72,000 3 $274,000
4 Day Work Week 0 $2,700,000
TOTALS 124.5 $6,214,319 106 $6,009,000 30 $3,245,000 48 $2,900,000 0 $2,700,000

Full Time 60.5 39 29 31 Total Layoffs: 159.5
Part Time 64 67 1 17 149

Revenue 58.1$           54.3$            53.1$           52.2$            51.5$            
Expenditures 64.3$           60.3$            56.3$           55.1$            54.2$            
Proposed Cuts (6.2)$            (6.0)$             (3.2)$            (2.9)$             (2.7)$             
Total 58.1$           54.3$            53.1$           52.2$            51.5$            

Fund Balance 10.5$           10.5$            10.5$           10.5$            10.5$            
F/B % of Budget 18.1% 19.3% 19.8% 20.1% 20.4%



Attachment #4
Option #1-a - Fund Balance at 15%

Department 2010/11 Savings 2011/12 Savings 2012/13 Savings 2013/14 Savings 2014/15 Savings
City Manager
City Attorney 1 $130,000
City Clerk 4 $147,000
Community Affairs 6 $240,000
Human Resources 3 $95,000
Building Inspection 17 $959,400
Engineering 15 $375,200
Accting/ Risk Man 2.5 $176,000
Assessing 5 $365,000
Purchasing 2 $168,000
Treasury 0.5 $30,000
Library 108 $3,663,000
Museum 11 $425,000
RE&D 2 $184,000
P&R 17 $1,654,719 12 $1,550,000
Nature Center 8 $362,000
Police $160,000 32 $3,463,000 14 $1,687,000
DPW 2.5 $155,000 10 $320,000 31 $939,000
City Donations $200,000
Longevity $540,000
Fire $34,000 1 $72,000 3 $274,000
4 Day Work Week 0 $2,700,000
TOTALS 65.5 $4,423,319 151 $7,190,000 43 $3,855,000 48 $2,900,000 0 $2,700,000
Revenue+ Fund Balance 59.9$           54.9$            53.2$           52.4$            51.6$            
Expenditures 64.3$           62.1$            57.0$           55.3$            54.4$            
Expenditure Cuts (4.4)$            (7.2)$             (3.8)$            (2.9)$             (2.8)$             
Total 59.9$           54.9$            53.2$           52.4$            51.6$            

Remaining Fund Balance 8.7$             8.1$              8.0$              7.8$              7.7$              
F/B % of Budget 15.0% 14.9% 15.1% 14.9% 15.0%



 

 
October 14, 2009                             
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members  
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   
SUBJECT: Update on Troy/Birmingham Transit Center 
   
Council Member Mary Kerwin requested an update of the Troy/Birmingham Transit Center.  Below is a 
summary of the most current activities on the project. 
 
Wendel/Duchscherer Architects & Engineers submitted the 30% completion documents of the Transit Center 
in July of 2009. 
 
Hubbel, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) has taken over engineering and architecture design of the project.  This 
process will bring the project from 30% design to site plan approval and eventually to bidding and construction.  
The Cities of Troy and Birmingham have interred into an interlocal government agreement to share in the 
costs of the HRC. 
 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) are assisting HRC in the arena of landscape architecture and urban 
design. 
 
HRC and CWA met with the Birmingham Planning Board and Troy Planning Commission at a joint meeting on 
September 26, 2009 to continue in the design of the project. 
 
The City of Birmingham continues to work on negotiating purchase agreements from to land owners.  The land 
is located on the Birmingham side and is needed for access to the proposed access drives and the tunnel.  
 
City of Troy staff spearheaded a TIGER Discretionary Grant Application submittal for $7 million. 
 
The City of Birmingham is spearheading a state based EECBG Grant Application for LED lighting and other 
energy related components of the project. 
 
HRC is getting near completion of the preliminary site plan application package.  City Council will have the 
approval authority after a Planning Commission recommendation. 
 
A funding update from Clark Hill, PLC is attached for your information. 
 
 
 
Attachment 
 
MFM/mr\AGENDA\2009\10.19.09 – Update on the Troy/Birmingham Transit Center 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

Attachment #5 



campbellld
Text Box
E-03

















































Page 1 of 2 

 

 
October 19, 2009 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk   
 
SUBJECT: Bid Waiver – Printing of Election and Voter Registration Materials 

Background 
• Michigan Election Law mandates the City Clerk’s Office to provide election and voter 

registration related materials to voters during election cycles and throughout the year. 
• Materials include ballots, voter identification cards, absentee voter ballot envelopes and 

secrecy sleeves, absentee voter ballot applications, voter registration applications, and voter 
notice postcards. 

• The State of Michigan requires adhesion to printing standards that currently only one company 
is able to consistently provide the City of Troy with materials that meet standards and are 
customized with specific Troy information and processing requirements to accommodate the 
volume of forms required. 

• The State of Michigan and Oakland County contract with Printing Systems, Inc. for ballot 
printing, and therefore require the City of Troy to also purchase from Printing Systems, Inc. for 
school district, countywide or larger elections. The City of Troy utilizes Printing Systems, Inc. 
via Oakland County during those elections to provide additional services such as ballot folding 
for these elections. 

 
Financial Considerations 

• Printing Systems, Inc. consistently offers the lowest quote on all election and voter registration 
materials. 

 
Legal Considerations 

• If formal bidding procedures are waived, no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal 
bids. 

 
Policy Considerations 

• Elections and Voter Registration are statutorily required functions of the City Clerk’s Office; no 
perceived policy consideration outcome statement. 

 
Options 

• City Management and the City Clerk’s Office are requesting a waiver of the formal bid process 
for the printing of election and voter registration materials, to include ballots, voter registration 
materials, and absentee voter ballot materials from Printing Systems, Inc., Taylor, MI, one of 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



Page 2 of 2 

the only authorized election printing companies in Michigan, through December 31, 2012. The 
estimated total expenditures per fiscal year are $40,000.00 which includes ballots, absentee 
voter ballot envelopes, voter identification cards, and absentee voter ballot applications. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
November 4, 2009 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission for Oakland 

County  
 
Background: 
 Since 2001 the City of Troy has serviced all county roads in Troy for snow and ice control.  
 Attached is a copy of the proposed 2009/2010 Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road 

Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy.  
 Attached is a copy of the 2008/2009 RCOC Winter Maintenance Guidelines and maps of the 

county roads in the City of Troy. The 2009/2010 guidelines have not been finalized and are not 
currently available.  

 In review of the guidelines there would not be any county roads that would fall into the highest 
priority category (Critical Priority). The county roads that would fall into priority I would be Crooks 
and Big Beaver and all other county roads would fall into priority II. 

 A basic comparison can be made to the level of service that the RCOC would provide relative to 
the City of Troy. The city provides one truck to each of the 9 county roads under contract. The 
RCOC has stated that based on the intensity of the snow and ice event that they would have from 
1 to 3 trucks covering all 9 roadways.   

 The amount of compensation to the City has not increased over last season’s contract. This does 
not compensate our cost but a higher level of service is provided. On average between 2001and 
2008 the City expended $104,000 over and above payments under the contract from the RCOC. 
The past two winters have seen snow events at the highest level since the early 1900’s. In 
comparison on average between 2001 and 2006 these winters were near average for the region 
and the city expended $51,000 over and above payments under the contract from the RCOC.   

 Salt cost has risen 40% this past year. Salt brine being added to the salt on each truck will allow 
us to reduce the rate of salt applied to the pavement and offset some of the costs increase. The 
salt is approximately 48% of the cost of maintaining the county roads within the City of Troy. 

 It continues to be evident that this agreement is beneficial to both the RCOC and the City of Troy 
by allowing the City to administer Snow & Ice Control more timely, at a much higher level and 
uniform manner to these high priority roads and allowing  the County to concentrate on it’s highest 
priority roads, I-75 and M-59. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 No additional staffing or equipment is required. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



Legal Considerations: 
 Legal counsel has reviewed the contract for form and legality. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 
 
Options: 
 City management is in agreement with the measured lane mile figures as has been presented, 

and with the level of compensation for each road configuration; therefore we recommend that the 
proposed maintenance agreement be approved as printed. 

 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 











 

Map of RCOC Roads and list of roads Troy would maintain for Snow & Ice Control. 

 

• Adams  
• Big Beaver 
• Crooks 
• Dequindre 
• John R 
• Livernois 
• Long Lake 
• Maple 
• South Blvd  

























CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 19, 2009, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Pastor AC Phipps of Evanswood Church of God gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance 
to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL: 

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
 Robin Beltramini  

Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  

 Mary Kerwin 
 
ABSENT:  

 Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak – Absent from county 
 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2009-10-302 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem 
Howrylak at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, October 19, 2009 due to being out of 
the county. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin   
No: None  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to David 

Grenville, Chairman; Michelle Hodges, President and Ann Comiskey, Secretary of the 
Troy Chamber of Commerce in celebration of their 50 Years. 

b) Henry Lybeck, from the APWA Michigan Chapter, provided a presentation recognizing 
Douglas Billings and Nick Herzek as the first place award recipients in the American 
Public Works Association’s Detroit Metro Snow Plow Rodeo.  

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – 1400 Rochester Road 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving public comment from: 
 
Marvin Reinhardt Opposed 
 
Resolution #2009-10-303 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for property known as 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI. 48083-2854, Parcel #88-20-34-226-
048, and #88-20-34-226-057, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2009-02-042; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling   
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Granting of a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) to Bostick 

Rochester Road Development, LLC – 1400 Rochester Road 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving public comment from: 
 
Dennis Bostick Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC 
William Miller Axel Tech International, LLC 
Richard Peters Questions 
 
Resolution #2009-10-304 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the Troy City Council on October 19, 2009, 
established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1400 Rochester, 
Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #88-20-34-226-048 and #88-20-34-226-057;  
 
WHEREAS, An application has been submitted by Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC, 
for a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for real property at 1400 Rochester, 
Troy, MI. 48083, for twelve (12) years; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, Troy City Council, on October 19, 
2009, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Bostick 
Rochester Road Development, LLC, at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083 may have the effect of 
substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of 
the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Bostick Rochester Road 
Development, LLC, at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083 shall not substantially impede the 
operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of the Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) will impair the financial 
soundness of the City of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for a 
Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Bostick Rochester Road Development, 
LLC, Inc., at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #88-20-34-226-048 and #88-20-34-226-
057, for real property for a term of twelve (12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a 
Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC, 
and in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Bostick Rochester 
Road Development, LLC, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini   
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for AxleTech 

International, LLC – 1400 Rochester Road 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving public comment from: 
 
Marvin Reinhardt Opposed 
 
Resolution #2009-10-305 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the Troy City Council on October 19, 2009, 
established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1400 Rochester, 
Troy MI, 48083-2854, Parcel #88-20-34-226-048 and #88-20-34-226-057;  
 
WHEREAS, An application has been submitted by AxleTech International, LLC, for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1400 Rochester, Troy, 
MI. 48083-2854, for six (6) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, Troy City Council, on October 19, 
2009, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for AxleTech 
International, LLC, at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI. 48083-2854 may have the effect of 
substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of 
the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for AxleTech International, LLC, at 1400 
Rochester Troy, MI 48083-2854 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy 
or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for AxleTech International, LLC, Inc., at 
1400 Rochester, Troy, MI. 48083-2854, Parcel #88-20-34-226-048 and #88-20-34-226-057, for 
personal property for a term of six (6) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of 
Agreement between the City of Troy and AxleTech International, LLC, and payment of the 
application fee established in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and AxleTech 
International, LLC, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; 
and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 5 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: None 
Scheduled (b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
and Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 

 
a) Mayoral Appointments – None Scheduled  
 
b) City Council Appointments 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council; Rule 15. 
Appointments; A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees 
 
Resolution #2009-10-306 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council; Rule 15. Appointments, A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees to 
waive the requirement that resumes will be submitted on or before the time of nomination.  
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield 
No: Fleming, Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Nominate an Additional Applicant for Appointment to the 
Personnel Board 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby NOMINATES Ann Comiskey for consideration for 
appointment to the Personnel Board with an unexpired term of April 30, 2011. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Nomination and Appointment to the Personnel Board 
 
Resolution #2009-10-307 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the nomination of Ann Comiskey 
and the vote for appointment to the Personnel Board until the City Council meeting scheduled 
for Monday, November 9, 2009. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 6 - 

Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #2009-10-308 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
Dorothy Pietron Unexpired Term 04/30/2012 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) - 2 & 3-Year Terms 
 
Reuben Ellis      2-Year Term Term Expires 09/30/2011  
  
Kelly Jones      2-Year Term Term Expires 09/30/2011 
  
Mayada Fakhouri    2-Year Term Term Expires 09/30/2011 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin   
No: None  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Historic District 
Study Committee  

 
a) Mayoral Nominations – None Scheduled 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
  
Resolution #2009-10-309 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Historic District Commission AMENDED: Resolution #2009-10-314; Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms; Student – 1-Year Term 
 
Lauren Harden - Student Term Expires 07/01/2010 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling   
No: None  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

E-3 Bid Waiver – Sole Source Purchase – Top-Dress Materials 
 
Resolution #2009-10-310 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, Sand Sales Inc. has been competitively priced and the sole supplier of top-dress 
materials for the City’s golf courses over the last eighteen (18) years;  
 
WHEREAS, In accordance with scientific research readily accepted throughout the industry to 
continue the use of the same top-dressing material for good sound agronomic principles; and 
 
WHEREAS, The addition of Sanctuary Lake and the practice facility to the Golf division has 
necessitated the need for increased quantities of materials; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and AUTHORIZES the purchase of top-dress materials from Sand Sales Inc. of 
Clarkston, Michigan for an annual cost not-to-exceed $20,000.00 for years 2009 and 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS purchases totaling 
an estimated $3,200.00 over the approved administrative limit.  
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini   
No: None  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 8 - 

E-4 Troy v Munchiando 
 
Resolution #2009-10-311 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the City of Troy v Munchiando condemnation case, and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the 
amounts stated therein; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No: None  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Richard Peters Improper Security Measures 
Mary Ann Bernardi Miscellaneous Issues 
Barbara Harrell Troy Daze Committee 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
  
Resolution #2009-10-312 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: None  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 9 - 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2009-10-312-F-2  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of October 5, 2009 as submitted. 
 
F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:  
 
Resolution #2009-10-312-F-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
a) Celebrating 50 Years – Troy Chamber of Commerce  
 
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Ice Melt Compounds  
  
Resolution #2009-10-312-F-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one (1) year 
requirements of ice melt compounds with an option to renew for one (1) additional year for the 
City of Troy and participating MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network) Purchasing 
Cooperative Members to the low bidder, Washington Elevator Co, Inc. of Washington Twp, MI, 
for both proposals at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 30, 2009, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract 
expiration of October 31, 2010. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Janitorial Services  
  
Resolution #2009-10-312-F-4b 
 
WHEREAS, Two-year contracts to provide Janitorial Services with an option to renew for two 
additional years was awarded to the low bidders for each group on October 15, 2007 
(Resolution 2007-10-294-E4b);  
 
WHEREAS, All awarded contractors have agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
for four (4) years under the same terms and conditions at reduced pricing and schedule 
changes; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Purchasing department has conducted a market survey and determined no 
benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids, as cost reductions made by the current 
vendors exceed 9% per year;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the options to 
renew the contracts under the same contract terms and conditions at reduced pricing and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

schedule changes for four additional years expiring October 31, 2013, with adjustments 
allowed to labor rates after two-years pending a market review to the following vendors: 
 

  
 

Estimated Total 
 

Group 1: 
Annual Cost 

Kristel Cleaning Inc.  $381,352.48 
Group 2: Du All Cleaning Inc. $ 16,386.96 
Group 3: Du All Cleaning Inc. $ 25,890.36 
Group 4: Omni Facility Services $ 21,263.88 
Group 5: Kristel Cleaning Inc.  $ 13,371.60 

 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Jaycee Park Fencing  
  
Resolution #2009-10-312-F-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, materials 
and equipment to install new backstops and ball diamond fencing at Jaycee Park to the low 
bidder, Nationwide Construction Group of Chesterfield, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$18,367.00, at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 14, 2009, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
  
F-5 Contract Extension: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Paging Services  
 
Resolution #2009-10-312-F-5 
 
WHEREAS, On November 3, 2003, a three (3) year contract with an option to renew for up to 
three (3) additional years to provide pager rental was awarded to the low bidder, Verizon 
Wireless Messaging Services of Lewisville, Texas for an estimated annual cost of $29,103.00 
(Resolution #2003-11-559);  
 
WHEREAS, On May 8, 2006, Troy City Council exercised the option to renew the contract with 
American Messaging (formerly Verizon Wireless Messaging Services) under the same pricing 
structure, terms and conditions for three years expiring December 1, 2009 (Resolution #2006-
05-202-E4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, American Messaging has agreed to enter into a new five-year contract under the 
same terms and conditions as their original contract at favorable discounted pricing;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and EXTENDS 
the new contract to provide paging services for the City of Troy and participating Michigan 
Intergovernmental Trade Network cooperative members from American Messaging under the 
pricing, terms and conditions as outlined in the Customer Agreement; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 11 - 

Minutes of this meeting for an estimated annual cost to Troy of $19,000.00 to expire December 
1, 2014. 
 
F-6 Private Agreement for HCR Manor Care – Project No. 08.923.3  
  
Resolution #2009-10-312-F-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Heartland-Oakland 
MI, LLC for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, sidewalk, soil erosion, and  
deceleration lane on the site and in the adjacent right of way and hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
  
F-7 Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Carol Finn of Troy Youth 

Hockey Association (TYHA)  
 
Resolution #2009-10-312-F-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Youth Hockey 
Association (TYHA), asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management and CONTINGENT upon receipt of Form #1023-Application for Recognition 
Exemption; as required under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code verifying their 
501(c)(3) status. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:29 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:44 PM. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Reconsider Agenda Item E-02 b. City Council Nomination to 
Correct the Student Representative Nomination to the Historic District Commission  
 
Resolution #2009-10-313 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Agenda Item E-02 b. City Council 
Nomination to CORRECT the Student Representative nomination to the Historic District 
Commission. 
 
Yes:  Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 12 - 

Vote on Resolution to Nominate Student Representative to Liquor Advisory Committee 
 
Resolution #2009-10-314 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby NOMINATES Lauren Harden to the Liquor 
Advisory Committee with term expiring on July 1, 2010. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council; Rule 6. Order of 
Business and Utilize Rule 16. Members of the Public and Visitors  
 
Resolution #2009-10-315 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council; Rule 6. Order of Business to move forward Council Comments before Council 
Referrals and UTILIZE Rule 16. Members of the Public and Visitors to reduce Public Comment 
from five minutes to three minutes.  
 
Yes:  Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin. Schilling  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Council Members Broomfield and Eisenbacher offered a short statement in regard to their 
tenure serving as members of Troy’s City Council. 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1 Scheduling of a Special Election for February 23, 2010 and Direct City 

Administration to Prepare Ballot Language – Referred by Mayor Schilling 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 13 - 

Resolution to Schedule Special Election – February 23, 2010 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a February 23, 2010 Special 
Election for voters to vote on a proposed millage question and DIRECTS City Administration to 
draft ballot language with a proposed millage rate increase of 1.9 mills for the next five years, to 
be utilized to restore Public Safety and Quality of Life venues, with the language to be provided 
to the City Council on the next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for Council Action. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Council Referral Item H-1 Scheduling of a Special 
Election for February 23, 2010 and Direct City Administration to Prepare Ballot Language 
until after Agenda Item K-1 Study Session  

 
Resolution #2009-10-316 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the Council Referral Item H-1 
Scheduling of a Special Election for February 23, 2010 and Direct City Administration to 
Prepare Ballot Language until after Agenda Item K-1 Study Session  
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini    
No: Absent 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Public Comment Received From: 
Jack Witt Opposes millage election 
Kris Quail Supports opportunity to vote 
Ed Spillers Supports opportunity to vote 
John Lavendar Supports opportunity to vote 
John Witt Opposes millage increase and provided a handout to City Council 
Cathy Fucinari Supports millage increase 
Gordon Schepke Opposes millage increase 
Terry Roberts Opposes millage increase 
Gerard Staeger Opposes millage increase; Opposes Special Election 
Barbara Klein Supports Library 
Linda Thiefoldt Opposes millage increase; Supports employee concessions 
Tony Cruz Opposes millage increase 
Patti Koerner Supports Library; Supports millage increase 
Alison Iceman Supports millage increase to keep amenities 
Wayne Stutzman Opposes millage increase 
Barbara Chambers Supports Museum 
Thomas Burke Opposes millage increase at this time 
Janice Daniels Opposes millage increase 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 14 - 

Mary Ann Bernardi Opposes millage increase 
Sandy Macknis Supports millage increase 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 10:04 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:10 PM. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing Tax-

Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital – November 9, 2009  
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Historic Commission/Final – March 24, 2009  
b) Historic Commission/Final – June 30, 2009  
c) Historic District Study Committee/Final – August 4, 2009 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – August 5, 2009  
e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – August 5, 2009  
f) Charter Revision Committee/Final – August 13, 2009 
g) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – August 25, 2009  
h) Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 1, 2009 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – September 2, 2009 
j) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 3, 2009  
k) Library Advisory Board/Final – September 10, 2009 
l) Planning Commission/Draft – September 22, 2009 
m) Planning Commission/Final – September 22, 2009  
n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 1, 2009  
o) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 7, 2009  
p) Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 8, 2009 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Council Member Mary Kerwin’s Travel Expense Report – MML 111th Annual Conference 

on September 22-25, 2009  
b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – August 

2009  
c) City of Troy Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Actuarial Valuation Report – 

December 31, 2008 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 15 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter from Resident Vera Rettberg Commending the Efforts of Officer Malik  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Terry Nerbonne Regarding the Successful 

Ferris State University Criminal Justice Summer 2009 Internship Program 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 

 
J-5  Update on Troy/Birmingham Transit Center  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Communication Regarding Proposed Amendment to Planned Unit Development 
Agreement – The Pavilions of Troy Planned Unit Development (PUD 9) Northwest 
Corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 19  

Noted and Filed 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Continuation of Discussion on the 6-Year Organizational Restructuring Plan 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Agenda Item H-1 Schedule Special Election–February 
23, 2010 and Direct City Administration to Prepare Ballot Language 
 
Resolution #2009-10-317 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Agenda Item H-1 Schedule Special 
Election – February 23, 2010 and Direct City Administration to Prepare Ballot Language until 
the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, November 9, 2009. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini    
No: Eisenbacher, Broomfield  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 19, 2009 
 

- 16 - 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, October 20, 2009 at 12:14 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

AMERICA RECYCLES 2009 
 

WHEREAS, The world has changed a lot in the past century.  From individually packaged food 
servings to disposable diapers, more garbage is generated now than ever before.  The average 
American discards 7.5 pounds of garbage every day.  Our garbage, our solid waste stream, all goes to 
landfills, where it’s compacted and buried; and 
 

WHEREAS, To focus the nation’s attention on the importance of recycling, businesses, industries, 
government agencies, nonprofit organizations, and individuals have joined together to celebrate 
America Recycles 2009 and are encouraging their employees, staff, customers, membership, and all 
citizens to pledge to buy more recycled-content products starting today; and 
 

WHEREAS, Participating in America Recycles 2009 is one way our citizens can help raise 
awareness about the need to reduce waste by reusing, recycling and buying recycled products; and 
 

WHEREAS, The more we recycle, the less garbage winds up in our landfills and incineration plants.  
By reusing aluminum, paper, glass, plastics and other materials, we can save production and energy 
costs, and reduce by up to 75% the negative impacts that the extraction and processing of virgin 
materials has on the environment. Plastics, made from precious and nonrenewable petroleum, and 
aluminum, which is mined from bauxite, are especially important to recycle; and  
 

WHEREAS, Recycling helps protect our resources, our environment, and our quality of life. The entire 
loop: Reduce, Reuse, Recycle is completed when we buy products made from recycled material; and 
 

WHEREAS, From July 2008 to June 2009, the City of Troy recycled 4,375 tons of glass, paperboard, 
cardboard, newspaper, metal, tin, and plastic and 10,547 tons of compost; and  
 

WHEREAS, State and community leaders need to spread the word about the excellent programs they 
have established, the growth of markets for recyclable materials, and the importance of buying 
recycled products; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Troy City Council hereby proclaims America 
Recycles 2009 in Troy, Michigan, and urges all Troy residents to Reduce, Reuse and Recycle; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That America Recycles 2009 is celebrated year-round to encourage 
people to recycle and buy products made from recycled materials. The theme for America Recycles 
2009 is "It All Comes Back To You."  
 

Presented this 9th day of November 2009. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03a



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
October 27, 2009 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager   
 

FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Steven A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director 
 

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Elevator Weight 
Tests, Relief Valve Testing, Bi-Monthly Inspection, and Repairs  

    
Background 
 On November 13, 2006, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract for elevator weight testing, relief valve 

testing, bi-monthly inspections, and repairs for all City of Troy elevators, with a three-year option to renew. CC 
Res #2006-11-333-E4c  

 All work under law has to comply with State of Michigan Law PA 227, 1967 for elevator weight tests and relief 
valve testing.  This contract covers seven (7) elevators at the City Hall, Police Department, Library, Museum, 
and Community Center.   

 Elevator Technology, Inc of Detroit has agreed to renew the current contract under the same prices, terms and 
conditions until December 31, 2012.   

 The Purchasing department conducted a market survey and determined no benefit would be derived from 
soliciting additional sealed bids at this time; due to anticipated increases in union labor and material costs, a 
reduction in competition due to acquisitions or business closings, as well as a limited number of certified 
technicians to perform the work.  The cities of Warren and Sterling Heights awarded new contracts in 2009 at 
rates higher than those proposed under Troy’s current contract. Pricing concessions were also requested, but 
declined by the current provider as not feasible at this time due to January increases in labor contracts.   

 In addition to providing State mandated testing since 2006, Elevator Technology, Inc has also completed bi-
monthly inspections and elevator repair services as needed.  They continue to be reliable and trustworthy. 

 Proper elevator operations provide a safe means for people with any disability access to all public service areas.  
 

Financial Considerations 
 Funding of elevator weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-monthly inspections, and repair is available in the 

Building Operation Contractor Equipment Maintenance operating budget 266.7802.150. 
 

Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 06-49, to provide three-year requirements of elevator weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-monthly 

inspections and repairs with a three (3) year option to renew was competitively bid, in accordance with City 
Charter and Code.  

 

Recommendation 
 City management and the Building Operations Department recommend exercising the three-year option to 

renew  elevator weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-monthly inspections, and repairs on City elevators  with 
Elevator Technology, Inc of Detroit, MI, under the same prices, terms and conditions to expire December 31, 
2012. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



 
 
 
 
 
DATE:     October 27, 2009 

 
TO:      Susan Leirstein 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR  
 
 
SCHINDLER ELEVATOR – Mick Benka                                                          (734) 367-9410 
Mick has indicated that there has been an increase of wages, insurance, and mechanical 
replacement parts for elevators.  So a cost increase for service and maintenance will have to 
be implemented. As far as response time – two to three hours is what his company can 
support.  Their hours of operations are 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM – Monday thru Friday. 
 
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY -  Jack Kelly                                     (248) 473-7379 
According to Mr. Kelly, prices for labor and parts will be increasing, due to union living 
wages and materials (steel) that make the parts for the elevators.  Insurance rates also will 
be a factor in the increase.  Their hours of operations are 8:00 AM to 4:30 PM, but they do 
have “On Call” staff.  Response time for emergences is less than two hours. 
 
KONE ELEVATOR (Formerly City Elevator, Inc) – David                                (734) 513-6944               
Per David, prices will increase as of January 2010. Union 36’s contract with Kone Elevator, 
has a cost of living increase that is done the first of each year, so labor costs will increase.  
Parts will be higher for older elevators, but parts for everyday repair will remain the same.  
Kone Elevator operating hours is 8:00 AM to 4:30 PM – Monday thru Friday.  The 
emergency response is one hour or less.   
 
AMTECH ELEVATOR SERVICES -                       313-831-0900  
Phone number disconnected – Company out of business 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer to 
renew the original contract with the current vendor based on cost increases for parts, 
wages, and insurance.   
 
CC: File 

 



PAGE f.llELE\/AWR TECHNOLOGY1B/25/2029 14:23 3138321518 

From:PURCHASING 248 618 7608 10/26/2009 13:48 #049 P.001100 1 

October 26\ 2009 

AnN: AdQm Krajec: . 

Elevator TeC'.finology, Inc, 

462B $I: Aubin 

Detroit, Ml 46207 

FAX: (313) 832-'618 


Dear Mr. Krajse; 

The CJIy of Troy entered into CClntract #208003B50B with Elevator T~c:t1nology Inc to provide weight tests, 
relief valve tEu'Itlng. ol.monthly inspections Bnd rspsinJ for the City of Troy elE!\fl:;ltcrs. which C::lJrrently expires 
December 6, 2009. Tl1a CIty Is Il1terestBd to knew whet!'1ar Elevator Technology will renl!lw its contmct far 
three addItIonal Y'~rs at the same prices, terms Illnd conditions as the originsl contrad.. 

Please fax this letter bal:K to the purchasing office at tnl:ll City of Troy Indicating if Elevator Technology Inc: 
wlsha$ to renew this contract until Decemper 31. 2.012. The fax number is. (248) 619·7608, It $hould be 
undlrRtood that this request to renew the ctmtTact (g aUbJect fO a favorable market SUN!!Iy. A re!:ju98t by City 
stllffto determine the SUOCMsful bIdder's interest in renewfng the contract in no way obligates the City. 

If YOI.j l1ave any question$ please call mil at (2.46) 524-3338. 

CHECK ONE: 

EIGV'atlOr TachnlJlogy Inc Is Interuted In renewing the contract unl:hl!r the same pricos, torms, 
and conditionu,: 

'. p.;) 
x~7~_ 
5jg"Bd~ Authorized Company RepresentaUvo 

Elevator Technology Inc if noi 'uttr,uted In renewing thl! contract: 

( ) 


x. . 
Signed: Authorized Company Repre~u:mtatlve 

Thank you. 
Sunan I..elrrstein 
F'urchasing Director 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final November 13, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Fertilizer/Herbicide 

Applications – Municipal Grounds    
 
Resolution #2006-11-333-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide three-year requirements of fertilizer/herbicide application 
services for the City of Troy are hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidders by year, Davey Tree 
Expert Company of Auburn Hills, MI for 2007 and United Lawnscape, Inc. of Washington, MI for 
2008 and 2009 at an estimated total cost of $57,289.00 and $115,513.00 respectively, in 
accordance with unit prices as contained in the bid tabulation opened October 24, 2006, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 

Elevator Inspection, Weight Testing, Maintenance and Repairs    
 
Resolution #2006-11-333-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That a three-year contract to provide elevator weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-
monthly inspections and repairs with an option to renew for an additional three years at four 
municipal buildings is hereby AWARDED to the lowest acceptable bidder, Elevator Technology, 
Inc. of Detroit, MI, at prices as contained in the bid tabulation opened October 25, 2006, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control Signs 

and Posts    
 
Resolution #2006-11-333-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts to provide Traffic Control Signs and Posts with an option 
to renew for one (1) additional year are hereby AWARDED on a proposal by proposal basis to 
the low bidders: Vulcan Signs of Foley, AL, Proposals A, C, D, F & G; Rocal, Inc. of Frankfort, 
OH, Proposals B & G; Garden State Highway Products, Inc. of Vineland, NJ, Proposal E & G; 
Allied Municipal Supply of Taylorville, IL, Proposals H & J; and Custom Products Corporation of 
Jackson, MS, Proposal I at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 17, 2006, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts 
expiring December 16, 2007. 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 
 
Date  November 6, 2006 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Steven A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder  

Elevator Inspection, Weight Testing, Maintenance and Repairs 
  
Background: 

 On October 25, 2006, formal bids were received to provide three (3) year requirements of elevator 
weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-monthly inspections and repairs with an option to renew for an 
additional three (3) years at four municipal buildings. 

 30 vendors were notified via the MITN system with one responsive bid received, another bidder did not 
submit a bid deposit check as specified and one statement of no bid was received.  

 
Financial Considerations: 

 Funds are available in the following account: 
266.7802.150 – Building Operation Contractor Equipment Maintenance 

 
Legal Considerations:  

 ITB-COT 06-49, Three Year Requirements of Elevator Weight Tests, Relief Valve Testing, Bi-Monthly 
Inspections And Repairs With An Option To Renew For An Additional Three Years was competitively 
bid and opened with two (2) bidders responding. 

 One of the two bidders was considered non-responsive, as the $500.00 bid surety check was not 
included as specified. 

 The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder submission of proper contract and bid 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 
Policy Considerations: 

 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the elevator services for 
the City of Troy. (Goal #1) 

 Elevator repair and maintenance maintains and improves the condition of existing  
Infrastructure. (Goal #4) 

 Proper elevator operation provides a safe means for people with any disability access to all public 
service areas. (Goal #6) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
November 6, 2006 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:      Bid Award – Elevator Inspection, Weight Testing, Maintenance and Repairs 
 
 

 
Options: 

 City management and the Building Operations Department recommend awarding the three-year 
contract for elevator weight tests, relief valve testing, bi-monthly inspections and repairs with an option 
to renew for an additional three (3) years at four municipal buildings to the lowest acceptable bidder, 
Elevator Technology, Inc. of Detroit, MI for an estimated total cost of $29,283.00 at prices as contained 
on the attached bid tabulation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SP/  S:\John’s Review\Agenda 11.13.06 SR2 – Elevator Mtnce Letter 



CITY OF TROY         ITB-COT 06-49
Opening Date -- 10/25/06 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 2
Date Prepared --  11/2/06 ELEVATOR INSPECTION, MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Elevator Techology Inc
Check # 131059473
Amount  $500.00

PROPOSAL -- FURNISH ELEVATOR WEIGHT TEST; BI-MONTHLY INSPECTIONS, AND EMERGENCY REPAIRS
ITEM 1:  FURNISH WEIGHT TESTS AND RELIEF VALVE TESTING

LOCATION ELEVATOR NUMBER/TYPE COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF

500 W. Big Beaver #18085 - Police Unit 785.00$       

500 W. Big Beaver #18084 - Passenger Unit 785.00$      

500 W. Big Beaver #29662 - Passenger Unit 785.00$      

500 W. Big Beaver #40064 - Passenger Unit 785.00$      

510 W. Big Beaver Library/Dover Elevator 785.00$      

60 W. Wattles Museum/General Store 785.00$      
  Montgomery Elevator

3179 Livernois Community Center/Otis Elevator
#038438 Passenger Elevator 785.00$      

TOTAL: ITEM 1 -- 5,495.00$   

ITEM 2:  BI-MONTHLY INSPECTIONS

LOCATION QTY TYPE BI-MONTHLY COST

500 W. Big Beaver 2 DETROIT ELEVATORS 150.00$       

500 W. Big Beaver 1 DOVER ELEVATOR 65.00$        

500 W. Big Beaver 1 OTIS ELEVATOR 65.00$        

510 W. Big Beaver 1 DOVER ELEVATOR 65.00$        

60 W. Wattles 1 MONTGOMERY 65.00$        
  General Store

3179 Livernois 1 OTIS ELEVATOR 65.00$        

TOTAL BI-MONTHLY COST$ 475.00$      

TOTAL ANNUAL COST $ 2,850.00$   

ANNUAL GRAND TOTAL - ITEMS 1 & 2: $ 8,345.00$   

ITEM 3: REPAIR SERVICE COST PER MAN/HOUR

REGULAR TIME: $ 118.00
# OF MEN IN TYPICAL CREW 2

OVERTIME: $ 208.00

HOLIDAY TIME: $ 208.00

PARTS DISCOUNT 5%
MARKUP OR DOWN (+ OR - Mark-Up



CITY OF TROY           ITB-COT 06-49
Opening Date -- 10/25/06 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 2
Date Prepared --  11/2/06 ELEVATOR INSPECTION, MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Elevator Techology Inc

RESPONSE TIME: **Two hours after the original call**
Can meet XX
Cannot meet

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

         Verification Signed - Y or N Yes

SITE INSPECTION:
Y/N No
DATE Blank

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operations 24 Hours
Contact Phone # 313-832-2440

TERMS Net 30

WARRANTY N/A

EXCEPTIONS None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Signed
Y or N Yes

DMS:  Schindler Elevator - No bid deposit check included as specified -

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
Steve Pallotta
Cheryl Stewart
Linda Bockstanz

_________________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 06-49 Elevator.xls



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
November 2, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award –  

Hall and Banquet Services  
 
Background  
 On June 10, 2009, Request for Qualifications/Proposals were received and opened to provide 

three-year requirements of hall and banquet services with an option to renew for three additional 
years.  

 Ninety-one (91) vendors were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) 
website.  Purchasing staff also contacted eight (8) local facilities to inform them of the solicitation.  
Two (2) bidders responded within the specified time.  In addition, one (1) late submittal was not 
accepted by the Clerk’s Office from the San Marino Club as the “Instructions To Bidders” states, 
page 3 of 15-- 

o #8.  TIMELY SUBMITTALS:  Late submittals will not be accepted.   
 Both responsive bidders met the pass/fail criteria.   
 Three committee members, consisting of Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director, Keith 

Lenderman, Assistant Fire Chief/Operations and Monica Irelan, Manager’s Office Intern evaluated 
the proposals, visited the site and sampled the food. 

 After a review and evaluation of the two proposals, it was determined to be in the City’s best 
interest to move forward only with the proposal submitted by the American Polish Cultural Center.  
Oakhurst Golf and County Club of Clarkston did not have the capacity to host the Fire 
Appreciation Banquet; and the stipulated price of $20 per plate including gratuity for an Employee 
Holiday Party was changed to $24 per plate including gratuity.   

 The Firefighters Appreciation Banquet is usually held on a Saturday in May and is enjoyed by our 
volunteer firefighters and their spouses.  

 An Employee Holiday Party is usually scheduled on a Friday in December and attended by City 
employees, retirees, and their spouses; and not a budgeted City event.  However, the event will 
not be held this year.  

 The American Polish Cultural Center received the highest score (90%) as a result of a best value 
process that evaluated capability, menu selections, cleanliness, appearance, competence, food 
preparation and taste.  

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
November 2, 2009 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Best Value Award – Banquet Services 
 
 
Financial Considerations 
 Pricing for the events is established by the City and has not changed in seven (7) years.  This has 

allowed an evaluation of the quality issues surrounding a banquet function. 
 Funds for the Firefighter Appreciation Banquet are available in the Fire Department operating 

budget #101.336.337.7882. 
 The Employee Holiday Party is funded through commissions from vending machines and 

employee ticket sales. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 RFP-COT 08-40, for Hall and Banquet Services were competitively bid as required by City Charter 

and Code. 
 Award is contingent upon provider’s submission of properly executed contract and proposal 

documents, including the agreement, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Recommendation 
 City management recommends awarding a three-year contract for Hall and Banquet Services with 

an option to renew for three additional years beginning with fiscal year 2009/2010 to the highest 
rated bidder, American Polish Cultural Center, of Troy, Michigan, as a result of a best value 
process, at a cost of $39.00 per plate including gratuity and $20.00 per plate including gratuity for 
the Fire Appreciation Banquet and Employee Holiday Party respectively, as long as the events are 
budgeted annually in the case of the Fire Appreciation Banquet, and funded through commissions 
and ticket sales for the Employee Holiday Party. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/ Best Value SR8 - RFP - Hall & Banquet Services - 11.09.doc 

 



 

 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

HALL AND BANQUET SERVICES 
 
STATISTICS: 

 
 Ninety-One (91) facilities were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Two (2) proposals were received 
 
 Both facilities met the pass/fail criteria 

 
 A Site visit and a sample food taste test was conducted for only the top rated facility 
 
 The American Polish Cultural Center received the highest score as a result of a best value 

process  
 
The following facility received the indicated final score as a result of the proposal, 
site visit and sample food taste test criteria.   
   
   

FACILITY SCORE 
American Polish Cultural Center 90 
  
 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Proposal, Site Visit and Sample Food Taste 
Test  

 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 



 

 

WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 
HALL AND BANQUET SERVICES 

 
Final Score Calculation: 
 
    20% x Proposal Score  
    40% x Site Visit Score       
     40% x Sample Food Taste Test Score  

            100%           = Final Weighted Score 
 

NOTE:  Vendors are listed in the order of their summary score for the proposal, site visit and sample food 
taste test, from highest to lowest.  For the final score the vendors are listed in the order of rating from highest 
to lowest.   
 

Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 20%   
Raters: 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score (x .20) 
Vendors:      
American Polish Cultural Center 92 100 100 97 19 

Oakhurst Golf and Country Club 57 45 69 57 11 

 
The site visit and sample food taste test was conducted for the top facility only.         
 (Maximum # of points – 80) 
 
Weighted Average Score for Site Visit:  40% 
RATERS 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score (x .40) 
Vendors:      
American Polish Cultural Center 72 91 90 84 34 
 

Weighted Average Score for Sample Food Taste Test:  40% 
RATERS 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score (x .40) 
Vendors:      
American Polish Cultural Center 81 96 100 92 37 
 

FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  American Polish Cultural Center 
Proposal Score 19 
Site Visit Score 34 
Sample Food Taste Test  
Score 37 

FINAL SCORE 90 
**HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/ Bid Award 08-09 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – Hall & Banquet Services  – WeightedRatingSummary 7.09.doc 



 

 

 
 

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to award this 
proposal to the banquet service provider(s) considered the most qualified based upon a combination of 
factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength and capacity of the company 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation 
The service providers will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second 
phase of the process.   

 
Phase 2: Evaluation of Proposals 
Each Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the proposals; each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Evaluation Committee Members 
will be averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the process.   

 
Phase 3:  Site Visit Evaluation Process. 
The City Committee will use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Facilities at the time of the site visit.  
Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of all the Committee Members will 
be averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the process.  

 
Phase 4:  Sample Food Taste Test. 
The City Committee will use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the sample foods provided.  Each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of all the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the process.   

 
Phase 5:  Final Scoring and Selection  
The company with the highest final weighted score will be recommended to the Troy City Council for 
Award.   
 
 20% Proposal Score (100 point base)  
 40% Site Visit Score (100 point base) 
 40% Sample Food Taste Test (100 point base)  

100%       
 
 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if deemed in 
the City’s best interest to do so.   

 
 
 

 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-40
Opening Date -- 6/10/09 TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Reviewed - 11/2/09 BANQUET & HALL SERVICES

FIRM NAME: Oakhurst Golf and American Polish 
Country Club Cultural Center

PROPOSAL:  TO PROVIDE HALL AND BANQUET SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF TROY

Four (4) COPIES (Yes or No) Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNARIE Y or N Yes Yes

INSURANCE Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed Yes Yes

PROPOSAL 1: Fire Appreciation Banquet

SELECTIONS TO BE PROVIDED:
SOUP CHOICES Blank 4 Soups
SALAD CHOICES Blank 2 Salads
ROLL/BREAD CHOICES Blank 2 Breads
PASTA CHOICES Blank 2 Pasta
ENTRÉE CHOICES Blank 11 Entrées
DESSERT CHOICES Blank 4 Desserts
OPEN BAR INCLUDES Blank Full Bar - See Proposal

New Hall - 380
ROOM CAPACITY: Blank Main Hall - 450

AVAILABILITY OF DATES
3rd Saturday in May        Y or N Blank Yes 
2nd Saturday in May       Y or N Blank Yes 
Cannot confirm dates- Offers: Blank Blank

UNABLE TO PROVIDE SELECTIONS
MENU ATTACHED OR WRITTEN IN   Y or N Blank Blank

PROPOSAL 2: Employee Holiday Party $24 per plate $20 per plate

SELECTIONS TO BE PROVIDED:
SOUP CHOICES 2 - Minestrone, Vegetable 4 Soups
SALAD CHOICES 2 - Garden or Oakhurst Fall 2 Salad
ROLL/BREAD CHOICES Assorted Breads 2 Breads
PASTA CHOICES 2 - Lasagna or Primavera 2 Pasta
ENTRÉE CHOICES 2 - Ck Marsala or Tuscan Ck 11 Entrées
DESSERT CHOICES 2 - Cheese cake or Apple Pie 4 Desserts
CASH BAR INCLUDES Premium house liquors/ Full Bar - See Proposal

domestic/house beers & wines

FAMILY STYLE MEALS:
SOUP CHOICES 1 - Minestrone 4 Soups
SALAD CHOICES 1 Oakhurst Fall Salad 2 Salads
ROLL/BREAD CHOICES Assorted Breads 2 Breads
PASTA CHOICES Vegetarian Lasagna 2 Pasta
ENTRÉE CHOICES Tuscan Chk or Marsala 11 Entrées
DESSERT CHOICES Apple or pumpkin pie 4 Desserts
CASH BAR INCLUDES Premium house liquors/ Full Bar - See Proposal

domestic/house beers & wines New Hall - 250
ROOM CAPACITY: 250 Main Hall - 450

UNABLE TO PROVIDE SELECTIONS
MENU ATTACHED OR WRITTEN IN   Y or N $24 per plate can accommodate Blank

all necessary components

$39 per plate



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-40
Opening Date -- 6/10/09 TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Reviewed -- 11/2/09 BANQUET & HALL SERVICES

FIRM NAME: Oakhurst Golf and American Polish 
Country Club Cultural Center

AVAILABILITY OF DATES
1st Friday in December   Y or N Yes No
2nd Friday in December  Y or N Yes Yes
Cannot confirm dates- Offers: Blank Blank

DISCOUNT for award of all Banquets N/A 10%

PAYMENT TERMS: Check 14 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N No No

PROPOSAL:  To Provide Three-Year Requirements of Hall/Banquet Services with an Option to Renew for Three
   Additional Years

ATTEST:
Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPB

Ellen Hodorek Purchasing Director

Linda Bockstanz

G:/RFP-COT 08-40 Hall/Banquet Services



AGREEMENT FOR HALL / BANQUET SERVICES  
 

 THIS AGREEMENT entered into on__________ of November, 2009, between 

the CITY OF TROY, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the 

“CITY”, and the American Polish Cultural Center, 2975 E. Maple Road, Troy, Michigan 

48083 hereinafter referred to as the ““HALL / BANQUET OPERATOR”; 

 WITNESSETH: 

 In consideration of CITY granting to the HALL / BANQUET OPERATOR the 

privilege and right of conducting banquets for designated City events, the HALL / 

BANQUET OPERATOR agrees as follows: 

 1.  SCOPE. This Agreement incorporates by reference the Request for Proposal 

RFP-COT 08-40 and HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR’S Response to Request for 

Proposal as though fully set out herein.  These documents constitute the entire 

Agreement and any changes thereto shall be in writing signed by both parties unless 

otherwise set out in the Agreement.  

2.  USE OF PREMISES AND PRICES: HALL / BANQUET OPERATOR shall be 

paid by CITY for the use of premises, the cost of the meals, and all gratuities which 

shall not exceed the per person cost of $39.00 per plate for the Fire Appreciation 

Banquet and/or $20.00 per plate for the Employee Holiday Party.  The 10% discount for 

each event listed in the Request for Proposal will be applied only when both events are 

scheduled by the City and held within a fiscal year.  A fiscal year is defined as July 1st to 

June 30th of each year. Prices shall be firm for the term of the Agreement. The City of 

Troy is exempt from Michigan Sales Tax and will provide an exemption certificate 

annually upon request.   



3.  EVENTS:  CITY  may schedule two (2) events each year.  If scheduled, the 

Fire Appreciation Banquet will be held on one of the following dates:  3rd Saturday in 

May or the 2nd Saturday in May. If scheduled, the Employee Holiday Party will be held 

on one of the following dates: 2nd Friday in December or the 1st Friday in December.  

CITY will notify HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR of the specific date for each event within 

sixty (60) days of that event. 

4. RECORDS AND INVOICES: HALL / BANQUET OPERATOR shall keep 

accurate records of the number of guests attending the City event(s) and shall bill 

accordingly.  All invoicing shall be received by CITY within 14 days of the event 

serviced.  CITY will pay all properly submitted invoices within 30 days of the invoice 

date submitted by HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR.   The City agrees to pay for the 

number of guests guaranteed at least seven (7) days prior to the event but will pay for 

the actual number of guests that attend an event if more than the number guaranteed.   

 5.  NON-ASSIGNMENT/INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. HALL/BANQUET 

OPERATOR shall have no authority or power to assign, sublet, or transfer any rights, 

privileges, or interests without obtaining prior written permission from the City. 

HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR acknowledges that it is an independent contractor with 

no authority to bind CITY to any contracts or agreements, written or oral. 

 6.  NO SALE OR CONSUMPTION OF LIQUOR BY MINORS. HALL / BANQUET 

OPERATOR or his agents or employees shall not sell or permit intoxicating liquors to be 

consumed by minors and shall be required to be in compliance with all State and Local 

liquor laws and requirements.   



 7. EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, FOOD AND STAFF. HALL / BANQUET 

OPERATOR will provide all necessary equipment, supplies, food, and personnel to staff 

and service the City events.  The Troy Community Affairs Director will make decisions 

regarding the menu choices as outlined in the HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR’S 

Response to Request for Proposal for both events and advise HALL/BANQUET 

OPERATOR of those choices within thirty (30) days of the event. 

 8. APPEARANCE OF FACILITY AND EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES. HALL / 

BANQUET OPERATOR will maintain the exterior and interior of the Hall / Banquet area 

in the same quality level as at the time of the award of this contract.  All food 

preparation areas shall be in compliance with all City ordinances, state law, and 

applicable health standards.  HALL / BANQUET OPERATOR will set-up the banquet 

area in accordance with the directions given by the Troy Community Affairs Director and 

shall include table linens, formal dinnerware, and silverware.  The CITY has the option 

to provide table decorations, or require the facility to provide hurricane lanterns, or 

approved alternates at no cost.  The Troy Community Affairs Director has the authority 

to require the purchase of acceptable simple decorations by HALL / BANQUET 

OPERATOR, if determined by the Troy Community Affairs Director to be worn, 

damaged, or out-dated. 

9.  CHANGE OF DATES OF EVENTS. The event dates booked by the  

Troy Community Affairs Director may not be changed without his / her written approval.   

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. HALL / BANQUET OPERATOR agrees to 

comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and ordinances and 



with all Oakland County Health Department regulations. HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR 

is responsible for all work safety issues. 

 11. EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS. HALL / BANQUET OPERATOR will provide 

uniforms for its employees, and shall require the uniforms to be maintained in a clean 

and neat appearing manner. 

 12.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR shall carry 

general liability insurance,  workers compensation, and liquor liability for any actions, 

claims, liability or damages caused to others arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement in amounts approved by CITY and set forth in the attached Exhibit A – 

Sample Certificate of Insurance.  Cancellation of the insurance shall be considered a 

material breach of this Agreement, and the Agreement shall become null and void 

unless the HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR immediately provides proof of renewal of 

continuous coverage to CITY.  All insurance carriers shall be licensed and admitted to 

do business in the State of Michigan and acceptable to CITY. Proof of insurance 

meeting these requirements shall be provided to CITY within 24 hours after execution of 

this Agreement. 

HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR is responsible for any deductibles for any of the 

policies. HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR shall furnish to CITY three (3) complete copies 

of the acceptable Certificates of Insurance.  If any of the policies expire during the term 

of the Agreement, HALL/BANQUEST OPERATOR shall deliver renewal certificates 

and/or policies to CITY, Risk Management Department, at least ten (10) days prior to 

the expiration date.  

13.  INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. To the fullest extent  



permitted by law, HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, 

indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY, its elected and appointed officials, employees 

and volunteers and others working on behalf of the CITY against any and all claims, 

demands, suits, or loss ( including all costs connected therewith), and for any damages 

which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the CITY,  its elected and 

appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the CITY.  This 

provision includes, but is not limited to claims of personal injury (including bodily injury 

or death) and/or property damage which arises out of or is in any way connected or 

associated with the execution of activities by HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR under the 

terms of this Agreement. 

 14. DAMAGE OR ACCIDENT REPORTS. Copies of all damage or accident 

reports submitted to insurance companies dealing with any damage or accident that 

may occur during an event must also be sent to the City. 

15. NO TAX ARREARAGES. HALL/BANQUET OPERATOR shall not be in 

arrears for any taxes invoiced by the City.   

16.  TERM OF AGREEMENT. This contract shall terminate three (3) years from  

the date of execution of the Agreement which may be renewed for an additional three-

year period based upon mutual consent of both parties within 90 days of contract 

expiration and upon approval of City Council.  Either party upon provision of 90 days 

written notice may cancel the contract. 

17. NOTICE:  All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be 

mailed by first class mail to the other party at its last known address.     



18. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION:  This Agreement is made in and 

shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.  Any lawsuits under this 

Agreement shall be filed in the Oakland County Circuit Court, Michigan. 

19. HEADINGS.  Pronouns and relative words herein used shall be read 

interchangeably in the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural as the respective 

case may be. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The foregoing constitutes the entire Agreement 

between the parties and may be modified only by a written instrument signed by both 

parties. 

21. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:  By execution of this Agreement, the respective 

parties acknowledge that each has executed this Agreement with full and complete 

authority to do so. 

 
WITNESSES:      HALL/ BANQUET OPERATOR: 
        AMERICAN POLISH  

CULTURAL CENTER 
 
1. _______________________________         ______________________________  

Myron Dzierzanowski 
 
2. _______________________________  President______________________ 
   Title  

 
 

CITY OF TROY: 
 

By____________________________ 
                                                  Louise Schilling, Mayor 

 
______________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
_________________________________ 
City Manager or Designee 



 
Resolution Number: _________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
By________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
 
 
 
 



--

--

DATE (MMIDDiYY) EXHIBIT A CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I .. ~ 
PRODUCER THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION 

Complete ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE 
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR 

Sample Certificate ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. 

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR 
MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH 
POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

lNSR POLICY EFFECTIVE POLICY EXPIRATION 

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER DATE (MMIDDIYY) DATE (MMIDD/YY) LIMITS 

A ~NERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 500,000 

..2:.. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 0001 xx-xx-xx xx-xx-xx FIF,E DAMAGE (Anyone fire) $ 

I- 
tJ CLAIMS MADE 0 OCCUR MED EXP (Anyone person) $ 

,...:.. Additional Insured City of Troy - use wording below PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 500,000 

I- 
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 500,000 I 

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COM PlOP AGG. $ 500,000
Il POLICY n PROJECT rxl LOC3'0.0..",,,.,,"' COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 

ANY AUTO (Ea accident) $ 
ALL OWNED AUTOS BODILY INJURY 

~ SCHEDULED AUTOS (Per person) $ 
1--: HIRED AUTOS BODILY INJURY 

NON-OWNED AUTOS (Per accident) $ 
I- 

PROPERTY DAMAGE 
I- 

(Per accident) $ 

GARAGE LIABILITY AUTO ONLY - EA ACCIDENT $
h 

$~ANYAUTO OTHER THAN EAACC 

AUTO ONLY: AGG $ 
EXCESS LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $

::J OCCUR o CLAIMS MADE AGGREGATE $ 

$RDEDUCTIBLE $ 
RETENTION $ $ 

B WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 
1we STATUX TORYLlMlTS I IOTHER 

EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 0003 xx-xX-XX XX-XX-XX E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 100,000 
E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 100,000 
EL DISEASE· POLICY LIMIT $ 500,000 

A OTHER 

Liquior Liability 0004 xx-xx-xx xx"xx-xx Limit $1,000,000 

I I I I 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONSNEHICLES/EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT/SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

Additional Insured under General Liability and Liquior Liability: City of Troy including Architects and Engineers, all elected and appointed officials, 

all employees and volunters. boards,commissions and lor auUlOrities and their board members, employees, and volunteers addtitional insured on 

ISO form B or broader. 

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE 

INSURED INSURER A: XYZ Company 

Complete 
 INSURER B: ABC Company 


INSURERC: 


INSURER D: 
 M_ 
INSURER E: 

,~< 

COVERAGES 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER Iy I ADDITIONAL INSURED; INSURER LETTER: A CANCELLATION 
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED 

City of Troy BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOE, THE ISSUING INSURER WILL MAIL 

500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 30 DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT. 
r- Troy, MI 48084 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

G: Forms Folder I Insurance Certificate - RFP Banquet Services RFQ~RFP 08-40.xls 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
October 28, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: US Communities Government 

Purchasing Alliance Program – Landscape Structures, Inc 
 
Background 
 Landscape Structures, Inc. participates in the US Communities Government Purchasing Alliance 

Program with a contract award for Playground Equipment. 
 The play equipment being purchased consists of climbing boulders with adjoining climbing nets 

that will be installed at the new park site in Section 36. 
 The natural climbing boulders play equipment will allow children to engage in outdoor recreation 

through physical activity that is safe, fun, and educational. The structure offers the developmental 
benefits of creative play, motor planning skills, and climbing. The age range for this play structure 
is 5-12 years. 

 This play equipment and accompanying safety surface qualifies for funding through the 
Community Development Block Grant Program. Improvements to this site have been 
recommended by Oakland County as an eligible project under the CDBG program. 

 In 2008, CDBG funds were used in Section 36 for asphalt pathways, parking lot, benches, and the 
planting of trees. The installation of play equipment is a continuation of the park improvements 
initiated last year. 

 Name suggestions for this park are currently being collected and will be forwarded to City Council 
as per the City of Troy Park Naming Policy. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funding for the climbing boulders play equipment is available initially from the Park Development 

capital account # 401.751.770.7974.993025 for Land Improvement – Section 36, and then 
reimbursed by Oakland County through the CDBG. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of properly executed insurance certificates 

and any other specified requirements. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c



Page 2 of 2 
 

October 28, 2009 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: US Communities – Landscape Structures, Inc 
 
 
Recommendation 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department request authorization to purchase 

climbing boulder play equipment along with engineered wood fiber safety surface from Landscape 
Structures, Inc. through the US Communities Government Purchasing Alliance Program for an 
estimated total cost of $53,982.00. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 - US Communities -LandscapeStructuresSec3610.09.doc 



Proposal
Date

10/20/2009

Project #

09-600A

Name / Address

City of Troy
Attn: Ron Hynd
4695 Rochester Rd
Troy, MI 48098

Ship To

City of Troy
Attn: Ron Hynd
4695 Rochester Rd
Troy, MI 48098

P.O. No.Terms

Net 30

Rep

Eric

Signature below accepting this proposal will constitute a purchase order.
Pricing does not include installation.

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax  (0.0%)

Customer Contact

Ron Hynd

Customer Phone

248-680-7293

Customer Fax

248-689-6497

All P.O.'s Contracts or Checks Payable to:
Landscape Structures, Inc.

601 7th Street South
Delano, MN  55328 USA

Superior Play, LLC
889 S. Old US 23 Brighton, MI 48114

P:810-229-6245  TF: 888-778-7529  Fax: 810-229-6256

Proposal Good Until November 26, 2009
Shipping Time: 2-3 Weeks
Ship Via: Common Carrier
Please Call 24 hours prior to delivery:_________________________________

__________________________________________
Accepted By Customer

Item Description WeightQty Cost Total

Misc Combo #1 Rocks & Ropes with 2 Pinnacles and 1
Pointe.
Includes Cargo, Twisted and Manta Nets

1 51,310.00 51,310.00T

EWC Engineered Wood Chip, installed by method of
blower truck

1 2,550.00 2,550.00T

Discount US Communities Discount -3,078.60 -3,078.60
Freight Freight 1 3,200.00 3,200.00T

$53,981.40

$53,981.40

$0.00



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MECKLENBURG	 Contract # 040377.09

NINTH AMENDMENT TO MASTER PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS NINTH AMENDMENT To The Agreement to provide Park And Playground Equipment,
Surfacing, Site Furnishings And Related Commodities and Services (the "Amendment") is made
and entered into this 17th day of September 2009 by and between MECKLENBURG COUNTY,
a North Carolina municipal corporation (the "County") and LANDSCAPE STRUCTURE, INC., a
corporation doing business in the State of North Carolina (the "Company").

STATEMENT OF BACKGROUND AND INTENT

The County and the Company entered into a written Agreement dated September 17,
2003 (the "Agreement") pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide Park and
Playground Equipment, Surfacing, Site Furnishings and Related Commodities and
Services to the County and other Participating Public Agencies.

The parties now desire to amend the Agreement by making certain changes and
clarifications to the term and pricing provisions of the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained
herein, the parties hereby amend the Agreement as follows:

AGREEMENT

Defined terms used in this Amendment shall have the same meaning as are assigned to
such terms in the Agreement.

Changes to Original Agreement. In order to effectuate the intent of the parties, the
Original Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

a) Section 3 -Term: This Ninth Amendment extends the term of the Agreement from
the effective date through September 16, 2010 unless earlier terminated in
accordance with the terms of the original Master Agreement.

Except to the extent specifically provided in the amendment contained herein, this
Amendment shall not be interpreted or construed as waiving any rights, obligations,
remedies or claims the parties may otherwise have under this Agreement.

In all other respects and expect as modified herein, the terms of the Agreement shall
remain in force and effect.



f hAI

and Recreation Digctor

Attested:

By: 
C unty/General Manager

MECKLENBURG COUNTY: 

B

By: 	
Cority Attorney

This instrument
audited in th
by the Lo
and F

s been pre-
anner required

I Government Budget
al Control Act.

NO	 AUDIT REQUIRED
DEP	 NT(S) TO E ► CUN
FUN	 NEEDED.

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
BY:

CONTRACT #0 40377 -7 ! 01

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, an in acknowledgement that the parties hereto have read and
understood each	 and every provision hereof, the parties have each caused this
Amendment to be executed by its duly authorized representative, all as of the date first
set forth above.

LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES, INC. 	 ATTESTED:

By: 	 t(41--	 67-4‘12,(AA-YL/	 By:  (41nrSikit/Itt/W 

Title: Strategic Alliance Manager 	 Title:  Contract Administrator 

Approved As To Form:

Finance Director

Approved As To Insurance Requirements: 

By: 	
Risk Management



October 14, 2009 

TO: 

FROM: 

CI COUNCIL eTION REPORT 
£ 	 I 

John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant Cit~ Mj3J1ager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer? 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way RepresentativEt W

,I' 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement - HCR Manorcare Properties, LLC -
Sidwell #20-03-102-022 

Background: 

• 	 As part of a property improvement project located at the southeast corner of Livernois and South 
Boulevard in Section 03, the Real Estate Department received a permanent easement for water main from 
HCR Manorcare Properties, L.L.C., owner of the property having Sidwell #20-03-101-022. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of this document is consistent with permanent easements previously granted to 
and accepted by the City. 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world. 

G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\HCR Manorcare Wm Esmt 10"14"09,doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Sidwell # 88-20-03-102-022 (part of) 
Resolution # 

HCR MANORCARE PROPERTIES, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company whose address is 333 North 
Summit, Toledo, OH 43699 for and in consideration of the sum of: One Dollar ($1.00) paid by the CITY OF 
TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, 
Michigan, 48084 grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair and/or replace 
main, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, described as: 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS "PI' AND "B" BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HERE OF 

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof. 

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably 
restored to its original condition by the Grantee. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, 
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto affixed his signature this _~8_th___~"J of 
October A.D. 2009. 

HCR MANORCARE PROPERTIES, LLC 
a Delaware limited liability company 

By ~~5!attheWS. -' 
(LS) 

Its: Director and Secre arylTreasurer 

STATE OF OHIO ) 
COUNTY OF LUCAS) 

The foregoing instrument as acknowledged before me this 8th day of October, 2009, by Matthew S. 
Kang, Director and SecretarylTreasurer, of HCR ManorCare Properties, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed on behalf of the Company. 

Notary Public, Lucas Ohio 
CHERYL L. ADAMSKI 


NlIlary l'ubllc, State 01 Ohio 
 My Commission Expires 7-27-2013 
I4fy l;JmlillS.'l!on Expires 07·27·2013 Acting in Lucas County, Ohio 

Prepared by: Return to: 
Larysa Figol City Clerk 
City ofTroy Qty of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver 500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 Troy, Michigan 48084 

PLEASE SIGN IN BLUE INK AND PRINT OR TYPE NAMES IN BLACK INK UNDER SIGNATURES 



EXHIBIT "A" 

Sidwell #88-20-03-102-022 (part) 


20' WIDE WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

A TWENTY (20.00) FOOT WIDE EASEMENT FOR WATER MAIN DESCRIBED ALONG 
IT'S CENTERLINE AS BEING A PART OF THE NW y.. OF SECTION 3, TOWN 2 NORTH, 
RANGE 11 EAST, CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, BEING DESCRIBED 
AS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 3; THENCE 
S.01"06'39" 60.00 FEET ALONG THE WESTERLY UI\IE OF SAID SECTION 3; 
THENCE N.88°33'00"E., 60.00 FEET; THENCE S.01"06'39"E., 333.57 FEET ALONG THE 
EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LIVERNOIS (120' WIDE) TO THE POII\JT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE N.88"54'24"E .. 31.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 



N88'33'OO"E ~ 
60.00' I 

i 
PARE"n 
pi'ReEl 
PARCEL 

S.Ol'OS'3j:l"E. 

f" }\ ~"C' f·- l 
jt V 1~(SA~rr;f : 

P.O.B. 

Ei 
z 

20' 
MAIN 

d-P.O.E. 

"\..N.88·54'24~E. 31.00' 
180,01' 

, 
i

w.i 1/4 CQRl'!.~r:cJ 
°FfSECilOff 3 

EXHIBIT B N 

WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

N.W. CORNER 

OF SECTION 3 

T.1N., R.llE., 

O.C.R. ~188'33'OO"E South Bou!evar:9~ _ 2676.79' 

S01'06'39"£ ~..~ - _ ..- .-.~ - T12O' wide) , 	 ---'1(".---0
N. 1/4 CORNER 

-OF-SECTION 	3 
T.1N., Rt llE., 

60.00' '\j N8S'33'OO"E 

POB, 
PARCEL f\ 

& 
B I 

333.5~' 
E~ I r:'AHCEL f\ 

"1¥lA~K)F'Z C/,F;:l': 
DE V [-: l. Cl f~f¥l E ~·I T"'i 

WIDEJWATER 
EA~EMENT 

I 

. 40C'.00' 

S88' 300 W 
~EADONLANd EST 

~lUf3[)'VI:;;;IClt\J 
i 14 i '".., If:;

T.\N., R.llE., 	 ) __ ....l " 
O.ty.R. 

I 

I 
 --,
I 

I 


r 
\ 
\ 

I 
I 
I \
I \
I \ 

~I' 
- i
,;,.' L 

I I 

I 
\ 
\ 
\ 

h 

O.C.R. 
32 

.ENGINEERS 
NOWAK&FRAUS ENGINEEI<s 
1310 N. STEPHENSON HWi', 
ROYAL OAK, MI 48067-1508 

TEL (248) 399-{l886 
PREPARED FOR; 

SCALE DATE DMWN JOB NO. SHEET 
FAX. (248) 399-0805 HeR MANOR CARE 1" '" 150' 03-02-09 RJJ 0651 i of2 



Citr~ OUNCIL eTION REPORTTroy CI 

October 14, 2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark F, Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J, Vandette, City Engineer¥ , 
Larysa Figol, Sr, Right-of-Way Representativ.t:p'fv 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement - Kirts Office Center Associates, 
LLC - Sidwell #20-28-101-054 

Background: 

• 	 As part of a property improvement project located at the northeast intersection of Kirts Boulevard and Troy 
Center Drive in Section 28, the Real Estate Department received a permanent easement for water main 
from Kirts Office Center Associates, L.L.C" owner of the property having Sidwell #20-28-101-054. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00, 

• 	 The format and content of this document is consistent with permanent easements previously granted to 
and accepted by the City, 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world, 

G:IMEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Kirts Office Wm Esmt 10-14-09,doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Sidwell #88-20-28-101-054 (pt of) 

KIRTS OFFICE CENTER ASSOCIATES, LLC. a Michigan limited liability company, Grantor(s), whose 
address is 101 West Big Beaver, Ste 200, Troy, MI 48084 for and in consideration of the sum of: One and 
nol100 Dollar ($1.00) paid by the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address 
is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, . 
repair and/or replace water main, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan described as: 

SEE EXHIBIT"A" ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART OF 

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction, 

operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof. 


The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shalf be reasonably restored to its 

original condition by the Grantee. 


This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, representatives, 

successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 


~h 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto affixed _signature(s) this ~ day 

AD. 2009. 

Kirts Office Center Associates, L.L.C. 
a Michigan Limited Liability Company 
by: Kirts Development, LL.C., 

a Michigan Limited Lia ity Company, Member 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ,) 
COUNTY OF iliK\CJ,. nd ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ~ day of Od:vteC ,2009, 
by A Mathew Kiriluk, II, a Member of Kirts Development, L L.C., a Michigan limited liability company, which is 
the Managing Member of Kirts Office Center Associates, LLC., a Michigan limited liability company, on behalf 
of the company. 

Notary Public, .IV . . 
My Commission Expi 
Acting in 00, \(, \ (1!QcL 

Prepared by: Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerk 
City of Troy City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084 



SKETCH OF EASEMENT 


UNIT 2 

"CANDlEWOOJ 


CENTEH CONDOMINIUM" 

O,C,C,P, #1076 


./ rTROY )DRiVE 

ONE STORY 

OFFICE BUllDIt'-lG
v 

./ 

./ 

./ 

_ _" .----=:;7(------r-------
no)-:.co 
0" 
Q m 
OlD 
o 
Z 

sa9°55'2j"W 212.49' 

-] 

S89°5S 123"W 
257"94

1 

N 

UNIT 1 
O.C,c.P, #1076 

"---~I 

SCALE 
50 1 

KIRTS BOULEVARD 
(120' PUBLIC R,O, W.) 

SCALE: 1"~ 50' JOB No:2009-164
MANIX CON ST. llC 

101 BIG BEAVERRD, 
TROY, MI.. 48084-5255 DATE: 9-jO-09 DWG. No: 1 of 2 

i 

PROFESSiONAL 

ENGINEERING 

ASSOCIATES 

100 

L: \200gProj\2009164 Sorno:1elics\SiJRVE,Y-DEPT\091543ND\dwg\09156 WM ESMT,dwg. KTR 



EXHIBIT "An 
parcElI#:2Q~28:-1 01-054 (part qf) 

SKETCH OF EASEMENT 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

(Per American Title Insurance Company, Commitnrent No, CV,25690 t+M, Dated July 

24, 2009, Rev, A Dated August 10, 2(09) 


Unit 2, CANDLEWOOD HOTEL/OFFICE CENTER CONDOMINIUM, a Condominium according 

to the Masler Deed thereof recorded in Libe' Page 812, OaKland 

Records, and designated as Oakland County Subdivision Plan No. 

and any amendments thereto, together with an undivided interest in the common 

elements of said condominium as set forth in said Master Deed, and any amendments 

thereto, as described in Act 59 of the Public Acts of 1978, as amended, 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

(Proposed 20' Wide Water Main Easement) 


A 20 foot wide easement for water main over Unit of "CANDLEWOOD HOTEL/OFFICE 

O.C.c.P. number 1076, as recorded in Liber 17654, Page 
the centerline being more particular described as: 
corner of 'said Unit 2; thence along the west line of 

feet to the Point of Beginning; thence NBB°.30'.34."E, 

CENTER CONDOMiNIUM" 
812, Oakland County 

at the 
69.09 

of Ending. 

PROFESSIONAL 

ENGINEERING 

ASSOCIATES 

CLlEN~IRCO MANIX CONST. LLC 
101 31G BEAVER RD. 

TROY, MI., 48084-5255 

SCALE: 111= 5C' 

DA TE: 9-.30--09 

JOB No:2009-164 

DWO. No: 2 of 2 

24~lO llochesler Ct. Suite 100 
Troy, MI 4B0831Bn 

(248) 689-9090 

l: \2009PrQj\2009i64 S0r1onetics\SURVEY-DEP1\091640f\;O\dwg\09166 YfM ESMT,dwg. K~rz 



Ci~ff


Troy 

November 2, 2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer~ 

SUBJECT: 	 Agenda Item - Approval of MOOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 
for Construction Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Wattles Road, 
1,000' East and West of Rochester Road 
Project No. 99.203.5 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached MOOT subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & 
Clark, Inc. for the purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of each party for construction 
engineering services for the Wattles Road, 1,000' east and west of Rochester Road widening and 
reconstruction project. Furthermore, staff recommends that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized 
to execute the agreement. 

Background: 

The Engineering Department requested and was authorized by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MOOT) to advertise for un-priced technical proposals for Construction Engineering 
Services for the Rochester Road, Torpey to Barclay and Wattles Road, 1,000' East and West of 
Rochester Road widening and reconstruction projects. 

Construction engineering services incorporate all facets of construction management, including but 
not limited to: 

• Project administration 
• Inspection 
• Staking 
• Quality control testing and reporting 
• Measurement, computation and documentation of quantities 
• Reporting and record keeping on the Field Manager system 
• Finalizing all project documentation 

It is more cost effective to use consultants on an as needed basis for projects that are federally 
funded, because the consultant costs are project specific and largely reimbursed with federal funds. 
Additionally, the federally funded projects vary in number from year to year and typically take 10 
years or more to proceed from preliminary engineering, to ROW acquisition and on to final plans and 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



construction. It is not cost effective to maintain an in-house staff capable of handling all of these 
large projects over the long term, particularly when the project funding is limited, competitive and 
unpredictable from a timing standpoint. 

The Engineering Department is a hybrid department and has used consultants to various degrees 
since the 1960s. Consultants are generally used for the following reasons: 

• When in-house capacity is exceeded 
• When expertise is not available in-house 
• To augment City staff or when spikes in workload occur 
• For special or unique design projects 
• For technical studies, long range utility studies and/or plans 

The Rochester and Wattles projects are both federally funded and will be bid together through 
MOOT. We are required to prepare and execute two separate subcontracts for the construction 
engineering phase, one for each project, even though the physical construction will be bid and 
constructed as part of one contract due to the separate federal funding available for each project 
Construction engineering is eligible for reimbursement with federal funds and as such, the consultant 
selection process must follow the MOOT consultant selection process (Exhibit 1). 

MOOTs selection process is a Qualifications Based Selection (QBS) process based on the Brooks 
Act in which a consultant is rated on pre-determined criteria with the top ranked consultant moving on 
to the next phase of the process based on their experience and qualifications only. Proposals were 
received from seven (7) consultants on September 17, 2009. 

A four (4) person review comrnittee, consisting of the City Engineer, Deputy City Engineer, Civil 
Engineer and Public Works Director, reviewed and rated the consultants based on each firm's 
understanding of the project, past experience with similar projects, proposed team members and 
other items as listed on the review sheet (Exhibit 2). 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) was rated as the top consultant. Total final scores for all 
consultants are summarized in Exhibit 3. Once the highest rated consultant is determined, that 
consultant then submits a price proposal for their services based on guidelines prepared by the 
Engineering Department. The subcontract that is included with this item is based on the price 
proposal as submitted by HRC. 

Financial Considerations: 

Bids for the Wattles Road construction phase will be opened by MOOT at their bid letting of 
December 4, 2009. The engineer's estimate of construction is $2,561,480.50. HRC's cost to 
perform the Construction Engineering Services is $310,458.27 or 12.1 % of the estimated 
construction cost as detailed in their Priced Proposal. (Exhibit 4). 

MOOT guidelines allow construction engineering to be a maximum of 15% of the physical 
construction cost. Up to 81.85 percent of the construction engineering services are reimbursable 
with federal funds. 

The subcontract, as submitted, is based on estimated costs, as is standard with all MOOT 
agreements, since these agreements are prepared before actual costs are known. The city's actual 

http:310,458.27
http:2,561,480.50


cost is based on the actual cost incurred by the consultant's work within the parameters of the 

agreement. 


Funding for the city's share is available in the 2009/10 Major Road budget. 


Legal Considerations: 


The format and content of the agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney's Office and is 

consistent with past construction engineering subcontracts approved by City Council for Rochester 

Road, Long Lake Road, Big Beaver and Stephenson Highway projects. 


MOOT and FHWA will review and approve the consultant selection process used by the city along 

with the subcontract. 


Rochester Road is a National Highway System (NHS) route and as such there is additional oversight 

by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) on all aspects of the project. 


Policy Considerations: 


• 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community (Goal I) 
• 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 

venues (Goal II) 

Prepared by: Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 
G:\ContractsIContracts 2009109-9 Rochester, Torpey to Barclay &Watiles, E& Wof Rocheste(,01.106,5 - Wattles, East &West of Rochester,Construction EogineeringlTo CC ra Jrd Party CE AgreeClenLWaffies,doc 



EXHIBIT 1 

Marcil 2, 2006 

Requirements for Performing Construction Engineering on 

Local Agency Projects 


The Local Agency is required to perfonn Construction Engineering on all federal/state 
aid projects that are either let by MDOT-let or locally-let (enhancement only). 

Consultants and/or Local Agencies perfonning Construction Engineering Services on 

Local Agency Projects do not need to be pre-qualified by MDOT for Construction 

Engineering, unless project work involves MDOT trunkline. For work involving MDOT 

trunkline, pre-qualification is required. 


If federal/state funds will be utilized for Construction Engineering Services and the 

amount of the contract is equal to or will exceed $100,000 then the consultant must be 

selected following the criteria set forth in the Brooks Act and a copy of the third party 

agreement must be approved by MDOT. The Local Agency should contact the Local 

Agency Programs Unit prior to proceeding with the selection of the consultant. 


If the contract is less than $100,000, then the consultant may be selected using the Local 

Agency's small purchase order procedure and a copy of the third party agreement must 

be approved by MDOT. 


No work will be eligible for reimbursement ifperfonned prior to Federal obligation of 

funds and MDOT authorization. 


The Consultants and/or Local Agencies perfonning Construction Engineering are 

required to have the following licenses/certification, depending on the work being done 

in the construction contract. 


Project Engineer: 

The Project Engineer assigned to the project must be licensed by the State of Michigan. 


Surveying: 

A surveyor licensed by the State of Michigan must be on staff if surveying is part of the 

contract. 


Technicians: 

The field technicians need to have the following certifications for the work operations 

listed: 


Density (Earthwork or HMA Paving) 
- NRC Nuclear Density Gauge License 

Radiation Safety Training 
- MDOT Density Technology Certification 

1 




March 2, 2006 

Requirements for Performing Construction Engineering on Local Agency Projects 
Cont... 

HMA Paving 
MDOT Bit. Paving OR Bit Paving Operations 

Concrete 
- Michigan Concrete Field Testing - Level I (MCA or MCP A) 

Aggregate Testing & Sampling 
Michigan Certified Aggregate Technician 

HMA Plant Inspection 
- Michigan Bit QC/QA Technician (Level 2) 
- Michigan Certified Bituminous Laboratory Technician (Levell) 

Project Office 
The consultant must utilize Field Manager software for all MDOT -let projects. 
MDOT offers Field Manager training (Contact Therese Binkley at 517-322-174] or 
Terri LaVoy at 517-322-6792 for available dates/times and training locations) 
The Local Agency must keep records and track materials per the MDOT 
Construction Manual, the applicable MDOT Standard Specifications for 
Construction, the Materials Quality Assurance Procedures Manual, the Material 
Source Guide, and utilize standard MDOT forms 
(www.mdot.state.mi.us/webforms/) while reporting applicable items. 
Specific construction questions/concerns should be addressed to the local MDOT 
TSC. A complete list ofthe TSC personnel can be found at the following link: 
=".~~~~~~~~=':'~;'!'~':"':~.~~~~"':...t,~=---,~=~ or by and selecting 
"about MDOT" from MDOTs home page at ~'-'..:"':~'-,",,-!.!.='~I:>-':'.'-'-'='= 

- 2 

www.mdot.state.mi.us/webforms


EXHIBIT 2 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES REVIEW 

ROCHESTER, TORPEY TO BARCLAY AND WATTLES, EAST & WEST OF ROCHESTER ROAD 

Firm: ~'()nsultant 

Item Task Grade Weight Total Comments 
No. 

1 . 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Understanding of Services I 2 
Project 

uirements 
Experience with Similar Types of 3 
Road Projects 

Qualifications & Experience of 
"Key Personnel" 

a. Project Engineer 4 

b. Lead Inspector 4 

c. Lead Surveyor 2 

d. Traffic Engineer 1 

e. Other Staff 

Past Performance of Firm 3 

Grade on a scale of 1-5 with 1 representing the lowest and 5 representing the 
highest. 

General Comments: 

Reviewer________________ Date----------



EXHIBIT 3 


Avg. FinalTotal 

Consultant Score RankScore 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 365.75 91.44 1 
~- ~. ..- t---------~~+..-----.... 

Spalding DeDecker Assoc., Inc. 2359.75 i 89.94
I--'- ........ ......

Anderson, Eckstein & Westrick, Inc. 333 83.25 3
1--_... .- . 

AECOM 4304.51 76.13 
....-~--~~ 

Fishb~ck, Thomp~on, Carr &1juber, Inc. 76.13 4.304.51 .. 

Tetra Tech 301 ! 75.25 6 
...._..-

NTH Consultants, Ltd. 72441 6'1 



Principals Senior Associates 
George E. Hubbell Gary J. Tressel 

Thomas E. Biehl Lawrence R. Ancypa 
Waiter H. Alix Kenneth A. Melchior 
Peter T. Roth Dennis M. Monsere 

Michael P. Waring Randal L Ford 
Keith D. McCbrmack David P.'Nilcox 

HUBBEll, ROTH CLARK, IN 
Curt A. Christeson 
Thomas M. Doran 

Timothy H. Sullivan 

Associates 

Consulting Engineers Chief Financial Officer 
J. Bruce McFarland 

Thomas G. Maxwell 
NancyM,O. 
Jonathan E. 

Michael C. MaCDonald 
MarJln A. Olane 

Richard F. Beaubien 
William R. Davis 

Daniel W. Mitchell 
Jesse B. VanDeCreek 

Robert F. DeFrain 
Marshall J. Grazioli 

Thomas D. LaCross 
October 12, 2009 Dennis J. Benoit 

EXHIBIT 4 


City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

Attn: 	 Mr. William J. Huotari, P.E., Deputy City Engineer 

Re: 	 Construction Engineering Services for Reconstruction HRC Job No. 20090527 
and Widening of Rochester Road from Torpey to Barclay 
and Wattles Road, East and West of Rochester Road 

Dear Mr. Huotari: 

We are very pleased to be selected the Highest Rated Consultant to provided Construction Engineering 
Services for the above referenced project. We look forward to working with the City during construction 
of this project. 

As requested, we are providing a Cost Proposal for each project. The first project would be the 
Reconstruction and Widening of Rochester Road from Torpey to Barclay. The second project is the 
Reconstruction and Widening of Wattles Road East and West of Rochester Road. Both of these projects 
overlap one another but are funded by two different MDOT contracts. On the attached MDOT forms we 
have estimated the total costs for Construction Engineering Services for each project. The cost is based 
on a projection of man hours, direct hourly rates, MDOT approved overhead and fixed fee percentages for 
HRC and our sub-consultant. 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc is very aware of the economic conditions within the State of Michigan and 
especially the City of Troy. We have taken steps to keep our fees as low as possible for the City of Troy. 
As a first step, HRC did not raise any salaries of our employees last year. This results in a 3% to 5% 
savings on our invoicing for all Troy projects including Rochester and Wattles Road Reconstruction. In 
addition, in the past we have used a 15% fixed fee percentage for various MDOT projects and we are 
proposing on 11 % fixed for this project. The two cost savings steps together results in a 6.7% to 8.8% 
savings depending what traditional rruses would have been given in 2009. 

RECEIVED 


Y:\200905120090527\ProposalICorrslL!r\J3.doc 

2001 CenterpOint Parkway, Suite 109 
Pontiac. Michigan 48341 
Telephone 248 454 6300 Fax 248 454 6359 
www.hrc-engr.com 

OCT 1 6 LUOS 

ENGINEERING 

Engineering, Environment. Excellence. 'IN 

http:www.hrc-engr.com


William J. Huotari 
October 13,2009 
HRC Job Number 20090527 
Page 2 of2 

We thank you in advance for your consideration of this cost proposal and look forward to the successful 
completion of this much needed road improvement project. Should you have any questions or would like 
to meet and discuss this cost proposal please call me at (248) 454-6370. 

Very truly yours, 

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 

ri}1/t~ t~a4v 
Walter H. Alix, P.E., P.S. 
Vice President 

WHAlvb 
pc: HRC; N. Faught, M. MacDonald, R. DeFrain, D. Wilcox, File 

Engineering. Environment. Excellence. 
Y:\200905120090527\ProjX1SaJ\Cons\Ltr03.doc 



DERIV ATIQN Ill? COST fROPOSAL 

Prime Consultant: Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 
MDOT COnlrol Section No. STUL 63459 HRC lob Number 20090527 

Job No. 105941A Description 

Description: Wattles Road Reconstruction 1,000 ft East and West of Roch!.'",ter Road 

DlRF.CT LABOR 

Classification Qjame2 
Person 
Hours X 

Hourly 
Rate 

Labor 
Costs 

Project Engineer (Robert DeFrain) 232 $ 43.15 $ 10,010.80 
OT 0 $ 64.73 $ 

Supervisory Technician (William Penllycook) 290 $ 32.85 S 9,526.50 
OT 75 $ 49.28 $ 3,696.00 

Project Representative (Bernie O'Brien) 424 $ 30.50 $ 12,932.00 
OT 144 $ 45.75 $ 6,588.00 

Consrmction Teclmieiall (Gino Santia) 366 $ 20.25 $ 7,411.50 
OT 96 $ 30.38 $ 2,916.48 

Conslmction Technician (Lisa Hoth) 270 $ 20.00 $ 5,400.00 
OT 96 $ 30.00 $ 2,880.00 

Constrllction Teclmician (T3D) 192 $ 20.00 $ 3,840.00 
aT 64 $ 30.00 $ 1,920.00 

Sellior Office Teclmician(Lisa Natschke) 124 $ 26.50 $ 3,286.00 
0'1' 0 $ 39.75 $ 

Senior Testing Technician(Troy Perkins) 360 $ 25.95 $ 9,342.00 
OT 144 $ 38.93 $ 5,605.92 

Laboratory Testing Tech (Suzanne Elliott) 108 $ 20.30 $ 2,192.40 
OT 32 S 30.45 $ 974.40 

Director ofField Opemtions (David Wilcox) 9 $ 49.20 $ 442.80 
OT $ 73,80 $ 

Chief Testing Engineer (Marshall Grazioli) 36 $ 41.70 $ 1,501.20 
OT 0 $ 62.55 $ 

Chief Surveyor (Gary Chalice) 9 $ 37.25 S 335.25 
OT 0 $ 55.88 $ 

Survey Office Supervisor (William Wonnacott) 40 $ 36.40 $ 1,456.00 
OT 0 $ 54.60 $ 

Traffic Engineer (Richard Beatlbien) 18 $ 47.00 $ 846.00 
OT 0 $ 70.50 $ 

Survey Party Chief (Daniel Weinert) 32 $ 29,40 $ 940.80 
OT 8 $ 44,10 $ 352.80 

Survey Instnnnent Operator (Scott Ojala) 32 $ 21.75 $ 696.00 
or 8 $ 32.63 $ 261.04 

Senior Design Engineer (Charles Hart) 81 $ 37.00 2.99700 
OT 0 $ 55.50 $ 

Associate (Michael MacDonald) 18 $ 47.50 $ 855.00 
OT 0 $ 71.25 $ 

Senior Design Engineer (Richard Nacey) 16 $ 39.75 $ 636.00 
aT 0 $ 59.63 $ 

Deparllnental Assistant (Virginia Blyant) 20 $ 17.00 $ 340.00 
OT 0 $ 25.50 $ 

Senior CADD Technician (Kristan Walley) 16 $ 30.45 $ 487.20 
OT 0 $ 45.68 S 

Total Hours 3360 Tolal Labor L~~l£g,66909 

Sub Total 100,669.09 

Page I 

1012312009 



Previous Page Sub Total _$_, 100,669,09 

OVERHIDAD 

Total Labor $ x l}t.lli 176,674,25 ':'olal Labor 

DIRECT EXPENSES 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark does nOI charge mileage to or all the job, 

'rota: Direct Costs 

COST OF MONEY 
TOlal Labor 

$ 100,669,09 x 1.73% :,741.58 Total Cost of Money _$_" 1,74l,58 

FIXED FEE 

(TOlal Labor + TOlalOverhead) 

$ 100,669.09 + $ 176,674,25 x 11% Tolal Fixed Fee 

TOTAL COSTS 

Page 2 

10/23/2009y . \200905\20090527\Proposal\Prop\To.bl{ls\REV :SED~,R()(.he~!cr..WII!t!cs.xh 

http:WII!t!cs.xh


DERIVATlOi" OF COST PROPOSAL 

SUB-CONSULTANT: Professional Services Industries, Inc. 
MDOT Control Section No, STUL 63459 HRC Job Number 20090527 

.Job No. 105941A 
Description: Wattles Road RccOJlstrllctiolJ 1,000 ft East and West of Rochester Road 

DIRECT LABOR 
Person Hourly Labor 

Classif1cation x Rate Costs 

Testing Technician (David Hosler) 

01' 
Administrative Assist.(Samatha Hawkins) 

0'1' 
Project Engineer (Robert Rynbrant) 

Total Hours 
01' 

8 

° 
0 

1.5 

11 

$ 20,67 

$ 16,85 

$ 33,65 

Total Labor 

$ 165.36 

$ 
$ 16,85 

$ 
$ 50.48 

$ 
$232,69 

OVERHEAD 

(Total Labor) $23269 x 175,5% Total Overhead $408.36 

COST OF MONEl' 

IHRECT EXPENSES 
Lane Tie Testing Equipment 

$232,69 x 1.73% $ 4,03 

Tot~l Cost of Money $ 

$ 

4,03 

150,00 

FIXED FEE 

(Total Labor + Total Overhead) 

$64 LOS x 11% Total Fixed Fee $70,52 

Page 3 
TOTAL COSTS $865.59 

10/23/2009Y:1200905120090527\ProposaIIPropITabiesIREVISED"Rocnester"Wallles,xls 



DERIVATION OF COST PROJ)OSAL 


SUMMARY BY JOB NUMBER AND BY CATEGORY 

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 

MDOT Control Section No. STUL 63459 HRC Job Number 20090527 

Job No. 105941A 
Description: Wattles Road Reconstruction 1,000 ft East and West of Roehester Road 

DIRECT LABOR 

Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. Direct Labor Hours 3527 Direct Labor Costs $ 100,669.09 

Professional Service Industries Direct Labor Hours 11 	 Direct Labor Costs $232.69 

Total Direct Labor $100,901.78 

OVERHEAD 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. Overhead Costs $176,674,25 

Professional Service Industries 	 Overhead Costs 
Total Overhead Costs $177,082.62 

FACILITIES COST OF CAPITOL 

Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. FCC Costs $ 1,741.58 

Professional Service Industries 	 FCC Costs $ 4.03 

Total FCC Costs $1,745.60 

FIXED FEE 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. Fixed Fee Costs $ 30,507.77 

Professional Service Industries 	 Fixed Fee Costs $70.52 

Total Fixed Fee Costs $30,578.28 

DIRECT EXPENSES 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. Direct Costs $0.00 

Professional Service Industries 	 Direct Costs $ 150.00 

Total Direct Costs $l50.00 

TOTAL COSTS FOR THIS JOB $310,458.27 

Page 4 

10/23/2009Y :1200905120090527\ProposaIIP roplT ableslREVISED _ Rochesler_ Wa\\les.xls 

http:310,458.27
http:30,578.28
http:30,507.77
http:1,745.60
http:1,741.58
http:177,082.62
http:100,901.78
http:100,669.09


DERIVATION OF COST PROPOSAL 

MDOT Control Section No. STUL 63459 

Job No. 105941A Description 

SUMMARY BY CONSULTANT 

Description: Wattles Road Reconstruction 1,000 ft East and West of Rochester Road 

Construction Engineering Services 

CE I·lours CE Cost Fixed Fee 

DBE 
YIN % of Cost 

Hubbell, Roth and Clark,lnc 599 $63,356.06 $ 6,925.68 N 100% 

Professional Services industries 0 $0.00 $0.00 N 0% 

Subtotal 599 $63,356.06 $6,925.68 100% 

Services During Construction 

DBE 
CE Hours CE Cost Fixed Fee YIN %of 

Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc 

Professional Services Industries 

Subtotal 

Total 

2,761 

11 

2,772 

3,371 

$215,728.85 

$795.07 

$216,523.93 

$279,879.99 

$ 23,582.09 

$70.52 

$23,652.61 

$30,578.28 

N 

N 

99.64% 

0.36% 

100% 

Page 5 

10/23/2009Y:120Q90S120090527IPropcsaIIPropITablesIREVISED_Rochesler_V'JaHles.xls 



ESTIMATED PERSON HOURS 
MDOT Control Section No. STUL 63459 HRC Job Number 20090527 

Job No. l05941A Description 
Description: Wattles Road Reconstruction 1000 ft East and West of Rochester Road 

Consultant NaIne: Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 

Task Project Engineer Engin eer'/S upervisor Inspector Techician 
Project Engineering 232 365 140 
Observation 1652 
Control Survey 49 80 
Materials Testing 36 644 
Project Assistance 9 115 
Traffic Contol Assistance 18 

rotal Hours 

Sub Consultant: Professional Services Industries, Inc. 

Secretarial 

20 

j360 

Hours 10 

Page 6 

y :1200905120090527IProposa~ProplT ableslR E::VISEO_Rochester _ Wattles.xl s 1012312009 

http:Wattles.xl


SUBCONTRACT NO. ____ 
CONTROL SECTION NO. STUL 63459 

MDOT JOB NO. 105941A 
FED. PROJECT NO. _____ 
FED. ITEM NO. ______ 

City of Troy 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CONTRACT 

A Surface Transportation PROJECT 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into as of this date of by 
and between Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc., Consulting Engineers, of Pontiac, Michigan, 
hereinafter referred to as the ftCONSULT ANT, II and the City of Trov, hereinafter referred to as 
the tlLOCAL AGENCY." 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL AGENCY IS planning to construct a road improvement 
project within its limits; and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL AGENCY desires to engage the professional services and 
assistance of the CONSULTANT to perform certain construction engineering and inspection 
services and other related work, said work to be hereinafter referred to as the "SERVICES," 
required in connection with the construction of the following transportation improvements 
under the Surface Transportation Program, said improvements to be hereinafter referred to as 
the "PROJECT:" 

"0.55 miles of road reconstruction for Wattles Road, approximately 1,000 
feet east and west of Rochester Road with concrete pavement, curb and 
gutter, driveways, storm sewers, sanitary sewer, water main, hot mix asphalt, 
pavement markings and other related work;" and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL AGENCY has programmed the PROJECT with the Michigan 
Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for construction 
with the use of Surface Transportation Program Funds administered by the United States 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, hereinafter referred to as the 
"FHWA;II and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT is wi1ling to render the SERVICES desired by the 
LOCAL AGENCY for the considerations hereinafter expressed; and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT was selected utilizing a qualifications based selection 
(QBS) process; and 

09116/94 REV. 12115/99 LGFABOI 




WHEREAS, the parties hereto have reached an understanding as to the scope of the work 
and the performance of the SERVICES on the PROJECT and desire to set forth this 
understanding in the form of a written contract; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties hereto that: 

THE CONSULT ANT SHALL: 

1. 	 Provide the following SERVICES relating to the PROJECT: 

a. 	 Assign a construction engineer and qualified inspection personnel who 
will be responsible to the PROJECT Engineer at the PROJECT site during 
the construction of the PROJECT in order to perform required inspection 
services to assure compliance with approved contract plans and 
specifications, and perform the day to day activities of the PROJECT. 

b. 	 Field survey information, construction staking services, and soil borings 
on the PROJECT site and any other field surveys as may be required for 
effective control of the construction of the PROJECT. 

c. 	 Perform and/or have conducted field checks and laboratory testing of 
materials and equipment to assure compliance with the contract 
specifications and r.equirements of the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA. 
A portion of the off-site testing work is to be performed in accordance 
with a subcontractual arrangement between the CONSULTANT and 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. 

d. 	 Such additional engineering and inspection services as may be required by 
the PROJECT Engineer for satisfactory completion of the PROJECT. 

2. Perform all PROJECT work under the direction of the PROJECT Engineer who 
will be assigned by the LOCAL AGENCY as provided in Section 15. 

3. Provide such reports and maintain such records of the PROJECT as are required 
to document the work to the satisfaction of the PROJECT Engineer, the LOCAL AGENCY, the 
DEPARTMENT, and the FHWA. 

4. Govern all SERVICES by the applicable codes, laws, and standards of the 
LOCAL AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT and theFHWA. 

5. During the performance of the SERVICES herein provided for, be responsible for 
any loss or damage to the documents, owned by the LOCAL AGENCY while they are in its 
possession. Restoration of lost or damaged documents shall be at the CONSULTANT'S 
expense. 

6. Furnish qualified personnel to assist the PROJECT engineer in solving field 
problems, when so requested. 

7. 	 Attend conferences and make such trips as necessary to the LOCAL AGENCY'S 
offices and to the site of the work to confer with representatives of the LOCAL AGENCY and 
09/16/94 REV. 12/15/99 2 LGFABOI 



the DEPARTMENT or the FHWA as may be necessary in the carrying out of the work under 
this contract. 

8. Follow standard accounting practices and permit representatives of the LOCAL 
AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA to audit and inspect its PROJECT books and 
records at any reasonable time. Such records are to be kept available for three (3) years from the 
date of the final payment for work conducted under this contract. 

a. 	 The CONSULTANT shall establish and maintain accurate records, in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of all expenses 
incurred for which payment is sought or made under this Contract, said 
records to be hereinafter referred to as the ItRECORDS. tI Separate 
accounts shall be established and maintained for all costs incurred under 
this Contract. 

b. 	 The CONSULTANT shall maintain the RECORDS for at least three (3) 
years from the date of final payment of federal aid made by the 
DEPARTMENT to the local agency under this Contract. In the event of a 
dispute with regard to the allowable expenses or any other issue under this 
Contract, the CONSULTANT shall thereafter continue to maintain the 
RECORDS at least until that dispute has been finally decided and the time 
for all available challenges or appeals of that decision has expired. 

c. 	 The DEPARTMENT, or their representative, may inspect, copy, or audit 
the RECORDS at any reasonable time after giving reasonable notice. 

d. 	 If any part of the work is subcontracted, the CONSULTANT shall assure 
compliance with subsections (a), (b), and (c) above for all subcontracted 
work. 

9. Have in its employ a sufficient number of qualified employees available to 
complete the SERVICES in accordance with the schedule for construction and completion of the 
PROJECT upon the authorization to proceed with the SERVICES as outlined herein. 

10. Show evidence of Workers I Compensation Insurance, said insurance to be as 
required by law. 

11. Commence work on the PROJECT as set forth in and following execution of this 
contract only upon receipt ofwritlen notice from the PROJECT Engineer. 

12. Provide a working office at the PROJECT site or in the vicinity of the PROJECT 
acceptable to the LOCAL AGENCY for adequate performance of the SERVICES to be provided 
under this Contract. 

13. Furnish the LOCAL AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT a set of as built plans 
and records of the PROJECT upon completion thereof. 

14. 	 Submit billings to the LOCAL AGENCY as set forth in Section 17. 

09/16/94 REV. 12/15/99 3 	 LGFAB01 

http:ItRECORDS.tI


THE LOCAL AGENCY WILL: 


15. Assign a PROJECT Engineer who shall be the Publicly Employed Professional 
Engineer in responsible charge of the PROJECT. 

16. For and in consideration of the SERVICES rendered by the CONSULTANT as 
set forth in this contract, pay the CONSULTANT on the basis of actual cost plus a fixed fee 
(profit) amount which shall not exceed Three hundred ten thousand four hundred fifty eight 
dollars and twenty seven cents ($310,458.27). The fixed fee (profit) shall be the amount of 
Thirty thousand five hundred seventy eight dollars and twenty eight cents ($30,578.28), 
which amount is included in the total amount of Three hundred ten thousand four hundred 
fifty eight dollars and twenty seven cents ($310,458.27), as shown in Exhibit "A," attached 
hereto and made a part hereof. 

Actual costs for SERVICES work required and performed will be determined in 
accordance with the following terms, subject to the cost criteria set forth in the Federal 
Acquisition Regulations, 48 CFR, Part 31 : 

a. 	 Direct Salary Costs: Actual labor costs of personnel performing the 
SERVICES work. This cost will be based on the employees actual hourly 
rate of pay and the actual hours of performance on the PROJECT as 
supported by employee time records. 

b. 	 Direct Costs: Actual costs of materials and services, other than salaries, as 
may be required hereunder but which are not normally provided as a part 
of the overhead of the CONSULTANT. All actual costs shall be itemized 
and certified as paid to specifically named firms or individuals, and shall 
be supported by proper receipts. 

c. 	 Overhead (Indirect Costs): A pro-rated portion of the actual overhead 
incurred by the CONSULTANT during performance of the PROJECT 
work. The amount of overhead payment, including payroll overhead, will 
be calculated as a percentage of all direct labor costs related to staff 
personnel and members of the firm. Overhead shall include those costs, 
which because of their incurrence for common or joint objectives, are not 
readily subject to treatment as a direct cost. The provisional overhead 
rate, which will be applied to direct labor costs for progress payments, is 
set forth in Exhibit A. 

It is agreed that the use of the provisional rate set forth in Exhibit A sets 
neither a minimum nor maximum to the actual overhead costs to be paid 
the CONSULTANT. Any overpayments or under payments made to the 
CONSULTANT for SERVICES performed resulting from usage of the 
provisional overhead rate, will be corrected in the first billing submitted 
subsequent to the CONSULTANT'S calculation of an actual overhead rate 
for the financial year end applicable to the reported direct labor cost. The 
audit at the completion of this contract, or at such time as this contract is 
terminated, will verify the propriety of reported overhead. 

Facilities Cost of Capital: A pro-rated portion of the actual facilities cost 

09116/94 REV. 12/15/99 4 LOFABOI 

http:310,458.27
http:30,578.28
http:310,458.27


of capital incurred by the CONSULTANT during work is reimbursable 
only if the estimated facilities cost of capital was specifically identified in 
the cost proposal for this work (Exhibit A). 

d. Travel and Subsistence: Actual costs in accordance with and not to 
exceed the amounts set forth in the State of Michigan Standardized Travel 
Regulations, incorporated herein by reference as if the same were repeated 
in full herein. 

e. Fixed Fee (Profit): In addition to the payments for direct and overhead 
costs as hereinbefore provided, the LOCAL AGENCY agrees to pay the 
CONSULTANT a fixed amount for profit for the SERVICES performed. 
It is agreed and understood that such amount will constitute full 
compensation to the CONSULTANT for profit and will not vary because 
of any differences between the estimated cost and the actual cost for work 
performed, except that in the event this contract is terminated, payment of 
a fixed fee (profit) in respect to the PROJECT shall be in an amount which 
can be established by the CONSULTANT from its accounts and records 
and subject to the provisions of Section 18. 

f. Subconsultant Costs: Actual costs of sub consultants performing 
SERVICES under this Contract. Amounts for fixed fees paid by the 
CONSULTANT to the subconsultant will not be considered an actual cost 
of the CONSULTANT, but will be considered a part of the fixed fee of the 
CONSULTANT. 

g. Those costs incurred by the CONSULTANT in the utilization of the 
subcontracted services of Professional Service Industries, Inc. shall be 
excluded from the calculation of the CONSULTANT'S percentage of 
SERVICES completed, as set forth in Section 17a., but will be reimbursed 
by the LOCAL AGENCY. Payment by the LOCAL AGENCY will be 
made directly to the CONSULTANT. The PROJECT cost attributable to 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. is estimated to be Eight hundred 
sixty five dollars and fifty nine cents ($865.59). 

The maximum amount, including the fixed fee (profit), hereinbefore set forth in 
this Section, shall not be exceeded except by the execution of an amendment to this contract by 
and between the parties hereto and with approval by the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA. 
Payment shall be made as hereinafter set forth. 

17. Make payments to the CONSULT ANT III accordance with the following 
procedures: 

a. 	 Progress payments may be made for reimbursement of amounts earned to 
date and shall include direct costs, other direct costs, calculated amounts 
for overhead using overhead, and facilities cost of capital using applied 
rates, set forth hereinbefore, plus a portion of the fixed fee. 

The portion of the fixed fee which may be included in progress payments 
shall be equal to the total fixed fee multiplied by the percentage of the 

09/16/94 REV. 12/15/99 5 LGFABOI 



work which has been completed to date of billing. 
b. 	 Partial payments will be made upon the submission by the 

CONSULTANT of a billing, accompanied by properly completed 
reporting forms and such other evidence of progress as may be required by 
the LOCAL AGENCY. Partial payments shall be made only once a 
month. 

c. 	 Final billing under this contract shall be submitted in a timely manner but 
not later than three (3) months after completion of the SERVICES. 
Billings for work submitted later than three (3) months after completion of 
SERVICES will not be paid. Final payment, including adjustments of 
direct salary costs, other direct costs and overhead costs, will be made 
upon completion of audit by the LOCAL AGENCY andlor as appropriate, 
by representatives of the DEPARTMENT and the FHW A. In the event 
such audit indicates an overpayment, the CONSULT ANT will repay the 
LOCAL AGENCY within 30 davs of the date of the invoice. - " 

18. If SERVICES, or any part thereof, are terminated before completed, pay the 
CONSULTANT as follows: 

a. 	 Pay the CONSULTANT actual costs plus overhead, as defined herein, 
incurred for the work completed up to the time of termination, plus an 
amount determined at the time of ~ermination to compensate the 
CONSULTANT in full for a normal profit on work completed, as set forth 
in Section 16. The amounts included for overhead and profit shall be 
subject to approval by the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA. 

b. 	 In no case, shall the compensation paid to the CONSULTANT for 
SERVICES, or any part thereof, exceed the amount the CONSULTANT 
would receive had the SERVICES, or the terminated portion thereof, been 
completed. 

IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT: 

19. Upon completion or termination of this contract, all documents prepared by the 
CONSULT ANT, including tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, field notes, 
investigations, studies, etc., as instruments of SERVICE, shall become the property of the 
LOCAL AGENCY. 

20. No portion of the PROJECT work, hereto before defined, shall be sublet, 
assigned, or otherwise disposed of except as herein provided or with the prior written consent of 
the LOCAL AGENCY and approval by the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA. Consent to sublet, 
assign or otherwise dispose of any portion of the SERVICES shall not be construed to relieve the 
CONSUL T ANT of any responsibility for the fulfillment of this contract. 

21. All questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of work, the 
manner of performance and rate of progress of the work, and the interpretation of plans and 
specifications shall be decided by the LOCAL AGENCY'S PROJECT Engineer. All questions 
as to the satisfactory and acceptable fulfillment of the terms of this contract shall be decided by 
the LOCAL AGENCY. 
09116/94 REV. 12115/99 6 	 LGFAB01 



22. Any change in SERVICES to be performed by the CONSULTANT involving 
extra compensation must be authorized in writing by the LOCAL AGENCY and approved by the 
DEPARTMENT and the FHWA prior to the performance thereof by the CONSULTANT and 
requires an amendment to this Contract. 

The CONSULTANT and the LOCAL AGENCY specifically agree that in the 
event problems arise that may be the result of errors and/or omissions by the CONSULTANT or 
due to a failure of the CONSULTANT to otherwise perform in accordance with this contract, the 
CONSULTANT will be held responsible with no cost to the LOCAL AGENCY or in accordance 
with the LOCAL AGENCY'S dispute resolution process if applicable. 

23. In addition, the CONSULT ANT shall comply with, and shall reqmre any 
contractor or subcontractor to comply with, the following: 

a. 	 In connection with the performance of the PROJECT under this contract, 
the CONSULTANT (hereinafter in Appendix "A" referred to as the 
"contractor") agrees to comply with the State of Michigan provisions for 
"Prohibition of Discrimination in State Contracts," as set forth in 
Appendix "A," attached hereto and made a part hereof and will require a 
similar covenant on the part of any contractor or subcontractor employed 
in the performance of this contract. 

b. 	 . During the performance of this contract, the CONSULT ANT for itself, its 
assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter in Appendix "B" referred 
to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
being P.L. 88-352, 78 Stat. 241, as amended, being Title 42 U.S.C. 
Sections 1971, 1975a-1975d, and 2000a-2000h-6, and the Regulations of 
the United States Department of Transportation (49 C.F .R. Part 21) issued 
pursuant to said Act, including Appendix "B," attached hereto and made a 
part hereof and will require similar covenants on the part of any contractor 
or subcontractor employed in the performance of this contract. 

c. 	 The parties hereto further agree that they accept the DEPARTMENT'S 
Minority Business Enterprises/Women's Business Enterprises 
(MBE/WBE) Program with respect to the PROJECT and will abide by the 
provisions set forth in Appendix "C,11 attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, being an excerpt from Title 42 C.F.R. Part 23, more specifically 
23.43(a)(1) and (2) thereof. 

09116/94 REV. 12115/99 7 	 LGFABOI 




24. The CONSULTANT warrants that it has not employed or retained any company 
or person other than bona fide employees working solely for the CONSUL TANT, to solicit or 
secure this contract, and that he has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than 
bona fide employees working solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or 

. making of this contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, the LOCAL AGENCY shall 
have the right to annul this contract without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the 
contract price or consideration, or~otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or contingent fee. 

25. The CONSULTANT specifically agrees that in the performance of SERVICES 
herein enumerated by it, or by an approved subcontractor, or anyone acting in its behalf, they 
will, to the best of their professional knowledge and ability, comply with any and all applicable 
state, federal, and local statutes, ordinances, and regulations. 

26. No charges or claims for damages shall be made by the CONSULTANT for 
delays or hindrances from any cause whatsoever during the progress of any portions of the 
SERVICES specified in this contract, except as hereinafter provided. 

In case of a substantial delay on the part of the LOCAL AGENCY in providing to 
the CONSULT ANT either the necessary information or approval to proceed with the work, 
resulting, through no fault of the CONSULTANT, in delays of such extent as to require the 
,CONSUL T ANT to perform its work under changed conditions not contemplated by the parties, 
the LOCAL AGENCY will consider supplemental compensation limited to increased costs 
incurred as a direct result of such delays. Any claim for supplemental compensation must be in 
writing and accompanied by substantiating data. Authorization of such supplemental compen
sation shall be by an amendment to this contract subject to prior approval by the 
DEPARTMENT and the FHW A. 

When delays are caused by circumstances or conditions beyond the control of the 
CONSULTANT, as determined by the LOCAL AGENCY, the CONSULTANT shall be granted 
an extension of time for such reasonable period as may be mutually agreed upon between the 
parties, it being understood, however, that the permitting of the CONSULT ANT to proceed to 
complete the SERVICES, or any part of them, after the date to which the time of completion 
may have been extended, shall in no way operate as a waiver on the part of the LOCAL 
AGENCY of any of its rights herein set forth. 

27. In case the CONSULTANT deems extra compensation will be due it for work or 
materials not clearly covered in this contract, or not ordered by the LOCAL AGENCY as a 
change, or due to changed conditions, the CONSULTANT shall notify the LOCAL AGENCY in 
'writing of its intention to make claim for such extra compensation before beginning such work. 
Failure on the part of the CONSULTANT to give such notification will constitute a waiver of the 
claim for such extra compensation. The filing of such notice by the CONSULTANT shall not in 
any way be construed to establish the validity of the claim. Such extra compensation shall be 
provided only by amendment to this contract with approval of the DEPARTMENT and the 
FHWA. 

28. The CONSULTANT agrees to obtain the necessary liability insurance, acceptable 
to the LOCAL AGENCY, naming the City of Troy, the Michigan State Transportation 
Commission, and the Michigan Department of Transportation as insured, and to provide the 
LOCAL AGENCY with evidence of said insurance, and to indemnify and save harmless the 
09116/94 REV. 12/15/99 8 LGFABOI 



LOCAL AGENCY, the Michigan State Transportation Commission, and the DEPARTMENT, 
their officers, agents and employees from any and all claims and losses occurring or resulting to 
any person, firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work, services, materials, or supplies in 
connection with the performance of this contract, and from any and all claims and losses 
occurring or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by the 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this contract. 

29. This contract shall be terminated upon advisement to the CONSULTANT by the 
LOCAL AGENCY that its SERVICES are completed and accepted. 

30. The CONSULTANT'S signature on this Contract constitutes the 
CONSUL TANT'S certification of "status" under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 
States in respect to 49 CFR, Part 29 pursuant to Executive Order 12549. 

The certification, which is included as a part of this Contract as Attachment "A," 
is Appendix A of 49 CFR Part 29, and applies to the CONSULTANT (referred to in Appendix A 
of 49 CFR Part 29 as "the prospective primary participant"). 

The CONSULT ANT is responsible for obtaining the same certifIcation from all 
subcontractors under this contract by inserting the following paragraph in all subcontracts: 

"The subcontractor!s signature on this Contract constitutes the subcontractor!s 
certification of 'status' under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 
States in respect to 49 CFR, Part 29 pursuant to Executive Order 12549. The 
certification, which is included as a part of this Contract as Attachrrlent "B," is 
Appendix B of 49 CFR, Part 29." 

This certification is required of all subcontractors, testing laboratories, and other lower tier 
participants with which the CONSULTANT enters into a written arrangement for the 
procurement of goods or services provided for in this Contract. 

31. The CONSULTANT hereby agrees that the costs reported to the LOCAL 
AGENCY for this Contract shall represent only those items which are properly chargeable in 
accordance with this Contract. The CONSULTANT also hereby certifies that it has read the 
Contract terms and has made itself aware of the applicable laws, regulations, and terms of this 
Contract that apply to the reporting of costs incurred under the terms of this Contract. 

32. Upon execution of this contract by the parties hereto, the same shall become 
binding on the parties hereto and their successors and assigns, until such time as all work 
contemplated hereunder is complete, or until such time as this contract is terminated by mutual 
consent of the parties hereto. 

09/16/94 REV. 12/15/99 9 LGFAB01 




------------------------------------------------

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals by their duly 
authorized agents and representatives the day and year first above written. 

CONSULTANT 


BY: CJ1/c~t?/?e;- i:fJJ/- a~L 
TITLE: //_ p 

BY: ______________________________________________ 
TITLE: 

City of Troy 

BY: 
TITLE: Mayor - Louise E. Schilling 

BY: ______________________________________________ 
TITLE: City Clerk - Tonni L. Bartholomew 

09/16/94 REV. 12/15/99 10 LGFAB01 




SUBCONTRACTNO. ________ 
CONTROL SECTION NO. STUL 63459 

MDOT JOB NO. l05941A 
FED. PROJECT NO. _________ 

FED. ITEM NO. ______ 

CER TIFICA TI ON 

I hereby certify that I am Viet/Ie//'"' // /J //X 
and a duly authorized representative of the firm of ;;;t/~k0G/(, gc/;!e £-C-/c//il: Zl7c:-, , 
whose address is Z-c:/c.Y I C::-'.e:>/? e y~ 2'//// <;;~>/, Ie::'" i:!::Y/7.!1C",(' J and that neither I 
nor the above firm I here represent has: 

(a) employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee, or 
other consideration, any firm or person (other that a bona fide employee working solely for me or the 
above /-;;'·~Pe"/0 ;t:jc;?'/( dJ.- C::~r/'//' LJ';;?c ) to solicit or secure this contract. 

7 7 

(b) agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or 
retain the services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the contact, or 

(c) paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for me or the above. !1v,0.6e/0;J}~# J>---/-k/,/;~p£d any fee, 
contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind for, or in coooection with, procuri~g or carrying out 
the contract: 

except as here expressly stated (if any): 

I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnished to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation in connection with this contract involving participation of state and/or federal funds, and 
is subject to applicable state and federal laws, both criminal and civil. 

WC?~·(J;Y~~-
Date Signature 



APPENDIX A 

PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATION IN STATE CONTRACTS 


In connection with the performance of work under this contract; the contractor agrees as follows: 

I. 	 In accordance with Act No. 453, Public Acts of 1976, the contractor hereby agrees not to discriminate against an employee 
or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or as a matter 
directly or indirectly related to employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or 
marital status. Further, in accordance with Act No. 220, Public Acts of 1976 as amended by Act No. 478, Public Acts of 
1980 the contractor hereby agrees not to discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, 
tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of a 

. disability that is unrelated to the individual=s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position. A breach of the 
above covenants shall be regarded as a material breach of this contract. 

2. 	 The contractor hereby agrees that any and all subcontracts to this contract, whereby a portion of the work set forth in this 
contract is to be performed, shall contain a covenant the same as hereinabove set forth in Section 1 of this Appendix. 

3. 	 The contractor will take affirmative action to insure that applicants for employment and employees are treated without regard 
to their race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status or a disability that is unrelated to the 
individual=s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of payor other 
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

4. 	 The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all 
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, age, 
sex, height, weight, marital status or disability that is unrelated to the individuaI=s ability to perform the duties of a particular 
job or position. 

5. 	 The contractor or his collective bargaining representative will send to each labor union or representative of workers with 
which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice advising the said labor union or 
workers= representative of the contractol=S commitments under this appendix. 

6. 	 The contractor will comply with all relevant published rules, regulations, directives, and orders of the Michigan Civil Rights 
Commission which may be in effect prior to the taking of bids for any individual state projeet. 

7. 	 The contractor will furnish and file compliance reports within such time and upon such forms as provided by the Michigan 
Civil Rights Commission, said forms may also elicit information as to the practices, policies, program, and employment 
statistics of each subcontractor as well as the contractor himself, and said contractor will permit access to his books, records, 
and accounts by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission and/or its agent, for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with this contract and relevant with rules, regulations, and orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission. 

8. 	 In the event that the Civil Rights Commission finds, after a hearing held pursuant to its rules, that a contractor has not 
complied with the contractual obligations under this agreement, the Civil Rights Commission may, as part of its order based 
upon such findings, certify said findings to the Administrative Board of the State of Michigan, which Administrative Board 
may order the cancellation of the contract found to have been violated andlor declare the contractor ineligible for future 
contracts with the state and its political and civil subdivisions, departments, and officers, and including the governing boards 
of institutions of higher education, until the contractor complies with said order of the Civil Rights Commission. Notice of 
said declaration of future ineligibility may be given to any or all of the persons with whom the contractor is declared 
ineligible to contract as a contracting party in future contracts. In any case before the Civil Rights Commission in which 
cancellation of an existing contract is a possibility, the contracting agency shall be notified of such possible remedy and shall 
be given the option by the Civil Rights Commission to participate in such proceedings. 

9. 	 The contractor will include, or incorporate by reference, the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs (I) through (8) in every 
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by the rules, regulations or orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission, 
and will provide in every subcontract or purchase order that said provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or 
seller. 



(Rev. 03/92) 
APPENDIXB 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the "contractor") agrees as following: 

1. 	 Compliance with Regulations: The contractor shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in 
federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 27, 
as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

2. 	 Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or natural origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, 
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not participate either directly 
or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the RegUlations, including employment 
practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3. 	 Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations either by 
competitive bidding or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, 
including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be 
notified by the contractor of the contractor=s obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to 
nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

4. 	 Information and Reports: The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, 
or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of 
information and its facilities, as may be determined by the Michigan Department of Transportation or the 
Federal Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives. 
Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to 
furnish this information, the contractor shall so certify to the Michigan Department of Transportation, or the 
Federal Highway Administration as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts is has made to obtain the 
information. 

5. 	 Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the contractor=s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 
provisions of this contract, the Michigan Department of Transportation shall impose such contract sanctions as it 
or the Federal Highway Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

(a) Withholding ofpayments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or 

(b) Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

6. 	 Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1 through 6 of every 
subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or 
directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or 
procurement as the Michigan Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration may direct 
as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance; provided, however that in the 
event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a 
result of such direction, the contractor may request the Michigan Department of Transportation to enter into 
such litigation to protect the interests of the state, and, in addition, the contractor may request the United States 
to enter into such litigation to protect the interest of the United States. 



APPENDIXC 

TO BE INCLUDED IN ALL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
AGREEMENTS WITH LOCAL AGENCIES 

General Requirements for Recipients 

Excerpts from USDOT Regulation 
49 CFR, Part 23, Section 23.43 

A. 	 Policv: It is the policy of the Department that MBE as defined in 49 CFR, Part 23, 
shall have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts 
financed in whole or in part with federal funds. Consequently, the MBE requirements 
of 49 CFR, Part 23, apply to this contract. 

B. 	 MBE Obligation: The recipient or its contractor agrees to ensure that MBE as 
defined in 49 CFR, Part 23, has the maximum opportunity to participate in the 
performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with federal 
funds provided under this agreement. In this regard, all recipients or contractors shall 
take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 23, to ensure 
that MBE has the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. 
Recipients and their contractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the award and performance of departmentally-assis.ted 
contracts. 

C. 	 If, as a condition of assistance, the recipient has submitted and the department has 
approved a minority business enterprise affirmative action program which the 
recipient agrees to carry out, this program is incorporated into this financial assistance 
agreement by reference. This program shall be treated as a legal obligation and 
failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this financial assistance 
agreement. Upon notification to this recipient of its failure to carry out the approved 
program, the Department shall impose such sanctions as noted in 49 CFR, Part 23, 
Subpart E, which sanctions may include termination of the agreement or other 
measures that may affect the ability of the recipient to obtain future departmental, 
financial assistance. 

D. 	 The Department hereby advises each recipient, contractor, or subcontractor that 
failure to carry out the requirements set forth in Section 23.43(a) 49 CFR, Part 23, 
shall constitute a breach of contract, and after the notification of the DSDOT, may 
result in termination of the agreement or contract by the Department or such remedy 
as the Department deems appropriate. 



ATTACHMENT A 

(This is a reproduction of Appendix A of 49 CFR Part 29) 


CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 


Instructions for Certification 

I, 	 By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary participant is providing the certification set out below, 
2, 	 The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this 

covered transaction, The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the .department or agency=s 
detennination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a 
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction, 

3. 	 The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the department or 
agency determined to enter into this transaction, If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly 
rendered an erroneous certification in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, the department or agency 
may terminate this transaction for cause of dcfault. 

4. 	 The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to whom this proposal is 
submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has 
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

5. 	 The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," 
"person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposed," and "voluntarily excluded" as used in this clause, have the 
meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules impending Executive Order 12549. You may contact the 
department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy ofthose regulations. 

6. 	 The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered 
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency 
entering into this transaction. 

7. 	 The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covercd Transaction," provided by the 
department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. 	 A participant in a covered transaction' may rely upon a certification of fi prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows 
that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of 
its principals. 

9. 	 Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good 
faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and infom1ation of a participant is not required to exceed that 
which is normally processed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. 	 Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covere~ transaction knowingly 
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, the department or agency may 
terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions 
) , The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 

(a) 	 Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any federal department or agency; 

(b) 	 Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against 
them for commission offraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a 
public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation offederal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) 	 Are not presently indicated for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state, or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b) of this certification; and 

(d) 	 Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (federal, 
state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

2. 	 Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certifY to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an expianation to this proposal. 

March 9, 1989 



ATTACHMENT B 

(This is a reproduction of Appendix B of 49 C.F.R. Part 29) 


CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY 

AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION-LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 


I. 	 By and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 

2. 	 The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

.3. 	 The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted jf 
at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

4. 	 The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," 
"person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the 
meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549, You may contact the 
person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regUlations. 

5. 	 The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered 
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated. 

6. 	 The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by SUbmitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled 
"Ccltification Regarding Debannent, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," 
without notification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

7. 	 A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily cxcluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows 
that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of 
its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (Telephone No. (517) 335-2513 or 
(517) 335-2514). 

8. 	 Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good 
faith the celtification required by this clause. The knowledge and infonnation of a participant is not required to exceed that 
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings, 

9. 	 Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly 
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntarv Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions 

I. 	 The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction 
by any federal department or agency. 

2. 	 Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

(Federal Register Doc. 88-11561 Filed 5-25-88; 8:45 a.m.) 	 March 9, 1989 



Ci~ff CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT Troy 
October 30, 2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Enginee~ 

SUBJECT: 	 Agenda Item - Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 
for Construction Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Rochester Road 
from Torpey to Barclay 
Project No. 99.203.5 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached MDOT subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & 
Clark, Inc. for the purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of each party for construction 
engineering services for the Rochester Road, Torpey to Barclay widening and reconstruction project. 
Furthermore, staff recommends that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the 
agreement. 

Background: 

The Engineering Department requested and was authorized by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) to advertise for un-priced technical proposals for Construction Engineering 
Services for the Rochester Road, Torpey to Barclay and Wattles Road, 1,000' East and West of 
Rochester Road widening and reconstruction projects. 

Construction engineering services incorporate all facets of construction management, including but 
not limited to: 

• Project administration 
• Inspection 
• Staking 
• Quality control testing and reporting 
• Measurement, computation and documentation of quantities 
• Reporting and recordkeeping on the Field Manager system 
• Finalizing all project documentation 

It is more cost effective to use consultants on an as needed basis for projects that are federally 
funded, because the consultant costs are project specific and largely reimbursed with federal funds. 
Additionally, the federally funded projects vary in number from year to year and typically take 10 
years or more to proceed from preliminary engineering, to ROW acquisition and on to final plans and 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



construction. It is not cost effective to maintain an in-house staff capable of handling all of these 
large projects over the long term, particularly when the project funding is limited, competitive and 
unpredictable from a timing standpoint. 

The Engineering Department is a hybrid department and has used consultants to various degrees 
since the 1960s. Consultants are generally used for the following reasons: 

• When in-house capacity is exceeded 
• When expertise is not available in-house 
• To augment City staff or when spikes in workload occur 
• For special or unique design projects 
• For technical studies, long range utility studies and/or plans 

The Rochester and Wattles projects are both federally funded and will be bid together through 
MOOT. We are required to prepare and execute two separate subcontracts for the construction 
engineering phase, one for each project, even though the physical construction will be bid and 
constructed as part of one contract due to the separate federal funding available for each project. 
Construction engineering is eligible for reimbursement with federal funds and as such, the consultant 
selection process must follow the MOOT consultant selection process (Exhibit 1). 

MOOT's selection process is a Qualifications Based Selection (QBS) process based on the Brooks 
Act in which a consultant is rated on pre-determined criteria with the top ranked consultant moving on 
to the next phase of the process based on their experience and qualifications only. Proposals were 
received from seven (7) consultants on September 17, 2009. 

A four (4) person review committee, consisting of the City Engineer, Deputy City Engineer, Civil 
Engineer and Public Works Director, reviewed and rated the consultants based on each firm's 
understanding of the project, past experience with similar projects, proposed team members and 
other items as listed on the review sheet (Exhibit 2). 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) was rated as the top consultant. Total final scores for all 
consultants are summarized in Exhibit 3. Once the highest rated consultant is determined, that 
consultant then submits a price proposal for their services based on guidelines prepared by the 
Engineering Department. The subcontract that is included with this item is based on the price 
proposal as submitted by HRC. 

Financial Considerations: 

Bids for the Rochester Road construction phase will be opened by MOOT at their bid letting of 
December 4, 2009. The engineer's estimate of construction is $11,082,028.25. HRC's cost to 
perform the Construction Engineering Services is $1,241,042.95 or 11.2% of the estimated 
construction cost as detailed in their Priced Proposal. (Exhibit 4). 

MOOT guidelines allow construction engineering to be a maximum of 15% of the physical 
construction cost. Up to 81.85 percent of the construction engineering services are reimbursable 
with federal funds. 

The subcontract, as submitted, is based on estimated costs, as is standard with all MOOT 
agreements, since these agreements are prepared before actual costs are known. The city's actual 

http:1,241,042.95
http:11,082,028.25


cost is based on the actual cost incurred by the consultant's work within the parameters of the 

agreement. 


Funding for the city's share is available in the 2009/10 Major Road budget. 


Legal Considerations: 


The format and content of the agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney's Office and is 

consistent with past construction engineering subcontracts approved by City Council for Rochester 

Road, Long Lake Road, Big Beaver and Stephenson Highway projects. 


MOOT and FHWA will review and approve the consultant selection process used by the city along 

with the subcontract. 


Rochester Road is a National Highway System (NHS) route and as such there is additional oversight 

by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) on all aspects of the project. 


Policy Considerations: 


• 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community (Goal I) 
• 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 

venues (Goal II) 

Prepared by: Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 
G:IConlrac!sIContracts • 2009\09-9 Rochester, Tcrpey!c Barclay &Wattles, E&Wof RochesierI99.203,5 - Rochester, Torpey to BarclaylConslrucuon EngineeringlTo CC ra oro party CE AgraemenCRochester_r2,doo 



EXHIBIT 1 

March 2, 2006 

Requirements for Performing Construction Engineering on 

Local Agency Projects 


The Local Agency is required to perform Construction Engineering on all federal/state 

aid projects that are either let by MDOT-Iet or locally-let (enhancement only). 


Consultants andior Local Agencies performing Construction Engineering Services on 

Local Agency Projects do not need to be pre-qualified by MDOT for Construction 

Engineering, unless project work involves MDOT trunkline. For work involving MDOT 

trunkline, pre-qualification is required. 


If federalistate funds will be utilized for Construction Engineering Services and the 

amount of the contract is equal to or will exceed $100,000 then the consultant must be 

selected following the criteria set forth in the Brooks Act and a copy of the third party 

agreement must be approved by MDOT. The Local Agency should contact the Local 

Agency Programs Unit prior to proceeding with the selection ofthe consultant. 


If the contract is less than $100,000, then the consultant may be selected using the Local 

Agency's small purchase order procedure and a copy of the third party agreement must 

be approved by MDOT. 


No work will be eligible for reimbursement ifperformed prior to Federal obligation of 

funds and MDOT authorization. 


The Consultants andior Local Agencies performing Construction Engineering are 

required to have the following licensesicertification, depending on the work being done 

in the construction contract. 


Project Engineer: 

The Project Engineer assigned to the project must be licensed by the State ofMichigan. 


Surveying: 

A surveyor licensed by the State of Michigan must be on staff if surveying is part of the 

contract. 


Technicians: 

The field technicians need to have the following certifications for the work operations 

listed: 


Density (Earthwork or HMA Paving) 

NRC Nuclear Density Gauge License 

- Radiation Safety Training 
- MDOT Density Technology Certification 

- 1 



March 2, 2006 

Requirements for Performing Construction Engineering on Local Agency Projects 
Cont... 

lIMA Paving 
MDOT Bit. Paving OR Bit. Paving Operations 

- Michigan Concrete Field Testing Levell (MCA or MCPA) 

Aggregate Testing & Sampling 
Michigan Certified Aggregate Technician 

lIMA Plant Inspection 
Michigan Bit QC/QA Technician (Level 2) 
Michigan Certified Bituminous Laboratory Technician (Level I) 

Project Office 
The consultant must utilize Field Manager software for all MDOT -let projects. 
MDOT offers Field Manager training (Contact Therese Binkley at 517-322-1741 or 
Terri LaVoy at 517-322-6792 for available dates/times and training locations) 
The Local Agency must keep records and track materials per the MDOT 
Construction Manual, the applicahle MDOT Standard Specifications for 
Construction, the Materials Quality Assurance Procedures Manual, the Materjal 
Source Guide, and utilize standard MDOT forms 
(www.mdot.state.mi.us/webforrns/) while reporting applicable items. 
Specific construction questions/concerns should be addressed to the local MDOT 
TSC. A complete list of the TSC personnel can be found at the following link: 
~~~c~=~="="",:.:;~~=~~,,,-",.::,:.,",-,"",--,~~~,,---~~=;!; or by and selecting 
"about MDOT" from MDOTs home page at .!.'"..:;~=~==~,=o~ 

2

www.mdot.state.mi.us/webforrns


EXHIBIT 2 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES REVIEW 

ROCHESTER, TORPEY TO BARCLAY AND WATTLES, EAST & WEST OF ROCHESTER ROAD 

J 


Item Task Grade Weight Total Comments 
No. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Understanding of Services 2 
Project 
Requirements 
Experience with Similar Types of 3 
Road Projects 

Qualifications & Experience of 
"Key Personnel" 

a. Project Engineer 4 

b. Lead Inspector 4 

c. Lead Surveyor 2 

d. Traffic Engineer 

e. Other Staff 

Past Performance of Firm '3 

Grade on a scale of 1-5 with 1 representing the lowest and 5 representing the 
highest. 

General Comments: 

Date________ 



EXHIBIT 3 


FinalTotal I Avg. 

Consultant RankScore I Score 

365.7'-Hubbell, Roth & Clark. Inc. 

Spalding DeDecker Assoc., Inc. 359.751 2~f 
1 

r- "" 

Anderson, Eckstein & Westrick, Inc. 33331 83.25f------"~... ...~ 

AECOM 4304.5._~~1~ 
--~--

Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. 4304.5!I 76.13 
f----~-----~~------- .

Tetra Tech 301 75.25 6 
. 

..~-

NTH Consultants, Ltd. 244 761 



Principals Senior Associates 
George E. Hubbell Gary J. Tressel 

Thomas E. Biehl Lawrence R. Ancypa 
Walter H. Alix Kenneth A. Melchior 
PaterT. Roth Dennis M. Monsers 

Michael D. Waring Randal L. Ford 
Keith D. McCormack David P. Wilcox 

H SSE l,& , I 
Curt A. Christeson 
ThOmas M. Doran 

Timolhy H. Sullivan 

Associates 

Consulting Engineers 
Chief Financial Officer 

J. Bruce McFarland 
Thomas G. Maxwell 
Nancy M.D. Faught 
Jonathan E. Booth 

Michael C. MacDonald 
Marvin A. Olane 

Richard F. Beaubien 
WilPam R. Davis 

Daniel W. Mitchell 
Jesse B. VanDeCreek 

Robert F. DeFrain 
Marshall J. Grazioli 

Thomas D. LaCross 
October 12, 2009 Dennis J. Benoit 

EXHIBIT 4 


City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

Attn: 	 Mr. Willianl J. Huotari, P.E., Deputy City Engineer 

Re: 	 Construction Engineering Services for Reconstruction HRC Job No. 20090527 
and Widening of Rochester Road from Torpey to Barclay 
and Wattles Road, East and West of Rochester Road 

Dear Mr. Huotari: 

We are very pleased to be selected the Highest Rated Consultant to provided Construction Engineering 
Services for the above referenced project. We look forward to working with the City during construction 
of this project. 

As requested, we are providing a Cost Proposal for each project. The first project would be the 
Reconstruction and Widening of Rochester Road from Torpey to Barclay. The second project is the 
Reconstruction and Widening of Wattles Road East and West of Rochester Road. Both of these projects 
overlap one another but are funded by two different MDOT contracts. On the attached MDOT forms we 
have estimated the total costs for Construction Engineering Services for each project. The cost is based 
on a projection of man hours, direct hourly rates, MDOT approved overhead and fixed fee percentages for 
HRC and our sub-consultant. 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc is very aware of the economic conditions within the State of Michigan and 
especially the City of Troy. We have taken steps to keep our fees as low as possible for the City of Troy. 
As a first step, HRC did not raise any salaries of our employees last year. This results in a 3% to 5% 
savings on our invoicing for all Troy projects including Rochester and Wattles Road Reconstruction. In 
addition, in the past we have used a 15% fixed fee percentage for various MDOT projects and we are 
proposing on 11 % fixed fee for this project. The two cost savings steps together results in a 6.7% to 8.8% 
savings depending what traditional raises would have been given in 2009. 

RECEIVED 

OCT 1 6 2009 

ENGINEERING 

Engineering. Environment. Excellence. It 

Y:\200905\20090527IPmposa!ICorrs\LUil3.doc 

2001 Centerpoint Parkway, Suite 109 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341 
Telephone 248454 6300 Fax 2484546359 
www.hrc-enr.com 

http:www.hrc-enr.com


William 1. Huotari 
October 13,2009 
HRC Job Number 20090527 
Page 2 of2 

We thank you in advance for your consideration of this cost proposal and look forward to the successful 
completion of this much needed road improvement project. Should you have any questions or would like 
to meet and discuss this cost proposal please call me at (248) 454-6370. 

Very truly yours, 

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 

d}M~~a4P 
Walter H. Alix, P.E., P.S. 
Vice President 

WHAJvb 
pc: HRC; N. Faught, M. MacDonald, R. DeFrain, D. Wilcox, File 

Engineering. Environment Excellence. 
Y:\200905\2009Q527\Proposal\ColTS\Lt!{)3~doc 



DERIVATION OJ? COST PROPOSAL 

Prime Consultant: Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 
MDOT Control Section No, STUL 63459 HRC Job Number 20090527 

Job No: 10678A 

Description: Rochester Road Heconstruel;on from Torpey North to Barclay 

DlHECT LABOR 
PetSOf) Hourly Labor 

Classification (Narncl Hours X Rate Costs 

Project En[,,,nccr (Robcrt DeFrain) 928 $ 43.15 $ 40,043.20 
OT 0 $ 64,73 $ 

Supervisory Technician (William Pennycook) 1065 $ 32,85 $ 34,985,25 
OT 346 $ 49.28 $ 17,050.88 

Project Rcpresentative (Bemie O'Brien) 1696 $ 30,50 $ 51,728,00 
OT 640 $ 45,75 $ 29,280,00 

Construction Technician (Gino Santi.) 1464 $ 20,25 $ 29,646.00 
OT 400 $ 30.38 $ 12,152,00 

Construction Technician (Lisa Hoth) 1080 $ 20.00 $ 21.600,00 

01' 320 $ 30.00 $ 9,600,00 

ConstHlction Technician (TBD) 768 $ 20.00 $ 15,360,00 
0'1' 240 $ 30,00 $ 7,200,00 

Senior Ofticc Technician(Lisa Natscltke) 496 $ 26,50 $ \3,144.00 

0'1' 0 $ 39,75 $ 

Senior Testing Tecimician(Troy Perkins) 1440 $ 25,95 $ 37,368,00 

OT 560 $ 38,93 $ 21,800,80 

Laboratory Testing Teeh (Suzanne Elliott) 432 $ 20.30 $ 8,769,60 

OT 144 $ 30.45 S 4,384.80 

Director of Field Operalions (David Wilcox) 36 $ 49,20 $ 1,77120 
OT 0 $ 73.80 $ 

ChiefTesting Engineer (Marshall Grazioli) 144 $ 4L70 $ 6,00480 
OT 0 $ 62.55 $ 

ChiefSurveyor (Gary Chalice) 36 $ 37.25 $ 1,341.00 

OT 0 $ 55,88 $ 

Survey Office Supervisor (William Wonnacott) 160 $ 36.40 $ 5,824,00 

OT 0 $ 54,60 $ 
Trame Eugineer (Richard Beaubien) 72 $ 47.00 $ 3,3&4.00 

OT ° $ 70.50 $ 
Survey Party Chief (Daniel Weinert) 128 $ 29.40 $ 3,763.20 

0'1' 32 $ 44.10 $ 1,411.20 

Survey Instnltnent Operator (Scott Ojala) 128 $ 2175 $ 2,784.00 
01' 32 $ 32.63 $ 1,044.16 

Senior Design Engineer (Charles Hart) 324 $ 3700 $ 11,988,00 

OT 0 $ 55.50 $ 
Associate (Michael MacDonald) 72 $ 47.50 $ 3,420.00 

OT ° $ 71.25 $ 

Senior Design Engineer (Richard Nacey) 64 $ 39.75 $ 2,544.00 

OT ° $ 59,63 $ 
Departmental Assistant (Virginia Bryant) 80 $ 17,00 $ 1,360.00 

OT 0 $ 25,50 $ 

Senior CADD Technician (Krisilln Walley) 64 $ 30.45 $ 1,948.80 

OT 0 $ 45.68 $ 
Total Hours 13,39t Total Labor ~__~402.,?QOS9 

Sub Tolal S 402,700.89 

Page I 

1012312009Y:\200Y05\20{l90527\l'roposlIl\Prop\Tllb!e..,\RHV lSEDJtoci1c3h:I.Wlltlics.xls 



OVERHEAD 
Total Labor $ 402,700.89 x 

Previous Page 

706,740.06 

Sub Total 

Total Labor s 

402,700.89 

706,740.06 

DIRECT EXPENSES 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark does not charge mileage to or 011 the job. 

Total Direct Costs 

COST OF MONEY 
Total Labor 

$ 402,700.89 x 1.73% 6,966.73 Total Cos, of Money 

FIXE!) FEE 

(Total LabO! 

$ 
TOIal Overhead) 

402,700.89 + $ 706,740.06 x 11% Total Fixed Fec. 

TOTAL COSTS $ .1,238,446.18 

Page 2 



DERIVATION OF COST PROPOSAL 

SUB-CONSULTANT: Professional Services Industries, Inc. 
MDOT Control Section No, STUL 63459 HRC Job Number 20090527 
Job No: 10678A 
Description: Rochester Road Reconstmction from Torpey North to Barclay 

DIRECT LABOR 
Person Hourly Labor 

Classification I'lours x Rate Costs 

Testing Technician (David Hoslcr) 
OT 

Administrative Assist,(Samatha Hawkins) 
OT 

Project Engineer (Robert Rynbrant) 

Total Hours OT 

24 

° 3 

° 4.5 

32° 

$ 20,67 

$ 16,85 

$ 33,65 

Total Labor 

$ 496,08 

$ 

$ 50,55 

$ 

$ 151.43 

$ 
$698.06 

OVERHEAD 

(Total Labor) 

COST OF MONEY 

x 175,5% Total Overhead $1,225,09 

DIRECT EXPENSES 
Lane Tie Testing Equipment 

$69806 x 1.73% $ 12,08 

Tota! Cost of Money 

$ 450.00 

FIXI<:DFEE 

(Total Labor + Total Overhead) 
11#1/#11## x 11% Total Fixed Fee $211.55 

TOTAL COSTS $2,596,76 

Pafe 3 

10/23/2009Y:1200905120090527IProposaIIPrODIT ableslH EVISED _ Rocheste~_ Wattles.xls 



DERIVATION OF COST PROPOSAL 


SUMMARY BY JOB NUMBER AND BY CATEGORY 

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 


MDOT Control Section No. STUL 63459 	 HRC Job Number 20090527 
Job No: 11l678A 
Dcscription: Rochcstcr Road Reconstruction from ToqlCY North to Barclay 

DIRECT LABOR 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. Direct Labor Hours 14110 Direct Labor Costs $ 402,700.89 

Professional Service Industries Direct Labor Hours 32 Direct Labor Costs 
Total Direct Labor $403,398.95 

OVERHEAD 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 	 Overhead Costs $706,740.06 

Professional Service Industries 	 Overhead Costs $1,225.09 
Total Overhead Costs $707,965.15 

FACILITIES COST OF CAPITOL 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 	 FCC Costs $ 6,966.73 

Professional Service Industries 	 FCC Costs 
Total FCC Costs $6,978.80 

:FlXED FEE 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 	 Fixed Fee Costs $ 122,038.50 

Professional Service Industries 	 Fixed Fee Costs $211.55 
Total Fixed Fee Costs $122,250.05 

DIRECT EXPENSES 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 	 Dircct Costs 

Professional Service Industries 	 Direct Costs 450.00 

Total Direct Costs $450.00 

TOTAL COSTS FOR THIS JOB $1,241,042.95 

Page 4 

10/23/2009Y.\2009051200905271Proposa11Prop1TableslREVISED _Rochester _ Wattles,xls 

12.08 

http:1,241,042.95
http:122,250.05
http:122,038.50
http:6,978.80
http:6,966.73
http:707,965.15
http:1,225.09
http:706,740.06


DERIVATION OF COST PROPOSAL 

MDOT Control Section No. STUL 63459 

Job No: 10678A 

SUMMARY BY CONSULTANT 

Description: Rochester Road Reconstruction from Torpey North to Barclay 

Construction Engineering Services 

CE Haul's CE Cost Fixed Fee 

DBE 
YIN % of Cost 

Hubbell, Roth and Clark,Inc 2,396 $253,424.26 $ 702.71 N 100% 

Professional Services Industries o N 0% 

Subtotal 2,396 $253,424.26 $27,702.71 100% 

Services During Construction 

DBE 

CEHours CE Cost Fixed Fee YiN % 

Hubbell, Roth and Clark,lnc 10,995 $862,983.42 $ 94,335.80 N 99.73% 

Professional Services Industries 32 $2,385.22 $211.55 N 0.27% 

Subtotal 11,027 $865,368.64 $94,547.34 100% 

Total 13,423 $1,118,792.90 $122,250.05 

Page 5 

10/23/2009Y ;\200905120090527IProposaIIPropIT ableslREVISED _Rochesler _ Wattles.xls 



ESTIMATED PERSON HOURS 
MDOT Control Section No. STUL 63459 lIRC Job Number 20090527 
Job No: l0678A 
Description: Rochester Road Reconstruction from Torpey north to Barclay 

Prime Consultant: Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 

Task Project Engineer Engineer/Supervisor Inspector Techician Secretarial 
Pr()ject Engineering 928 1411 560 
Observation 6608 
Control Survey 196 320 
Materials Testing 144 2576 80 
Project Assistance 36 460 
Traffic Contol Assistance 72 

Total Hours 13391 

Sub Consultant: Professional Services Industries, Inc. 

Page 6 

Y:\20090S\20090527\Proposal\Prop\Tables\REVISED_RochestecWattles.xls 1012312009 



SUBCONTRACT NO. ____ 
CONTROL SECTION NO. STUL 63459 

MDOT JOB NO. 104678A 
FED. PROJECT NO. ____ 
FED. ITEM NO. ______ 

City of Troy 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CONTRACT 

A Surface Transportation PROJECT 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into as of this date of ,by 
and between Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc., Consulting Engineers, of Pontiac, Michigan, 
hereinafter referred to as the "CONSULTANT," and the City of Trov, hereinafter referred to as 
the "LOCAL AGENCY." 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL AGENCY is planning to construct a road improvement 
project within its limits; and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL AGENCY desires to engage the professional services and 
assistance of the CONSULTANT to perform certain construction engineering and inspection 
services and other related work, said work to be hereinafter referred to as the "SERVICES," 
required in connection with the construction of the following transportation improvements 
under the Surface Transportation Program, said improvements to be hereinafter referred to as 
the "PROJECT:" 

"1.09 miles of road reconstruction for Rochester Road, from Torpey to north 
of Barclay with concrete pavement, curb and gutter, driveways, storm 
sewers, sanitary sewer, water main, hot mix asphalt, pavement markings and 
other related work;" and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL AGENCY has programmed the PROJECT with the Michigan 
Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for construction 
with the use of Surface Transportation Program Funds administered by the United States 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, hereinafter referred to as the 
"FHWA;" and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT is willing to render the SERVICES desired by the 
LOCAL AGENCY for the considerations hereinafter expressed; and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT was selected utilizing a qualifications based selection 
(QBS) process; and 

09116/94 REV. 12/15/99 1 LGFAB01 



WHEREAS, the parties hereto have reached an understanding as to the scope of the work 
and the performance of the SERVICES on the PROJECT and desire to set forth this 
understanding in the form of a written contract; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties hereto that: 

THE CONSULTANT SHALL: 

1. 	 Provide the following SERVICES relating to the PROJECT: 

a. 	 Assign a construction engineer and qualified inspection personnel who 
will be responsible to the PROJECT Engineer at the PROJECT site during 
the construction of the PROJECT in order to perform required inspection 
services to assure compliance with approved contract plans and 
specifications, and perform the day to day activities of the PROJECT. 

b. 	 Field survey information, construction staking services, and soil borings 
on the PROJECT site and any other field surveys as may be required for 
effective control of the construction of the PROJECT. 

c. 	 Perform and/or have conducted field checks and laboratory testing of 
materials and equipment to assure compliance with the contract 
specifications and requirements of the DEPARTMENT and the FHW A. 
A portion of the off-site testing work is to be performed in accordance 
with a sub contractual arrangement between the CONSULTANT and 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. 

d. 	 Such additional engineering and inspection services as may be required by 
the PROJECT Engineer for satisfactory completion of the PROJECT. 

2. Perform all PROJECT work under the direction of the PROJECT Engineer who 
will be assigned by the LOCAL AGENCY as provided in Section 15. 

3. Provide such reports and maintain such records of the PROJECT as are required 
to document the work to the satisfaction of the PROJECT Engineer, the LOCAL AGENCY, the 
DEPARTMENT, and the FHWA. 

4. Govern all SERVICES by the applicable codes, laws, and standards of the 
LOCAL AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT and the FHW A. 

5. During the performance of the SERVICES herein provided for, be responsible for 
any loss or damage to the documents, owned by the LOCAL AGENCY while they are in its 
possesslOn. Restoration of lost or damaged documents shall be at the CONSUL TA]\T'S 
expense. 

6. Furnish qualified personnel to assist the PROJECT engineer in solving field 
problems, when so requested. 

7. 	 Attend conferences and make such trips as necessary to the LOCAL AGENCY'S 
offices and to the site of the work to confer with representatives of the LOCAL AGENCY and 
09/16/94 REV. 12/15/99 2 LGFABOI 



the DEPARTMENT or the FHWA as may be necessary in the carrying out of the work under 
this contract. 

8. Follow standard accounting practices and permit representatives of the LOCAL 
AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA to audit and inspect its PROJECT books and 
records at any reasonable time. Such records are to be kept available for three (3) years from the 
date of the final payment for work conducted under this contract 

a. 	 The CONSULTANT shall establish and maintain accurate records, in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of all expenses 
incurred for which payment is sought or made under this Contract, said 
records to be hereinafter referred to as the "RECORDS." Separate 
accounts shall be established and maintained for all costs incurred under 
this Contract. 

b. 	 The CONSULTANT shall maintain the RECORDS for at least three (3) 
years from the date of final payment of federal aid made by the 
DEP ARTMENT to the local agency under this Contract. In the event of a 
dispute with regard to the allowable expenses or any other issue under this 
Contract, the CONSULTANT shall thereafter continue to maintain the 
RECORDS at least until that dispute has been finally decided and the time 
for all available challenges or appeals of that decision has expired. 

c. 	 The DEPARTMENT, or their representative, may inspect, copy, or audit 
the RECORDS at any reasonable time after giving reasonable notice. 

d. 	 If any part of the work is subcontracted, the CONSULTANT shall assure 
compliance with subsections (a), (b), and (c) above for all subcontracted 
work. 

9. Have in its employ a sufficient number of qualified employees available to 
complete the SERVICES in accordance with the schedule for construction and completion of the 
PROJECT upon the authorization to proceed with the SERVICES as outlined herein. 

10. Show evidence of Workers' Compensation Insurance, said insurance to be as 
required by law. 

11. Commence work on the PROJECT as set forth in and following execution of this 
contract only upon receipt of written notice from the PROJECT Engineer. 

12. Provide a working office at the PROJECT site or in the vicinity of the PROJECT 
acceptable to the LOCAL AGENCY for adequate performance of the SERVICES to be provided 
under this Contract. 

13. Furnish the LOCAL AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT a set of as built plans 
and records of the PROJECT upon completion thereof. 

14. 	 Submit billings to the LOCAL AGENCY as set forth in Section 17. 

09116/94 REV. 12115/99 3 	 LGFABOI 




THE LOCAL AGENCY WILL: 


15. Assign a PROJECT Engineer who. shall be the Publicly Employed Professional 
Engineer in responsible charge of the PROJECT. 

16. For and in consideration of the SERVICES rendered by the CONSULTANT as 
set forth in this contract, pay the CONSULTANT an the basis af actual cost plus a fixed fee 
(prafit) amaunt which shall nat exceed One million two hundred fortY one thousand forty two 
dollars and ninety five cents ($1,241,042.95). The fixed fee (profit) shall be the amount of One 
hundred twenty two thousand two hundred fifty dollars and five cents ($122,250.05), which 
amount is included in the total amount of One million two hundred forty one thousand fortY 
two dollars and ninety five cents ($1,241.042.95), as shawn in Exhibit !lA," attached hereto. and 
made a part hereaf. 

Actual casts far SERVICES work required and performed will be determined in 
accordance with the follawing terms, subject to the cost criteria set farth in the Federal 
Acquisition Regulations, 48 CFR, Part 31: 

a. 	 Direct Salary Costs: Actual labor casts af personnel performing the 
SERVICES work. This cast will be based on the employees actual haurly 
rate af pay and the actual hours af performance on the PROJECT as 
supparted by employee time records. 

b. 	 Direct Casts: Actual costs of materials and services, ather than salaries, as 
may be required hereunder but which are not normally pravided as a part 
of the averhead of the CONSULTANT. All actual costs shall be itemized 
and certified as paid to specifically named firms or individuals, and shall 
be supported by proper receipts. 

c. 	 Overhead (Indirect Casts): A pro-rated portion of the actual overhead 
incurred by the CONSULTANT during performance af the PROJECT 
wark. The am aunt of overhead payment, including payrall averhead, will 
be calculated as a percentage af all direct labor costs related to staff 
personnel and members of the firm. Overhead shall include thase casts, 
which because of their incurrence far common or joint objectives, are nat 
readily subject to treatment as a direct cast. The provisianal overhead 
rate, which will be applied to direct labar costs for progress payments, is 
set farth in Exhibit A. 

It is agreed that the use af the provisianal rate set forth in Exhibit A sets 
neither a minimum nor maximum to the actual overhead costs to. be paid 
the CONSULTANT. Any overpayments or under payments made to. the 
CONSULTANT for SERVICES perfarmed resulting fram usage of the 
provisianal overhead rate, will be corrected in the first billing submitted 
subsequent to. the CONSULTANT'S calculation of an actual overhead rate 
far the financial year end applicable to the reparted direct labor cost. The 
audit at the completion of this cantract, or at such time as this cantract is 
terminated, will verify the propriety of reported overhead. 

Facilities Cost of Capital: A pro-rated partian of the actual facilities cast 

09/16/94 REV. 12/15/99 4 LGFABOI 

http:1,241.042.95
http:122,250.05
http:1,241,042.95


of capital incurred by the CONSULT ANT during work is reimbursable 
only if the estimated facilities cost of capital was specifically identified in 
thc cost proposal for this work (Exhibit A). 

d. 	 Travel and Subsistence: Actual costs in accordance with and not to 
exceed the amounts set forth in the State of Michigan Standardized Travel 
Regulations, incorporated herein by reference as if the same were repeated 
in full herein. 

e. 	 Fixed Fee (profit): In addition to the payments for direct and overhead 
costs as hereinbefore provided, the LOCAL AGENCY agrees to pay the 
CONSULTANT a fixed amount for profit for the SERVICES performed. 
It is agreed and understood that such amount will constitute full 
compensation to the CONSULTANT for profit and will not vary because 
of any differences between the estimated cost and the actual cost for work 
performed, except that in the event this contract is terminated, payment of 
a fixed fee (profit) in respect to the PROJECT shall be in an amount which 
can be established by the CONSULTANT from its accounts and records 
and subject to the provisions of Section 18. 

f. 	 Subconsultant Costs: Actual costs of subconsultants performing 
SERVICES under this Contract. Amounts for fixed fees paid by the 
CONSULTANT to the subconsultant will not be considered an actual cost 
of the CONSULTANT, but will be considered a part of the fixed fee of the 
CONSULTANT. 

g. 	 Those costs incurred by the CONSULTANT in the utilization of the 
subcontracted services of Professional Service Industries, Inc. shall be 
excluded from the calculation of the CONSULTANT'S percentage of 
SERVICES completed, as set forth in Section 17a., but will be reimbursed 
by the LOCAL AGENCY. Payment by the LOCAL AGEKCY will be 
made directly to the CONSULTANT. The PROJECT cost attributable to 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. is estimated to be Two thousand 
five hundred ninety six dollars and seventy six cents ($2,596.76). 

The maximum amount, including the fixed fee (profit), hereinbefore set forth in 
this Section, shall not be exceeded except by the execution of an amendment to this contract by 
and between the parties hereto and with approval by the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA. 
Payment shall be made as hereinafter set forth. 

17. Make payments to the CONSULTANT In accordance with the following 
procedures: 

a. 	 Progress payments may be made for reimbursement of amounts earned to 
date and shall include direct costs, other direct costs, calculated amounts 
for overhead using overhead, and facilities cost of capital using applied 
rates, set forth hereinbefore, plus a portion of the fixed fee. 

The portion of the fixed which may be included in progress payments 
shall be equal to the total fixed fee multiplied by the percentage of the 

09/16/94 REV. 12115/99 5 LGFABOI 

http:2,596.76


work which has been completed to date of billing. 
b. 	 Partial payments will be made upon the submission by the 

CONSULTANT of a billing, accompanied by properly completed 
reporting forms and such other evidence of progress as may be required by 
the LOCAL AGENCY. Partial payments shall be made only once a 
month. 

c. 	 Final billing under this contract shall be submitted in a timely manner but 
not later than three (3) months after completion of the SERVICES. 
Billings for work submitted later than three (3) months after completion of 
SERVICES will not be paid. Final payment, including adjustments of 
direct salary costs, other direct costs and overhead costs, will be made 
upon completion of audit by the LOCAL AGENCY and/or as appropriate, 
by representatives of the DEPARTMENT and the FHW A. In the event 
such audit indicates an overpayment, the CONSULTANT will repay the 
LOCAL AGENCY within 30 days of the date of the invoice. 

18. If SERVICES, or any part thereof, are terminated before completed, pay the 
CONSULT ANT as follows: 

a. 	 Pay the CONSULTANT actual costs plus overhead, as defined herein, 
incurred for the work completed up to the time of tennination, plus an 
amount detennined at the time of tennination to compensate the 
CONSULTANT hl full for a normal profit on work completed, as set forth 
in Section 16. The amounts included for overhead and profit shall be 
subject to approval by the DEPARTMENT and the FHW A. 

b. 	 In no case, shall the compensation paid to the CONSULTANT for 
SERVICES, or any part thereof, exceed the amount the CONSULTANT 
would receive had the SERVICES, or the tenninated portion thereof, been 
completed. 

IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT: 

19. Upon completion or tennination of this contract, all documents prepared by the 
CONSULTANT, including tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, field notes, 
investigations, studies, etc., as instruments of SERVICE, shall become the property of the 
LOCAL AGENCY. 

20. No portion of the PROJECT work, hereto before defined, shall be sublet, 
assigned, or otherwise disposed of except as herein provided or with the prior written consent of 
the LOCAL AGENCY and approval by the DEPARTMENT and the FHW A. Consent to sublet, 
assign or otherwise dispose of any portion of the SERVICES shall not be construed to relieve the 
CONSULT ANT of any responsibility for the fulfillment of this contract. 

21. All questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of work, the 
manner of performance and rate of progress of the work, and the interpretation of plans and 
specifications shall be decided by the LOCAL AGENCY'S PROJECT Engineer. All questions 
as to the satisfactory and acceptable fulfillment of the tenns of this contract shall be decided by 
the LOCAL AGENCY. 
09116/94 REV. 12/15/99 6 	 LGFABOI 



22. Any change in SERVICES to be performed by the CONSULT ANT involving 
extra compensation must be authorized in writing by the LOCAL AGENCY and approved by the 
DEPARTMENT and the FHWA prior to the performance thereof by the CONSULTANT and 
requires an amendment to this Contract. 

The CONSULT ANT and the LOCAL AGENCY specifically agree that in the 
event problems arise that may be the result of errors and/or omissions by the CONSULTANT or 
due to a failure of the CONSULTANT to otherwise perform in accordance with this contract, the 
CONSUL TANT will be held responsible with no cost to the LOCAL AGENCY or in accordance 
with the LOCAL AGENCY'S dispute resolution process if applicable. 

23. In addition, the CONSULTANT shall comply with, and shall require any 
contractor or subcontractor to comply with, the following: 

a. 	 In connection with the performance of the PROJECT under this contract, 
the CONSULTANT (hereinafter in Appendix "A" referred to as the 
"contractor") agrees to comply with the State of Michigan provisions for 
"Prohibition of Discrimination in State Contracts", as set forth in 
Appendix itA," attached hereto and made a part hereof and will require a 
similar covenant on the part of any contractor or subcontractor employed 
in the performance of this contract. 

b. 	 During the performance of this contract, the CONSULT ANT for itself, its 
assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter in Appendix "B" referred 
to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
being P.L. 88-352, 78 Stat. 241, as amended, being Title 42 U.S.C. 
Sections 1971, 1975a-1975d, and 2000a-2000h-6, and the Regulations of 
the Unitcd States Department of Transportation (49 C.F.R. Part 21) issued 
pursuant to said Act, including Appendix "B," attached hereto and made a 
part hereof and will require similar covenants on the part of any contractor 
or subcontractor employed in the performance of this contract. 

c. 	 The parties hereto further agree that they accept the DEPARTMENT'S 
Minority Business Enterprises/Women's Business Enterprises 
(MBE/WBE) Program with respect to the PROJECT and will abide by the 
provisions set forth in Appendix "C," attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, being an excerpt from Title 42 C.F.R. Part 23, more specifically 
23.43(a)(1) and (2) thereof. 

09116/94 REV. 12/15/99 7 	 LGFABOI 




24. The CONSULTANT warrants that it has not employed or retained any company 
or person other than bona fide employees working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or 
secure this contract, and that he has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than 
bona fide employees working solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, the LOCAL AGENCY shall 
have the right to annul this contract without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the 
contract price or consideration, or othen-vise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or contingent fee. 

25. The CONSULTANT specifically agrees that in the performance of SERVICES 
herein enumerated by it, or by an approved subcontractor, or anyone acting in its behalf, they 
will, to the best of their professional knowledge and ability, comply with any and all applicable 
state, federal, and local statutes, ordinances, and regulations. 

26. No charges or claims for damages shall be made by the CONSULTANT for 
delays or hindrances from any cause whatsoever during the progress of any portions of the 
SERVICES specified in this contract, except as hereinafter provided. 

In case of a substantial delay on the part of the LOCAL AGENCY in providing to 
the CONSULT ANT either the necessary information or approval to proceed with the work, 
resulting, through no fault of the CONSULTANT, in delays of such extent as to require the 
CONSUL TANT to perform its work under changed conditions not contemplated by the parties, 
the LOCAL AGENCY will consider supplemental compensation limited to increased costs 
incurred as a direct result of such delays. Any claim for supplemental compensation must be in 
writing and accompanied by substantiating data. Authorization of such supplemental compen
sation shall be by an amendment to this contract subject to prior approval by the 
DEPARTMENT and the FHW A. 

When delays are caused by circumstances or conditions beyond the control of the 
CONSULTANT, as determined by the LOCAL AGENCY, the CONSULTANT shall be granted 
an extension of time for such reasonable period as may be mutually agreed upon between the 
parties, it being understood, however, that the permitting of the CONSULTANT to proceed to 
complete the SERVICES, or any part of them, after the date to which the time of completion 
may have been extended, shall in no way operate as a waiver on the part of the LOCAL 
AGENCY of any of its rights herein set forth. 

27. In case the CONSULTANT deems extra compensation will be due it for work or 
materials not clearly covered in this contract, or not ordered by the LOCAL AGENCY as a 
change, or due to changed conditions, the CONSULTANT shall notify the LOCAL AGENCY in 
writing of its intention to make claim for such extra compensation before beginning such work. 
Failure on the part of the CONSULTANT to give such notification will constitute a waiver of the 
claim for such extra compensation. The filing of such notice by the CONSULTANT shall not in 
any way be construed to establish the validity of the claim. Such extra compensation shall be 
provided only by amendment to this contract with approval of the DEPARTMENT and the 
FHWA. 

28. The CONSULTANT agrees to obtain the necessary liability insurance, acceptable 
to the LOCAL AGENCY, naming the City of Troy, the Michigan State Transportation 
Commission, and the Michigan Department of Transportation as insured, and to provide the 
LOCAL AGENCY with evidence of said insurance, and to indemnify and save harmless the 
09116/94 REV. 12115/99 8 LGFABOI 



LOCAL AGENCY, the Michigan State Transportation Commission, and the DEPARTMENT, 
their officers, agents and employees from any and all claims and losses occurring or resulting to 
any person, firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work, services, materials, or supplies in 
connection with the performance of this contract, and from any and all claims and losses 
occurring or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by the 
CONSUL T ANT in the performance of this contract. 

29. This contract shall be terminated upon advisement to the CONSULTANT by the 
LOCAL AGENCY that its SERVICES are completed and accepted. 

30. The CONSUL TA:-JT'S signature on this Contract constitutes the 
CONSUL 1'ANT'S certification of "status l1 under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 
States in respect to 49 CFR, Part 29 pursuant to Executive Order 12549. 

The certification, which is included as a part of this Contract as Attachment "A," 
is Appendix A of 49 CFR Part 29, and applies to the CONSULTANT (referred to in Appendix A 
of 49 CFR Part 29 as I1the prospective primary participanttl

). 

The CONSULTANT is responsible for obtaining the same certification from all 
subcontractors under this contract by inserting the following paragraph in all subcontracts: 

"The subcontractor's signature on this Contract constitutes the subcontractor's 
certification of 'status' under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 
States in respect to 49 CFR, Part 29 pursuant to Executive Order 12549. The 
certification, which is included as a part of this Contract as Attachment "B," is 
Appendix B of 49 CFR, Part 29." 

This certification is required of all subcontractors, testing laboratories, and other lower tier 
participants with which the CONSULTANT enters into a written arrangement for the 
procurement of goods or services provided for in this Contract. 

31. The CONSULTANT hereby agrees that the costs reported to the LOCAL 
AGENCY for this Contract shall represent only those items which are properly chargeable in 
accordance with this Contract. The CONSULTANT also hereby certifies that it has read the 
Contract terms and has made itself aware of the applicable laws, regulations, and terms of this 
Contract that apply to the reporting of costs incurred under the terms of this Contract. 

32. Upon execution of this contract by the parties hereto, the same shall become 
binding on the parties hereto and their successors and assigns, until such time as all work 
contemplated hereunder is complete, or until such time as this contract is terminated by mutual 
consent of the parties hereto. 

09116/94 REV. 12115/99 9 LGFABOI 




------------------------------------------------

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals by their duly 
authorized agents and representatives the day and year first above written. 

CONSULTANT 

BY: 

-----~~~--------------~----------------------

BY: 
TITLE: 

City of Troy 

BY: _______________________________________________ 

TITLE: Mayor - Louise E. Schilling 

BY: _______________________________________________ 

TITLE: City Clerk - Tonni L. Bartholomew 

09116/94 REV. 12/15/99 10 LGFABOI 




CONTROL SECTION NO. ::::...;:;..:;=-:;=-.:..:;:;..:... 

MDOT JOB NO. 104678A 
_____ 

_______ 

whose address is ~g2L~~~23:L;.~~ez:~~L!.~L£::Lr_'I!-1:""......::;r!..~~

SUBCONTRACTNO. ________ 

FED. PROJECT NO. 
FED. ITEM NO. 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that I am ---L~LLL:....=:.:::._--...:..:.~~..L.-.L_.:..__________ 

and a duly authorized representative of the firm 

nor the above 

(a) employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee, or 
other consideration, any firm or person (other that a bona fide employee working solely for me or the 
above to solicit or secure this contract. 

(b) agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or 
retain the services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the contact, or 

(c) paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide 
employee working solely fo! me or the above foor::fe4h~7J1f' ~N7~cZtd any fee, 
contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind for, or in connection with, procuring or carrying out 
the contract: 

except as here expressly stated (if any): 

I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnished to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation in connection with this contract involving participation of state and/or federal funds, and 
is subject to applicable state and federal laws, both criminal and civil. 

Date 



APPENDIX A 

PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATION IN STATE CONTRACTS 


In connection with the performance of work under this contract; the contractor agrees as follows: 

1. 	 In accordance with Act No. 453, Public Acts of 1976, the contractor hereby agrees not to discriminate against an employee 
or applicant for employment with respect to hirc, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or as a matter 
directly or indirectly related to employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or 
marital status. Further, in accordance with Act No. 220, Public Acts of 1976 as amended by Act No. 478, Public Acts of 
1980 the contractor hereby agrees not to discriminate against an employce or applicant for employment with respect to hire, 
tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly 01' indirectly related to employment, because of a 
disability that is unrelatcd to the individual=s ability to perform thc duties of a particular job or position. A breach of the 
above covenants shall be regarded as a material breach of this contract. 

2. 	 The contractor hereby agrees that any and all subcontracts to this contract, whereby a portion of the work set forth in this 
contract is to be performed, shall contain a covenant the same as hereinabove set forth in Section I of this Appendix. 

3. 	 The contractor will take affirmative action to insure that applicants for employment and employees are treated without regard 
to their race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status or a disability that is unrelated to the 
individual=s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of payor other 
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

4. 	 The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all 
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, age, 
sex, height, weight, marital status or disability that is unrelated to the individual=s ability to perform the duties of a partiCUlar 
job or position. 

5. 	 The contractor or his collective bargaining representative wi1l send to each labor union or representative of workers with 
which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice advising the said labor union or 
workers= representativc ofthe contractor=s commitments under this appcndix. 

6. 	 The contractor will comply with all relevant publishcd rules, regulations, directives, and orders of the Michigan Civil Rights 
Commission which may be in effect prior to the taking of bids for any individual state project. 

7. 	 The contractor will furnish and file compliance reports within such time and upon such forms as provided by the Michigan 
Civil Rights Commission, said forms may also elicit information as to the practices, policies, program, and employment 
statistics of each subcontractor as well as the contractor himself, and said contractor will permit access to his books, records, 
and accounts by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission andior its agent, for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with this contract and relevant with rules, regulations, and orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission. 

8. 	 In the event that thc Civil Rights Commission finds, after a hearing held pursuant to its rules, that a contractor has not 
complied with the contractual obligations under this agreement, the Civil Rights Commission may, as part of its order based 
upon such findings, certify said findings to the Administrative Board of the State of Michigan, which Administrative Board 
may order the cancellation of the contract found to have been violated andior declare the contractor ineligible for future 
contracts with the state and its political and civil subdivisions, departments, and officers, and including the governing boards 
of institutions of higher education, until the contractor complies with said order of the Civil Rights Commission. Notice of 
said declaration of future ineligibility may be given to any or all of the persons with whom the c.ontractor is declared 
ineligible to contract as a contracting party in future contracts. In any case before the Civil Rights Commission in which 
cancellation of an existing contract is a possibility, the contracting agency shall be notified of such possible remedy and shall 
be given the option by the Civil Rights Commission to participate in such proceedings. 

9. 	 The contractor will include, or incorporate by reference, the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs (1) through (8) in every 
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by the rules, regulations or orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission, 
and will provide in every subcontract or purchase order that said provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or 
seller. 

March,1998 



(Rev. 03/92) 
APPENDIX B 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the "contractor") agrees as following: 

1. 	 Compliance with Regulations: The contractor shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in 
federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 27, 
as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

2. 	 Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or natural origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, 
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not participate either directly 
or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment 
practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3, 	 Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations either by 
competitive bidding or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, 
including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be 
notified by the contractor of the contractor=s obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to 
nondiscrimination on the grounds ofrace, color, or national origin. 

4. 	 Information and Reports: The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, 
or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of 
information and its facilities, as may be determined by the Michigan Department of Transportation or the 
Federal Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives. 
Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to 
furnish this information, the contractor shall so certify to the Michigan Department of Transportation, or the 
Federal Highway Administration as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts is has made to obtain the 
information. 

5. 	 Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the contractor=s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 
provisions of this contract, the Michigan Department of Transportation shall impose such contract sanctions as it 
or the Federal Highway Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

(a) Withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or 

(b) Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

6, 	 Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1 through 6 of every 
subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or 
directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or 
procurement as the Michigan Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration may direct 
as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance; provided, however that in the 
event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a 
result of such direction, the contractor may request the Michigan Department of Transportation to enter into 
such litigation to protect the interests of the state, and, in addition, the contractor may request the United States 
to enter into such litigation to protect the interest of the United States. 



APPENDIXC 

TO BE INCLUDED IN ALL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
AGREEMENTS WITH LOCAL AGENCIES 

General Requirements for Recipients 

Excerpts from US DOT Regulation 
49 CFR, Part 23, Section 23.43 

A. 	 Policy: It is the policy of the Department that MBE as defined in 49 CFR, Part 23, 
shall have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts 
financed in whole or in part with federal funds. Consequently, the MBE requirements 
of 49 CFR, Part 23, apply to this contract. 

B. 	 MBE Obligation: The recipient or its contractor agrees to ensure that MBE as 
defined in 49 CFR, Part 23, has the maximum opportunity to participate in the 
performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with federal 
funds provided under this agreement. In this regard, all recipients or contractors shall 
take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 23, to ensure 
that MBE has the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. 
Recipients and their contractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the award and performance of depart~entally-assisted 
contracts. 

C. 	 If, as a condition of assistance, the recipient has submitted and the department has 
approved a minority business enterprise affirmative action program which the 
recipient agrees to carry out, this program is incorporated into this financial assistance 
agreement by reference. This program shall be treated as a legal obligation and 
failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this financial assistance 
agreement. Upon notification to this recipient of its failure to carry out the approved 
program, the Department shall impose such sanctions as noted in 49 CFR, Part 23, 
Subpart E, which sanctions may include termination of the agreement or other 
measures that may affect the ability of the recipient to obtain future departmental, 
financial assistance. 

D. 	 The Department hereby advises each reCIpIent, contractor, or subcontractor that 
failure to carry out the requirements set forth in Section 23.43(a) 49 CFR, Part 23, 
shall constitute a breach of contract, and after the notification of the USDOT, may 
result in termination of the agreement or contract by the Department or such remedy 
as the Department deems appropriate. 



ATTACHMENT A 

(This is a reproduction of Appendix A of 49 CFR Part 29) 


'CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 
PRIMAR Y COVERED TRANSACTIONS 


Instructions for Certification 

I. 	 By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary participant is providing the certification set out below. 
2. 	 The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this 

covered transaction. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency=s 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a 
certification or an explanation shall disqualiJY such person from participation in this transaction. 

3. 	 The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the department or 
agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly 
rendered an erroneous certification in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, the department or agency 
may terminate this transaction for cause of default. 

4. 	 The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to whom this proposal is 
submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has 
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

5. 	 The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," 
"person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposed," and "voluntarily excluded" as uscd in this clause, have the 
meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules impending Executive Order 12549. You may contact the 
department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

6. 	 The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered 
into, it shaJI not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency 
entering into this transaction. 

7. 	 The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," provided by the 
department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. 	 A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows 
that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of 
its principals. 

9. 	 Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good 
faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a pruticipant is not required to exceed that 
which is normally processed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. 	 Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly 
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, the department or agency may 
terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions 
I. 	 The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 

(a) 	 Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any federal department or agency; 

(b) 	 Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a 
public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) 	 Are not presently indicated for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state, or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I )(b) of this certification; and 

(d) 	 Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (federal, 
state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

2. 	 Where the prospective primary participant is unable to eertiJY to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

March 9, 1989 



ATTACHMENT B 

(This is a reproduction of Appendix B of 49 C.P.R. Part 29) 


CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY 

AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION-LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 


I. 	 By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 

2. 	 The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

3. 	 The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if 
at any time the prospective lower tier pruiicipant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

4. 	 The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," 
"person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the 
meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the 
person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy ofthose regulations. 

5. 	 The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered 
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated. 

6. 	 The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will incl ude this clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," 
without notification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

7. 	 A participant in 'a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that it is-not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows 
that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of 
its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (Telephone No. (517) 335-2513 or 
(517) 335-2514). 

8. 	 Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good 
faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that 
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

9. 	 Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly 
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction, in addition 10 other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions 

l. 	 The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction 
by any federal department or agency. 

2. 	 Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certifkation, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

(Federal Register Doc. 88-11561 Filed 5-25-88; 8:45 a.m.) 	 March 9, 1989 



 

 
 
October 12, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Mark Miller, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT:   2009 Request to Waive Recapture Form 
 
Background: 
 
 The Community and Home Improvement Division of Oakland County has advised us, as a 

standard practice, to submit a waiver request to protect year 2007 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funds from recapture for one additional year.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Absent a waiver all unobligated 2007 funds would be recaptured December 31, 2009. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends submitting the 2009 request to waive recapture form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Miller’s Review/Agenda 11.09.09-Request to Waive Recapture  
 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT  
2009 REQUEST TO WAIVE RECAPTURE FORM 

 

 
 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current program year 
allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th).  To help 
comply with the regulation, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy 
allowing communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years.  Therefore, 
all unobligated 2007 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2009. 
 

A community may protect unobligated 2007 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver.  Submittal of the following information and a governing body 
resolution from the community requesting a one year deferral of recapture constitutes the 
Request to Waive Recapture.  A separate form must be submitted for each 2007 line 
item.  

 

Community Name: City of Troy 
 

Date request submitted: November 16, 2009 
 

2007 CDBG Project Title: Flood Drain Improvements 
 

Amount of funds to be retained: $92,641.00 
 

Description and Location of activity: Make storm drain improvements by installing 
approximately 20 storm drains with catch basins.  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Reason for NOT completing project as specified on original 2007 application: 
Development of budget, as this is an extremely large project. Additional funding not available. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Provide a corrective action plan and specific project implementation plans scheduled for the 
next calendar year.  Projects must be completed by December 31, 2009 
 
Date: November 09, 2009      Corrective Action:  
Funds will be reprogrammed early in 2010 to Section 36 Park Project. Funds will be 
exhausted Prior to December 31, 2010. 

 
 

 

WAIVER REQUESTS ARE DUE TO KARRY L. RIETH, DIVISION MANAGER  
NO LATER THAN MONDAY DECEMBER 14, 2009 



 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT  
2009 REQUEST TO WAIVE RECAPTURE FORM 

 

 
 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current program year 
allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th).  To help 
comply with the regulation, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy 
allowing communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years.  Therefore, 
all unobligated 2007 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2009. 
 

A community may protect unobligated 2007 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver.  Submittal of the following information and a governing body 
resolution from the community requesting a one year deferral of recapture constitutes the 
Request to Waive Recapture.  A separate form must be submitted for each 2007 line 
item.  

 

Community Name: City of Troy 
 

Date request submitted: November 16, 2009 
 

2007 CDBG Project Title: Public Services 
 

Amount of funds to be retained: $70,000.00 
 

Description and Location of activity:  
Fund home chore program for approximately 80 income qualified seniors and persons with 
disabilities per Oakland County Guidelines. City Wide. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason for NOT completing project as specified on original 2007 application: 
Less snowfall than anticipated. Therefore contractor for snow removal was not called out as 
many times as past years. Snow removal and lawn maintenance bid price submitted by 
contractors were lower than previous years. 
 
 

Provide a corrective action plan and specific project implementation plans scheduled for the 
next calendar year.  Projects must be completed by December 31, 2010 
 
Date: November 09, 2009    Corrective Action:  

 

WAIVER REQUESTS ARE DUE TO KARRY L. RIETH, DIVISION MANAGER  
NO LATER THAN MONDAY DECEMBER 14, 2009 



Funds will be applied to Fall 2009 yard cleanup and snow removal for Winter 2009 and early 
2010, and yard services for 2010. 
 



GGM/ppb  o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\agenda items\2009 agendas\emerald lakes shell cracker cc report 11 09 09.doc 

 

 

 
 
October 28, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police  
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution to Permit Use of Shell Crackers to Disperse Migratory 

Waterfowl – Emerald Lakes Subdivision 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Emerald Lakes Village Home Owners Association requests that they be allowed to continue the 
use of shell crackers to disperse migratory waterfowl that congregate on the lakes within the 
subdivisions. 
 
On December 20, 2004, City Council approved an identical request (Resolution #2004-12-628-E-11) 
that expires on December 31, 2009. 
 
The police Department recommends approval with the following restrictions and requirements: 

 
1. Shell crackers shall not be discharged before 7:00 a.m. and not after dusk. 
2. The permitee(s) shall notify the Police Communications Section prior to discharging the 

shell crackers and shall provide the police with his/her name(s) and phone number(s). 
3. A violation of either of the above limitations shall be cause for immediate revocation of 

the City authorization. 
4. Authorization shall expire December 31, 2011. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
None. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
None. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
Enhance the livability and safety of the community. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
F-10



 

 
 
October 28, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
SUBJECT: Application for new SDM License by Walgreen Company (2932 East Long 

Lake). 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) requests a new SDM License with Drive-up window service 

(without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 2932 East Long Lake, Troy, MI 48085, 
Oakland County {MLCC Request #521903}. 

 On September 14, 2009, Michael Johnson, Store Manager and representative for the applicant, 
answered questions for the Liquor Advisory Committee. 

 Mr. Johnson explained to the Committee that the purpose of this request is to allow the Walgreen 
Co. to sell beer and wine at their store.  It was also clarified that the drive-up window service was 
only for the sale of pharmacy items and that beer and wine sales could only be conducted from 
inside the store. 

 The Committee unanimously approved this request. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
JF/Walgreens (E. Big Beaver) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-11









LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 1 of 6 

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
September 14, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Committee member Patrick C. Hall called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:   Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-011  
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of September 14, 2009 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of June 8, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-012 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the June 8, 2009 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be APPROVED. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 2 of 6 

Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. M&M Troy, Inc. requests new SDM license to be located at 1634 John R, 

Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req #438202} Attorney for M&M 
Troy, Inc. was contacted and faxed copy of Lt. Riesterer of the City of Troy 
Fire Department’s letter dated 1/15/09 requesting a registered design 
professional’s documentation as to if the stock merchandise is feasible.  
Also noted that four plumbing inspection violations were noted and needed 
to be corrected. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was business owner Majid 
Kesto.   
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that a professional design was submitted by 
the applicant, but it was not approved by the Fire Department or the Building 
Department.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster informed the Committee that the applicant has 
not submitted documentation to show a $250,000 stock inventory.  The Ordinance 
states that the $250,000 inventory must be in place prior to a SDM license being 
awarded.   Ms. Lancaster also stated it was her understanding that the applicant 
wanted the Committee to vote on the issue at this meeting. 
 
When asked by Committee Member Hall if it was his desire to have the Committee 
vote on this item tonight, the applicant responded yes. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-013 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
M&M Troy, Inc. for a new SDM license to be located at 1634 John R, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County be DENIED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 3 of 6 

 
2. Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 2932 East Long Lake Road, Troy, 

MI 48085 requests a new SDM License with drive-up window (without 
alcohol sales) {MLCC Req. #521903}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was store manager Michael 
Johnson.   
 
Mr. Johnson stated that there was a plumbing issue and a backflow preventer was 
installed.  The plumbing inspector approved the site.  Also, there was a problem 
noted by the Fire Department and an air pressure test was performed.  The Fire 
Department inspector gave her approval. 
 
Mr. Johnson clarified the issue of the drive-up window stating that only pharmacy 
items would be purchased through the window.  Beer and wine sales would be 
made only in the store. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-014 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 2932 East Long Lake Road, Troy, MI 48085 
for a new SDM License without alcohol sales at the drive-up window be 
GRANTED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert  
 
 
 
 
3. Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 1965 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, 

MI 48083 requests a new SDM License with drive-up window (without 
alcoholic beverage sales) {MLCC Req. #521882}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was store manager Stacy 
Priebe.   
 
Ms. Priebe stated that this location also had a plumbing issue and a backflow 
preventer was installed.  The plumbing inspector is scheduled to re-inspect this 
week. 
 
It was again clarified that the drive-up window is for the sale of pharmacy items 
only.  Beer and wine sales would be made only in the store. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 4 of 6 

 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-015 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 1965 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 
48083 for a new SDM License without alcohol sales at the drive-up window be 
GRANTED, CONTINGENT upon final approval from the Building Department. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
 
Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld briefly updated the Committee regarding the informational items: 
 
Square Lake – Livernois Business Inc. 
 
An SDM application for a gas station at Square Lake & Livernois. 
 
Numan Troy, Inc. 
 
An SDM application for a gas station at Rochester & East Square Lake Roads. 
 
Kher Enterprises, Inc. 
 
Inspections being performed. 
 
Mermiles Inc. 
 
Transfer of ownership. 
 
Good Food Company East, Inc.   
 
License placed in escrow. 
 
The Melting Pot   
 
Corporate satisfied financial requirements and license status did not change. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 5 of 6 

 
 
Target Corporation 
 
Previously applied for and received SDM license, but never activated it.  
Application was closed by MLCC.  Process must begin again. 
 
Marriott International, Inc. 
 
Change of ownership. 
 
The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit 
 
Former Mountain Jack’s location; will be similar to VFW type of club. 
 
Azteca 
 
Class C license will be purchased from business in Rochester. 
 
Agrusa Market 
 
Business has closed and SDM license has been placed in escrow. 
 
Student Representatives 
 
Two applications have been received and the request for appointment has been 
sent to City Council. 
 
Big Beaver Tavern & San Marino Club 
 
These businesses are now holding poker tournaments.  State Law indicates they 
can hold tournaments and sell liquor, but they cannot benefit from tournament.  
Charitable organizations such as churches can hold these tournaments four times 
each year.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 6 of 6 

The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patrick C. Hall, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 
 
October 30, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
SUBJECT: Application for new SDM License by Walgreen Company (1965 East Big 

Beaver). 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) requests a new SDM License with Drive-up window service 

(without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 1965 East Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County {MLCC Request #521882}. 

 On September 14, 2009, Stacy Priebe, Store Manager and representative for the applicant, 
answered questions for the Liquor Advisory Committee. 

 Ms. Priebe explained to the Committee that the purpose of this request is to allow the Walgreen 
Co. to sell beer and wine at their store.  It was also clarified that the drive-up window service was 
only for the sale of pharmacy items and that beer and wine sales could only be conducted from 
inside the store. 

 The Committee unanimously approved this request. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
JF/Walgreens (E. Big Beaver) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-12







LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 1 of 6 

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
September 14, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Committee member Patrick C. Hall called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:   Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-011  
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of September 14, 2009 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of June 8, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-012 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the June 8, 2009 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be APPROVED. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 2 of 6 

Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. M&M Troy, Inc. requests new SDM license to be located at 1634 John R, 

Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req #438202} Attorney for M&M 
Troy, Inc. was contacted and faxed copy of Lt. Riesterer of the City of Troy 
Fire Department’s letter dated 1/15/09 requesting a registered design 
professional’s documentation as to if the stock merchandise is feasible.  
Also noted that four plumbing inspection violations were noted and needed 
to be corrected. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was business owner Majid 
Kesto.   
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that a professional design was submitted by 
the applicant, but it was not approved by the Fire Department or the Building 
Department.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster informed the Committee that the applicant has 
not submitted documentation to show a $250,000 stock inventory.  The Ordinance 
states that the $250,000 inventory must be in place prior to a SDM license being 
awarded.   Ms. Lancaster also stated it was her understanding that the applicant 
wanted the Committee to vote on the issue at this meeting. 
 
When asked by Committee Member Hall if it was his desire to have the Committee 
vote on this item tonight, the applicant responded yes. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-013 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
M&M Troy, Inc. for a new SDM license to be located at 1634 John R, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County be DENIED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 3 of 6 

 
2. Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 2932 East Long Lake Road, Troy, 

MI 48085 requests a new SDM License with drive-up window (without 
alcohol sales) {MLCC Req. #521903}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was store manager Michael 
Johnson.   
 
Mr. Johnson stated that there was a plumbing issue and a backflow preventer was 
installed.  The plumbing inspector approved the site.  Also, there was a problem 
noted by the Fire Department and an air pressure test was performed.  The Fire 
Department inspector gave her approval. 
 
Mr. Johnson clarified the issue of the drive-up window stating that only pharmacy 
items would be purchased through the window.  Beer and wine sales would be 
made only in the store. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-014 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 2932 East Long Lake Road, Troy, MI 48085 
for a new SDM License without alcohol sales at the drive-up window be 
GRANTED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert  
 
 
 
 
3. Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 1965 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, 

MI 48083 requests a new SDM License with drive-up window (without 
alcoholic beverage sales) {MLCC Req. #521882}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was store manager Stacy 
Priebe.   
 
Ms. Priebe stated that this location also had a plumbing issue and a backflow 
preventer was installed.  The plumbing inspector is scheduled to re-inspect this 
week. 
 
It was again clarified that the drive-up window is for the sale of pharmacy items 
only.  Beer and wine sales would be made only in the store. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 4 of 6 

 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-015 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 1965 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 
48083 for a new SDM License without alcohol sales at the drive-up window be 
GRANTED, CONTINGENT upon final approval from the Building Department. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
 
Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld briefly updated the Committee regarding the informational items: 
 
Square Lake – Livernois Business Inc. 
 
An SDM application for a gas station at Square Lake & Livernois. 
 
Numan Troy, Inc. 
 
An SDM application for a gas station at Rochester & East Square Lake Roads. 
 
Kher Enterprises, Inc. 
 
Inspections being performed. 
 
Mermiles Inc. 
 
Transfer of ownership. 
 
Good Food Company East, Inc.   
 
License placed in escrow. 
 
The Melting Pot   
 
Corporate satisfied financial requirements and license status did not change. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 5 of 6 

 
 
Target Corporation 
 
Previously applied for and received SDM license, but never activated it.  
Application was closed by MLCC.  Process must begin again. 
 
Marriott International, Inc. 
 
Change of ownership. 
 
The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit 
 
Former Mountain Jack’s location; will be similar to VFW type of club. 
 
Azteca 
 
Class C license will be purchased from business in Rochester. 
 
Agrusa Market 
 
Business has closed and SDM license has been placed in escrow. 
 
Student Representatives 
 
Two applications have been received and the request for appointment has been 
sent to City Council. 
 
Big Beaver Tavern & San Marino Club 
 
These businesses are now holding poker tournaments.  State Law indicates they 
can hold tournaments and sell liquor, but they cannot benefit from tournament.  
Charitable organizations such as churches can hold these tournaments four times 
each year.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 6 of 6 

The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patrick C. Hall, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
  October 19, 2009 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  

 
SUBJECT:  Contract Award: Informal Quote Process – Snow Removal Rental Equipment  

Including Operators   
 
Background 

• On September 28, 2009, quotes were electronically received for seasonal requirements of 
snow removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional season.   

• An informal quote process was conducted using the MITN system with 211 venders notified. 
• A total of six (6) responses were received, as well as one no bid. Of the six responses, one 

vendor requested to withdraw due to prior contract commitments and another vendor could not 
be considered due to their current default status.   

• Contract pricing was set by the company(s) offering the lowest price for each piece of 
equipment.   

• All four (4) vendors agreed to meet all the set contract prices with the exception of ABC Paving 
Company, who would only agree to the pricing for the truck with a 10’ snow plow.   
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets Division for snow and ice control 

for local, major and county roads. 
• The contract pricing for these services has remained consistent since the 2005 season.  

 
Legal Considerations  

• RFQ-COT 10-10000112, Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Rental Equipment 
including Operators with an option to renew for one (1) additional season was opened on 
September 28, 2009.  The informal quote process resulted in six (6) vendors responding.  

• Due to the variability of weather and fluctuating equipment availability, many companies do not 
bid on snow removal services.  Therefore, the City hires additional contractors based upon the 
emergency provision powers of the City Manager.   

• The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of properly executed proposal and contract 
documents, including agreements, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-13



Page 2 of 2 
 

October 19, 2009 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Contract Award – Snow Removal Rental Equipment 
 
Recommendations 

• City management recommends awarding contracts for one (1) season of snow removal rental 
equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) additional season to the 
following responsive vendors:  Florence Cement Company, Diponio Contracting, Sterling 
Topsoil and Grading, and ABC Paving Company at unit prices listed in Appendix A. 

 
Reviewed as to form and legality: 
 
___________________________   
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 08-09 New Format\Regular Business – SnowRemovalRentalEquip11.09.doc 



APPENDIX A 

Number of Units Company Can Provide 

Equipment
Hourly 
Rate/Unit

ABC 
Paving 

Company
Diponio 

Contracting

Sterling 
Topsoil and 

Grading 

Florence 
Cement 

Company
Road Grader - 20,000 
GVW 150.00$    1 2
Front end Loader - 3 yd 
Capacity 130.00$    2 1
Front end Loader - 4 yd 
Capacity 135.00$    1
Front end Loader - 5 yd 
Capacity 140.00$    2 8
Truck w/minimum 10ft 
Snow Plow 120.00$    4
Pick up w/minimum 8ft 
Blade 85.00$     2 2

All four company's listed were awarded a contract for snow removal rental equipment (including operators).  
Each company has agreed to the same pricing schedule for each piece of equipment listed.
Each vendor will supply the equipment listed below their company name at the quantities stated.  

G:\Purchasing\RFQ's\2009 - Snow Removal Rental Equipment\Appendix A - Snow Removal Tab.xls

No Bid:       Redburn's Snow Plowing & Lawn Maintenance Inc. 
Withdrew:  Metro Detroit Landscaping & Snow Removal 
Defaulted:  Metropolitan Contracting



 
AGREEMENT FOR SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES  

 

 THIS AGREEMENT entered into on _____________________, 2009, between 

the CITY OF TROY, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the 

City, and ___________________________________hereinafter referred to as the 

CONTRACTOR, 

 WITNESSETH: 

 In consideration of CITY granting to the CONTRACTOR the privilege and right of 

providing snow removal services on an emergency basis, the CONTRACTOR agrees 

as follows: 

 1.  SCOPE. This Contract incorporates by reference the Request for Quotation 

and CONTRACTOR’S Response to Request for Quotation as though fully set out 

herein.  These documents constitute the entire Contract and any changes thereto shall 

be in writing signed by both parties unless otherwise set out in the Contract.  

2.  RATES: CONTRACTOR shall be paid by CITY for snow removal services, 

which includes the equipment, the operator and all related expenses at the agreed upon 

hourly rates(s) as contained in the attached Appendix A.  Hourly rates apply to actual 

hours of snow removal operation.  CITY will pay a straight rate only.  Any premium for 

overtime, Sundays or Holidays are the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.  Rates shall 

be firm for the term of the Contract.  CITY agrees to call CONTRACTOR for snow 

removal service only where CITY estimates that there is at least eight hours of snow 

removal work. However, the City will not be responsible to CONTRATOR for any hours 

that CONTRACTOR is not able to engage in snow removal due to equipment failure, 

inadequate employee coverage or employee down time  

3.  EMERGENCY CONDITIONS: CONTRACTOR may, under emergency 

conditions, be required to operate equipment continuously for 24 hours a day until the 



end of the emergency. CONTRACTOR should insure that there is sufficient staffing to 

accommodate emergency conditions in compliance with the law.   

4.  DAMAGE RESPONSIBILITY:  CONTRACTOR assumes responsibility for 

property damage caused by CONTRACTOR’s operators.  Such property damage 

includes, but is not limited to:  damage to sidewalks, curbs, signs, mailboxes, turf, 

vehicles, trees, shrubs, or sprinklers.   

 5.  NON-ASSIGNMENT/INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR 

shall have no authority or power to assign, sublet, or transfer any rights, privileges, or 

interests without obtaining prior written permission from the City. CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that it is an independent contractor with no authority to bind CITY to any 

contracts or agreements, written or oral. 

 6. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. CONTRACTOR shall at all times observe and 

comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations.  

CONTRACTOR indemnifies and holds the CITY and all its officers, representatives, 

agents and employees harmless against any claim of liability arising from or based on 

the violation of any such law, ordinance, or regulation, whether by the CONTRACTOR, 

employees or any pre-approved subcontractors. 

 7. SAFETY. CONTRACTOR will provide snow removal services in a manner that 

will not create a hazard, nor hinder, restrict or impede traffic.  CONTRACTOR must take 

all necessary steps to assure proper safety during the performance of CONTRACT.  

Public safety must be of prime concern for the CONTRACTOR.  

 8. DRIVING RECORDS OF EMPLOYEES. CONTRACTOR shall perform a 

complete driving history search on all employees or pre-approved sub-contractors that 

will be operating vehicles or equipment. Employees or sub-contractors with any 

convictions for Operating While Intoxicated (OWI- Intoxicated), Unlawful Blood Alcohol 

Level (UBAL), Operating While Impaired (OWI), Operating While Under the Influence of 



a Narcotic or Controlled Substance or the Sale, Use and/or Possession of Marijuana or 

a Control Substance shall not be allowed to work in Troy at any time. If an employee or 

pre-approved sub-contractor is arrested or charged with such an offense, 

CONTRACTOR shall immediately stop that employee or sub-contractor from working in 

Troy.  CONTRACTOR shall develop a plan/policy for screening criminal and driving 

records to make sure that all employees and pre-approved sub-contractors are 

compliant with the terms of this Agreement. The City shall be provided with a copy of 

that policy within ten (10) days after the execution of the Agreement. CONTRACTOR 

shall perform annual Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) checks on all drivers for compliance 

with the above point convictions and take appropriate action.  All of these records are 

subject to examination by the CITY.   

9. EMPLOYEE CONDUCT. CONTRACTOR will promptly investigate and act 

upon any allegation that any employee or pre-approved subcontractor has acted in an 

unprofessional or criminal manner and take the necessary corrective action to remedy 

the situation.     

 10.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. OPERATOR shall carry general liability 

insurance,  automobile liability insurance, and workers compensation for any actions, 

claims, liability or damages caused to others arising out of the performance of this 

Contract in the amounts approved by CITY and set forth in the attached  Sample 

Certificate of Insurance.  Documentation demonstrating the required insurance 

coverage shall be provided to CITY’s Risk Management Department immediately upon 

execution of this Contract.  Cancellation of the insurance shall be considered a material 

breach of this Contract, and the Contract shall become null and void unless the 

CONTRACTOR immediately provides proof of renewal of continuous coverage to 

CITY’s Risk Management Department.  All of CONTRACTOR’s insurance carriers shall 



be licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan and acceptable to 

CITY.  

11.  INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. To the fullest extent  

permitted by law, CONTRACTOR agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and 

hold harmless the City of Troy, its elected and appointed officials, employees and 

volunteers and others working on behalf of the City of Troy against any and all claims, 

demands, suits, or loss ( including all costs connected therewith), and for any damages 

which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Troy,  its 

elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of 

the City of Troy.  This provision includes, but is not limited to claims of personal injury 

(including bodily injury or death) and/or property damage which arises out of or is in any 

way connected or associated with the execution of activities by CONTRACTOR under 

the terms of this Contract.  

12. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This contract shall terminate April 15, 2010. 

However, the parties may mutually consent to renew the contract for an additional year, 

as long as there is written consent from each of the parties at least 90 days prior to the 

expiration of this Contract.   The parties can also unilaterally cancel the contract, as long 

as the party desiring to terminate the Contract provides at least 90 days advance written 

notice to the other party.  The Troy City Council is the authorizing entity for CITY.    

13. TERMINATION:  If CITY observes or learns that CONTRACTOR or any of 

CONTRACTOR’s employees or pre-approved sub-contractors are engaging in unsafe 

or dangerous practices in the performance of this Contract, then CITY shall have the 

right to immediately terminate the Contract.  In any such case, CITY shall have the right 

to assign the Contract to any other qualified entity, and Contractor shall be responsible 

for any difference in the hourly rate, as set forth in this Contract, and the hourly rate of 



any subsequent Contractor, whose presence is necessitated by the unsafe or 

dangerous conduct of CONTRACTOR.    

14. NOTICE:  All written notices to be given under this Contract shall be mailed 

by first class mail to the other party at its last known address.     

15. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION:  This Agreement is made in and 

shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.  Any lawsuits under this 

Agreement shall be filed in the Oakland County Circuit Court, Michigan. 

16. HEADINGS.  Pronouns and relative words herein used shall be read 

interchangeably in the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural as the respective 

case may be. 

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The foregoing constitutes the entire Contract 

between the parties and may be modified only by a written instrument signed by both 

parties. 

18. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:  By execution of this Contract, the respective 

parties acknowledge that each has executed this Contract with full and complete 

authority to do so. 

 
WITNESSES:      CONTRACTOR: 
         
 
1.  _______________________________ _____________________________ 
  
2.  _______________________________ ______________________________ 
  

CITY OF TROY: 
 

By____________________________ 
                                                  Louise Schilling, Mayor 

 
______________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
_________________________________ 
City Manager or Designee 
 
Resolution Number: _________________ 



 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
By________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



October 26, 2009 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Miller, Asst. City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineerr " 
William J. Huotari, Deputy City Engineer Lffr 

SUBJECT: Traffic Committee Recommendations 
October 21, 2009 

Background: 


The Traffic Committee considered these items at the October 21, 2009 meeting and made the following 

recommendations (minutes attached): 


• 	 Recommend installing a STOP sign on southbound Ruthland at Kirk Lane(ltem 3). 

• 	 Recommend installing a STOP sign on Norton at Quill Creek (Item 4). 

• 	 Recommend installing a STOP sign on Marengo at Norton (Item 5). 

• 	 Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 3039 Rochester Road as recommended by 
the Fire Department (Item 7). 

• 	 Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 925 W. South Boulevard as recommended 
by the Fire Department (Item 8). 

• 	 Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 791 W. Big Beaver as recommended by the 
Fire Department (Item 9). 

• 	 Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 1026 Maplelawn (Item 10). 

Financial Considerations: 

• Signs cost approximately $115. 


Policy Considerations: 


• Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 


Options: 


• 	 Council can approve or deny the recommendations . 

Traffic Committee\2009 Minutes and Agendas\October 21\Recommendation Memo.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-14



TRAFFIC COIVIMITTEE IVIINUTES OCTOBER 21,2009 	 DRAFT 


A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, October 21, 2009 in the 
Council Boardroom at Troy City Hall. Ted Halsey called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

1. Roll Call 

PRESENT: 	 Sarah Binkowski 

John Diefenbaker 

Ted Halsey 

Richard Kilmer 

Gordon Schepke 

Sam Jiang 


ABSENT: 	 Jan Hubbell 

Pete Ziegenfelder 


Also present: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 

Lt. David Livingston, Troy Police Dept. 

Lt Eric CaiOla, Troy Fire Dept 


And 	 John Shepperd, 278 Kirk Lane Drive, Troy 

Kira Binkowski 


2. Minutes - July 15, 2009 

RESOLUTION #2009-10-09 
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Schepke 

To approve the July 15, 2009 minutes. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Ziegenfelder) 
MOTION CARRIED 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. Install STOP Sign on Southbound Ruthland at Kirk Lane 

John Shepperd, 278 Kirk Lane, requests a STOP sign on southbound Ruthland at Kirk 
Lane. There are sight obstructions at that location. See attached report. Mr. Shepperd 
said that his wife has had three near crashes recently. The corner is also a school bus 
stop. Mr. Shepperd mentioned that there are STOP and YIELD signs all through the 
subdivision, except for this intersection. 

RESOLUTION #2009-10-10 
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Kilmer 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 21,2009 - DRAFT PAGE 2 

To recommend installation of a STOP sign on southbound Ruthland at Kirk Lane. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Ziegenfelder) 
MOTION CARRIED 

4. Install STOP Sign on Norton at Quill Creek 

A resident of Norton requested that the city investigate conditions at the intersection of 
Norton and Quill Creek because of sight obstructions. See attached report. 

RESOLUTION #2009-10-11 
Moved by Schepke 
Seconded by Binkowski 

To recommend installation of a STOP sign on southbound Norton at Quill Creek. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Ziegenfelder) 
MOTION CARRIED 

5. Install STOP Sign on Marengo at Norton 

Gordon Schepke requests a STOP sign on westbound Marengo at Norton because of 
sight obstruction by a line of trees and a large shrub. A friend of his had a close call at this 
intersection. The street is also used as a cut-through. See attached report. 

RESOLUTION #2009-10-12 
Moved by Kilmer 
Seconded by Diefenbaker 

To recommend installation of a STOP sign on westbound Marengo at Norton. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Ziegenfelder) 
MOTION CARRIED 

6. Request for Traffic Information on Dalev North of Big Beaver 

Richard Kilmer requested a study of traffic on Daley, north of Big Beaver. See attached 
report. The Traffic technicians put out counters on Daley, but Mr. Kilmer said that the 
location didn't catch the speeders. Mr. Huotari explained that the location was chosen to 
count the volumes accurately, more so than the speeds. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 21, 2009 - DRAFT PAGE 3 

7. Establish Fire Lanes at 3039 Rochester Road 

Section 8.28, Chapter 106, Troy City Code, provides for the establishment of fire lanes on 
private property. The Fire Department recommends that the fire lanes shown on the 
attached sketch be provided to allow proper deployment of and travel by emergency 
vehicles (fire, police, medical). 

RESOLUTION #2009-10-13 
Moved by Kilmer 
Seconded by Diefenbaker 

Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 3039 Rochester Road as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Ziegenfelder) 
MOTION CARRIED 

8. Establish Fire Lanes at 925 W. South Boulevard 

Section 8.28, Chapter 106, Troy City Code, provides for the establishment of fire lanes on 
private property. The Fire Department recommends that the fire lanes shown on the 
attached sketch be provided to allow proper deployment of and travel by emergency 
vehicles (fire, police, medical). 

RESOLUTION #2009-10-14 
Moved by Schepke 
Seconded by Kilmer 

Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 925 W. South Boulevard as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Ziegenfelder) 
MOTION CARRIED 

9. Establish Fire Lanes at 791 W. Big Beaver 

Section 8.28, Chapter 106, Troy City Code, provides for the establishment of fire lanes on 
private property. The Fire Department recommends that the fire lanes shown on the 
attached sketch be provided to allow proper deployment of and travel by emergency 
vehicles (fire, police, medical). 

RESOLUTION #2009-10-15 
Moved by Diefenbaker 
Seconded by Kilmer 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - OCTOBER 21, 2009 - DRAFT PAGE 4 

Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 791 W. Big Beaver as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Ziegenfelder) 
MOTION CARRIED 

10. Establish Fire Lanes at 1026 Maplelawn 

Section 8.28, Chapter 106, Troy City Code, provides for the establishment of fire lanes on 
private property. The Fire Department recommends that the fire lanes shown on the 
attached sketch be provided to allow proper deployment of and travel by emergency 
vehicles (fire, police, medical). 

RESOLUTION #2009-10-16 
Moved by Schepke 
Seconded by Diefenbaker 

Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 1026 Maplelawn as recommended 
by the Fire Department. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Ziegenfelder) 
MOTION CARRIED 

11. Public Comment 

Ms. Kira Binkowski expressed thanks to Lt. Livingston for the good work by the Police 
Department, ensuring the safety of students at her school by issuing an order for a 
lockdown until a fugitive in the area was apprehended. 

12. Other Business 

Ted Halsey commented that the left turn lane from westbound Maple to southbound 
Coolidge is always backed up, and motorists have to sit through several cycles before 
turning. The Acting Traffic Engineer will ask the Road Commission for Oakland County to 
check the signal timing. 

13. Adjourn 

The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 

Ted Halsey, Acting Chairperson Laurel Nottage, Recording Secretary 

Traffic Committee\2009 Minutes and Agendas\October 21\minutes.doc 



ITEM 3 


Ci~cf' TRAFFIC COMMITTEE REPORT Troy 
October 2,2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer ~ 

SUB..IECT: 	 Ruthland at Kirk Lane - Stop Sign Request 

Background: 

• 	 John Shepperd, 278 Kirk Lane, requested that a stop sign be installed on southbound Ruthland at 
Kirk Lane. 

• 	 Mr. Shepperd lives just west of the intersection and states that there have been some close calls 
at the intersection due to some large trees near the intersection which can block a driver's view. 

• 	 The posted speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. 
• 	 Kirk Lane is considered the major road at this location due to its higher traffic volumes. 
• 	 24 hour traffic volumes were collected by city staff and indicate that the average daily traffic (ADT) 

on Kirk Lane was 268 with Ruthland at 172. 
• 	 The highest peak hour volumes along each road are 32 for Kirk Lane and 23 on Ruthland. 
• 	 The volumes are well below the threshold levels for multi-way STOP sign warrants. 
• 	 There has been one crash in the past five (5) years at this intersection, but it was the result of a 

motorist backing up into the intersection from the dead end of Ruthland. 
85th• percentile speeds, on Kirk Lane are approximately 28 mph and 25 mph on Ruthland . 

• 	 There is a sight distance concern due to some large pine trees located at the intersection and 
primarily with one located in the northwest quadrant. 

• 	 The city requested that our traffic engineering consultant (OHM) review the request and provide a 
report of their findings and recommendations (copy attached). 

• 	 The report recommends that a STOP sign be placed on the Ruthland southbound approach to the 
intersection, based on their review and findings that the safe approach speed on Ruthland is less 
than 10 mph. 

Recommendations: 

• 	 Staff concurs with our consultant's recommendation to modify the intersection control from "no 
traffic control" to a STOP sign on the Ruthland southbound approach to Kirk Lane. 

Suggested Resolutions: 

a. 	 Recommend installation of a STOP sign on the Ruthland southbound approach to Kirk 
Lane. 

b. 	 Recommend no changes at the intersection of Ruthland and Kirk Lane. 
K:\ATE FileslTC ItemslRequestslKirk Lane at RuthlandlTCAgenda Item_Kirk Lane at Ruthland.doc 



September 29, 2009 OHM 
Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI48084 

Subject: Traffic Control Recommendation for the intersection of Kirk Lane Drive and 
Ruthland Drive 
OHM IN: 0128-09-0040 

Dear Mr. Huotari: 

As requested, we have reviewed the Kirk Lane Drive/Ruthland Drive intersection to determine 
the proper trafftc control. The subject intersection is a 4-leg intersection located in the City of 
Troy, approximately 0.20 miles west of Livernois Road and 0.70 miles north of Big Beaver 
Road. Both Kirk Lane and Ruthland are local streets, with Kirk Lane running in the east-west 
direction and Ruthland running north-south. The speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. There is 
currently no trafftc control on any of the approaches. Reference the attachments for an aerial 
photograph and intersection photos. 

Background on Traffic Control Determination 
Based on the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) there are four 
conditions where STOP signs may be warranted: 

• 	 At the intersection of a less important road with a main road where application of the normal 
right-of-way rule is unduly hazardous. 

• 	 On a street entering a through highway or street. 
• 	 At an unsignalized intersection in a signalized area. 
• 	 At other intersections where a combination of high speed, restricted view, or crash records 

indicate a need for control by the STOP sign. 

Many times STOP signs are installed where they may not warranted. Traffic experts agree that 
unnecessary STOP signs: 

• 	 Cause accidents they are designed to prevent. 
• 	 Breed contempt for other necessary STOP signs. 
• 	 Waste millions of gallons of gasoline annually. 
• 	 Create added noise and air pollution. 
• 	 Increase, rather than decrease, speeds between intersections. 

The use of "multiway-STOP" or "all-way" STOP sign installation is discouraged. The multiway
STOP warrant requires the volumes of traffic per approach leg on intersecting roads to be 
approximately equal. 

The use of a YIELD sign is intended to assign the right-of-way at intersections where it is not 
usually necessary to stop before proceeding into the intersection. Conversely, the STOP sign is 



Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
September 29,2009 

Page 2 
intended for use where it is usually necessary to stop before proceeding into the intersection. 
The following conditions should be fully evaluated to determine how the right-of-way should be 
assigned: 

• 	 Traffic Volumes: Normally, the heavier volume of traffic should be given the right-of-way. 
• 	 Approach Speeds: The higher speed traffic should normally be given the right-of-way. 
• 	 Types of Highways: When a minor highway intersects a major highway, it is usually 

desirable to control the minor highway. 
• 	 Sight Distance: Sight distance across the corners of the intersection is the most important 

factor and is critical in determining safe approach speeds. 

Traffic Volumes 
24-Hour traffic volumes were provided by the City of Troy. The counts indicate the average 
daily traffic (ADT) on Kirk Lane Drive to be 268 with Ruthland Drive at 172. The highest peak 
hour volumes along each road are 31 for Kirk Lane Drive and 21 on Ruthland Drive. The 
MMUTCD indicates that multi-way STOP control could be warranted if there were at least 300 
vehicles per hour from the major street approaches and 200 units (vehicles, pedestrians and 
bicycles) per hour from the minor street approaches for the same eight hours on an average 
day. Based on the peak hour volumes alone, the option of multi-way STOP control does not 
meet warrants. 

With the pedestrian and vehicular traffic added together (assuming 20 pedestrians per hour) this 
location is stili far below warrant thresholds for multi-way STOP control. All traffic counts are 
provided as an attachment to this letter. Pedestrian traffic has not been counted at the 
intersection. 

Crash Analysis 
There was one (1) crash recorded in the past five years at this intersection. 

Approach Speeds 
The approach speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. Speed limits alone cannot be used in this 
case to determine which direction of traffic should be assigned the right-of-way. 

Types of Highways 
Although both Kirk Lane Drive and Ruthland Drive are considered local streets, Kirk Lane Drive 
is considered the major road at this intersection based on the traffic volumes. The road with the 
heavier volume of traffic, Kirk Lane Drive, should be given the right-of-way. 

Sight Distance 
The most significant sight distance obstruction at the intersection is the large pine tree located in 
the northwest quadrant. The obstruction and sight distance come into play when determining 
the safe approach speeds for the intersection. The safe approach speed is the speed at which 
a vehicle can approach an intersection and still stop in time to avoid a collision with a vehicle on 
the cross street. Safe approach speeds are determined through calculations. 

When the safe approach speed is found to be greater than 10 mph for the minor road, a YIELD 
sign is commonly used. In this case, the safe approach speed on Ruthland Drive was found to 
be less than 10 mph; therefore a STOP sign is the recommended treatment. The safe approach 
speed calculation spreadsheet is attached for your reference. 



Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
September 29, 2009 

Page 3 
Recommendation 

OHM recommends that the intersection control be modified from uncontrolled to a STOP sign 

on the Ruthland Drive southbound approach to the intersection. We recommend against 

modifying the intersection to mUlti-way STOP control. 


Sincerely, 

Orchard Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. 


~N\JJLQ 
Steven M. Loveland, PE, PTOE 
Traffic Project Engineer 

Attachments: 
• Aerial and Intersection Photos 
• Traffic Counts 
• Safe Approach Speed Calculation Spreadsheet 





Kirk Lane EB at Ruthland 

Kirk Lane WB at Ruthland 



Ruthland SB at Kirk Lane 

Ruthland NB at Kirk Lane 



of 'rroy 
jWR~~~OR LANE 1 Page: 1 

Starting: 9/14/09 

Vo L.. U fIr\ E" 

;ite ~iIJiii!<'_IRD002 File: D0914002.prn 

lite City: 

,()cat on: East of Ruthlaand, sec21 County; 01clkland 

):i.rFlc i.on: Ell!? 

'rIME MON TOE wr~D 'rHU FR! WKDAY SUN \vEEK 'fOTAL 
14 15 16 AVG rwe 

01:00 2 1 1 1 3 
02:00 0 0 0 0 0 
03:00 0 0, 0 0 0 

~04:00 0 1 v 0 1 
05:00 0 0 0 0 0 
06:00 1 1 1 2. 
07:00 7 9 8 8 16 
08:00 17 13 15 15 30 
09: 00 16 17, 17 34 
10:00 12 13 12 12 25 
11: 00 1 " 9 12 24"-~ 12 
12:00 14 16 J.5 15 30 
13:00 10 16 13 13 2 
[4:00 IS 16 15 15 31 
15;00 13 14 13 1 '> 27.J 

16:00 24 20 22 ?2 44 
17: 00 19 14 16 16 33 
18:00 32 31 31 31 63 
19:00 27 22 24 24 119 
20:00 22 19 20 20 41 

1 :;:21:00 1°J 11 .LJ 3C 
22:00 9 14 1 E 
23:00 4 "] ", 1 
24:00 2 3 2 2 5 

TO'rALEl o 
.wrrm. 

% AVG WKDY 73.1 101.1 30.2 
% lWG WEEK 73.1 101.1 30.2 

!1M 08; 00 09:00 09:00 09:00 
!1M Peaks 17 18 17 17 

pM Times 18:00 18:00 18:00 18:00 
Pt·1 Peal(s 32 31 31 31 



1 
City of Troy 

~) JIJllJ:mxy FOR LANE 1 Page: 
Starting: 9/14/09 

YOL.VMG' 

ite Reference: IRDOOI File: D0914 .prn 
ite ID: City: 'rroy 
ocatlon: seC 21 county: OaJc1and 
irection: N/S 

TI~E MON TUE 
15 

WED 
16 

THU PRI WKDAY 
Ave 

SAT SUN WEEK 
AVe; 

TOTAL 

01:00 
02;00 
03:00 
04:00 
05:00 
06:00 
07:00 
08:00 
09:00 
10:00 
11:00 
12:00 
13:00 
14:00 
15:00 
16:00 
17:00 
18:00 
19:00 
20:00 
21:00 
22:00 
23:00 
24:00 

5 
11 
13 
16 
13 
22 
23 
13 
12 

6 
1 
1 

0 

0 
0 
1 
6 

18 
7 
8 
6 
6 

10 
10 

9 
19 

') 

20 
12 

9 
3 
8 
1 
1 

0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
1 
6 

13 
12 

9 
5 

11 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
6 

15 
9 
8 
5 
8 
7 

10 
11 
17 
10 
21 
17 
11 

'I 
7 
1 
1 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 , 
~. 

6 
15 

9 
8 
5 
8 
7 

10 
11 
17 
10 
21 
17 
11 

7 
'I 
1, 
1 

0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
2 

12 
31
19 
17 
11 
17 
1 

22 
35 
20 
42 
35 
.c.L 

14 
2 
2 

._--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
'O'1'AL3 136 161 58 0 0 172 0 0 172 

; 

AVG 
AVG 

Wl',DY 
WEEK 

79 
79 

93.6 
93.6 

33.7 
33.7 

1t1 
1M 

Times 
Peaks 

08:00 
18 

08:00 
13 

08:00 
15 

08:00
1 ,.

:::> 

'M 
'r1 

Tinles 
Peaks 

19:00 
23 

16:00 
20 

18:00 
21 

18:00 
21 

II 



Safe Approach Speed Calculation 
Kirk Lane at Ruthland Major = Kirk Lane 
City of Troy, MI Local == Ruthland L 

Measured: 
Width of Roads 

M= 22 (tt) Vb 
Local: L = 22 (tt) 

Distance to Obstruction 
a = 32 (tt) Db 

b = 12 (tt) 


Angle of Intersection 

Delta == 90 (degrees) 


Major Rd Posted 

Speed Limit == 25 (mph) 


Major Rd 


Assumed: 
Speed of Vehicle A ;=: Posted Speed Limit 
on Major Road + 5 (mph) 

M 

Va == 30 (mph) 


Perception 1Reaction Time (AASHTO) 

t == 2.0 (sec) 


Coefficient of friction (AASHTO) 
 Local St 
f == 0.40 

Clearance distance in excess of safe stopping distance (AM) 
C == 15 (tt) 

Date: 9/29/2009 
Analyst: 

b' 

b 

Da Major Rd 

Intermediate Calculations: 
Da = 178 a'= 40 
Db = 46.8 b' = 26 

Speed for Vehicle 
Annm:::u'hinn on Local Rd 

Notes: Enter field measurements in yellow h1gnllghted area. 
Blue fields are std. default values; change only for cause. 

Vb = 8.7 (mph) Calculated by spreadsheet 

Recommended ROW control for local street 


based on safe approach speed :II"'~S~T!!"!:O:"'!P::-:S:":'ig-n-."'" 




ITEM 4 


CiWif TRAFFIC COMMITT'EE EPORTTroy 
October 2, 2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer 

SUBJECT: 	 Norton at Quill Creek - Stop Sign Request 

Background: 

• 	 While city staff was collecting data on the Norton at Marengo intersection, a resident on Norton 
requested that we also look at the intersection of Norton at Quill Creek. 

• 	 The resident stated that there are sight obstructions at the intersection of Norton and Quill Creek. 
• 	 The posted speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. 
• 	 Quill Creek is considered the major road at this location due to its continuous nature, while Norton 

is considered the minor road due to its termination at Quill Creek. 
• 	 24 hour traffic volumes were collected by city staff and indicate that the average daily traffic (ADT) 

on Quill Creek was 105 with Norton at 82. 
• 	 The highest peak hour volumes along each road are 18 for Quill Creek and 13 on Norton. 
• 	 The volumes are well below the threshold levels for multi-way STOP sign warrants. 
• 	 There have been no crashes recorded at this intersection in the past three (3) years. 

85th• percentile speeds, on both streets, are approximately 28 mph. 
• 	 There are sight distance concerns due to a row of trees and shrubs that parallel Quill Creek in the 

northeast quadrant. 
• 	 The city requested that our traffic engineering consultant (OHM) review the request and provide a 

report of their findings and recommendations (copy attached). 
• 	 The report recommends that a STOP sign be placed on the Norton southbound approach to the 

intersection, based on their review and findings that the safe approach speed on Norton is less 
than 10 mph. 

Recommendations: 

• 	 Staff concurs with our consultant's recommendation to modify the intersection control from "no 
traffic control" to a STOP sign on the Norton southbound approach to Quill Creek. 

Suggested Resolutions: 

a. 	 Recommend installation of a STOP sign on the Norton southbound approach to Quill 
Creek. 

b. 	 Recommend no changes at the intersection of Norton and Quill Creek. 

K:IATE Files"TC ItemslRequests"Norlon at MarengoITC..Agenda Item_Norton at Quill Creek.doc 



September 29,2009 o 
Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 

Subject: Traffic Control Recommendation for the intersection of Norton Street and 
Quill Creek Drive 
OHM IN: 0128-09-0040 

Dear Mr. Huotari: 

As requested, we have reviewed the Norton StreeUQuill Creek Drive intersection to determine 
the proper traffic control. The subject intersection is a T-intersection located in the City of Troy, 
approximately 0.35 miles west of Rochester Road and 0.45 miles norrth of Square Lake Road. 
Norton Street is a local street, which runs north-south forming a T-intersection at the south end 
with Quill Creek Drive. Quill Creek Drive is a local street running in the east-west direction. The 
speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. There is currently no traffic control on any of the 
approaches. Reference the attachments for an aerial photograph and intersection photos. 

Background on Traffic Control Determination 
Based on the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) there are four 
conditions where STOP signs may be warranted: 

• 	 At the intersection of a less important road with a main road where application of the normal 
right-of-way rule is unduly hazardous. 

• 	 On a street entering a through highway or street. 
• 	 At an unsignalized intersection in a signalized area. 
• 	 At other intersections where a combination of high speed, restricted view, or crash records 

indicate a need for control by the STOP sign. 

Many times STOP signs are installed where they may not warranted. Traffic experts agree that 
unnecessary STOP signs: 

• 	 Cause accidents they are designed to prevent. 
• 	 Breed contempt for other necessary STOP signs. 
• 	 Waste millions of gallons of gasoline annually. 
• 	 Create added noise and air pollution. 
• 	 Increase, rather than decrease, speeds between intersections. 

The use of "multiway-STOP" or "all-way" STOP sign installation is discouraged. The multiway
STOP warrant requires the volumes of traffic per approach leg on intersecting roads to be 
approximately equal. 

The use of a YI ELD sign is intended to assign the right-of-way at intersections where it is not 
usually necessary to stop before proceeding into the intersection. Conversely, the STOP sign is 



Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
September 29,2009 

Page 2 
intended for use where it is usually necessary to stop before proceeding into the intersection. 
The following conditions should be fully evaluated to determine how the right-of-way should be 
assigned: 

• 	 Traffic Volumes: Normally, the heavier volume of traffic should be given the right-of-way. 
• 	 Approach Speeds: The higher speed traffic should normally be given the right-of-way. 
• 	 Types of Highways: When a minor highway intersects a major highway, it is usually 

desirable to control the minor highway. 
• 	 Sight Distance: Sight distance across the corners of the intersection is the most important 

factor and is critical in determining safe approach speeds. 

Traffic Volumes 
24-Hour traffic volumes were provided by the City of Troy. The counts indicate the average 
daily traffic (ADT) on Quill Creek Drive to be 105 with Norton Street at 82. The highest peak 
hour volumes along each road are 13 for Quill Creek Drive and 9 on Norton Street. The 
MMUTCD indicates that multi-way STOP control could be warranted if there were at least 300 
vehicles per hour from the major street approaches and 200 units (vehicles, pedestrians and 
bicycles) per hour from the minor street approaches for the same eight hours on an average 
day. Based on the peak hour volumes alone, the option of multi-way STOP control does not 
meet warrants. 

With the pedestrian and vehicular traffic added together (assuming 20 pedestrians per hour) this 
location is still far below warrant thresholds for mUlti-way STOP control. All traffic counts are 
provided as an attachment to this letter. Pedestrian traffic has not been counted at the 
intersection. 

Crash Analysis 
There have been no crashes recorded in the past three years at this intersection. 

Approach Speeds 
The approach speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. Speed limits alone cannot be used in this 
case to determine which direction of traffic should be assigned the right-of-way. 

Types of Highways 
Although both Quill Creek Drive and Norton Street are considered local streets, Quill Creek 
Drive should be assigned right of way in this case, as it is the continuing road and Norton Street 
terminates at Quill Creek Drive. Driver expectation is that the continuing road does not have to 
stop and the terminating road must at a minimum slow to make the turn. 

Sight Distance 
There is a major sight distance obstruction at the intersection in northeast quadrant. A row of 
trees and shrubs parallels Quill Creek Drive, approximately 6.5' off of the roadway. The 
obstructions and sight distance come into play when determining the safe approach speeds for 
the intersection. The safe approach speed is the speed at which a vehicle can approach an 
intersection and still stop in time to avoid a collision with a vehicle on the cross street. Safe 
approach speeds are determined through calculations. 

When the safe approach speed is found to be greater than 10 mph for the minor road, a YIELD 
sign is commonly used. In this case, the safe approach speed on Norton Street was found to be 
less than 10 mph; therefore a STOP sign is the recommended treatment. The safe approach 
speed calculation spreadsheet is attached for your reference. 



Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
September 29,2009 

Page 3 

Recommendation 
OHM recommends that the intersection control be modified from uncontrolled to a STOP sign 

on the Norton Street southbound approach to the intersection. We recommend against 

modifying the intersection to mUlti-way STOP control. 


Sincerely, 

Orchard Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. 


~('{\J~ 
Steven M. Loveland, PE, PTOE 
Traffic Project Engineer 

Attachments: 
• Aerial and Intersection Photos 
• Traffic Counts 
• Safe Approach Speed Calculation Spreadsheet 





Quill Creek EB at Norton 

Quill Creek WB at Norton 



Norton SB at Quill Creek 



C.ity of 'hoy 
WI:~EK.LY SUN~mRY. FOR I,ANE 1 1 

7/27/09 

vo '-v~r i:E' 

File: D0727 3.prn 
City: Troy 

No,rton County: Oakl,wd 
Din,ction: E/W 

TIME MON rUE vJED TIlU FRI WKDAY SA'l' SUN WEEK 
27 28 AVe; AVG 

01:00 0 o o o 
02:00 1 0 o o 1 

;00 :t 1 I. :I 
04:00 [) (] o o o 
05:00 0 0 o o 
06:00 1 1 
07:00 0 o o 1 
08:00 3 3 3 6 
09:00 7 2 4 9 

:00 1 1 1 2 
11: 00 7 P '7 7 15 
12:00 7 " 

" 5 10 
13:00 
14: 00 

3 
:) 

:; 
11 

3 3 
8 

6 
1 

15:00 ,,:! 9 7 14 
16:00 9 6 1 
1'1 :00 5 4 4. 9 
18;()O 11 8 16 

~O() 9 14 11 11 23 
:00 6 11 8 8 17 
:00 18 8 1:1 13 2 

22:00 9 5 7 7 14 
23:00 6 8 7 ') 14 
24:00 " 

.l. 1 3 

TOTALS 81 18 20 o 105 o o 105 

% lWG 77 .1 112.3 19 
% AVG '7"1.1 112,3 

AN '[':hnes 0.9:00 1;: 00 11: 00 1 : 00 
PeaKs '7 8 7 7 

Times 21:00 19:00 ?L: DO 1 : 
Peaks 18 14 13 13 



'r:::oy 
v-JEEI<LY StJMNAP"Y LANE 

Starting: /0 

Site Fite: 
City: Troy 

- 8th of Marengo County: Oakl";lci 

'rIME MON THU FlU WKDAY SAT SUN 

2'/ AVG 


01:00 0 0 	 0 0 0 
02:00 ,J. 0 0 0 1 
() :00 0 0 0 0 0 
04:00 	 0 0 0 0 0 

:ClO 1 1 1 1 

11: 	

0 1 1 '1 

'" 
0 0 0 0 \J 

1 :;, ? 4 
] 2 :1 1 :3 
1 0 0 0 1 
4 3 '7 

1 	 : 00 0 2 5 
13: 00 3 	 4 4 8 

(; 10 B 8 16 
:00 9 9 9 

6:00 ;) 	 6 6 12 
17: CO 6 2 	 4 4 0 
18:00 9 8 8 1E 
lq, 10 6 Ii 8 16 

7 ,) 6 6 12" 
13 	 9 18 

r.8 5 ,I 10 
1 3 3 6 

3 2 

o o 	 o o 8284 79 

~i AVe:; WKDY 102.4 96.3 
% l~VG 102.4 96.3 

A(,1 ,}'imef: 12: 00 11: 00 11:00 11:00 
,t\l>l 5 3 :1 3 

PM 21:0C 14;00 15:00 15:00 
PM 10 9 9 



Safe Approach Speed Calculation Date: 9/29/2009 
Norton and Quill Creek Major Quill Creek Analyst: _______ 
City of Troy, MI Local 

Measured: 
Width of Roads 


Major: M = 24 (ft) 


Local: L = 21.5 (ft) 


Distance to Obstruction 

a 6.5 (ft) 


b 20 (ft) 


Angle of Intersection 

Delta = 90 (degrees) 


Rd Posted 

Speed Limit = 25 (mph) 


Major Rd Va 
 M Major Rd 

Assumed: 

Norton L 

Vb 
LocalSt 

Db 

b' 

b 

Speed of Vehicle A = Posted Speed Limit 
on Major Road + 5 (mph) 

Va 30 (mph) Intermediate Calculations: 
Perception I Reaction Time (AASHTO) Da = 178 a' HL5 

t = 2.0 (sec) Db 19.1 b' 33.8 
Coefficient of friction (AASHTO) 

f= 0.40 
Clearance distance in excess of safe stopping distance (AM) 

C 15 (ft) 

Notes: Enter field measurements in yellow highlighted area. 
Approaching on Local Rd 

Calculated Safe Approach Speed for Vehicle 
Blue fields are std. default values; change only for cause. 

Vb = 1.4 (mph) Calculated by spreadsheet 

Recommended ROW control for local street 
based on safe approach speed :11'"~S~T~O~P~S~ig-n-'" 



ITEM 5 


Cityif' TRAFFIC OMMITTEE EPORTTroy 
October 2,2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer ~ 

SUB..IECT: 	 Marengo at Norton 
Stop Sign Request 

Background: 

• 	 Mr. Schepke requested that a STOP sign be installed on westbound Marengo at Norton. 
• 	 Mr. Schepke stated that there are partial sight obstructions looking both north and south and a full 

stop is necessary to enter the intersection safely. 
• 	 The posted speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. 
• 	 Norton is considered the major road at this location due to its continuous nature, while Marengo is 

considered the minor road due to its termination at Norton. 
• 	 24 hour traffic volumes were collected by city staff and indicate that the average daily traffic (ADT) 

on Marengo was 148 with Norton at 154. 
• 	 The highest peak hour volumes along each road are 18 for Marengo and 17 on Norton. 
• 	 The volumes are well below the threshold levels for multi-way STOP sign warrants. 
• 	 There have been no crashes recorded at this intersection in the pastfive (5) years. 
• 85th percentile speeds, 	on both streets, are approximately 28 mph. 
• 	 There are sight distance concerns due to a tree in the southeast quadrant and a large shrub along 

the driveway in the northeast quadrant. 
• 	 The city requested that our traffic engineering consultant (OHM) review the request and provide a 

report of their findings and recommendations (copy attached). 
• 	 The report recommends that a STOP sign be placed on the Marengo westbound approach to the 

intersection, based on their review and findings that the safe approach speed on Marengo is less 
than 10 mph. 

Recommendations: 

• 	 Staff concurs with our consultant's recommendation to modify the intersection control from "no 
traffic control" to a STOP sign on the Marengo westbound approach to Norton. 

Suggested Resolutions: 

a. 	 Recommend installation of a STOP sign on the Marengo westbound approach to Norton. 

b. 	 Recommend no changes at the intersection of Marengo and Norton. 

K:IATE FileslTC IternslRequestslNorton at MarengolTCjlgenda Item_Norton .tMarengo.doc 



September 25,2009 OHM 
Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 

Subject: Traffic Control Recommendation for the intersection of l\Jorton Street and 
Marengo Drive 
OHM IN: 0128-09-0040 

Dear Mr. Huotari: 

As requested, we have reviewed the Norton StreetJMarengo Drive intersection to determine the 
proper traffic control. The subject intersection is a T-intersection located in the City of Troy, 
approximately 0.35 miles west of Rochester Road and 0.55 miles norrth of Square Lake Road. 
Marengo Drive is a local street, which runs east-west forming T-intersections at both ends (with 
Norton Street to the west and Rochester Road to the east). Norton Street is a local street 
running in the north-south direction. The speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. There is 
currently no traffic control on any of the approaches. Reference the attachments for an aerial 
photograph and intersection photos. 

Background on Traffic Control Determination 
Based on the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) there are four 
conditions where STOP signs may be warranted: 

• 	 At the intersection of a less important road with a main road where application of the normal 
right-of-way rule is unduly hazardous. 

• 	 On a street entering a through highway or street. 
• 	 At an unsignalized intersection in a signalized area. 
• 	 At other intersections where a combination of high speed, restricted view, or crash records 

indicate a need for control by the STOP sign. 

Many times STOP signs are installed where they may not warranted. Traffic experts agree that 
unnecessary STOP signs: 

• 	 Cause accidents they are designed to prevent. 
• 	 Breed contempt for other necessary STOP signs. 
• 	 Waste millions of gallons of gasoline annually. 
• 	 Create added noise and air pollution. 
• 	 Increase, rather than decrease, speeds between intersections. 

The use of "multiway-STOP" or "all-way" STOP sign installation is discouraged. The multiway
STOP warrant requires the volumes of traffic per approach leg on intersecting roads to be 
approximately equal. 



Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
September 25, 2009 

Page 2 
The use of a YIELD sign is intended to assign the right-of-way at intersections where it is not 
usually necessary to stop before proceeding into the intersection. Conversely, the STOP sign is 
intended for use where it is usually necessary to stop before proceeding into the intersection. 
The following conditions should be fully evaluated to determine how the right-of-way should be 
assigned: 

• 	 Traffic Volumes: Normally, the heavier volume of traffic should be given the right-of-way. 
• 	 Approach Speeds: The higher speed traffic should normally be given the right-ot-way. 
• 	 Types of Highways: When a minor highway intersects a major highway, it is usually 

desirable to control the minor highway. 
• 	 Sight Distance: Sight distance across the corners of the intersection is the most important 

factor and is critical in determining safe approach speeds. 

Traffic Volumes 
24-Hour traffic volumes were provided by the City of Troy. The counts indicate the average 
daily traffic (ADT) on Marengo Drive to be 148 with Norton Street at 154. The highest peak hour 
volumes along each road are 18 for Marengo Drive and 17 on Norton Street. The MMUTCD 
indicates that multi-way STOP control could be warranted if there were at least 300 vehicles per 
hour from the major street approaches and 200 units (vehicles, pedestrians and bicycles) per 
hour from the minor street approaches for the same eight hours on an average day. Based on 
the peak hour volumes alone, the option of multi-way STOP control does not meet warrants. 

With the pedestrian and vehicular traffic added together (assuming 20 pedestrians per hour) this 
location is still far below warrant thresholds for multi-way STOP control. All traffic counts are 
provided as an attachment to this letter. Pedestrian traffic has not been counted at the 
intersection. 

Crash Analysis 
There have been no crashes recorded in the past five years at this intersection. 

Approach Speeds 
The approach speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. Speed limits alone cannot be used in this 
case to determine which direction of traffic should be assigned the right-of-way. 

Types of Highways 
Although both Marengo Drive and Norton Street are considered local streets, Norton Street 
should be assigned right of way in this case, as it is the continuing road and Marengo Drive 
terminates at l\Iorton Street. Driver expectation is that the continuing road does not have to stop 
and the terminating road must at a minimum slow to make the turn. 

Sight Distance 
The only major sight distance obstructions at the intersection are the tree in the southeast 
quadrant and the large round shrub along the driveway in the northeast quadrant. The 
obstructions and sight distance come into play when determining the safe approach speeds for 
the intersection. The safe approach speed is the speed at which a vehicle can approach an 
intersection and still stop in time to avoid a collision with a vehicle on the cross street. Safe 
approach speeds are determined through calculations. 

When the safe approach speed is found to be greater than 10 mph for the minor road, a YIELD 
sign is commonly used. In this case, the safe approach speed on Marengo Drive was found to 



Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
September 25, 2009 

Page 3 

be less than 10 mph; therefore a STOP sign is the recommended treatment. The safe approach 
speed calculation spreadsheet is attached for your reference. 

Recommendation 
OHM recommends that the intersection control be modified from uncontrolled to a STOP sign 

on the Marengo Drive westbound approach to the intersection. We recommend against 

modifying the intersection to multi-way STOP control. 


Sincerely, 

Orchard Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. 


<2~j\{\dAQ 
Steven M. Loveland, PE, PTOE 
Traffic Project Engineer 

Attachments: 
• Aerial and Intersection Photos 
• Traffic Counts 
• Safe Approach Speed Calculation Spreadsheet 





Norton NB at Marengo 



Norton SB at Marengo 



M 

Safe Approach Speed Calculation Date: 912512009 
Norton and Marengo Major = Norton Analyst: S. Loveland 
City of Troy, MI Locar = Marengo L 

Measured: b' 
Width of Roads 

Major: M = 20 (ftl Vb b 
Locar: L 24 (ft) Local St 

Distance to Obstruction (large round shrub NE quadrant) 
Dba = 14 (ftl 

b =: 78 (ft) 


Angle of Intersection 

Delta = 90 (degrees) 


Major Rd Posted 

Speed Limit 25 (mph) 


Major Rd Da 
 Major Rd 

Assumed: 
Speed of Vehicle A =Posted Speed Limit 
on Maior Road + 5 (mph) 

Va 30 (mph) Intermediate Calculations: 
Perception I Reaction Time (AASHTO) Da = 178 a' 21 

t 2.0 (sec) Db= 44 b' = 93 
Coefficient of friction (AASHTO) 

f = 0040 
Clearance distance in excess of safe stopping distance (AM) 

C = 15 (ft) 

Calculated Safe Approach Speed for Vehicle Notes: Enter field measurements in yellow highlighted area. 
Approaching on Local Rd Blue fields are std. default values; change only for cause. 

Vb = 8.0 (mph) Calculated by spreadsheet 

Recommended ROW control for local street 
based on safe approach speed :1'"1~S~1'.!!"'lO~·'p~·..·~S"!'!'lg-·-n-, 



---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

City of 'rroy 
WEEKLY SUMMARY FOR IJ\NE 

Starting: 7/20/09 
1 Page: 1 

VOI...VMIT' 

ita Reference: IRD002 
;'te ID: f<l;;\nmgo 
~cation: Sect 3 West 
·irection: E/'I'1 

of Roch.Rd. 

File: 00720003. prn 
City: Troy 
County: Oakland 

MON TUE WED THU fRr WKDAY SAT SON v~EEK TOTAL 
20 21 22 AVG AVG 

01:00 0 1 0 0 1 
02;00 0 1 0 0 1 
03:00 0 0 0 0 0 
04:00 0 0 0 0 0 
05 00 1 0 0 0 1 
06: 00 6 5 5 10 
07:00 3 1 2 2 4 
08:00 4 5 4 4 9 
09:00 6 8 "/ 7 14 
lC:OC 14 4 9 9 18 

1:00 n 5 f3 8 16 
12;00 12 11 11 11 23 
13 :00 8 8 8 8 16 
14: 00 9 14 11 11 23 
Ib:OO 16 18 17 17 34 
16:00 11 9 10 10 20 
17: 00 8 13 10 10 21 
18:1)0 15 13 14 14 28 
19:00 9 10 9 9 19 
20:00 11 5 8 8 16 
21: 00 10 5 7 7 15 
22:00 4 5 4 4 9 
23:00 5 1 3 3 6 
24:00 2 1 1 1 3 

l'OTALS 108 157 42 0 0 148 0 0 148 307 

AVG WI-my 72.9 106 28.3 

AVG WEEK .9 106 28.3 


U'l Times 10:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 
~M Peaks 14 11 11 11 

?M Times 15:00 lS:00 15:00 15:00 
?M Peaks 16 18 17 17 



City of Troy 
WEEKLY SUI*mRY FOR LANE 

Starting: 7/20/09 
1 Page: 1 

VO l,.v I'y\~ 

Reference: IRDOOl 
H;::e ID: Norton 
~ocation: Sect 3 - Sth. 
)irecc:ion: N/S 

of South blvd. 

File: D0720002.prn 
City: Troy 
County: 01lk:'and 

TIME MON erUE 1'Ji':D THU FRI WKDAY SAT SUN WEEK 
20 21 22 AVG AVG 

01:00 0 1 0 0 1 
02:00 0 1 0 0 1 
03:00 0 0 0 0 0 
04:00 0 0 0 0 0 
05:00 1 1 1 1 2 
06:00 3 5 4 <1 8 
07:00 2 1 1 1 3 
08:00 6 6 6 6 12 
09:00 9 8 8 8 17 
10:00 12 8 10 10 20 

:00 10 7 8 8 17 
12:00 17 8 12 :2 25 
13:00 6 8 7 7 14 
14: 00 8 12 10 10 20 
15:00 14 16 15 15 30 
16:00 13 11 12 12 24 
17:00 11 15 13 13 26 
18:00 15 15 15 15 30 
19:00 14 13 13 13 27 
20:00 5 4 4 4 9 
21:00 5 9 7 7 14 
22:00 7 6 6 6 13 
23:00 2 2 5 
24:00 0 1 0 0 1 

TO'IALS 101 172 46 Q o 154 Q o 154 319 

% AVG WKDY 65.5 111.6 29.8 
AVG Wf~EK 65.5 111. 6 29.8 

AM Times 12:00 09:00 12:00 12:00 
i\M Peaks 17 8 12 12 

PM Time5 18:00 15:00 15:00 15 00 
PM Peaks 15 16 15 15 



ITEM 6 

TRAFFIC COMMITTEE REP RT 

October 1, 2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer ~ 

SUBJECT: 	 Daley, North of Big Beaver 
Request for Information 

• 	 Mr. Kilmer requested traffic information on Daley, north of Big Beaver. 
• 	 Data was collected on Daley, just south of Hartland on September 28 and 29, 2009. 
• 	 The weekday average volume for Daley was 919 vehicles. 
• 	 Peak hour traffic occurred at 8:00 a.m. with an average volume of 157 vehicles. 
• 	 85th percentile speeds were less than 20.0 mph and average speeds were just over 16 mph. 
• 	 Traffic volumes on this section of Daley are fairly consistent throughout the day, except during the times of 

school arrival and dismissal. 
• 	 Baker Middle School and the International Academy East are both located at the same site at the end of 

Torpey with a secondary access to the site from Boyd. 
• 	 Volume counts were taken on Boyd, just west of the southerly entrance to the school site on September 23 

and 24, 2009. 
• 	 Weekday average volumes on Boyd were 900 vehicles, but the average was skewed by heavier evening 

volumes between 7:00 p.m. and 9:00 p.m. due to an activity at the school on September 24. 
• 	 Peak hour traffic occurred at 8:00 a.m. with an average volume of 213 vehicles. 
• 	 Boyd is a dead end street at its east terminus with West Oak Subdivision 
• 	 A map of the area detailing counter locations and an overall map of the area are attached for your 

reference. 

Please advise if more information is required. 

K:IATE FileslTC l!emslRequestslTC"ReporLKilmer Request for Info.doo 









ITEM 7 

II 
II 
i 

INtW CCNC c-~j 
: Ilo'-O ~l11:;JIIt I(1"'(/"') 

~~~~~~--~~~~,~~~--

i 
! 
I 

/ 
COOR:)Il'4ATE lJ..:Oft'K. 'J.>!1 
crrY'B j'fTF.'.R&EC71~1 
E~~b."1"""ENT 
~~Cl' 

BIG AVER RD. WES- BOUND 




-I 
m 
s: 
co 

j 



ITEM 9 
1'J) 


Ehresman Associates Inc. 
architects engineers 

803 West Big Beaver Road 
Suite 350 


Troy. Michigan 48084-4734 

Telephone: (248) 244-9710 


E-mail: architects@81resmanassociates.com 

o 

(f'~lI(!-
CI:I 

o 
o 
o 

o 

o 

., 

J 
CD 
B 

o 

o 

o 

*"'00 i~T SCALE THESE 

DPAW;NG NO,: 

DRAWiNG SCALE: 

Not to Scale 

Pro:ect No.. 3407 

Huntington Bank 

Troy Main 

Road 

mailto:architects@81resmanassociates.com


EXISTING 
BUILDING 
FIN. FLR. 69 . 0 

MAPLELAWN l 
~6o-'WfDt R.O.W-.-~ 

~ ISTING C.B. 

ISTING GAS 
.EYER 

EXISTING i
DECIDUOUS 
TREES TO 
REMAlN. ( t) 

EXISTING OFFSITE 
APPROACH 

EXISTING H)" STORM 

EXISTING SHRUBS 
TO REMAIN. 

~. 
~ 

~'/ 

ITEM 10 

PNl.o'f lMATt.. 
(\U L.ArJt£ 

~~t 

36' WIDE 
PAVEMENT 

/ 



  
  

TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: November 3, 2009 
SUBJECT: City of Troy v Chowdhury  

 
 
 In 1995, the Michigan legislature enacted tougher laws to curb underage drinking.  
Several communities, including Troy, adopted regulations that mirrored these state statutory 
provisions.  One such regulation is Troy’s ordinance, Chapter 98, Section 10.03, which is very 
similar to MCL 436.1703 (1) and (7).  Troy’s ordinance provides:   
 

A person less than 21 years of age shall not purchase or attempt to purchase 
alcoholic liquor, consume or attempt to consume alcoholic liquor, or possess or 
attempt to possess alcoholic liquor.  A person who violates this section is guilty of 
a misdemeanor. . . .  A peace officer who has reasonable cause to believe a 
person less than 21 years of age has consumed alcoholic liquor may require the 
person to submit to a preliminary chemical breath analysis.  A peace officer may 
arrest a person based in whole or in part upon the results of a preliminary 
chemical breath analysis.  The results of a preliminary chemical breath analysis 
or other acceptable blood alcohol test are admissible in a criminal prosecution to 
determine whether the minor has consumed or possessed alcoholic liquor.   
 
Under Chapter 98, Section 10.04, “(a) person less than 21 years of age who 
refuses to submit to a preliminary chemical breath analysis. . . . is responsible for 
a civil infraction and may be ordered to pay a civil fine of not more than $100.00.”   
 
These ordinance provisions were recently challenged as unconstitutional in a 

case of first impression, People of the City of Troy v. Chowdhury.  In Chowdhury, Troy 
police officers were dispatched to a party where underage minors were drinking alcohol.  
When the officers arrived at the scene, there were several young adults, under the legal 
drinking age, who were leaving the party.  Several of these young adults admitted that 
they illegally consumed alcohol at the party.  Troy’s police officers then administered a 
PBT test to these persons who were outside the residence, including Mr. Chowdhury.  
Since the PBT results indicated that Mr. Chowdhury had consumed alcohol, and since 
he was under 21 years old, he was charged as a minor in possession of alcohol, in 
violation of Chapter 98.10.03.  Subsequently, he filed a motion in the 52-4 District Court 
to suppress the PBT results, arguing that the administration of the PBT test was in 
violation of his Fourth Amendment right against unlawful search and seizure.  The 
District Court Judge granted his motion, and this was affirmed by the Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge, who determined that the trial court judge had not abused his 
discretion.  However, since this was an issue of first impression in the Michigan state 
courts, the Michigan Court of Appeals granted the City’s application for leave to appeal.   

 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



The Michigan Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court in the attached decision.  
As a result, relief can only be obtained through the filing and grant of an application for 
leave to appeal with the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
The Chowdhury decision directly impacts both state statutory provisions and 

local ordinances that allow police officers to administer PBT tests to minors who are 
suspected of illegally drinking alcohol.  However, the Attorney General’s Office, and the 
Prosecuting Attorney’s Association of Michigan, and also the Michigan Municipal 
League’s Legal Defense Fund have all informally indicated their reluctance to seek relief 
from the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
If the City chooses not to file an application for leave to appeal with the Michigan 

Supreme Court, then the City will need to amend its ordinance.  A proposed 
amendment to Chapter 98, Section 10.03 and a repeal of Chapter 98.10.04 is attached 
for your future review and consideration.  Absent any objections from City Council, this 
proposed amendment will be brought back as an action item on the November 23, 2009 
City Council agenda.   
 

Please let us know if you have any questions concerning this matter. 
 
  



 
-1- 

S T A T E  O F  M I C H I G A N  
 

C O U R T  O F  A P P E A L S  
 
 
 
PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF TROY, 
 
 Plaintiff-Appellant, 
 

 
 FOR PUBLICATION 
 September 10, 2009 
 9:00 a.m. 

v No. 288696 
Oakland Circuit Court 

EMRAN CHOWDHURY, 
 

LC No. 2008-008862-AR 

 Defendant-Appellee. 
 

  

 
Before:  Stephens, P.J., and Jansen and Wilder, JJ. 
 
PER CURIAM. 

 Plaintiff City of Troy (City) appeals by leave granted the circuit court’s denial of leave to 
appeal, which allowed to stand the district court’s order striking down a City ordinance and 
suppressing certain evidence collected from defendant during a preliminary breath test.  Having 
found no error in the district court’s ruling or the circuit court’s denial of leave to appeal, we 
now affirm.  

I 

 A number of young adults under 21 years of age were allegedly drinking alcoholic 
beverages at a house party in the City.  Police officers responded to a call and arrived to find a 
group of individuals leaving the party on foot.  The officers detained the group of young adults, 
which included defendant.  An officer asked each of the young adults whether he or she had been 
drinking alcohol.  Some of the young adults indicated that they had been drinking, and others 
indicated that they had not.  The officer divided the young adults into two smaller groups, 
separating those who admitted that they had been drinking from those who denied drinking at the 
party.  The officers then proceeded to administer preliminary breath tests (PBTs) to the young 
adults.  One of the officers administered a PBT to defendant, which resulted in a reading of 
0.025.  It is undisputed that the officer did not request defendant’s consent before administering 
the PBT.  Neither that particular officer, nor any other officer, obtained a search warrant before 
administering the PBTs.  

 The City ordinance at issue in this case, Troy Ordinance § 98.10.03, provides in relevant 
part: 

A person less than 21 years of age shall not purchase or attempt to purchase 
alcoholic liquor, consume or attempt to consume alcoholic liquor, or possess or 



 
-2- 

attempt to possess alcoholic liquor.  A person who violates this section is guilty of 
a misdemeanor . . . . 

* * * 

A peace officer who has reasonable cause to believe a person less than 21 
years of age has consumed alcoholic liquor may require the person to submit to a 
preliminary chemical breath analysis.  A peace officer may arrest a person based 
in whole or in part upon the results of a preliminary chemical breath analysis.  
The results of a preliminary chemical breath analysis or other acceptable blood 
alcohol test are admissible in a criminal prosecution to determine whether the 
minor has consumed or possessed alcoholic liquor. 

Furthermore, Troy Ordinance § 98.10.04 provides in relevant part that “[a] person less than 21 
years of age who refuses to submit to a preliminary chemical breath analysis . . . is responsible 
for a civil infraction and may be ordered to pay a civil fine of not more than $100.00.” 

 Defendant testified before the district court that the officers had indicated that he and the 
others were required take the PBT.  According to defendant and other witnesses, the officers 
informed the young adults that they would be taken to the police station—and possibly go to 
jail—if they did not comply by submitting to the PBTs.  Defendant testified that he believed that 
he had no choice but to submit to the PBT.  Defendant and other witnesses stated that the officers 
had been aggressive and had used profane language toward the young adults.  Defendant testified 
that he had felt intimidated and that he had therefore submitted to the PBT without verbally 
objecting and without asking any questions of the officers.   

 After having been charged with violating Troy Ordinance § 98-10-03, defendant moved 
in the district court to suppress the results of the PBT.  Defendant argued that Troy Ordinance § 
98-10-03 was unconstitutional because it purported to allow a police officer to perform a 
warrantless search, because warrantless searches are generally considered unreasonable unless an 
exception applies, and because no exception to the warrant requirement was applicable in this 
case.  In support of his position, defendant cited two cases in which the United States District 
Court for the Eastern District of Michigan had ruled that a similarly worded ordinance and a 
similarly worded state statute were unconstitutional.  Defendant at all times maintained that the 
police officers had been aggressive, that he had felt compelled to comply with the officers’ 
directions, and that he had not voluntarily submitted to the PBT. 

 The district court held oral argument on defendant’s motion and heard the testimony of 
several witnesses.  The district court ruled that Troy Ordinance § 98-10-03 was unconstitutional 
on its face, that the warrantless search of defendant’s person had been unreasonable, and that no 
exception to the warrant requirement had been applicable on the facts of this case.  Therefore, the 
district court suppressed the evidence collected from defendant during the PBT.1   

 
                                                 
1 Although the district court suppressed the evidence collected from defendant during the PBT, it 
did not grant defendant’s motion to dismiss.  The district court remarked, “I’m not going to 

(continued…) 



 
-3- 

 The City subsequently sought leave to appeal the district court’s ruling in the Oakland 
Circuit Court.  The circuit court held no oral argument, and decided the City’s application for 
leave to appeal on the basis of the written submissions alone.  In a succinct but complete opinion 
and order, the circuit court observed that it had surveyed the relevant case law and had found no 
decisions on point, other than the two federal cases cited by defendant before the district court.  
The circuit court opined that “[t]here is nothing from the appellate courts upon which to base the 
reversal of the district court” and that “[t]he district court’s decision was correct insofar as the 
ordinance is unconstitutional . . . .”  Accordingly, the circuit court denied the City’s application 
for leave to appeal the district court’s ruling. 

 We granted leave to appeal to consider this issue of first impression for the Michigan 
appellate courts.  People of Troy v Chowdhury, unpublished order of the Court of Appeals, 
entered March 20, 2009 (Docket No. 288696). 

II 

 The constitutionality of an ordinance is reviewed de novo, People v Barton, 253 Mich 
App 601, 603; 659 NW2d 654 (2002), as are all other questions of constitutional law, People v 
LeBlanc, 465 Mich 575, 579; 640 NW2d 246 (2002).  We will not disturb a trial court’s2 findings 
of fact at a suppression hearing unless they are found to be clearly erroneous.  People v Farrow, 
461 Mich 202, 209; 600 NW2d 634 (1999).  However, the ultimate question whether evidence 
should be suppressed is an issue of law for the court.  People v Dungey, 235 Mich 144, 146-147; 
209 NW 57 (1926).  “Questions of law relevant to a motion to suppress evidence are reviewed de 
novo.”  People v Hawkins, 468 Mich 488, 496-497; 668 NW2d 602 (2003). 

III 

 We cannot conclude that the circuit court erred by denying the City’s application for 
leave to appeal, thereby allowing to stand the district court’s order striking down Troy Ordinance 
§ 98.10.03 and suppressing the evidence collected from defendant during the PBT. 

 The United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan has already held a 
substantially similar Bay City ordinance and a substantially similar state statute unconstitutional.  
Spencer v Bay City, 292 F Supp 2d 932 (ED Mich, 2003); Platte v Thomas Twp, 504 F Supp 2d 
227 (ED Mich, 2007).  In the instant matter, the district court cited these two federal cases as 
persuasive authority, ruling that Troy Ordinance § 98.10.03 “is too broad,” that “requesting 
someone to submit to a PBT is a search,” and that the police were required to obtain a warrant 
before administering the PBTs unless it could be shown that one of the exceptions to the search 
warrant requirement applied.  As discussed previously, the circuit court agreed, finding no 
Michigan case law upon which to base a reversal of the district court’s ruling. 

 
 (…continued) 

dismiss the case yet [because] the People might be able to prove it without a PBT test, I don’t 
know whether they can or not, but I am not going to go so far as to dismiss it yet.” 
2 In cases such as this, wherein a district court ruling has been appealed to the circuit court, we 
refer to the district court as the “trial court.”  See MCR 7.101(A)(1). 



 
-4- 

A 

 The City argues that the federal case law relied on by the district and circuit court failed 
to adequately address the “special needs” exception to the search warrant requirement.  The City 
contends that the “special needs” exception should be applied in this case because there is a 
compelling state interest in protecting young people from the dangers of alcohol abuse and in 
protecting the general public from the potential consequences of alcohol abuse by young persons.   

 It is true, as the City points out, that we are not bound by the decisions of lower federal 
courts.  Abela v Gen Motors Corp, 469 Mich 603, 606; 677 NW2d 325 (2004).  However, both 
Spencer and Platte thoroughly discuss the issues presented in the instant case, and specifically 
refute the City’s argument that the “special needs” exception to the search warrant requirement 
should apply.   

 “Both the United States Constitution and the Michigan Constitution guarantee the right 
against unreasonable searches and seizures.  The Michigan Constitution in this regard is 
generally construed to provide the same protection as the Fourth Amendment to the United 
States Constitution.”  People v Jones, 279 Mich App 86, 90-91; 755 NW2d 224 (2008) (citations 
omitted); see also US Const, Am IV; Const 1963, art 1, § 11.  “‘The constitutions do not forbid 
all searches and seizures, only unreasonable ones . . . .  The applicable test in determining the 
reasonableness of an intrusion is to balance the need to search, in the public interest, for evidence 
of criminal activity against invasion of the individual’s privacy.’”  People v Wilkens, 267 Mich 
App 728, 733; 705 NW2d 728 (2005) (citation omitted).   

 “Ordinarily, searches or seizures conducted without a warrant are unreasonable per se.  
And, generally, when evidence has been seized in violation of the constitutional prohibition 
against unreasonable searches and seizures, it must be excluded from trial.”  People v Dagwan, 
269 Mich App 338, 342; 711 NW2d 386 (2005).  “There are, however, a number of recognized 
exceptions to the warrant requirement . . . .”  Id.  Among others, these exceptions include 
“exigent circumstance[s], searches incident to a lawful arrest, stop and frisk, consent, and plain 
view.  Each of these exceptions, while not requiring a warrant, still requires reasonableness and 
probable cause.”  People v Brzezinski, 243 Mich App 431, 433-434; 622 NW2d 528 (2000) 
(citation omitted).  In addition, under “the governmental ‘special needs’ or regulatory 
exception,” “[a] warrant or probable cause will not be required . . . as long as the searches meet 
‘reasonable legislative or administrative standards.’”  People v Woods, 211 Mich App 314, 317; 
535 NW2d 259 (1995), quoting Griffin v Wisconsin, 483 US 868, 873; 107 S Ct 3164; 97 L Ed 
2d 709 (1987). 

 In Spencer, 292 F Supp 2d at 935, the federal district court considered a Bay City 
ordinance that provided:  

A peace officer who has reasonable cause to believe a person less than 21 years of 
age has consumed alcoholic liquor may require the person to submit to a 
preliminary chemical breath test analysis.  A peace officer may arrest a person 
based in whole or in part upon the results of a preliminary chemical breath 
analysis.  The results of a preliminary chemical breath analysis or other 
acceptable blood alcohol tests are admissible in a criminal prosecution to 
determine whether the minor has consumed or possessed alcoholic liquor.  A 



 
-5- 

person less than 21 years of age who refuses to submit to a preliminary chemical 
breath test analysis as required in this subsection is responsible for a state civil 
infraction and may be ordered to pay a civil fine of not more than $ 100.00. 

Bay City defended its ordinance against a claim that it violated the Fourth Amendment by 
asserting “that the so-called ‘special needs’ exception excuses the requirement for a search 
warrant, and the searches are reasonable because they are based on reasonable suspicion.”  Id. at 
938-939.  The Spencer court disagreed, concluding:  

There is nothing “special” in the need of law enforcement to detect evidence of 
ordinary criminal wrongdoing; even where crime is on the rise and the disorder 
and insecurity caused by criminal behavior in a community is grave, the Supreme 
Court has consistently held that “the gravity of the threat alone cannot be 
dispositive of questions concerning what means law enforcement officers may 
employ to pursue a given purpose.”  City of Indianapolis v Edmond, 531 US 32, 
42; 121 S Ct 447; 148 L Ed 2d 333 (2000).  “Where a search is undertaken by law 
enforcement officials to discover evidence of criminal wrongdoing, th[e Supreme] 
Court has said that reasonableness generally requires the obtaining of a judicial 
warrant.”  Vernonia School Dist [v Acton], 515 US [646,] 654; 115 S Ct 2386; 
132 L Ed 2d 564 [(1995)].  [Spencer, 292 F Supp 2d at 941.] 

Moreover, as the Spencer court explained, “[t]he Supreme Court made clear . . . that laudable, 
non-criminal purposes of a law authorizing warrantless searches will not exempt the practice 
from the traditional mandate of a warrant issued upon probable cause when an objective to 
gather evidence also exists.”  Id. at 941-942; see also Ferguson v City of Charleston, 532 US 67; 
121 S Ct 1281; 149 L Ed 2d 205 (2001).  The Spencer court concluded that “Bay City’s 
ordinance cannot be justified under the ‘special needs’ exception to the requirement that a search 
of a person, including a search and seizure of breath samples, must be authorized by a judicial 
officer through the search warrant process.”  Spencer, 292 F Supp 2d at 942. 

 Bay City had also argued that “the warrantless searches called for by the ordinance are 
justified by exigent circumstances, due to the length of time required in Bay City to obtain a 
search warrant for breath samples.”  Id. at 939.  However, the Spencer court found that exigent 
circumstances must be considered on a case-by-case basis because “the time necessary to obtain 
a warrant in cases that fall within the scope of the ordinance does not create an exigency as a 
matter of legislative fact, nor does it serve to establish an automatic exemption from the warrant 
requirement.”  Id. at 944. 

 In Platte, 504 F Supp 2d at 230-231, the federal district court considered MCL 
436.1703(6), which provides:  

A peace officer who has reasonable cause to believe a minor has consumed 
alcoholic liquor or has any bodily alcohol content may require the person to 
submit to a preliminary chemical breath analysis.  A peace officer may arrest a 
person based in whole or in part upon the results of a preliminary chemical breath 
analysis.  The results of a preliminary chemical breath analysis or other 
acceptable blood alcohol test are admissible in a criminal prosecution to 
determine whether the minor has consumed or possessed alcoholic liquor or had 



 
-6- 

any bodily alcohol content.  A minor who refuses to submit to a preliminary 
chemical breath test analysis as required in this subsection is responsible for a 
state civil infraction and may be ordered to pay a civil fine of not more than 
$100.00. 

In Platte, several plaintiffs brought claims under 42 USC 1983 against Thomas Township and 
other municipalities, as well as the governor of Michigan and the director of the Michigan State 
Police, arguing that MCL 436.1703(6) was “unconstitutional insofar as it authorized police 
officers to compel minors to submit to breath tests for alcohol in the absence of a warrant or 
circumstances excusing the requirement of a search warrant.”  Platte, 504 F Supp 2d at 230.  In 
response, the defendants argued, as does the City in the case at bar, “that the statute is 
constitutional on its face because warrantless searches pursuant thereto can be justified on the 
basis of exigent circumstances and special needs.”  Id. at 231.   

 Relying on Spencer and Skinner v Railway Labor Executives Ass’n, 489 US 602, 616-
617; 109 S Ct 1402; 103 L Ed 2d 639 (1989), the Platte court observed that “‘[i]t is well 
established that the taking of a breath sample to test for the presence of alcohol constitutes a 
search under the Fourth Amendment . . . .  As such, the search must be reasonable.’”  Platte, 504 
F Supp 2d at 236 (citations omitted).  Regarding the plaintiffs’ facial challenge to MCL 
436.1703(6), the Platte court explained that “the text and context of the statute must be examined 
to determine if it can be construed in such a way that an unconstitutional interpretation can be 
avoided, or, on the other hand, whether the statute’s plain language authorizes unconstitutional 
conduct on the part of the government.”  Platte, 504 F Supp 2d at 238.   

 The Platte court went on to observe that MCL 436.1703(6) “plainly does not require the 
police officer to obtain a warrant before taking a breath sample from a minor . . . .  There is no 
dispute that there is a preference expressed in the Fourth Amendment that searches, to be 
reasonable, be sanctioned by the issuance of a warrant by a neutral and detached judicial officer.  
Nor does the statute require that any of the recognized exceptions to the warrant requirement 
exist before the police officer compels a minor to submit to a breath test.”  Platte, 504 F Supp 2d 
at 238 (citation omitted).  Although the defendants in Platte argued that the “exigent 
circumstances” exception to the search warrant requirement should apply, as did Bay City in 
Spencer, the Platte court explained that “to say that there are some circumstances under which 
breath samples can be taken from minors in a constitutional way does little to answer the 
question whether the statute itself is constitutional, when the statute allows searches and seizures 
absent the condition of a warrant or an excuse for proceeding without one.”  Platte, 504 F Supp 
2d at 238 (emphasis added). 

 One of the defendants in Platte contended that “exigent circumstances always exist as a 
matter of law because search warrants cannot be obtained before a teenager’s blood alcohol 
content dissipates.  Therefore . . . the statute is valid and the procedures employed by [the] 
officers thereunder are constitutional.”  Id. at 241.  Again, the court rejected the “exigent 
circumstances” argument, explaining that it “ignores the general rule that in the criminal context, 
warrantless searches are presumptively unreasonable; the government bears the burden of 
establishing an exception to the warrant requirement in the case at hand; the resulting 
reasonableness vel non of the search must turn on the facts of each case; and blanket exceptions 
to the warrant requirement are disfavored.”  Id. at 241-242 (citations omitted).  The Platte court 
concluded that the defendant in question had “not demonstrated that [MCL] 436.1703(6) can 



 
-7- 

survive constitutional challenge by means of a blanket exigent circumstances exception to the 
Warrant Clause of the Fourth Amendment . . . .”  Id. at 245. 

 With respect to the defendants’ “special needs” argument, the Platte court stated that 
“[t]he Supreme Court has held that some searches can be reasonable absent both a warrant and 
exigent circumstances, specifically ‘when “special needs, beyond the normal need for law 
enforcement, make the warrant and probable-cause requirement impracticable.”’”  Id. at 238 
(citations omitted).  Referring to the decision in Spencer, 292 F Supp 2d at 939-941, the Platte 
court observed, “It is enough to note that the weight of authority relegates the ‘special needs’ 
exception to non-criminal governmental activity . . . .”  Platte, 504 F Supp at 239.  The court 
concluded that MCL 436.1703(6) “‘endorses procedures to authorize a search that clearly do not 
comport with the Fourth Amendment,’” and therefore that the statute “is unconstitutional on its 
face.”  Platte, 504 F Supp at 239 (citation omitted).3 

 The decisions in Spencer and Platte are both well-reasoned and consistent with existing 
Fourth Amendment law.  Accordingly, we find Spencer and Platte to be persuasive, see Abela, 
469 Mich at 607, and conclude that Troy Ordinance § 98.10.03 is unconstitutional on its face.  
Moreover, we agree with the Spencer court that “[t]here is nothing ‘special’ in the need of law 
enforcement to detect evidence of ordinary criminal wrongdoing,” and that “‘reasonableness 
generally requires the obtaining of a judicial warrant.’”  Spencer, 292 F Supp 2d at 941 (citation 
omitted).  The “special needs” exception to the search warrant requirement is quite simply not 
applicable on the facts of this case.  Id. 

B 

 The City argues that even if Troy Ordinance § 98.10.03 is unconstitutional on its face, the 
district and circuit court decisions should still be reversed because defendant’s Fourth 
Amendment rights were not violated.  Specifically, the City argues that the PBT did not 
constitute a search within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment and that when the police asked 
defendant to submit to the PBT, he consented.  In addition, the City contends that even if the 
PBT was a search, the likely dissipation of defendant’s bodily alcohol content was an exigency 
that justified the warrantless search in this case.   

 As an initial matter, we disagree with the City’s contention that because a PBT is 
different and less intrusive than a “Breathalyzer” test, it is not a search for purposes of the Fourth 
Amendment.  “A search within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment ‘occurs when an 
expectation of privacy that society is prepared to consider reasonable is infringed.’”  People v 

 
                                                 
3 The Platte court was “not prepared to conclude as a matter of law that the offense of minor in 
possession of alcohol is so insignificant a transgression that warrantless searches can never be 
conducted to gather evidence of this crime.  If officers must act so quickly to prevent the 
immediate destruction of evidence that they cannot obtain a search warrant within the time it 
would reasonably take to procure one, then administration of a PBT without a warrant may be 
consistent with the Fourth Amendment . . . .”  Platte, 504 F Supp at 246.  The Platte court noted 
that, on the specific facts of that case, there remained “fact questions on the material issue of 
whether exigent circumstances existed. . . .”  Id. 



 
-8- 

Jones, 279 Mich App 86, 91; 755 NW2d 224 (2008), quoting United States v Jacobsen, 466 US 
109, 113; 104 S Ct 1652; 80 L Ed 2d 85 (1984).  “Because the Fourth Amendment protects 
people, as opposed to places or areas . . . a search for purposes of the Fourth Amendment occurs 
when the government intrudes on an individual's reasonable, or justifiable, expectation of 
privacy.”  People v Taylor, 253 Mich App 399, 404; 655 NW2d 291 (2002).  “Indeed, what an 
individual ‘“seeks to preserve as private, even in an area accessible to the public, may be 
constitutionally protected.”’”  Id., quoting People v Clark, 133 Mich App 619, 625; 350 NW2d 
754 (1983), in turn quoting Katz v United States, 389 US 347, 351-352; 88 S Ct 507; 19 L Ed 2d 
576 (1967). 

 As discussed previously, the Platte court held that a PBT was a search under the Fourth 
Amendment:  “It is well established that the taking of a breath sample to test for the presence of 
alcohol constitutes a search under the Fourth Amendment . . . .  As such, the search must be 
reasonable.”  Platte, 504 F Supp 2d at 238.  Other courts have also held that breath tests 
constitute searches for Fourth Amendment purposes.  See, e.g., State v McGuigan, 965 A2d 511, 
515-516 (Vt, 2008); Milwaukee Co v Proegler, 95 Wis 2d 614, 623; 291 NW2d 608 (Wis App, 
1980).  Indeed, the United States Supreme Court has held that although breath and urine tests for 
may be less intrusive than blood tests,4 they nonetheless rise to the level of searches within the 
meaning of the Fourth Amendment.  Skinner, 489 US at 616-617.  On the basis of this authority, 
we have no difficulty concluding that the PBT administered to defendant in this case constituted 
a search under the Fourth Amendment. 

 Nor can we agree with the City’s argument that defendant consented to the PBT and that 
a search warrant was consequently not required.  “To validate an otherwise unreasonable search 
or seizure . . . consent must be unequivocal, specific, and freely and intelligently given.”  
Dagwan, 269 Mich App at 342.  “Consent [to search] is not voluntary if it is the result of 
coercion or duress.”  People v Bolduc, 263 Mich App 430, 440; 688 NW2d 316 (2004).   

 “‘When a prosecutor seeks to rely upon consent to justify the lawfulness of a search, he 
has the burden of proving that the consent was, in fact, freely and voluntarily given.  This burden 
cannot be discharged by showing no more than acquiescence to a claim of lawful authority.’”  
Farrow, 461 Mich at 207 (citation omitted).  “[K]nowledge of the right to refuse consent is not a 
prerequisite to effective consent.  Rather, knowledge of the right to refuse is but one factor to 
consider in determining whether consent was voluntary under the totality of the circumstances.  
However . . . the people need not prove that the person giving consent knew of the right to 
withhold consent.”  People v Borchard-Ruhland, 460 Mich 278, 294; 597 NW2d 1 (1999) 
(citations omitted).   

 
                                                 
4 It is true, as the City notes, that the United States Supreme Court in Skinner found breath tests 
to be less intrusive than blood tests.  Skinner, 489 US at 625-626.  But this conclusion was in the 
context of a broader holding that chemical tests administered to railroad employees for safety 
reasons—and not for the purpose of ordinary crime detection—met the “special needs” exception 
to the search warrant requirement.  See id. at 633-634.  As discussed previously, the “special 
needs” exception is inapplicable to law enforcement’s desire to detect evidence of ordinary 
criminal wrongdoing, such as in the case at bar.  Spencer, 292 F Supp 2d at 941. 



 
-9- 

 In the case at bar, the district court did not address the issue of consent, which generally 
presents a question of fact and normally involves credibility determinations.  Nonetheless, it is 
clear from the record that defendant was never asked for his consent.  Although there was 
conflicting testimony regarding which officer administered certain of the PBTs in this case, both 
officers testified that they did not ask defendant and the other young adults for their consent.  
Defendant testified, as did the others, that he had not consented to the PBT, and that he had felt 
as though he had no choice in the matter.  Indeed, defendant testified that he believed that he 
would go to jail if he refused to submit to the PBT.5  Defendant also testified that one officer 
“was really aggressive and intimidating.  I didn’t want to say anything to tick him off.”  Even 
one of the officers admitted that he was “pretty sure it was implied that [the young adults] were 
not able to leave until I finished the investigation.”   

 The record plainly establishes that defendant was never asked for his consent and did not 
give his consent at any time.  The City does not cite any case law to suggest that a mere failure to 
object to a proposed search constitutes actual consent.  Nor could the City do so, as no such 
authority exists.  Indeed, as noted earlier, the prosecution bears the burden of proving that 
consent to search was freely and voluntarily given.  Farrow, 461 Mich at 207.  “‘This burden 
cannot be discharged by showing no more than acquiescence to a claim of lawful authority.’”  Id. 
(citation omitted).  Defendant did not consent to the police officers’ administration of the PBT in 
this case. 

 Lastly, we disagree with the City’s argument that there were exigent circumstances that 
precluded the need for a search warrant in the present case.  The City asserts that because the 
Troy police were dealing with a group of several young adults, it would have taken too long to 
secure search warrants authorizing the administration of a PBT to each of the minors.  
Specifically, the City asserts that during the time it would have taken to obtain search warrants, 
the minors’ bodily alcohol content would have dissipated and any evidence of illegal alcohol 
consumption would have been lost. 

 The existence of exigent circumstances must be considered on a case-by-case basis.  The 
“exigent circumstances” exception to the search warrant requirement provides that the police 
may search without a warrant in cases of “‘actual emergency’” if there are “‘specific and 
objective facts indicating that immediate action is necessary to (1) prevent the imminent 
destruction of evidence, (2) protect the police officers or others, or (3) prevent the escape of a 
suspect.’”  People v Beuschlein, 245 Mich App 744, 749-750; 630 NW2d 921 (2001) (citation 
omitted).   

 As in Platte, we perceive no exigencies in the case at bar that would have permitted a 
PBT search without a valid search warrant.  Similar to the City’s argument in this case, one of 
 
                                                 
5 According to the testimony of certain witnesses, one of the officers had stated that anyone who 
refused to take the PBT would go to jail.  Other witnesses testified somewhat differently.  
However, even these other witnesses testified that the officer had told them that if they refused to 
take the PBT, he would “take us to the station” or to “the police station.”  One witness testified 
that although he could not recall the exact words used by the officer, he had assumed that he 
would go to jail if he refused to take the PBT. 



 
-10- 

the defendants in Platte complained of “the rapid rate of dissipation of alcohol in the 
bloodstream compared to the time it takes its police officers to obtain a search warrant.”  Platte, 
504 F Supp 2d at 242.  The Platte court found that “[t]he record in this case . . . fails to establish 
that the evidence sought ‘would probably be destroyed within the time necessary to obtain a 
search warrant,’ . . . when measured against the time the . . . police officers loitered at the scene 
in this case.”  Id. (citation omitted).  Moreover, while one of the police officers in Platte testified 
that “a search warrant could be obtained . . . in an hour and fifteen minutes,” the defendant’s 
expert witness testified that “alcohol would not dissipate from the average male’s blood until two 
hours and twenty minutes after consumption ceases; for an average female, dissipation would not 
occur until three hours after consumption.”  Id. at 243.  The Platte court concluded that “the 
record in this case establishes that the . . . police officers had time to request a search warrant to 
take breath samples from [the defendants].”  Id. 

 In the instant case, the City presented no evidence at the district court suppression 
hearing to establish that the police officers could not have sought and obtained search warrants 
before dissipation of the minors’ bodily alcohol content.  Nor did the City present evidence of 
any other exigent circumstances.  In short, the City failed to substantiate its claim that “it would 
have taken a long time to secure search warrants specifically authorizing the administration of a 
PBT” to each of the young adults.  The district court did not clearly err by declining to find the 
existence of exigent circumstances in this case.  See Farrow, 461 Mich at 209.  No exigent 
circumstances having been established, we conclude that the police were required to procure a 
valid search warrant before administering the PBT to defendant.   

C 

 The PBT administered to defendant in this case constituted a search within the meaning 
of the Fourth Amendment, to which defendant did not consent.  None of the exceptions to the 
search warrant requirement applied, and the police officers were accordingly required to seek 
and obtain a valid search warrant before administering the PBT to defendant.  The district court 
did not err by ruling that Troy Ordinance § 98.10.03 is unconstitutional on its face or by 
suppressing the evidence collected from defendant during the warrantless PBT search.  Nor did 
the circuit court err by denying the City’s application for leave to appeal. 

 Affirmed. 

/s/ Cynthia Diane Stephens 
/s/ Kathleen Jansen 
/s/ Kurtis T. Wilder 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 98 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 98 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 98.10.03 is amended and Section 98.10.04 is repealed as follows: (Underlining 
and strikeout denote changes) 
 
98.10.03 Under 21 – Purchase, Consume or Possess Alcohol. A person less than 

21 years of age shall not purchase or attempt to purchase alcoholic liquor, 
consume or attempt to consume alcoholic liquor, or possess or attempt to 
possess alcoholic liquor.  A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable as follows: 

 
a. For the first violation a fine of not more than $100.00, and the 

court may order all applicable sanctions and programs provided 
in the State of Michigan minor in possession of alcohol statutes. 
 

b. For a second violation of this section or a local ordinance or 
state law which substantially corresponds to this section a fine 
of not more than $200.00 and the court may order all applicable 
sanctions and programs provided in the State of Michigan minor 
in possession of alcohol statutes. 

 
c. For a third or subsequent violation of this section or a local 

ordinance or state law which substantially corresponds to this 
section a fine of not more than $500.00 and the court may order 
all applicable sanctions and programs provided in the State of 
Michigan minor in possession of alcohol statutes. 

 
A peace officer who has reasonable cause to believe a person less than 
21 years of age has consumed alcoholic liquor may require request the 
person to submit to a preliminary chemical breath analysis. A peace 
officer may arrest a person based in whole or in part upon the results of a 
preliminary chemical breath analysis.  The results of a preliminary 
chemical breath analysis or other acceptable blood alcohol test are 



 

  

2 

admissible in a criminal prosecution to determine whether the minor has 
consumed or possessed alcoholic liquor. 
 
A police officer who witnesses a violation of this ordinance may stop and 
detain the person for purposes of obtaining satisfactory identification, 
seizing illegally possessed alcoholic liquor, and issuing an appearance 
ticket. 
 
This section does not prohibit a person less than 21 years of age from 
possessing alcoholic liquor where permitted by state law.                                     

 
98.10.04 Under 21 – PBT Refusal.  A peace officer who has reasonable cause to 

believe a person less than 21 years of age has consumed alcoholic liquor 
may require the person to submit to a preliminary chemical breath analysis.  
A person less than 21 years of age who refuses to submit to a preliminary 
chemical breath analysis as required in this section is responsible for a civil 
infraction and may be ordered to pay a civil fine of not more than $100.00. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or 
abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any 
ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this 
penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and 
new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of 
this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 



 

  

3 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 
the _______ day of _____________,_______. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
        Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01a





  
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES       FINAL     May 27, 2009 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, May 
27, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room, City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Troy, 
Michigan.  Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Al Aceves 

David Hay (arrived @ 8:20 a.m.) 
    Michele Hodges (arrived @ 7:33 a.m.) 
   Larry Keisling 

William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 
Dan MacLeish 
Ernest Reschke 
Douglas Schroeder 
G. Thomas York 
 
 

ABSENT:  Stuart Frankel  
Louise Schilling  
Harvey Weiss 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Brian Murphy 
   John Szerlag 
   John Lamerato  
   Lori Bluhm 
   Steve Vandette 
   Nino Licari 
   Brent Savidant 
    
    
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-09-06 
Moved by:    Kennis 
Seconded by:  Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the March 18, 2009 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Frankel, Hay, Hodges, Schilling, Weiss 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
A. Award to Low Bidder – Contract 08-4 Rochester/Big Beaver Intersection and 

Park Improvements 
 
Resolution DD-09-07 
Moved by:  Aceves 
Seconded by: Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, that TDDA award a contract for Rochester/Big Beaver Intersection and 
Park Improvements project, Division I and II to Angelo Iafrate Construction Co, for 
their low total bid amount of $ 1,367.341.17 along with a 10% contingency. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent:  Frankel, Hay, Schilling, Weiss 
 
 
B. 2009/10 Budget 
 
Resolution:  DD-09-08 
Moved by:  Reschke 
Seconded by: Aceves 
 
RESOLVED, that the TDDA budget for 2009/10 be approved as presented. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Frankel, Hay, Schilling, Weiss 
 
 
C. Monthly Financial Report 
 
Received and Filed 
 
 
D. Planning/Engineering Update 
 

1. Steve Vandette updated the Board on the I-75/Big Beaver Interchange 
project. 

2. Brent Savidant updated the Board on a PDP within the district going before 
Council Monday, June 1, 2009. 



3. Brent Savidant updated the Board on the progress of the Transit Center 
project. 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Michelle Hodges asked for a Pavilions update. 
 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  June 17, 2009 @ 7:30 a.m. in the Lower Level Conference Room, 
City Hall. 
 

  
________________________________________ 

Alan Kiriluk, Chair   
 

  
________________________________________ 

      John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
JL/ph 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01c





campbellld
Text Box
J-01d





LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 1 of 6 

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
September 14, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Committee member Patrick C. Hall called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:   Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-011  
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of September 14, 2009 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of June 8, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-012 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the June 8, 2009 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be APPROVED. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 2 of 6 

Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. M&M Troy, Inc. requests new SDM license to be located at 1634 John R, 

Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req #438202} Attorney for M&M 
Troy, Inc. was contacted and faxed copy of Lt. Riesterer of the City of Troy 
Fire Department’s letter dated 1/15/09 requesting a registered design 
professional’s documentation as to if the stock merchandise is feasible.  
Also noted that four plumbing inspection violations were noted and needed 
to be corrected. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was business owner Majid 
Kesto.   
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that a professional design was submitted by 
the applicant, but it was not approved by the Fire Department or the Building 
Department.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster informed the Committee that the applicant has 
not submitted documentation to show a $250,000 stock inventory.  The Ordinance 
states that the $250,000 inventory must be in place prior to a SDM license being 
awarded.   Ms. Lancaster also stated it was her understanding that the applicant 
wanted the Committee to vote on the issue at this meeting. 
 
When asked by Committee Member Hall if it was his desire to have the Committee 
vote on this item tonight, the applicant responded yes. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-013 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
M&M Troy, Inc. for a new SDM license to be located at 1634 John R, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County be DENIED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 3 of 6 

 
2. Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 2932 East Long Lake Road, Troy, 

MI 48085 requests a new SDM License with drive-up window (without 
alcohol sales) {MLCC Req. #521903}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was store manager Michael 
Johnson.   
 
Mr. Johnson stated that there was a plumbing issue and a backflow preventer was 
installed.  The plumbing inspector approved the site.  Also, there was a problem 
noted by the Fire Department and an air pressure test was performed.  The Fire 
Department inspector gave her approval. 
 
Mr. Johnson clarified the issue of the drive-up window stating that only pharmacy 
items would be purchased through the window.  Beer and wine sales would be 
made only in the store. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-014 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 2932 East Long Lake Road, Troy, MI 48085 
for a new SDM License without alcohol sales at the drive-up window be 
GRANTED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert  
 
 
 
 
3. Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 1965 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, 

MI 48083 requests a new SDM License with drive-up window (without 
alcoholic beverage sales) {MLCC Req. #521882}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was store manager Stacy 
Priebe.   
 
Ms. Priebe stated that this location also had a plumbing issue and a backflow 
preventer was installed.  The plumbing inspector is scheduled to re-inspect this 
week. 
 
It was again clarified that the drive-up window is for the sale of pharmacy items 
only.  Beer and wine sales would be made only in the store. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 4 of 6 

 
 
Resolution #LC2009-09-015 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Walgreen Co. (an Illinois Corporation) 1965 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 
48083 for a new SDM License without alcohol sales at the drive-up window be 
GRANTED, CONTINGENT upon final approval from the Building Department. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
 
Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld briefly updated the Committee regarding the informational items: 
 
Square Lake – Livernois Business Inc. 
 
An SDM application for a gas station at Square Lake & Livernois. 
 
Numan Troy, Inc. 
 
An SDM application for a gas station at Rochester & East Square Lake Roads. 
 
Kher Enterprises, Inc. 
 
Inspections being performed. 
 
Mermiles Inc. 
 
Transfer of ownership. 
 
Good Food Company East, Inc.   
 
License placed in escrow. 
 
The Melting Pot   
 
Corporate satisfied financial requirements and license status did not change. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 5 of 6 

 
 
Target Corporation 
 
Previously applied for and received SDM license, but never activated it.  
Application was closed by MLCC.  Process must begin again. 
 
Marriott International, Inc. 
 
Change of ownership. 
 
The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit 
 
Former Mountain Jack’s location; will be similar to VFW type of club. 
 
Azteca 
 
Class C license will be purchased from business in Rochester. 
 
Agrusa Market 
 
Business has closed and SDM license has been placed in escrow. 
 
Student Representatives 
 
Two applications have been received and the request for appointment has been 
sent to City Council. 
 
Big Beaver Tavern & San Marino Club 
 
These businesses are now holding poker tournaments.  State Law indicates they 
can hold tournaments and sell liquor, but they cannot benefit from tournament.  
Charitable organizations such as churches can hold these tournaments four times 
each year.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             SEPTEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 6 of 6 

The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patrick C. Hall, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL September 29, 2009 
 
The rescheduled meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, 
September 29, 2009 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called 
the meeting to order at 7:38 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:     Rosemary Kornacki 
  Terry Navratil  

Brian Wattles 
Roger Kaniarz 

  Vera Milz 
  Padma Kuppa 
  Kevin Lindsey 

Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
             Cathy Russ, Library Director 
 
GUESTS     John and Sue Lavender, Troy Historical Society 

Ward Randol, Troy Historical Society  
Fred Rounds, Troy Historical Society 
Muriel Rounds, Historic District Commission 
Barbara Chambers, Historic District Commission 

         
Resolution #HC-2009-09-001 
Moved by Lindsey 
Seconded by Navratil 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the June 30, 2009 be approved as amended 
Yes: 7 , Kornacki, Navratil, Kaniarz, Milz, Kuppa, Lindsey and Wattles  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
Old Business 

A. Capital Projects 
Caswell House 
Repair of the waterproofing mastic on the foundation walls has been awarded to 
RAM Construction Co. for $2,885. 
 
Poppleton School 
Masonry repairs to the wash (architectural feature above the stone foundation), 
chimney, and poorly anchored accessibility railing will be completed by Akins 
Construction for $4,565. 
 
General Store 
The rod holes in the basement will be filled with hydrophobic grout by National 
Restoration for $1,435. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



2 

 
All repairs will be completed within four weeks. 
          

B.     Programs  
Winter Public Programs are being developed. 
School bookings are being received at the same rate as last year. However, staff 
has noticed that the number of private schools reserving programs has 
increased.  
 
The Troy Historical Society awarded five $200 field trip scholarships to cover the 
cost of museum admissions for 2009/10 field trips. These grants were awarded 
on a first come, first serve basis to classrooms that completed an application, 
submitted a letter of support from the principal, and provided confirmation that 
1/3 of their students received free or subsidized lunches do to financial need. 
 

C. Attendance 
       See attached reports.  

 
D. Collections 
    See Reports.  

William Boardman requests authorization to deaccession the following items: 
Bicentennial Commemorative bell (1976), Fairbanks scale (1900), Leather 
satchels/bags, Duro Co. Water Pump and Leland Electric motor (1930s), Pipe 
cutter/vise, Brother Electroknit Knitting Machine, Royal Typewriter (1945-50), 
plastic planter, Magazine collecting (Civil War Times Illustrated (1988-92), 
Franklin stove, nail kegs and buckets, miscellaneous tools, a grain cradle, 
kitchen tools, 2 electric fans, 4 sickles and sheep shears, a rag rug, 2 sets of bed 
side rails, miscellaneous printing equipment, a Cattaraugus Knife display case 
(1910), bucksaw, couch, textile art (1950), 2 adding machine, wooden table, 
baskets and tins, Edison handy Encyclopedia (1900), decorative plate (1989), 
cast iron bath tub, miscellaneous household tools, and a Kenwood stove.  

 
 

Resolution #HDC-2009-09-002 
Moved by Navratil 
Seconded by Kanriaz 
 

RESOLVED, That the request to deaccession the Bicentennial 
Commemorative bell (1976), Fairbanks scale (1900), Leather satchels/bags, 
Duro Co. Water Pump and Leland Electric motor (1930s), Pipe cutter/vise, 
Brother Electroknit Knitting Machine, Royal Typewriter (1945-50), plastic 
planter, Magazine collecting (Civil War Times Illustrated (1988-92), Franklin 
stove, nail kegs and buckets, miscellaneous tools, a grain cradle, kitchen 
tools, 2 electric fans, 4 sickles and sheep shears, a rag rug, 2 sets of bed side 
rails, miscellaneous printing equipment, a Cattaraugus Knife display case 
(1910), bucksaw, couch, textile art (1950), 2 adding machine, wooden table, 



3 

baskets and tins, Edison handy Encyclopedia (1900), decorative plate (1989), 
cast iron bath tub, miscellaneous household tools, and a Kenwood stove as 
recommended by William Boardman be approved. 
 

Yes: 7  Kornacki, Navratil, Kaniarz, Milz, Kuppa, Lindsey and Wattles 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
E. Grants 

Phoebe Crandall has been retained to help Loraine complete an application for a 
NEH Humanities Collections and Reference Resources Grant. The application 
outlines plans to digitize approximately 20,000 death records from Price Funeral 
Home, A.J. Desmond & Sons Funeral Home and the Museum obituary collection. 
These resources will be linked to other records held in the Museum Archive 
including census and land ownership records and images, letters and journals, 
when they are available. All or these resources will be part of the Museum 
Genealogy Center, which will be administered as a subset of the Archive. The 
application outlines a three-year project. The maximum award for a grant in this 
category is $350,000 for a 2-3 year project. The grant funds equipment, salaries 
and training costs. Generally about half of the project costs are funded. The 
application is due July 15, 2009. Awards are announced in April 2010. 

 
F. Interpretive Master Plan (IMP) 

The museum has received and reviewed from 106 Group a draft of the interpretive 
concepts, themes and subthemes. Loraine will schedule a second meeting with the 
Interpretive Master Plan Team to obtain their comments and suggestions before 
the revised draft is developed. 
 

New Business 
  

A. Strategic Plan 
The commission reviewed the draft Museum Strategic Plan 2009-2015 and made 
comments. This plan is based on the outcomes of the Museum Assessment 
Program (MAP) 2005-06, the plans developed by the Museum Expansion Team 
and ongoing work and recommendations of staff, volunteers, the Troy Historical 
Society Trustees and the Historical Commission. 

 
Resolution #HC-2009-09-003 
Moved by Lindsey 
Seconded by Wattles 
 
RESOLVED, That  the Museum Strategic Plan 2009-1015 be approved as 
amended. 
 
Yes: 6 Kornacki, Navratil, Kaniarz, Milz, Kuppa and Wattles  



4 

No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

B. Troy Historical Society/ Heritage Campaign update 
The site Plan was approved by city Council on August 3, 2009. 
 
The Gift Agreement for the 1859 Spencer Dairy Barn has been delayed.  Further 
negotiations with the co-owners are required. 
 
The RFQ/RFP for a construction manager for the project is written, has been 
reviewed by the Heritage Campaign Committee, and is now on hold. 
 

C. City manager’s Organizational Plan- potential museum closure 
The commission and guests from the Troy Historical Society and historic district 
Commission discussed the City manager’s memo and presentation to City Council. 
. 

D. Reports and Communications 
Staff 
Debra Newby has submitted her resignation to take a full time position in South 
Carolina. Her position will remain vacant. 

 
 

Commission Members 
None 

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 10:20 p.m. The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, October 27, 2009 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village 
at 7:30 pm. 
 

 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairperson 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

 



5 

Public Attendance 
Date Walk-In #Attending #Meetings/ Rental 

Fees  
Admission  Total  

      Programs Facilities 
Rentals 

  Fees Visitors 

  Jul-08 702 2,003 4 $350.00    2,705 
  Aug-08 878 1,033 8 $1,050.00    1,911 
  Sep-08 425 664 12 $700.00    1,089 
  Oct-08 511 881 11 $700.00    1,392 
  Nov-08 586 664 10 $700.00    1,250 
  Dec-08 425 1,132 6 $350.00    1,551 
  Jan-09 377 292 6 $25.00    669 
  Feb-09 235 140 4 0   375 
  Mar-09 329 178 7 0   507 
  Apr-09 491 212 7 $350.00    703 
  May-09 494 327 10 $400.00    821 
  Jun-09 742 147 16    889 
  Total 6,195 7,673 101 $4,625.00    13,862 
                
  Jul-09 1,001 1,120 2 $50.00  $2,269.50  2,121 
  Aug-09 877 356 0 $50.00  $1,366.50  1,233 
  Sep-09       
  Oct-09       
  Nov-09       
  Dec-09       
  Jan-10       
  Feb-10       
  Mar-10       
  Apr-10       
  May-10       
  Jun-10       
  Total 1,878 1,476 2 $100.00  $3,636.00  3,354 
                
  

         Attendance compared with same period last year     -27% 
    Concerts reduced from 5 to 3 and fewer weddings 

     

         Rentals + Admissions=  
  

$3,736.00  
    

         Net change in revenue for this period last year 167% 
    

         Percent of admissions target collected=  total 
collected/$15,000 24% 

    



6 

Collections Report: July 2009 
 
 

 Donations: 
 

 None 
 
 

 Donations declined: 
 
 Book collection (c.1920s-1950s) – storage space limitations; no Troy 

connection 
 
 

 Archive & Collections Research Activities/Special Requests: 
 
 Research:  None 
 Photo Requests: None 

 
 
 Special Activities & Focus Projects: 

 
 Processing & maintenance of the Collection & new donations 
 Scanning for Troy Fire Department book project 
 Transfer of artifacts from General Store basement prior to General Store 

repairs 
 
 

 Other Duties and Activities: 
 
 Internal/external correspondence – email, thank you letters, phone calls, etc. 
 Environmental monitoring/maintenance 
 Repairs to educational props 
 Computer support (scanning, PhotoShop work and general support) for 

interpretive staff projects & publications 
 General support for staff projects & publications 



7 

Collections Report: August 2009 
 
 

 Donations: 
 

 None 
 
 

 Donations declined: 
 
 Sewing machine (c.1900) – examples in Collection; storage space limitations; 

no Troy connection 
 Shoe lasts and misc cobbler tools (c.1920) – examples in Collection; storage 

space limitations; no Troy connection 
 Printing equipment (c.1920) – examples in Collection; storage space 

limitations; no Troy connection 
 Cream separator (c.1920) – example in Collection; storage space limitations; 

no Troy connection  
 
 

 Archive & Collections Research Activities/Special Requests: 
 
 Research:  None 
 Photo Requests: Big Beaver High School class photos c.1940 [general 

public] 
 

 
 Special Activities & Focus Projects: 

 
 Processing & maintenance of the Collection & new donations 
 Scanning for Troy Fire Department book project 
 Transfer of artifacts from General Store basement prior to General Store 

repairs 
 Painted Wagon Shop back door and hardware 
 Archaeology for Kids program 
 Niles-Barnard House archaeology project 

 
 

 Other Duties and Activities: 
 
 Internal/external correspondence – email, thank you letters, phone calls, etc. 
 Environmental monitoring/maintenance 
 Repairs to educational props 
 Computer support (scanning, PhotoShop work and general support) for 

interpretive staff projects & publications 
 General support for staff projects & publications 



8 

Deaccession/Disposal/Auction Candidates 
July-August 2009 

 
1. Bicentennial commemorative bell with stand c.1976 

Good condition; needs cleaning; 2 sections; bell and stand sits on wooden base; decorative only (no 
clapper); no foreseeable exhibit or program use; currently accessioned 81.35.2 

 
2. Fairbanks scale c.1900 

Good Condition; needs cleaning; other examples in collection; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; 
no known accession number 

 
3. Leather satchels/bags 

Fair condition; needs cleaning; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
4. Water pump (Duro Co.) and electric motor (Leland) c.1930s 

Good condition; needs cleaning; “Duro” serial number 7878390; operating condition unknown; no 
foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
 
 
 



9 

5. Pipe cutter/vise 
Good condition; operating condition unknown; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known 
accession number 

 
6. Knitting machine (Brother Electroknit Knitting Machine) 

Good condition; Model KH-270; operating condition unknown; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; 
no known accession number 

 
7. “Royal” typewriter with case c.1945-50 

Good condition; multiple examples in the collection; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not 
accessioned 

 
8. Plastic planter 

Excellent condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not accessioned 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 

9. Magazine collection (Civil War Times Illustrated) c.1988-92 
21 issues; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not accessioned 

 
10. Franklin stove 

Needs cleaning; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; currently accessioned 00.219.1 

 
11. Nail kegs and buckets 

Poor condition; staves falling out; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
12. Misc. tool lot 

Poor condition; all unserviceable or barely serviceable; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no 
known accession number 

 
13. Grain cradle 

Several wooden tines broken; includes an additional tine not originally associated with this piece; no 
foreseeable exhibit or program use; currently accessioned 00.39 

 
 



11 

14. Misc. kitchen lot 
Poor (vegetable grater) and good condition (milk glass juicer accessory); no foreseeable exhibit or 
program use; not accessioned 

 
15. 2 electric fans 

Good condition; operational; cage of plastic fan will not latch; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no 
known accession number 

 
16. 4 sickles and sheep shears 

Fair condition; rusted; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
17. Rag rug 

Good condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not accessioned 

 
18. 2 sets of bed side rails 

Fair condition; no head or footboards; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession 
number 

 
 



12 

 
19. Lot of misc. printing equipment c.1950s 

Good condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not accessioned 

 
20. Cattaraugus Knife display case c.1910 

Good condition; originally attributed to a store in either the Michigan U.P. or Monroe; no foreseeable 
exhibit or program use; currently accessioned 92.1.11.0 

 
21. Bucksaw 

Fair condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
22. Couch 

Poor condition; missing one foot; back separated; upholstery torn; no foreseeable exhibit or program 
use; currently accessioned 76.507 

 
23. Textile art c.1950 

Good condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not accessioned 

 
 
 
 



13 

24. Adding machine 
Good condition; needs cleaning; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
25. Adding machine 

Good condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
26. Table 

Fair condition; missing drawer; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
 

27. Baskets and tins 
Good to excellent condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not accessioned 

 
28. Book (“Edison’s Handy Encyclopedia”) c.1900 

Poor condition; paperback; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not accessioned 

 
 
 



14 

29. Decorative plate c.1989 
Excellent condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
30. Misc. lot 

Good condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; no known accession number 

 
31. Cast iron bath tub 

Good condition; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; not accessioned 

 
32. Kenwood stove 

Fair condition; missing one foot; needs cleaning; no foreseeable exhibit or program use; currently 
accessioned 93.5.8.1 

 



15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Troy Museum & Historic Village 
Strategic Plan 

2009-2015 
 
 



16 

Troy Museum & Historic Village 
Mission Statement 

 
The Troy Museum & Historic Village preserves and interprets the history and heritage of Troy and the region 
for our diverse community and provides a unique setting for lifelong learning. 
 

Vision 
 
The Troy Museum & Historic Village will be recognized as an outstanding cultural destination in southeast 
Michigan that emphasizes learning by interaction among staff, volunteers and visitors and that stimulates 
curiosity, awareness and appreciation of regional history and heritage. 
 

Values 
 

 The museum will provide an environment that fosters interaction, knowledge-sharing, and lifelong 
learning among visitors, volunteers and staff. 

 The museum will preserve cultural heritage through historically significant structures and materials. 

 The museum will preserve the history of Troy Township and the City of Troy through archived records 
and materials. 

 The museum will provide access to ideas, resources and materials that encourage curiosity and 
stimulate awareness, appreciation and understanding of the history and the cultural heritage of the 
community.   

 The museum will serve the community as a dynamic cultural destination that adds value to the quality 
of life of residents and provides an attraction for visitors to the region.     

Historical Commission Staff Troy Historical Society Board 
of Directors 

Rosemary Kornacki, Chair. Loraine Campbell, Manager Cheryl Barnard, Pres. 
Roger Kaniarz William Boardman, Archivist Sherrill Jackson, VP 
Padma Kuppa  Diane Behrendt, Admin. Cathy Ogawa, Sec. 
Kevin Lindsey Laura Bunting, Archive Tech. Sue Lavender,  Membership 
Vera Milz Ginny Czerwinski, Interpreter Fred Rounds, Treasurer 
Terry Navratil  Gillian Ellis, Interpreter Ward Randol, Asst. Treas. 
Brian Wattles Diana Franco, Genealogy Gloria Anderlie 
 Nancy Jones, Interpreter Richard Barnard 
 Ray Lucas, Genealogy  Ron Bernard 
 Anne Nagrant, Interpreter Alison Iceman 
 Frances Willuweit, Interpreter Judy Iceman 
  Kinda Hupman 
  John Lavender 
  Judy Siess 
  Gerry Young 

 
History 

 
The Troy Museum & Historic Village has evolved slowly over forty years. The campus of ten historic 
structures is the result of the preservation efforts of local citizens committed to preserving Troy’s past.  
 
The Troy Historical Society was incorporated as a non-profit corporation under Sec. 501(c)(3) of the IRS 
Code in 1966. In 1968 they were granted permission by the City of Troy to use a portion of the 1927 
Township Hall as a museum. Then, through a public-private partnership with the city, the Troy Historical 
Society relocated the Caswell House to the parcel of city-owned land behind the Township Hall. Their 
efforts to save buildings by relocating them to the museum were repeated six times as the young city grew 



17 

and real estate values exceeded historic values in the eyes of developers. The log cabin, Poppleton 
School, Wagon Shop, Town Hall, Church and Parsonage were moved to the site and the “Village” was 
established. In addition the City and Historical Society worked together to build a representation of 
Cutting’s General Store, to remodel an old workshop into the Print Shop, and to add the Gazebo, 
pathways, landscaping beds and parking lots to the facility.  
 
The City of Troy formally resolved to establish and fund the museum in 1974. At different times the 
museum has been administered through the Library Department, Parks and Recreation and as a separate 
department. Presently the museum is administered through the Library Department. The Troy Museum & 
Historic Village is a locally designated historic district. The museum adheres to the Department of Interior 
Standards for Rehabilitation in maintaining all of the structures. 
 
There are over 10,000 items in the museum collections. They include archival and photographic materials, 
textiles, and wood, metal, ceramic and glass artifacts, which are catalogued and conserved following the 
standards and guidelines set by the American Association of Museums. 
 
The services provided by the museum evolved with the physical campus. Public event days, evening 
lectures and weekend programs were developed. However, the cornerstone of the Troy Museum services 
remains the core education programs for grades K-5 that have been developed by staff and volunteers. In 
2008/09 12,252 students and chaperones from a seven county region participated in the museum’s popular 
education programs. Each program includes age-appropriate activities and meets Grade Level Content 
Expectations set by the State of Michigan. Additional program initiatives include: 

 An active volunteer program 
 Undergraduate college internships 
 Publications program 
 Genealogy Center 

 
In 2008-09 Troy Museum visitation exceeded 26,000 people. 
 
In 1995 and again in 2005/06 the Troy Museum participated in the Museum Assessment Program, which is 
co-sponsored by the American Association of Museums and the Institute for Museum and Library Services. 
Simultaneously, museum staff and the Heritage Campaign Committee of the Troy Historical Society 
developed a business plan for a capital expansion to enhance and complete the facility for future 
generations. These initiatives involved all museum stakeholders and have provided the goals and 
objectives outlined in this strategic plan. 
 

Goals and Objectives 
 
Note regarding timeline: 
Staff and financial resources to implement the goals and objectives listed below are very uncertain due to 
the present local and regional economy.  While this document is a five year plan, the Historical 
Commission, staff and volunteers will work first to maintain core services. 
 
Goal #1  
Provide a staff that is professional, responsive, and forward-thinking in meeting the needs of the 
community.  

 Formalize the orientation and training of museum volunteers and docents. Consult models used by 
other living history facilities including, The Henry Ford and Conner Prairie, or recommended by the 
American Association of Museums or the American Association for State and Local History.   

 Develop and expand partnerships to increase awareness and responsiveness to the needs within 
the community. Suggested partners include but are not limited to: 

o Troy Community Coalition 
o Public and private schools in Troy 
o Chamber of Commerce 
o Businesses and non profit organizations 
o Troy Garden Club 



18 

o Organized community groups 
o Universities and colleges 

 Work more actively with the Cultural Alliance of Southeast Michigan and take full advantage of the 
programs and services provided through the museum’s membership. 

 Increase staff training and development opportunities including: 
o Certified Heritage Interpreter (National Assn. of Interpreters) 
o Certified Interpretive Manager (National Assn. of Interpreters) 
o Leadership Training (Cultural Alliance of SE Michigan) 
o Collections care and management training 

 
Goal #2  
Provide a physical campus that welcomes all and provides opportunities for knowledge-sharing in 
telling the never-ending story of Troy in an interactive, intimate and human environment. 

 Work in partnership with the Troy Historical Society, the City of Troy, Troy Historical Commission 
and other partners to complete the museum as outlined in the Troy Heritage Campaign Business 
Plan. 

 Work with members of the Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities to provide 
inclusiveness in all aspects of the museum’s mission and vision. 

 Develop maintenance timetables and protocols as the facility is expanded. 
 Continue to maintain the structures following the Department of Interior Standards for Historic 

Rehabilitation. 
 Refine and update collections policies so that they address new needs and challenges brought 

about by the planned expansion.  
o Establish a more formal system of gift and loan acceptance. 
o Use The New Museum Registrations Methods rather than Dan Reibel’s registration methods 

book. 
o Merge the Collections Policy with the Operating Procedure document to produce a 

collections management policy. 
o Apply for a General Conservation Survey grant through Conservation Assessment Program. 

 
  

Goal # 3 
Respond to the needs of the community and work in partnership with stakeholders to develop, 
provide, and maintain outstanding programs and services. 

 Complete the Interpretive Master Plan and begin phased implementation as the expansion 
proceeds. 

 Work in partnership with Troy Schools to develop programs targeted for middle school grades, high 
school students and/ or special needs groups that meet appropriate Grade Level Content 
Expectations. 

 Expand the present internship program to include additional job training and retraining 
opportunities. 

 Outreach to the community to provide the museum facilities for purposes consistent with the 
mission of the museum. These may include but are not limited to: 

o Sets for the film industry 
o Ceremonies 
o Receptions for community or private events 
o Small group meetings 

 
Goal #4 
Develop policies and initiatives to ensure the Museum’s fiscal stability for the future. 

 Work in partnership with the Troy Historical Society to: 
o Develop a legacy giving program as the foundation for an endowment fund to support the 

museum 
o Investigate opportunities to increase the diversity, skills and capacity of the board  

 Formalize a grant writing program  



19 

  Develop a comprehensive marketing plan, perhaps with the assistance of a graduate student in 
marketing.  

 
 

 
 

 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES DRAFT October 6, 2009  
 

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
Minutes for October 6, 2009 

 
 
 

I. Call to Order 7:07 pm 
 
II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Kelly Jones 
    Cathy Francois 
    John Witt 

Sharon MacDonell 
Michelle Haight 
Karen Yelder 
Veena Rao 
Mayada Fakhouri 
David Guo, Student Rep 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
 

  Absent Reuben Ellis 
    Lily Huang, Student Rep 

   
III. Approval of Minutes – August 27, 2009 

 
Motion by Michelle Haight 
Seconded by Cathy Francois to approve the August 27, 2009 minutes. 

 
IV. Correspondence - None 

 
 

          V. New Business 
 
  a. Diversity Dinner 
  Dinner to publicize to business community.  Idea for keynote speaker: Dr.  
  Sarab Neelam, Oceans of Pearl. Sterling Heights just held second diversity dinner  
  (in September). Held at a banquet center, cost $30, included family-style dinner  
  with ethnic appetizers, entertainment, no alcohol. 300-400 people attended. Willie  
  DeChavez organized. Draw was honoring people, not sure what for. Cindy will  
  contact Willie to send us a program from the dinner. 
   
  Our Diversity Dinner could honor people (adults and youth) related to diversity.  
  Example: Nadeem Brown, Dr. Neelam. (There is a three minute preview for his  
  film). We could find business sponsors. 
   
  Special Meeting on January 13, 7pm.  Determine sponsorships, location,  
  honorees, main speaker (or Neelam). Possible dates: Thursday, May 20, 2010 or  
  Thursday, May 13, 2010. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES DRAFT October 6, 2009  
 
 
 
                     
 

VI. Old Business 
 
 
a. Troy Daze – EthniCity Poster Contest Wrap-Up 

 
 Suggestions/Comments: We had 14 entries and the four judges loved participating 
(Anru Chen, Patricia Eddy, Katie Skavoni and Willie DeChavez). 

 Participation could be low due to time of year. Suggest moving poster  
 contest to May (Diversity Month). Judging in June or September for Troy  
 Daze. Maybe display at Library or City Hall. Easier for school to have time  
 to promote. Hopefully, we would get more entries. 
  
 Related to EthniCity at Troy Daze, we did not get a lot of comments related  
 to where it was, why not here. 
   

Motion to hold the Poster Contest in May made by Michelle Haight and seconded 
by Karen Yelder. Motion approved unanimously. 

  
 The Board agreed to hold the poster contest in May, publicize in 
 February/March (Spring Break: April 2-11). PR: March/April, posters due  
 end of April, judged first week of May, display rest of May and winners at  
 Troy Daze Festival in September 2010. 
 
 

  b.  School District updates 
 Kelly could not get a hold of Roslyn Cox to invite her to EIAB meeting. Her 
contract is up. Michelle Haight will contact Tim McAvoy about the information she 
compiled related to diversity. 

 
 

c. Book Discussion Group 
  Should we wait? Kelly is a bit concerned with all going on in City right now. 
  Michelle: it will be a Community Read, we might want to solicit help from  
  other community nonprofit groups. There could be many different groups all  
  reading the same book but at different times and in different places. People  
  like our Board facilitating groups perhaps at library, Starbucks, places of  
  worship, etc. 
  Kelly was thinking of choosing a book and have our EIA Board facilitate the  
  book discussion. Where will we hold the discussions? Library, Community  
  Center, City Hall. Decide on a book and get dates for Spring so it can be  
  included in the Spring Troy Today. 
 
 
  d. African American Support Group, September 21 Meeting 
  Updates on programs: Math Excel and ACT prep classes. Good  



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES DRAFT October 6, 2009  
  participation in both classes (30 to 40 students). Had couple of speakers,  
  including Ed Spillars, who is running for State House of Representatives  
  (District 41). Also, Rochelle Williams, motivational speaker and counselor  
  spoke to kids on excellence. Initially had 120 families on the email list. 
 
 
  e. Cultural Brochures/Translated Brochures 
  Kelly has one in Spanish and will send via email to Cindy. 
  Daniel finished information on Russia for cultural brochures. Will send to Cindy. 
  

 
VII.      Member Comment 

EIAB chose Sat Basu as our volunteer of the year. Presented a Certificate of 
Appreciation at two events: Path Bhban event and Troy Interfaith Group Picnic. He 
was thrilled. 

   
  African Children’s Choir had 500 people attend. Kelly and Michelle sponsored kids  
  from the African Children’s Choir at their homes. They brought three “suitcases”  
  full of clothes for the kids. 
 
  Noel Night, December 5 at Detroit Cultural Center. 
 
  City of Southfield held an all world market (90 years) at the Southfield Pavilion last  

weekend. Entertainment, food, items for sale, and crafts. Kelly will get more 
information on the entertainers. 

 
  Michelle said TFEE said a non-teacher has never applied for a grant, but ok if Path  
  Bhban applies for $500 grant. 
 
 

V. Adjournment  8:25 pm 
 
Motion by John Witt, seconded by Kelly Jones. Meeting adjourned. 

 
 
  Next Meeting Tuesday, February 10, 2009 at 7 pm  
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Vice Chair 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 6, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Adrienne Milner, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hutson suggested advancing Agenda item #10 in front of Agenda item #8. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-079 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 
 
Yes:  All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-080 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 22, 2009 Regular meeting 
as published. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Ullmann reported on the September 15, 2009 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting, 
of which he indicated there were no items of consequence to report. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority meeting in 
September. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following items considered at the October 5, 2009 City 
Council meeting:  
 Approved ZOTA 240 relating to Article 43, Board of Zoning Appeals provisions. 
 Approved Amendment of Consent Judgment relating to The Pavilions of Troy 

Planned Unit Development (former K Mart Headquarters). 
 6-Year Organizational Restructuring Plan, fiscal years 2009/10 through 2014/15. 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. ELIMINATION OF HISTORIC DISTRICT DESIGNATION – 5875 Livernois 
 
Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of the Historic Home Study 
Committee to de-list the property at 5875 Livernois. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-081 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
WHEREAS, The owner of 5875 Livernois requested that the historic district 
designation of their property be eliminated; and,   
 
WHEREAS, The Historic Home Study Committee prepared the attached Final 
Report for 5875 Livernois, as required by Section 14 A of Chapter 13 Historic 
Preservation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission reviewed the Final Report and has no 
objection to the proposed de-listing. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends 
that 5875 Livernois be de-listed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 947 A) – Proposed Revisions to Spa 

Renaissance Medical Office Building, North side of Big Beaver, between Louis and 
Troy, Section 22, O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed revisions to the preliminary site plan for Spa Renaissance.   
 
The petitioner, Victor Saroki of Victor Saroki Associates, 430 N. Woodward, 
Birmingham, was present.  Mr. Saroki introduced Michael Dul, Landscape Architect; 
Jeffrey Williams, M.D.; and Patricia Pike, Office Manager.  He addressed the 
proposed revisions and the circumstances leading to their decision to scale back.  
Mr. Saroki responded to questions relating to landscaping, roof top screening and 
the building’s relationship to Big Beaver Road Corridor Study. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-082 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, On March 11, 2008, the Planning Commission granted Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval for Spa Renaissance, a medical office facility with a salon and spa; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, On March 11, 2008, the Planning Commission approved a reduction in 
the total number of required parking spaces to fifty three (53) when a total of 
seventy one (71) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking 
space requirements for office and retail uses, as per Article XL; and,   
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted a revised Preliminary Site Plan with modified 
building elevations and site landscaping.  Significant site elements such as building 
footprint, floor plan, use, access and parking requirements have not changed.  The 
revised Preliminary Site Plan meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements.    



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the revised Preliminary Site Plan for Spa 
Renaissance, located on the north side of Big Beaver, between Louis and Troy, 
Section 22, approximately 1.03 acres, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. THE PAVILIONS OF TROY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 9) – Proposed 
Amendment to Concept Development Plan (CDP) 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief review of the proposed development, of which the 
petitioner presented two concept options at a joint meeting with City Council on 
September 28, 2009.  Mr. Savidant introduced the petitioner, Gary Sakwa of Grand 
Sakwa Properties. 
 
Mr. Sakwa addressed the two concept options, economic conditions and proposed 
uses.  Mr. Sakwa said there is currently no market for residential, office or hotel.  He 
briefly outlined his intent and a desire to develop an additional 150,000 square feet 
of retail.  Mr. Sakwa indicated there would be no other changes to the Concept 
Development Plan.  Mr. Sakwa addressed the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study and 
stressed the need for a parking deck(s) on site to accommodate mixed uses. 
 
There was discussion on the following: 

 Retail outlook for future. 
 Layout/concept proposed by former petitioner. 
 Intent of PUD to provide mixed uses. 
 PUD approval process. 
 Amendment to Concept Development Plan (CDP). 

- Public Hearing on October 13, 2009. 
- Planning Commission recommendation to City Council. 
- Additional 150,000 square feet retail triggers Amendment to CDP. 
- Formulas tied to residential development. 
- CDP as relates to maximums and phasing of development. 

 Amendment to PUD Agreement. 
- Contract between City and developer. 
- Provides flexibility and allows different site layout. 
- Allocates 500,000 square feet retail. 

 Roles of Downtown Development Authority and Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

The following are comments from around the table. 
 Mr. Hutson would like to stay with original vision and principles. 
 Mr. Strat would like to salvage many of the original concept plans. 
 Chair Schultz addressed increase of retail; voiced concern with development of 

shopping mall concept and no remaining space to accommodate mix of uses. 
 Mr. Ullmann would like to stay with original principles and mixed uses. 
 Mr. Maxwell would like to stay with vision of original proposal. 
 Mr. Tagle senses the time is not right to develop the property. 
 Mr. Edmunds encouraged to work with petitioner; does not want to miss 

development opportunity. 
 
Mr. Sakwa said he would consider development within the parameter of the original 
PUD Agreement, and asked to meet with the Planning Department and appropriate 
City staff for further discussion. 
 
The petitioner was encouraged to create a place of destination, excitement and 
public display.  
 
 

________ 
 

Mr. Savidant introduced student representative Adrienne Milner.  All welcomed Ms. Milner 
to her first Planning Commission meeting.   

 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Larry Keisling, 6321 Sandshores, Troy, was present.  Mr. Keisling addressed the 
proposed PUD 9, The Pavilions of Troy.  He encouraged members to keep the 
vision of a mixed use development.  Mr. Keisling also addressed his concern with 
the potential vacation of Cunningham. 
 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Ullmann said there is an excellent article in the American Planning Association 
Planning magazine about energy in community planning and design. 
 
Mr. Sanzica addressed the proposed PUD 9, and indicated his preference is to stay 
with the original vision. 
 
Mr. Savidant indicated tonight’s discussion on the proposed PUD is just one step in 
the PUD approval process. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\10-06-09 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 6, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Adrienne Milner, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hutson suggested advancing Agenda item #10 in front of Agenda item #8. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-079 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 
 
Yes:  All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-080 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 22, 2009 Regular meeting 
as published. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Ullmann reported on the September 15, 2009 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting, 
of which he indicated there were no items of consequence to report. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority meeting in 
September. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following items considered at the October 5, 2009 City 
Council meeting:  
 Approved ZOTA 240 relating to Article 43, Board of Zoning Appeals provisions. 
 Approved Amendment of Consent Judgment relating to The Pavilions of Troy 

Planned Unit Development (former K Mart Headquarters). 
 6-Year Organizational Restructuring Plan, fiscal years 2009/10 through 2014/15. 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. ELIMINATION OF HISTORIC DISTRICT DESIGNATION – 5875 Livernois 
 
Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of the Historic Home Study 
Committee to de-list the property at 5875 Livernois. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-081 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
WHEREAS, The owner of 5875 Livernois requested that the historic district 
designation of their property be eliminated; and,   
 
WHEREAS, The Historic Home Study Committee prepared the attached Final 
Report for 5875 Livernois, as required by Section 14 A of Chapter 13 Historic 
Preservation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission reviewed the Final Report and has no 
objection to the proposed de-listing. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends 
that 5875 Livernois be de-listed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 947 A) – Proposed Revisions to Spa 

Renaissance Medical Office Building, North side of Big Beaver, between Louis and 
Troy, Section 22, O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed revisions to the preliminary site plan for Spa Renaissance.   
 
The petitioner, Victor Saroki of Victor Saroki Associates, 430 N. Woodward, 
Birmingham, was present.  Mr. Saroki introduced Michael Dul, Landscape Architect; 
Jeffrey Williams, M.D.; and Patricia Pike, Office Manager.  He addressed the 
proposed revisions and the circumstances leading to their decision to scale back.  
Mr. Saroki responded to questions relating to landscaping, roof top screening and 
the building’s relationship to Big Beaver Road Corridor Study. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-082 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, On March 11, 2008, the Planning Commission granted Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval for Spa Renaissance, a medical office facility with a salon and spa; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, On March 11, 2008, the Planning Commission approved a reduction in 
the total number of required parking spaces to fifty three (53) when a total of 
seventy one (71) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking 
space requirements for office and retail uses, as per Article XL; and,   
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted a revised Preliminary Site Plan with modified 
building elevations and site landscaping.  Significant site elements such as building 
footprint, floor plan, use, access and parking requirements have not changed.  The 
revised Preliminary Site Plan meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements.    



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the revised Preliminary Site Plan for Spa 
Renaissance, located on the north side of Big Beaver, between Louis and Troy, 
Section 22, approximately 1.03 acres, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. THE PAVILIONS OF TROY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 9) – Proposed 
Amendment to Concept Development Plan (CDP) 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief review of the proposed development, of which the 
petitioner presented two concept options at a joint meeting with City Council on 
September 28, 2009.  Mr. Savidant introduced the petitioner, Gary Sakwa of Grand 
Sakwa Properties. 
 
Mr. Sakwa addressed the two concept options, economic conditions and proposed 
uses.  Mr. Sakwa said there is currently no market for residential, office or hotel.  He 
briefly outlined his intent and a desire to develop an additional 150,000 square feet 
of retail.  Mr. Sakwa indicated there would be no other changes to the Concept 
Development Plan.  Mr. Sakwa addressed the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study and 
stressed the need for a parking deck(s) on site to accommodate mixed uses. 
 
There was discussion on the following: 

 Retail outlook for future. 
 Layout/concept proposed by former petitioner. 
 Intent of PUD to provide mixed uses. 
 PUD approval process. 
 Amendment to Concept Development Plan (CDP). 

- Public Hearing on October 13, 2009. 
- Planning Commission recommendation to City Council. 
- Additional 150,000 square feet retail triggers Amendment to CDP. 
- Formulas tied to residential development. 
- CDP as relates to maximums and phasing of development. 

 Amendment to PUD Agreement. 
- Contract between City and developer. 
- Provides flexibility and allows different site layout. 
- Allocates 500,000 square feet retail. 

 Roles of Downtown Development Authority and Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 6, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

The following are comments from around the table. 
 Mr. Hutson would like to stay with original vision and principles. 
 Mr. Strat would like to salvage many of the original concept plans. 
 Chair Schultz addressed increase of retail; voiced concern with development of 

shopping mall concept and no remaining space to accommodate mix of uses. 
 Mr. Ullmann would like to stay with original principles and mixed uses. 
 Mr. Maxwell would like to stay with vision of original proposal. 
 Mr. Tagle senses the time is not right to develop the property. 
 Mr. Edmunds encouraged to work with petitioner; does not want to miss 

development opportunity. 
 
Mr. Sakwa said he would consider development within the parameter of the original 
PUD Agreement, and asked to meet with the Planning Department and appropriate 
City staff for further discussion. 
 
The petitioner was encouraged to create a place of destination, excitement and 
public display.  
 
 

________ 
 

Mr. Savidant introduced student representative Adrienne Milner.  All welcomed Ms. Milner 
to her first Planning Commission meeting.   

 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Larry Keisling, 6321 Sandshores, Troy, was present.  Mr. Keisling addressed the 
proposed PUD 9, The Pavilions of Troy.  He encouraged members to keep the 
vision of a mixed use development.  Mr. Keisling also addressed his concern with 
the potential vacation of Cunningham. 
 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Ullmann said there is an excellent article in the American Planning Association 
Planning magazine about energy in community planning and design. 
 
Mr. Sanzica addressed the proposed PUD 9, and indicated his preference is to stay 
with the original vision. 
 
Mr. Savidant indicated tonight’s discussion on the proposed PUD is just one step in 
the PUD approval process. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAUSTUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 6, 2009 

ADJOURN 


The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 


Robert M. Schultz, Cnair / 

Kathy L. Ciarnecki, R'e'cording Secretary 

G:\PJanning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Final\10-06-09 Special Study Meetin9_Final.doc 

- 6 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, October 
12, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member Patrick C. Hall called the meeting to order a7 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-016  
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of October 12, 2009 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of September 14, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-017 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the September 14, 2009 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 2 of 3 

 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Square Lake – Livernois Business Inc., 5997 Livernois, Troy MI 48098, 

Oakland County requests new SDM License with Gas Pumps {MLCC Req. 
#518636}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Majid Elias. 
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that all Building Department and Fire 
Department inspections were approved.  Assistant City Attorney Lancaster 
informed the Committee that an inventory was received from the applicant and is 
in compliance with the City Ordinance. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-018 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Square Lake-Livernois Business, Inc., for a new SDM license with gas pumps be 
APPROVED.   
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert  
 
 
 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following informational items: 
 
Grand Azteca V Inc. 
Application has been made to transfer a Class C license from Rochester Hills and 
interviews are being conducted by the Building Department. 
 
Simbad Inc.  
Application has been made to transfer a Class C license from Southfield. 
 
NKG Business, Inc.  
Application has been made to transfer license from Buscemi’s. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 3 of 3 

 
Fine Wine Distributors, Inc. 
A wholesale license has been requested. 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC  
Ocean Prime restaurant is requesting to enlarge their outdoor service area.  This 
request was originally made in the spring of this year, but they chose to delay the 
project until the patio would be closed for the season.   
 
Space Station 
This is a Marathon gas station at 3410 Rochester is requesting a SDM and SDD 
license. 
 
 
Officer Feld introduced student representative Dane Lepola. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patrick C. Hall, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

1 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 13, 2009, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-083 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

2 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. 9) – Proposed The 
Pavilions of Troy Planned Unit Development, Northwest Corner of Big Beaver and 
Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned PUD 9 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the Public Hearing for this item was scheduled in an attempt to 
be responsive to the petitioner’s request to an aggressive review and approval 
process for a potential Amendment to the Concept Development Plan (CDP).  The 
PUD project was discussed at the October 6, 2009 Special/Study meeting.  At that 
meeting, the petitioner proposed to increase the retail component by 150,000 
square feet.  At an internal meeting on October 7, 2009, the petitioner verbally 
indicated to City Management that they do not desire additional retail square 
footage and their intent is to submit a Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) that 
would be consistent with the CDP.  Therefore, a Public Hearing is not necessary but 
there was not sufficient time to publish a notice of cancellation.  Mr. Savidant stated 
no action is necessary on the item. 
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen, Bloomfield Hills, was present.  Mr. Wilson is on the Troy 
Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors.  He asked members to address the 
proposed residential development and Cunningham Road. 
 
Chair Schultz replied the petitioner has submitted no plans. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it is understood the intent of the petitioner is to submit a 
Preliminary Development Plan that is consistent with the Concept Development 
Plan, which controls the site. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Schultz duly noted and acknowledged receipt of written correspondence from 
representatives of the Somerset Collection and a Troy resident. 
 
 

5. THE PAVILIONS OF TROY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. 9) – 
Proposed Amendment to Development Agreement – Northwest Corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned PUD 9 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced a memorandum prepared by the City Attorney’s office with 
respect to a proposed Amendment to the PUD Development Agreement.   
 
Mr. Forsyth gave a brief history of discussions with the petitioner and 
representatives.  He addressed the proposed Amendment of the PUD Development 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

3 
 

Agreement as submitted by the petitioner’s attorney as well as a request to submit 
the proposed Amendment to City Council at their October 19, 2009 Regular 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Forsyth detailed the proposed Amendment which primarily seeks to change 
Paragraph 30 of the PUD Development Agreement.  He indicated the City 
Administration is concerned that the proposed Amendment would preclude The 
Pavilions of Troy PUD from being a vertical and horizontal mixed use development.  
He indicated the proposed Amendment does not guarantee that the residential 
component, or any other mixed use component, would be constructed after the 
retail component, and therefore, is inconsistent with the Big Beaver Corridor Study 
and Master Plan.  Mr. Forsyth indicated the City may wish to allow a plan that calls 
only for retail uses for the property in light of the current economy.  He said should 
that be the case, the City Administration would work with the petitioner in applying 
for an Amendment to the Concept Development Plan. 
 
Mr. Forsyth said he wanted to inform the Commission of the proposed Amendment 
and concerns of the City Administration prior to consideration and action on the item 
at the October 19th City Council meeting.  Mr. Forsyth noted there is no action 
necessary on the part of the Planning Commission. 
 
Discussion followed on the PUD approval process.  The following concerns were 
expressed with respect to the proposed Amendment to the PUD Development 
Agreement: 
 Planning Commission would be forced to make a positive recommendation on a 

Preliminary Development Plan, should the proposed Amendment be approved 
by City Council. 

 Fundamental and character changes to PUD as originally submitted by previous 
petitioner. 

 Intent of petitioner and position of petitioner that original PUD is a “cartoon” that 
cannot feasibly be developed. 

 Timing of project and mixed use development, as relates to proposed residential 
units along the northern boundary of the property. 

 Disguise for what might be considered a rezoning request to retail. 
 Lack of support in the elimination of the last sentence of Paragraph 30. 
 Suspect misrepresentation on the part of the petitioner that there was discussion 

with Somerset Collection, in light of correspondence received from Somerset 
Collection representatives. 

 
There was discussion on drafting a Resolution to City Council. 
 
Mr. Branigan explained that an Amendment to the PUD Agreement does not require 
a formal recommendation from Planning Commission.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

4 
 

It was the general consensus to table the item so that the Planning Commission 
could draft a Resolution during a recess. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-084 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To table the item until after Agenda item #6. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 
6. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Adams Road Site Condominium 

(Renewal), 5 units/logs proposed, East side of Adams, South of South Blvd., 
Section 6, Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
renewal of the proposed site condominium site plan review, and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the application as submitted.   
 
Dave Donnellon of Design Resources, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was present 
to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Donnellon briefly addressed the current market for 
residential, and acknowledged the engineering design items that need to be 
addressed when the project goes forward.  
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-085 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Renewal of the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.70.00 One Family 
Cluster Option), as requested for Adams Road Site Condominium, including 5 units, 
located on the east side of Adams, south of South Boulevard, Section 6, within the 
R-1A zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

5 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 8:10 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:20 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

5. THE PAVILIONS OF TROY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. 9) – 
Proposed Amendment to Development Agreement – Northwest Corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned PUD 9 
 
(Continued – item previously tabled) 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-086 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the proposed 
Amendment to the PUD 9 Development Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission believes the proposed Amendment 
completely eviscerates and destroys the Concept Development Plan of a mixed 
use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed Amendment is contrary to the Master Plan and the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study; and  
 
WHEREAS, We believe that if the PUD is to be amended, it should begin with a 
new Concept Development Plan, and any action at this point is premature. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission vigorously 
recommends to the Troy City Council that it decline to amend the Development 
Agreement as proposed by Grand Sakwa. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

6 
 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Strat asked if some type of legislation could be enacted on parked vehicles 
along major roads that exhibit signage with the intent to advertise.  He specifically 
noticed parked trucks on the northeast corner of Long Lake and Rochester Roads.  
Mr. Strat also asked for an update on the transit center and the Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment relating to the sale of used cars in the M-1 zoning district. 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the status and funding of the transit center.  He said 
he would forward to members the minutes from the last team meeting. 
 
Mr. Savidant said that currently sign provisions are not part of the Zoning 
Ordinance, and noted that signage is not required in the site plan approval process.  
Mr. Savidant indicated that signage would likely be addressed in the rewrite of the 
Zoning Ordinance.  He further said that comments from tonight’s meeting would be 
forwarded to the Building Department. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment relating to the 
sale of used cars in the M-1 zoning district would be on the October 27, 2009 
Special/Study meeting agenda. 
 
Maryann Bernardi of 384 Lawson, Troy, was present and spoke with respect to the 
parked vehicles that contain signage for advertising.  She reported similar 
incidences to the Building Department, specifically at Coolidge and 15 Mile.  Ms. 
Bernardi further expressed appreciation to the members on the action taken on the 
proposed PUD 9 The Pavilions of Troy.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\10-13-09 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

1 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 13, 2009, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-083 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

2 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. 9) – Proposed The 
Pavilions of Troy Planned Unit Development, Northwest Corner of Big Beaver and 
Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned PUD 9 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the Public Hearing for this item was scheduled in an attempt to 
be responsive to the petitioner’s request to an aggressive review and approval 
process for a potential Amendment to the Concept Development Plan (CDP).  The 
PUD project was discussed at the October 6, 2009 Special/Study meeting.  At that 
meeting, the petitioner proposed to increase the retail component by 150,000 
square feet.  At an internal meeting on October 7, 2009, the petitioner verbally 
indicated to City Management that they do not desire additional retail square 
footage and their intent is to submit a Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) that 
would be consistent with the CDP.  Therefore, a Public Hearing is not necessary but 
there was not sufficient time to publish a notice of cancellation.  Mr. Savidant stated 
no action is necessary on the item. 
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen, Bloomfield Hills, was present.  Mr. Wilson is on the Troy 
Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors.  He asked members to address the 
proposed residential development and Cunningham Road. 
 
Chair Schultz replied the petitioner has submitted no plans. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it is understood the intent of the petitioner is to submit a 
Preliminary Development Plan that is consistent with the Concept Development 
Plan, which controls the site. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Schultz duly noted and acknowledged receipt of written correspondence from 
representatives of the Somerset Collection and a Troy resident. 
 
 

5. THE PAVILIONS OF TROY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. 9) – 
Proposed Amendment to Development Agreement – Northwest Corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned PUD 9 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced a memorandum prepared by the City Attorney’s office with 
respect to a proposed Amendment to the PUD Development Agreement.   
 
Mr. Forsyth gave a brief history of discussions with the petitioner and 
representatives.  He addressed the proposed Amendment of the PUD Development 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

3 
 

Agreement as submitted by the petitioner’s attorney as well as a request to submit 
the proposed Amendment to City Council at their October 19, 2009 Regular 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Forsyth detailed the proposed Amendment which primarily seeks to change 
Paragraph 30 of the PUD Development Agreement.  He indicated the City 
Administration is concerned that the proposed Amendment would preclude The 
Pavilions of Troy PUD from being a vertical and horizontal mixed use development.  
He indicated the proposed Amendment does not guarantee that the residential 
component, or any other mixed use component, would be constructed after the 
retail component, and therefore, is inconsistent with the Big Beaver Corridor Study 
and Master Plan.  Mr. Forsyth indicated the City may wish to allow a plan that calls 
only for retail uses for the property in light of the current economy.  He said should 
that be the case, the City Administration would work with the petitioner in applying 
for an Amendment to the Concept Development Plan. 
 
Mr. Forsyth said he wanted to inform the Commission of the proposed Amendment 
and concerns of the City Administration prior to consideration and action on the item 
at the October 19th City Council meeting.  Mr. Forsyth noted there is no action 
necessary on the part of the Planning Commission. 
 
Discussion followed on the PUD approval process.  The following concerns were 
expressed with respect to the proposed Amendment to the PUD Development 
Agreement: 
 Planning Commission would be forced to make a positive recommendation on a 

Preliminary Development Plan, should the proposed Amendment be approved 
by City Council. 

 Fundamental and character changes to PUD as originally submitted by previous 
petitioner. 

 Intent of petitioner and position of petitioner that original PUD is a “cartoon” that 
cannot feasibly be developed. 

 Timing of project and mixed use development, as relates to proposed residential 
units along the northern boundary of the property. 

 Disguise for what might be considered a rezoning request to retail. 
 Lack of support in the elimination of the last sentence of Paragraph 30. 
 Suspect misrepresentation on the part of the petitioner that there was discussion 

with Somerset Collection, in light of correspondence received from Somerset 
Collection representatives. 

 
There was discussion on drafting a Resolution to City Council. 
 
Mr. Branigan explained that an Amendment to the PUD Agreement does not require 
a formal recommendation from Planning Commission.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

4 
 

It was the general consensus to table the item so that the Planning Commission 
could draft a Resolution during a recess. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-084 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To table the item until after Agenda item #6. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 
6. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Adams Road Site Condominium 

(Renewal), 5 units/logs proposed, East side of Adams, South of South Blvd., 
Section 6, Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
renewal of the proposed site condominium site plan review, and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the application as submitted.   
 
Dave Donnellon of Design Resources, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was present 
to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Donnellon briefly addressed the current market for 
residential, and acknowledged the engineering design items that need to be 
addressed when the project goes forward.  
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-085 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Renewal of the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.70.00 One Family 
Cluster Option), as requested for Adams Road Site Condominium, including 5 units, 
located on the east side of Adams, south of South Boulevard, Section 6, within the 
R-1A zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

5 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 8:10 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:20 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

5. THE PAVILIONS OF TROY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. 9) – 
Proposed Amendment to Development Agreement – Northwest Corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned PUD 9 
 
(Continued – item previously tabled) 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-086 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the proposed 
Amendment to the PUD 9 Development Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission believes the proposed Amendment 
completely eviscerates and destroys the Concept Development Plan of a mixed 
use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed Amendment is contrary to the Master Plan and the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study; and  
 
WHEREAS, We believe that if the PUD is to be amended, it should begin with a 
new Concept Development Plan, and any action at this point is premature. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission vigorously 
recommends to the Troy City Council that it decline to amend the Development 
Agreement as proposed by Grand Sakwa. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 13, 2009 

8, PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

Mr. Strat asked if some type of legislation could be enacted on parked vehicles 
along major roads that exhibit signage with the intent to advertise, He specifically 
noticed parked trucks on the northeast corner of Long Lake and Rochester Roads, 
Mr. Strat also asked for an update on the transit center and the Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment relating to the sale of used cars in the M-1 zoning district. 

Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the status and funding of the transit center. He said 
he would forward to members the minutes from the last team meeting. 

Mr. Savidant said that currently sign provisions are not part of the Zoning 
Ordinance, and noted that signage is not required in the site plan approval process, 
Mr. Savidant indicated that signage would likely be addressed in the rewrite of the 
Zoning Ordinance. He further said that comments from tonight's meeting would be 
forwarded to the Building Department. 

Mr. Savidant said the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment relating to the 
sale of used cars in the M-1 zoning district would be on the October 27, 2009 
Special/Study meeting agenda. 

Maryann Bemardi of 384 Lawson, Troy, was present and spoke with respect to the 
parked vehicles that contain sign age for advertising. She reported similar 
incidences to the Building Department, specifically at Coolidge and 15 Mile, Ms, 
Bernardi further expressed appreciation to the members on the action taken on the 
proposed PUD 9 The Pavilions ofTroy, 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjoumed at 8:30 p.m, 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kathy L carnecki, Recording Secretary 

G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Fjnal\10-13~09 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 

6 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - DRAFT October 15, 2009 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, October 15, 2009, in 
the Director’s Office of the Troy Public Library. Vice Chair Belinda Shelton Duggan called the meeting 
to order at 6:05 P.M.  

ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Kul Gauri 
   Paul Lee, Student Representative 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-1015-01 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That Lynne Gregory and Audre Zembrzuski be excused.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Wheeler 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-1015-02 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Wheeler  
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, October 15, 2009, meeting, be approved. 
  
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Wheeler 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—None 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—None   
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Discussion of the impact of the City Manager’s 6-Year Organizational Restructuring Plan 
and the future of the Troy Public Library 
The LAB members discussed the City Manager’s plan, and created a statement to send to 
members of city council, expressing their support for the Troy Public Library: 

 

On behalf of the Library Advisory Board we would like to state that we vehemently oppose the proposal to close the Troy 

Public Library. During these difficult economic times it improves the quality of life in this city by providing free materials 

for education, research, recreation, as well as employment opportunities. We commend our library director and staff for 

diligently working to reduce costs at the library. To pit the Troy library—and quality of life—against the public safety in 

Troy is unfair to our citizens who require and deserve both. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



 2 

ADJOURNMENT  
 
Resolution #LB-2009-1015-03 
Moved by Wheeler  
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, To adjourn the meeting.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Wheeler 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 7:40 P.M.  
 
The next regular meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, November 12, 2009, at 7 pm.  
 
 

 
     
 _____________________________________ 

Belinda Shelton Duggan 
Chairman 
 
 
Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  October 27, 2009 

A. CALL TO ORDER              
 
A meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, 
August 25, 2009 at the Troy Community Center at 7:04 pm.  

 
B. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: Bob Berk 

Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart 
Sandy Macknis 
Jim Hattan 
Bob Preston 
Jeff Super 

    Dan O’Brien 
Alison Miller 
Sarah Wunderlich, student rep 
Alice Liang, student rep 

     
City Staff Present: Cindy Stewart 

   Jeff Biegler 
   Mike Lyczkowski 
    

Others Present: Poncho Massaini 
   Jeff Winiarski 

     
C. EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS   
 No one absent 
 
D. ADDITIONS/DEETIONS TO AGENDA   
 There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion to approve the minutes from the August 25, 2009 meeting was made by 
Mike Gonda and seconded by Jeff Stewart. 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of August 25, 2009 are approved. MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Recommendation to City Council for a Troy Daze Representative on Parks 
and Recreation Board. A motion to appoint Jeff Stewart was made by Mike 
Gonda and seconded by Alison Miller. MOTION APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  October 27, 2009 

 
b. Suggestions from 2009 Festival 
  

- Use white spray paint to mark the park. Recommendation from 
Parks and Recreation/DPW employees. 

- Special Needs Day-- tell teachers not to call up the bus drivers 
for pickup: Police need to do that. 

- Get info out to Linda Hannon—Buses with wheelchair lifts need 
to go last or be separated from other buses (idea for 2 
loading/unloading areas). 

- Warning signs in high pedestrian areas for shuttle drivers or 
informational meeting with drivers to alert them to drive slowly. 

- Explorers appreciated committee people screening cars in front 
lot. 

- More arts and crafts in main tent. (arts and crafters say Troy 
Daze is not the venue for them).  

- More local restaurants selling food. (Local restaurants said it’s a 
matter of staffing: very difficult to participate). They are given 
priority to be a part of the festival. 

- More “green” festival: more opportunities to recycle products. 
- Number or letter the rows in the vendor parking lot. 
- Add letter to other side of rows in front lot. 
- Block off parking spots during set up by Pistons trailer. 
- Put sign in two shelters that reserve them for Troy Daze starting 

the Sunday before Troy Daze. 
- Make bright orange neon arrows to get people from front 

entrance to Northfield Parkway entrance via Big Beaver or 
provide better maps. 

- Need three to four large, bright signs from DPW sign shop, re: 
No Drop-off by Police Order. 

- Vendor abusing drop off privileges (drop off people continually 
throughout the weekend via bus) – Bob Berk will handle. 

- Back parking lot still has issues of people not following 
directional signs. Big yellow signs with black arrows did help. 

- Overall review of Miss Troy Pageant: schedule special meeting. 
- Letterbox sign: was rented three or four years ago. Perhaps get 

one or two again, running for four to five days. 
Troy Daze Festival 
Parking $10 
No drop off or pickup 
Entrance 500ft ahead 

- But signs cannot be on the right-of-way. Would have to get 
permission (maybe the subdivision just north of the cemetery). 

 
 
 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  October 27, 2009 

 
- Food Vendors: 

o Straighten out the rows so the ones on the end can be 
seen. Now they are hidden from view coming from 
carnival. 

o If you move one of Arnold’s games, you could fix food 
vendor row. 

o Bring back the waffle breakfast (we have a church that 
wants to host one in 2010). 

- Note: the revenue from Arnold’s was our third highest. We had 
no waffle breakfast, parade, auto show and Kids Corner games. 

- Jeff Winiarski will repair/re-do electrical work to Boulan if he has 
the 2010 bid. Electrical bid will go out early 2010. 

- Ask National Honor Society if they would do free face painting in 
Student Art/Photo Tent. (We would have to provide paints). 

- Row going North-South on West side of volleyball court—move 
it to face main tent for more visibility. Robotics tent can anchor 
the row. 

- Thursday morning for special needs event, rides were not 
running. We need to be sure Arnold’s is up and ready. Also, the 
rides were shut off too early. It was an error with the contract – 
Cindy will talk to Purchasing to correct. 

- Fireworks—Embers falling on people between baseball and 
soccer fields. Odd wind that night from East to West. Some 
areas not blocked off within ball diamond. 

 
 

c. Appointment of co-chairs for 2010 Advisory Committee 
 

Motion to appoint Mike Gonda and Bob Berk as Advisory 
Committee co-chairs made by Jeff Super and seconded by Jeff 
Stewart. MOTION APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 

d. Ideas/Discussions for Troy Daze Festival 2010, September 16-19, 2010 
 

-  Due to Yom Kippur that weekend, there will be no parade. 
-  During 2009, the noise levels were not over the limit, but we did 
not have a parade. Also, no entertainment in the entertainment tent 
on Friday after the Naturalization Ceremony.  Also, Outdoor Stage 
that faces northeast carries to Shir Tikvah more than Entertainment 
Tent. 
-  Schedule special meeting to discuss the 2010 Miss Troy Pageant  
-  If Police have a new “bus,” it would need a lot more electricity, so 
Jeff Winiarski would have to know as soon as possible. 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  October 27, 2009 

-  Need more golf carts to cover operations and committee 
members. 
- Tables: were our numbers ok? We did not have EthniCity Tent, so 
less were needed. 

  
  
G. Old Business 
 

a. Financial Report as of 10/27/09: 
Revenue: $150,826.10 
Expenditure: $120,903.49 
 
 
 

H.  Member Comment: 
 
Alison—Cutest Toddler/Infant Contest – she will add Cutest Pets to 
enhance the project to make more money. 
 
Jeff—Outdoor Stage entertainment audience attendance levels were 
very light. Are we wasting money? Do two stages conflict with each 
other? If people pay $20-$25 for wristbands, they are not there for 
entertainment. Especially the Sunday prior to the fireworks, people 
really are there for food and rides, not a band.  Discussion held. 
 
 

Adjourn 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Alison Miller and seconded by Jeff Super.   
The motion passed unanimously.  Meeting adjourned at 8:33pm. 
 
The next meeting is Tuesday, October 27, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 



CITY COUNCIL EXPENSE REPORT
Months of October, November 2009

Council Person Expense  Date Purpose Amount Totals

Beltramini, Robin 10/1/2009 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 123.72$           
October, November, December 2009

123.72$            
Broomfield, Cristina 10/1/2009 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 129.90$           

October, November 2009

129.90$            
Fleming, Wade 11/4/2009 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 215.70$           

October, November, December 2009

215.70$            
Howrylak, Martin F. -$                 

0.00
Kerwin, Mary 10/1/2009 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 212.85$           

October, November, December 2009

212.85$            
Schilling, Louise E. 10/1/2009 Quarterly DSL Line 117.90$           

October, November, December 2009

117.90$            
Eisenbacher, David -$                 

-$                  

Total for Month 800.07$            

NOTE: This report is presented in compliance with Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
            Item 18. Miscellaneous Expenses

Date Prepared: 11/4/2009
Final Preparation By: J. Nash

S://Finance/Template - City Council monthly expense report.xls

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



DATE:         October 5, 2009

TO:              John Szerlag, City Manager

FROM:         Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager Economic Development Services
                     Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued September 2009

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 3 $8,500.00 $225.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $50.00

Sub Total 4 $8,500.00 $275.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $748,764.00 $7,605.00
Add/Alter 18 $1,402,650.00 $15,960.00
Kiosk 1 $645.00 $35.00

Sub Total 20 $2,152,059.00 $23,600.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 4 $662,405.00 $7,100.00
Add/Alter 14 $139,350.00 $2,435.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 7 $43,228.00 $955.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 3 $43,000.00 $625.00
Repair 5 $80,650.00 $1,195.00
Fire Repair 2 $379,538.00 $4,030.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $110.00

Sub Total 37 $1,348,171.00 $16,450.00

MULTIPLE
Repair 6 $47,790.00 $1,050.00

Sub Total 6 $47,790.00 $1,050.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 1 $700.00 $35.00
Signs 29 $0.00 $2,712.50
Fences 16 $0.00 $270.00

Sub Total 46 $700.00 $3,017.50

TOTAL 113 $3,557,220.00 $44,392.50

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2009
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 146 $2,920.00
Cert. of Occupancy 22 $1,666.25
Plan Review 66 $3,979.00
Microfilm 17 $174.00
Building Permits 113 $44,392.50
Electrical Permits 143 $5,942.00
Heating Permits 91 $4,200.00
Air Cond. Permits 38 $1,590.00
Refrigeration Permits 2 $125.00
Plumbing Permits 55 $2,919.00
Storm Sewer Permits 10 $352.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 10 $362.00
Sewer Taps 6 $1,562.00

TOTAL 719 $70,183.75

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2009
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 65 $325.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 18 $270.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 16 $80.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 3 $30.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 8 $80.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 20 $200.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 5 $75.00

TOTAL 135 $1,064.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2008 2008 2009 2009

JANUARY 71 $4,678,432.00 66 $5,215,813.00

FEBRUARY 81 $5,464,681.00 39 $2,463,134.00

MARCH 107 $3,480,525.00 76 $3,344,007.00

APRIL 141 $10,518,298.00 95 $3,005,226.00

MAY 161 $4,357,036.00 122 $1,679,112.00

JUNE 161 $8,178,329.00 148 $2,708,849.00

JULY 160 $10,497,107.00 106 $4,158,316.00

AUGUST 122 $15,981,779.00 117 $3,212,653.00

SEPTEMBER 134 $13,136,548.00 113 $3,557,220.00

OCTOBER 114 $3,760,152.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 109 $35,574,774.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 66 $1,762,444.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1427 $117,390,105.00 882 $29,344,330.00



SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2009 through June 2010

2004 2004

3 3 1 2 1 1 4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

r r r r

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

003 3 1 2 1 1 4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60
Ja

n
u

ar
y

F
eb

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

g
u

st

S
ep

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

00



Oct 5, 2009 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2009Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter NEW WAVE CONSTRUCTION 1339 COOLIDGE  220,000
Commercial, Add/Alter HABIB, MAXIMUS 3940 JOHN R 3944  130,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SCHONSHECK, INC. 5381 CROOKS  135,000
Commercial, Add/Alter KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC 201 W BIG BEAVER 1200  400,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 1650 W BIG BEAVER 100  120,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,005,000

Commercial, New Building HUNTINGTON CONSTRUCTION 791 W BIG BEAVER  748,764

Commercial, New BuildingTotal  748,764

Total Valuation:  1,753,764Records  7



campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



































 

 
 
October 12, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
James Nash, Financial Services Director 

   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Golf Course Monthly Operations Summary for September 2009 
 
 

Sanctuary Lake Operations Summary 
 September 

08-09 
ACTUAL 

September 
09-10 

ACTUAL 

2008-2009 
YTD ACTUAL 

2009-2010 
YTD ACTUAL 

2008 
Jan 1 – Sept 30 

2009 
Jan 1 – Sept 30

Revenue $109,049.11 $124,936.75 $442,101.92 $413,439.22 $846,180.62 $804,246.69
Expenses $106,549.52 $71,017.90 $330,126.37 $243,527.79* $1,106,099.78 $729,420.80**
Rounds 2,869 3,416 12,006 11,651 21,472 21,776

 
*Overall greens and pro-shop reduced expenses year to date $86,598.58 
**$300,000 Depreciation not reflected as was in 2008 and overall reduced expenses $76,678.98 
 

Sylvan Glen Operations Summary 
 September 

08-09 
ACTUAL 

September 
09-10 

ACTUAL 

2008-2009 
YTD ACTUAL

2009-2010 
YTD ACTUAL

2008 
Jan 1 – Sept 30 

2009 
Jan 1 – Sept 30

Revenue $102,231.91 $123,774.41 $584,800.02 $490,661.80 $1,112,939.72 $1,007,721.29
Expenses $114,059.91 $78,293.14 $350,481.17 $364,738.05 $828,850.29 $862,142.92
Rounds 3,610 4,830 18,945 16,958 38,767 38,640

 
 
 
 
Unaudited revenue/expenses as of September 30, 2009 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



Kraig Schmottlach October 11, 2009 
Troy and Recreation .....,""'-'UA 

3179 Livernois 
Troy, Michigan 48083 

Dear Kraig: 

I wanted to take a moment to sit down and write you a letter about my season 
golfing at Sylvan Glen GolfCourse. So often, you get the nasty letters with 
complaints and problems, this is not one of those letters. 

In F'ebluary 2006, I suffered a brain aneurysm, this me legally 
blind suffering a weak left my body, topped bad speech. Only 
able a bike, I have had to entertain my 12 year old son, activities 
close to home. We started golfing at Sylvan Glen, he mainly golf's, I duff the balL 
We were riding our bikes a mile the course, carrying are bags ofclubs on 
our shoulders. This is not an easy task for me to complete and the strain is hard to 
handle. 

Frank Dascenza, found out that we were doing this task and allowed us too keep 
our clubs in a closet. This allowed my son CJ and I the opportunity to golf more. 
Frank went out ofhis way to make us feel comfortable, he even gave my son tips 
and demonstration on how to be a golfer. CJ, was made very special 
every time we were at the course. 

Further, who works in the pro was another individual, that I can not say 
enough about, everyone from starters to ground crew have come to know us; 
going out of their way to be kind. I wish there was a way I could nominate Frank 
and staff for a special award in the city; they have made a handicapped father 
with a child; feel good about himself. My son and I can't wait for next golf season 
to start. 

Cc: John City Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



campbellld
Text Box
J-03f



From: William Miros
To: John Szerlag
Cc: Mary F Redden; "Larry Bowman"
Subject: Thanks Again for Attending the Hills of Charnwood Association Meeting
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2009 8:37:05 PM

John,
 
Thanks again for taking time from your schedule to inform our homeowners of the issues of the
day within running the City.
We appreciate you and your administrations efforts!
Best Regards,
 
William D. Miros
Principal, PMP 
Technology Consulting Associates, L.L.C. | V: 248.643.6650 | C: 248.765.1052
 

mailto:wmiros@tcamichigan.com
mailto:J.Szerlag@troymi.gov
mailto:ReddenMF@troymi.gov
mailto:lwbowman@gmail.com
campbellld
Text Box
J-03g



campbellld
Text Box
J-03h



campbellld
Text Box
J-03i



campbellld
Text Box
J-03j



From: RMSchultzTROY@aol.com
To: Timothy L Richnak
Subject: A note from a Happy Homeowner"s Association
Date: Tuesday, November 03, 2009 9:56:58 PM

Tim-
 
With all the recent publicity about the challenges faced by the city, it is important that city employees
know that their work is appreciated. As the president of the Courtwood Villa Condominium Association I
want to take just a few moments of your time to recognize members of your staff.
 
On Halloween day we discovered water bubbling through a sidewalk and our west drive bad become a
river. Our property manager called and advised the city and was informed that there were actually two
(2) water main breaks and that a repair crew would be on site as quickly as possible. In very short
order the water was shut-off and a bit later your repair crew arrived and work tirelessly to get our
residents back in service. Actually, this was our second water main break this year – I guess our 37
year history is taking its toll.
 
I was working that day and didn’t get home until about 8:30 PM. Your personnel were still here and I
stopped to speak with them.  It was chilly and naturally muddy and I am sure that your people would
far rather have been home with the families or attending a Halloween party. What impressed me most
was their congeniality and positive attitudes. It was refreshing to experience people who love their jobs
and are dedicated to doing their job only one way – the right way.
 
I am fully aware that this dedication runs through your entire staff, but having had personal exposure to
the crew that was on our site I wanted to let you know what great people you have on your staff. They
are yet another reason the residents of Troy take so much pride in our city. 
 
Thank you and your staff for their prompt and professional response.
 
Bob Schultz
rmschultztroy@aol.com

mailto:RMSchultzTROY@aol.com
mailto:richnaktl@troymi.gov
mailto:rmschultztroy@aol.com
campbellld
Text Box
J-03k



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a



campbellld
Text Box
J-04b



campbellld
Text Box
J-04c



Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting 
September 17, 2009 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Present: Leonette Ciepielowski, Robin Beltramini, Robin Lilly, Bruce Baxter, Brian Goul, Daniella Youhan, Dane 

Lepola, Ann Comiskey, Jeanne Stine, Dale Zygnowicz, Paul Scobie. 
 

Call to order: Leonette called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. All rose for the Pledge of Allegiance.  

                         
Minutes:  Robin B moved to approve the minutes of August 20, 2009. Bruce seconded, so moved.  

 

Treasurer’s Report: George Zielinski:  
 

 Paul presented August Treasurers Report. Jeanne moved to approve report as presented. Ann. seconded; so 

moved. 

Communications:  

 

 Spoke about the new Troy School Policy Pay to Plug. It was agreed that TYA would cover the cost $50.00 for 

the use of a microwave and small refrigerator.  

 

Caseworker’s Report:  
             

 TRANSITION ITEMS-I am privileged to report that Karen Wonsowicz has been assigned as the TYA 

Caseworker beginning October 1. Karen will attend our Annual Breakfast Meeting and she and I will make 

time in the coming days to discuss programs and caseload. Karen brings energy, enthusiasm, and knowledge to 
the role; join me in giving her a warm welcome. 

 YOUTH ASSISTANCE SUMMIT-PHASE II-Leonette Ciepielowski, Robin Beltramini, and Nancy 

Piotrowski ably represented TYA at the initial YA Summit on June 24. A follow up gathering (summit II_) is 
scheduled for Wednesday, September 30 at the Oakland county Courthouse from 7:00 -9:00 p.m. More 

discussion will take place related to how Youth Assistance is being impacted by the current economic climate.  

We would love for YOU to participate in this important meeting on September 30. Please speak with Leonette 

or myself if you are able to attend. It will be held in the Commissioner’s office.  
 CASEWORK-During August, three new referrals came into TYA-all from police. Our caseload as of August 

31, 2009 stood at 37- 29 boys and 8 girls. 

Executive Committee Report: 

 Leonette spoke of upcoming Summit Phase II September 30.  

Committee Reports: 

 A.   Camp/Skill Building: Brian Goul:  

 We had a good camp season. Should be receiving bill for overnight camp soon. 

 B.   Family Education:  

 Will be holding a meeting next week. Thank you to Daniella and family for getting out our mailing. 

 C. Fundraising- Vacant: 

 

  D. Mentors Plus-Bruce Baxter: 

 No Report 

E. Membership- Nancy Piotrowski:  

 No Repot 

     

      F. Publicity: 

 No report 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



E. Youth Involvement-  

 Leonette reports we will once again have the Halloween candy pick up. 

 Ann spoke of a new project, Leonette and Paul will follow up. 

       H. Youth Recognition-Committee 

 No report  

School Reports:  

 Daniella reports Troy Athens Homecoming is coming up. The theme this year will be wonderland. School is 

off to a good start. 

 Dane reports that Troy High also has its Homecoming coming up there theme will be Hollywood. 

Old Business:  

 Troy Chamber of Commerce: Non Profit Network. Discussion on financial responsibility. Next meeting will 

be October 21 after meeting will be lunch. 

 Membership/Recruitment: Paul attended the Volunteer Expo participation was a little down from last year. 

New Business:  

 Youth Assistance Summit II- September 30 Robin B. agreed to attend. 

 

Community Information From Organization/Agencies Liaisons: 

 Jean reports that the Friends of the Library had its Grand opening  

 Ann reports the Troy Community Coalition will be holding their Celebrity night dinner October 29. Coalition 

October 1
st
 meeting will host the council candidates.  

 Paul said thank you to everyone. 

 Robin B reports Troy Daze will be this week end. Pre pay parking tickets $10.00. 

 October 8
th
 will be the last date to register to vote. 

 

Adjourned:  7:20 p.m. 
 

 

Next meeting will be October 15, 2009 @ 6:00 p.m. 

     

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Robin Lilly, Secretary    
 

 

Finale  

                                      



  

 
 
September 29, 2009 
 
 
TO:         John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:         Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager / Economic Development Services 
                    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   PY 2009 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 
 
Background: 
 
 Oakland County has informed the City of Troy that the public service cap has been 

reduced from 45% to 30% of community allocations for public services. 
  

 The Community and Home Improvement Division of Oakland County has notified the 
City of Troy, effective September 3, 2009, that we may now obligate and expend 
program year 2009 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds as follows: 

 
o Flood Drain Improvements: $ 115,072.00 
o Home Chore Program  $   50,388.00 
o Administration:  $     2,500.00 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The City of Troy’s Program Year 2009 CDBG allocation is $167,960.00  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Miller’s Review/Agenda 11.09.09 – CDBG PY 2009 funds 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: September 23, 2009 
SUBJECT: Stephanie Cobb v City of Troy d/b/a The Northridge Office 

Center 
 

 
 
Enclosed please find a lawsuit that was filed by Plaintiff Stephanie Cobb, who 

suffered injuries after falling in a parking lot located in front of an office complex located 
at 100 Kirts Blvd. (the Northridge Office Center).  Since the complaint alleged that the 
injuries occurred in a parking lot, instead of a sidewalk or other right of way, we 
immediately reviewed the title history, and confirmed that the City of Troy was not, and 
had never been the owner of the property where the injury allegedly occurred.  The City 
of Troy is included in the chain of title, since there was a right of way expansion 
approximately 21 years ago, but we were able to verify that Plaintiff’s alleged injury did 
not occur in the City’s right of way.   

 
We then informed Plaintiff’s attorney that a Motion for Summary Disposition would be 

filed, and costs and attorney fees sought, unless Plaintiff voluntarily dismissed the City 
from the lawsuit.  The case was dismissed on September 21, 2009 by Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Lisa Gorcyca.  A copy of the Dismissal Order is also attached for 
your review.  Even though the City of Troy has been dismissed from this lawsuit, the 
remaining parties will continue this litigation, and the City’s name will remain in the 
caption.   
 
 If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-07





























1 
 

To:  Mayor and Members of City Council 

  cc:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

        Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

From:  Robin Beltramini, Council member 

Subject: NLC Finance, Administration and Intergovernmental Relations Steering Committee 
meeting, Oct. 8-10, 2009; Mountain View CA  

Date: Oct. 30, 2009 

 

First, thank you for the opportunity to represent the City of Troy and our interests at this discussion of 
national policy and advocacy.  The weekend was a bright exchange of ideas related to the economy, 
including the need for structural reform of the state/municipal relationship.  We talked about the 
interrelationship of health care and municipal finance, continued the discussions of municipal bond 
ratings and insurance, and considered recommendations for NLC policy adjustments.  A synopsis of the 
discussions follows. 

California’s Economic Crisis (Background):  This panel included Michael Coleman, previous city manager 
with a 12 year focus on municipal finance and author of The California Municipal Revenue Sources 
Handbook (2008), Mike Kasperzak, council member City of Mountain View, and Stephen Levy, director 
and senior economist at the Center for Continuing Study of the California Economy.   

Coleman offered a primer on CA municipal finance.  Unlike Michigan, California cities have some latitude 
to raise revenue—average CA city budgets include 25% utility fees (including enterprise funds); 37% 
from property, sales, user, and miscellaneous taxes and income; 15% general fees;  5% other specified 
taxes;  5% “other”;  4% federal funds;  4% state funds;  2% interest and rents;  1% license and fees;  2% 
assessments.  As you know, Michigan communities cannot collect taxes other than property and income.  
Our utility fees are not General Fund revenue.  Our assessments require a different sort of accounting.  
The other “miscellany”—federal, state, interest and rents, license and fees looked familiar.  Statutory 
similarities included CA’s Prop 13 and our Proposal A both of which limit the growth of property tax 
rates.  Their mechanisms are slightly different but have similar results.  CA has a “Prop 1A” which 
specifically allows “loans” from other designated funds to the Education Revolving Augmentation Fund 
at the state level, but all must be paid back within three years with interest.  This has created a bit of a 
moving “shell game” as funds are raided in turn to bring the educational fund up to appropriate levels. 

Levy highlighted the actions that have brought on the economic crisis in the world’s eighth largest 
economy (State of CA).  Two historic points are critical to the analysis:  1) In 2000 CA had a 2-3 year 
surge in revenue.  Taxes were cut and spending increased.  This, over time, created a $10-15 billion 
deficit now escalating. 2) State, federal, and local governments currently have distressed revenue 
streams. As an overview, the 2-3 year recovery period expected to follow this recession in CA creates 
the necessity of recognizing the importance of local communities to enhancing state success in the 
global marketplace.  Secondly, the decrease in consumer spending must be filled with business 
investment. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



2 
 

Like Michigan, the State of California’s inability to pay has created a hole in the safety net for cities.  The 
loss of state funds to local communities is especially damaging when coupled with losses in other 
funding sources. 

It is important to distinguish the economy from the budget.  Economy in CA will rebound because of 
federal agenda centered on research, high tech and global connections.  The state’s problem is that the 
general prosperity won’t equate to enough state revenue to cover spending.  Cities and the state must 
deal with the issue of the slow growth in revenue streams.   

California’s Economic Crisis (Solutions):  Panel members were Dan Carrigg, Legislative Director for the 
League of California Cities (LCC), Rich Saskal, Far West Bureau Chief for The Bond Buyer, Fred Silva, 
Senior Fiscal Policy Advisor for California Forward. 

Saskal articulated the redevelopment challenges in CA.  CA Legislature has taken TIF funding to balance 
other portions of the state budget.  Suits against the State over the practice have been successful, but 
will be appealed for years to come.  Therefore, TIF involved property sales are difficult (and much of CA 
property is in TIF areas).  The ratings questions surrounding municipal bonds have resulted in a “hold” 
on municipal bond insurance. ARRA funding (Stimulus) has had a positive impact.  Build America Bond 
program has been successful and popular because it pushed in favor of issuers.  ARRA relaxed rules for 
commercial banks to carry municipal bonds and increased bank qualified bonds.  All could be renewed, 
changed, or cancelled at the end of 2010. 

Silva’s California Forward is a 501c3 and 501c4 non-profit with a focus on governance and fiscal reform.  
Like Michigan, the CA interrelated fiscal issues are: the budget process, the revenue process and the 
state and local relationship.  There is confusion in the accountability for taxation.  In CA, there are major 
discrepancies in the various kinds of taxation, who decides to tax, and who uses the tax revenue.  The 
problem is that state and local government finances are interdependent.  The State has a persistent 
imbalance while the local governments lack independent control of local resources.  CA Forward’s goal 
in reform is to fund shared priorities with an eye on outcomes and managed public resources.  Changes 
recommended:  multi-year budgeting; outcome based with performance review; legislative oversight 
and sunset review; majority vote to pass budget (CA currently requires 2/3); “paygo” for any new 
program; require a budget reserve (to even out the surges in income) funded through a transfer of non-
recurring revenue to savings.  Local reform changes:  local taxes for local purposes, including all property 
tax and TIF; enhance local cooperation by ability to authorize local additional revenues by jurisdiction 
(city, county, schools). 

Carrigg gave an overview of the position adopted by the “CCS Partnership,” a joint effort of the League 
of California Cities, California State Assn of Counties, and the California School Boards Assn.  The 
consortium has developed a set of principles to guide changes necessary to realign the state/local 
relationship and bring authority and responsibility closer to communities and local governance 
structures.  The principles are:  1) Responsive and accountable local governments;  2) State preemption 
of local control (should be the exception);  3) Enhanced protection from State mandates;  4) Personnel 
policies and pensions (local issue);  5) Focus on outcomes in State funding of locally delivered services;  
6) Modernize State budgeting;  7) Update State and local revenue systems (reflect service economy and 
tax equity concerns);  8)  Governance and responsiveness (periodic review of government structure, 
functions and financing);  9) Organization of the State Legislature (election changes including term limits 
and operational issues). 



3 
 

Additionally, Carrigg reviewed the LCC position that cities must have the ability to protect themselves.   
All communities need the ability to meet their own needs. 

The Q & A portion of the morning focused on the points that could be extrapolated to most of the 
country:  the need for a functioning state and local partnership with clearly defined responsibilities, 
accountability and use of best practices; changing the “we’ve always done it that way” comfortable 
mentality; the global attraction of local communities; the adverse impact of term limits. 

 

San Francisco’s Experience in Containing Health Care Costs:  Gregg Sass, CFO Public Health, City of San 
Francisco gave a point by point presentation on what the city has done to bring down emergency room 
use by the indigent, increase revenue to the public health system through patient fees, assigned primary 
care provider for participants and the program Healthy San Francisco.  The goal has been to reduce the 
reliance on the city’s General Fund for payment of health care.  This was accomplished through a 
coordinated case management system using electronic charting, reporting, communications services 
across teams dealing with high utilizers.  It allows more efficient tracking of users and enables more 
effective outreach and system for engagement and treatment.  Public practice personnel are paid by 
salary, not performance.  That is, numbers of patients per hour are irrelevant for purposes of 
remuneration.  Result is that public health patients are invested in the system (They pay a premium for 
service coverage, and pay more if they will not cooperate with a primary provider and instead choose to 
use urgent care or emergency facilities.) and use levels out over time. 

We also learned that some CA employers, notably Google and some higher education institutions, have 
differential pricing in the vending machines (e.g., healthy snacks may cost $.25 in the same machine 
where cookies cost $4) to encourage healthy choices.  We were given some specifics regarding hospital 
funding in CA, as well.  Then, as an example of what public and private funding can do for a regional 
hospital, we were given a tour of the new $428 million El Camino Hospital—amazing! 

 

Legislative Update:  Lars Etzkorn, NLC staff member, brought us up to date on the two biggest issues 
pertaining to the FAIR committee.  First, there is the issue of municipal bond insurance.  With the 
demise of several of the major bond insurers, many communities without a AAA bond rating have had 
trouble selling their bonds, and keeping their rating because of “technical defaults.”  Some cities were 
cited for technical default if one of their insurers failed—although none of the community’s payments 
were late, short, or otherwise compromised—an asterisk (*) on their record.  To avoid such continuing 
difficulties, NLC has been discussing with Congress the possibility of a Mutual Bond Insurance Company 
for municipal bonds.  The debate in Washington is ongoing.  The second major issue is the health care 
reform and how some of the bills speak to covering “all Americans,” “bona fide” fringe benefits, and the 
impact this all has on local budgets where employee health care averages 17% of a city budget.  The 
Steering Committee chose to advocate a controlling costs priority and asked staff for clarification of 
some of the arguably ambiguous and polarizing language.  Also, the committee felt that any polarizing 
language in any NLC policy would undermine credibility and bring advocacy challenges. 

 

NLC Policy discussion:  The Steering Committee will recommend to the membership that the 2010 
Census be supported and has added language requiring proper training for census workers.  The support 
of a working intergovernmental (true) partnership will be recommended for renewal.  In keeping with 



4 
 

the notion that local authority is a key component in our ability to serve our citizens, the resolutions 
supporting state and local government authority for tax incentives and economic development, as well 
as the opposition to requirements for state and local administration of federal communications taxes 
will be recommended for renewal.  The opposition to legislation that prevents local governments from 
collecting business activity taxes is scheduled to become permanent NLC policy. 

We recognize that there may be additional issues brought forward by the membership at the Congress 
of Cities meeting in November.  Those issues will be handled by the policy committee and then, if 
necessary, the Resolutions Committee and then the general NLC membership. 

 

Conclusions:  While it appears that much of the meeting was focused on the host state, there is much to 
be learned from California’s mistakes and the paths that state took to get to where it is today.  Many 
states have followed California’s lead in such matters.  Now, we must learn from their mistakes, weigh 
the value of their suggested reforms and our own, and move our own state forward.  Like Michigan, 
California has a diverse mixture of local communities and realizes that those assets are at the center of 
any economic recovery. 

In some ways, the weekend was very disturbing because of the parallels between Michigan and 
California.  In so many things throughout History, California has led and we have followed, particularly in 
matters of social change.  There is much social change that is driving the economic change in today’s 
world.  Paying attention to California and its lessons could be very beneficial for us.  I was proud to be 
able to add our interests, successes and cautionary tales to the discussion.  Thank you. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REB 

 



GGM/tc  o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\agenda items\2009 agendas\reimbursement revenue cc report 10 19 09.doc 

 

 

 
 
October 13, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police  
 
SUBJECT:   Reimbursement Revenue 
 
 
The Troy Police Department has formalized agreements with a number of federal law enforcement 
agencies through Memorandums of Understanding that provide for reimbursement of designated 
expenses.  Generally, overtime expenses and specific costs associated with services or personnel 
dedicated toward task force objectives are eligible for reimbursement.  We do not believe that those 
reimbursement expenses have been routinely tracked as revenue.  Captain Frye recently met with 
Finance Department personnel and they have created a reimbursement account to better track those 
deposits (in particular EFT deposits) that are received as a result of applicable invoices.  We have 
compiled a short list of agencies that are typically invoiced for services. 
 

 FBI / ICE- (Balkan Organized Crime Task Force) 
o Reimbursement of overtime and computer lease expenses. 

 FBI- (Detroit Mortgage Fraud Task Force) 
o Reimbursement of overtime and cell phone expenses. 

 DEA – (Task Force Agent) 
o Reimbursement of overtime. 

 
In addition to the listed agencies, the Department receives funding for specific cases through both 
Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force (OCDETF) funds and High Intensity Drug Trafficking 
Area (HIDTA) funds.  We expect to receive overtime reimbursement and possible salary 
reimbursement for the police officer who was recently selected and will be assigned to the ICE- 
B.E.S.T. team.  Invoices submitted since the end of June 2009 through today’s date total 
approximately $27,000.00. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
J-09



campbellld
Text Box
J-10



campbellld
Text Box
J-11











 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted:  October 8, 2009 
 

 
 

1.  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR ................................................ 1 
2.  DESIGNATION OF ACTING CHAIR ................................................................. 1 
3.  MEETINGS ......................................................................................................... 1 
4.  REGULAR BUSINESS ....................................................................................... 1 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT ........................................................................................... 1 
6.  RULES OF ORDER ........................................................................................... 2 
7.  SUSPEND RULES ............................................................................................. 2 
8.  COMMITTEE DISCUSSION .............................................................................. 2 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-12



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 10/08/2009 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 
The selection of Chair and Vice-Chair shall be made by majority vote of the Committee 
appointed at the first committee meeting of the calendar year.  

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING CHAIR 
In the absence or disability of the Chair and the Vice Chair, the Committee Member present 
who has served longest shall be designated Acting Chair and shall perform the duties of the 
Chair. 

3. MEETINGS 
A. CALLING OF MEETINGS:  
 Meetings of the Charter Revision Committee shall be scheduled on an as 

needed basis at a time to be determined by the Clerk. 
 
B. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each meeting of the Charter Revision Committee, the business to be considered 
should include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
a) Call to Order 
b) Roll Call 
c) Approval of the Minutes 
d) Proposed Charter Amendments  
e) New Business   
f) Public Comment – Limited to Items Not on the Agenda in accordance with the 

Rules of Procedure of the Charter Revision Committee, Article 5 – Public 
Comment. 

g) Adjournment 

4. REGULAR BUSINESS 
Persons interested in addressing the Charter Revision Committee on items, which appear on 
the printed Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition 
by the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the Charter Revision Committee, 
Article 5. Other than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, the 
Committee shall not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. 
Once discussion is brought back to the Committee table, persons from the audience will be 
permitted to speak only by invitation by Committee, through the Chair.  

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person not a member of the Charter Revision Committee may address the Committee with 
recognition of the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. 
 Any member of the public shall be allowed to speak not more than once nor longer than 

three (3) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair. 
 The Charter Revision Committee may waive the requirements of this section by a majority 

of the Committee members. 
 Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 10/08/2009 

speak on one topic through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of the Committee 
members. 

6. SUSPEND RULES 
A Rule of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority or by the Chair of the meeting. 

7. COMMITTEE DISCUSSION 
No member of the Committee shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all 
other members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of the Committee 
shall be allowed to speak for more than three (3)-minutes at a time. 



campbellld
Text Box
J-13











 

 
                             
November 5, 2009 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Drive-up Materials Return at the Troy Public Library 
 
A drive-up materials return has been the most frequently requested service by Library patrons for 
several years. Implementation of a drive up materials return will improve service, efficiency and 
safety at the Troy Public Library. 
 
Funds were allocated as follows in the Library’s capital budget for fiscal 2009/10 for this project: 
 
$90,000             parking lot improvements (actual cost:  $25,226.80) 
$50,000             purchase of drive up materials return receptacles 
 
It is expected that a canopy to cover the materials returns, to protect materials from weather damage, 
will cost $15,000. The expected total cost of project is $90,000.  
 
Library staff worked with the City’s Engineering Department to create a plan that would allow patrons 
to drive up and deposit materials into a curbside receptacle. The Engineering Department addressed 
safety and traffic flow issues in the library’s parking lot, to ensure that the lot was configured in the 
safest and most effective manner.  
 
The Library’s parking lot is consistently full, and it is often difficult to find a parking space. A drive-up 
materials return allows patrons to return materials without entering the library. This is convenient, but 
also addresses numerous safety concerns, i.e. individuals unable to secure a handicapped parking 
space who must traverse the parking lot; and persons who have small children who do not want to 
walk across the library’s busy parking lot solely in order to return materials.   
 
Library workflow will be improved, as the constant flow of materials into the library is distributed over 
two locations (inside the Library and into the materials return), which will allow staff to manage 
returns more effectively. This also allows staff to maximize the limited space in the Circulation 
workroom more effectively. In addition, patron traffic in the Library’s lobby will be reduced. Should the 
Library’s hours be reduced, a drive-up materials return will be helpful for patrons who wish to return 
materials when the Library is closed. Currently, patrons must return materials inside the building if the 
Library is open.  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-14


	AGENDA: November 9, 2009
	COVER MEMO
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INSTALLATION CEREMONY:  2009-2011 City Council Convenes: a) Installation of New Members; b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure; c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a) Library Update – Troy Public Library Annual Report 2008-2009
	b) Mayor Schilling to present a Proclamation to Pam Brady in Recognition of America Recycles 2009


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2010 Application
	C-2 Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital – Troy

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Nomination and Appointment to Personnel Board

	Pending Resolution
	D-2 Scheduling of a Special Election for February 23, 2010 and Direct City Administration to Prepare Ballot Language

	Pending Resolution
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  (a) Mayoral Appointments:  None Scheduled (b) City Council Appointments: Liquor Advisory Committee
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations:  Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) (b) City Council Nominations:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Em...

	Suggested Resolution
	E-3 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 103 – Alarm Ordinance; Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required; and Chapter 88 – Nuisances
	a) Adoption of Troy City Code Chapter 103 – Alarm Ordinance
	b) Amendment of Troy City Code Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required
	c) Amendment to Troy City Code Chapter 88 – Nuisances

	E-4 Bid Waiver – Printing of Election and Voter Registration Materials
	E-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a) America Recycles 2009

	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Elevator Weight Tests, Relief Valve Testing, Bi-Monthly Inspection, and Repairs
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Hall and Banquet Services
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  US Communities Government Purchasing Alliance Program – Landscape Structures, Inc.

	F-5 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – HCR Manorcare Properties, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-03-102-022
	F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – Kirts Office Center Associates, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-28-101-054
	F-7 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Construction Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Wattles Road, 1000’ East and West of Rochester Road – Project No. 99.203.5
	F-8 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Construction Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Rochester Road from Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5
	F-9 2009 Request to Waive Recapture Form
	F-10 Request to Permit Use of Shell Crackers to Disperse Migratory Waterfowl – Emerald Lakes Subdivision
	F-11 Request from Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a New SDM License with Drive-up Window (without alcoholic beverage sales) to be Located at 2932 East Long Lake – MLCC Request #521903
	F-12 Request from Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window (without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 1965 E Big Beaver – MLCC Request #521882
	F-13 Contract Award:  Informal Quote Process – Snow Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators
	F-14 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 21, 2009

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Memorandums:
	a) City of Troy v Chowdhury/Proposed Amendment to Chapter 98 – Criminal Code


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Amended/Final – April 8, 2009
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 27, 2009
	Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – August 12, 2009
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 9, 2009
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 14, 2009
	Historic Commission/Final – September 29, 2009
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 6, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 6, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 6, 2009
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – October 12, 2009
	Planning Commission/Draft – October 13, 2009
	Planning Commission/Final – October 13, 2009
	Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 15, 2009
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 27, 2009

	J-2 Department Reports:
	City Council Expense Report – October, November 2009
	Building Department – Permits Issued September 2009
	City Manager’s Office – September 30, 2009 Quarterly Financial Report
	Golf Course Monthly Operations Summary for September 2009

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Kraig Schmottlach from Golf Course Patron Chris Coussens Regarding the Excellent Service Received from the Sylvan Glen Golf Course Staff
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Chief Nelson Regarding the Assistance and Support during Funeral for Fire Staff Technician Jack Schoenbeck
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Old Navy Leadership Team Regarding Support during Kids Safety Event
	Telephone Call from Strathmore Village Resident Beryl Bradick in Appreciation of the Outstanding Service of the Police Department
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Royal Oak Police Chief Jahnke Regarding the Police Department Support at the 2009 Woodward Dream Cruise
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Resident Victor Sandy Regarding the Efforts of the Police Department during Home Invasion
	Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Hills of Charnwood Homeowners Association
	Letter of Appreciation from Taniel Nishanian Regarding Tringali Sanitation
	Letter of Appreciation from the Family of Renee Barr Regarding the Professionalism and Kindness of Police Officers
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Peggy Ruffin Commending the Actions of Officer Giordano
	Letter of Appreciation to Timothy Richnak from Bob Schultz, Courtwood Villa Condominium Association President, Regarding the Dedication and Positive Attitudes of Public Works Staff

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	Village of Beverly Hills Resolution Opposing the Elimination of 20J Funding for Certain School Districts
	City of Royal Oak Resolution Opposing House Bill 5056
	City of Royal Oak Resolution Requesting Local Control be Retained if House Bill 5056 Passes

	J-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – September 17, 2009
	J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program Year 2009 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds
	J-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Stephanie Cobb v City of Troy d/b/a/ The Northridge Office Center
	J-8  Communication from City Council Member Robin Beltramini Regarding NLC Finance, Administration and Intergovernmental Relations Steering Committee Meeting
	J-9  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding Reimbursement Revenue
	J-10  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Regarding Class C Liquor License Transfer out of Troy – Paragon of Michigan 2360 Rochester Road
	J-11  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Regarding Wal-Mart Approval of Appeal
	J-12  Rules of Procedure for the Charter Revision Committee
	J-13  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Article on Constitutional and Charter Revision
	J-14  Communication from Library Director Cathleen Russ Regarding Drive-up Materials Return at the Troy Public Library

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



